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PART |
Item 1. Business
GENERAL

Ares Capital Corporation, a Maryland cogimm (together with its subsidiaries, where aggtlle, "Ares Capital" or the "Company,"
which may also be referred to as "we," "us" or "dUs a specialty finance company that is a clesed, non-diversified management
investment company. We have elected to be regugedbusiness development company, or a "BDC &ruthe Investment Company Act
1940, as amended, and the rules and regulationsytgated thereunder or the "Investment Company'Aée were founded on April 16,
2004, were initially funded on June 23, 2004 anahgleted our initial public offering on October &0. We are one of the largest BDCs
with approximately $6.4 billion of total assetscifecember 31, 2012.

We are externally managed by our investradntser, Ares Capital Management LLC ("Ares Cdpitanagement” or our "investment
adviser"), a wholly owned subsidiary of Ares Managat LLC ("Ares Management"), a global alternatagset manager and a Securities and
Exchange Commission ("SEC") registered investmdwisar with approximately $59 billion of total coritted capital under management as
of December 31, 2012. Ares Operations LLC ("Aregf@pions" or our "administrator"), our administrata wholly owned subsidiary of Ares
Management, provides certain administrative andragkrvices necessary for us to operate.

Our investment objective is to generaténlmairrent income and capital appreciation througiht @nd equity investments. We invest
primarily in U.S. middle-market companies, wherehedieve the supply of primary capital is limiteadathe investment opportunities are
most attractive. However, we may from time to tiimeest in larger or smaller (in particular, for @stments in early-stage and/or venture
capital-backed) companies. We generally use time teriddle-market" to refer to companies with anngBITDA between $10 million and
$250 million. As used herein, EBITDA representsinebme before net interest expense, income tagresey depreciation and amortization.

We invest primarily in first lien senioraged loans (including "unitranche" loans, which Erans that combine both senior and
mezzanine debt, generally in a first lien positj@®cond lien senior secured loans and mezzanbtewleich in some cases includes an eq
component. First and second lien senior loans géipere senior debt instruments that rank aheaibbrdinated debt of a given portfolio
company. Mezzanine debt is subordinated to seo@nd and is generally unsecured. Our investmerusriporate borrowers generally range
between $30 million and $400 million each, invegitsen project finance/power generation projectsegally range between $10 million and
$200 million each and investments in early-stagi@mventure capital-backed companies generallgedietween $1 million and $25 million
each. However, the investment sizes may be mdessithan these ranges and may vary based on, asttwrgthings, our capital availabilit
the composition of our portfolio and general micaad macro-economic factors.

To a lesser extent, we also make prefanetdor common equity investments, which have gélgdyaen non-control equity investments
of less than $20 million (usually in conjunctiontfva concurrent debt investment). However, we mayease the size or change the nature of
these investments.

The proportion of these types of investraamtl change over time given our views on, amotigeothings, the economic and credit
environment in which we are operating. In connectigth our investing activities, we may make commants with respect to indebtednes
securities of a potential portfolio company subg#dly in excess of our final investment. In sudtuations, while we may initially agree to
fund up to a certain dollar amount of an investmest may subsequently syndicate a portion of smobuat (including, without limitation, to
vehicles managed by our portfolio company, lvy KAidiset Management, L.P. ("IHAM")), such that we kefe with a smaller investment than
what




was reflected in our original commitment. In adulitto originating investments, we may also acqgmivestments in the secondary market.

The first and second lien senior securadd$an which we invest generally have stated terhtlsree to 10 years and the mezzanine debt
investments in which we invest generally have stétems of up to 10 years, but the expected avdifegef such first and second lien loans
and mezzanine debt is generally between three@rehg/ears. However, we may invest in loans andrgies with any maturity or duration.
The instruments in which we invest typically are reded by any rating agency, but we believe thsiich instruments were rated, they would
be below investment grade (rated lower than "Bég3Vioody's Investors Service, lower than "BBB-"Hjch Ratings or lower than "BBB-"
by Standard & Poor's Rating Services), which, utiderguidelines established by these entities; im@ication of having predominantly
speculative characteristics with respect to theess capacity to pay interest and repay principahds that are rated below investment grade
are sometimes referred to as "high yield bondsjumk bonds." We may invest without limit in debtather securities of any rating, as well
as debt or other securities that have not beed tany nationally recognized statistical ratimgamization.

We believe that our investment adviser,sACapital Management, is able to leverage the ouimgestment platform, resources and
existing relationships of Ares Management andffiissaed companies with financial sponsors, finednstitutions, hedge funds and other
investment firms to provide us with attractive istraent opportunities. For the purposes of this dwmnt we refer to Ares Management an
affiliated companies (other than portfolio companié its affiliated funds) as "Ares." In additiomdeal flow, the Ares investment platform
assists our investment adviser in analyzing, siriiig and monitoring investments. Ares has beexxistence for more than 15 years and its
senior partners have an average of over 23 yegesiexce in leveraged finance, private equity rdssted debt, commercial real estate
finance, investment banking and capital markete Chmpany has access to Ares' investment profedsiand administrative professionals,
who provide assistance in accounting, finance | Jegenpliance, operations, information technologg énvestor relations. As of
December 31, 2012, Ares had approximately 240 invexst professionals and approximately 320 admatist professionals.

Since our initial public offering on Octatf 2004 through December 31, 2012, our realizédsghave exceeded our realized losses by
approximately $194 million (excluding the one-tigein on the acquisition of Allied Capital Corpoaati(the "Allied Acquisition) and
gains/losses from the extinguishment of debt ahdrassets). For this same time period, our exitegstments have resulted in an aggregate
cash flow realized internal rate of return to usipproximately 13% (based on original cash investetlof syndications, of approximately
$6.8 hillion and total proceeds from such exitecestments of approximately $8.3 billion). Approxielg 72% of these exited investments
resulted in an aggregate cash flow realized inteata of return to us of 10% or greater. Intemadé of return is the discount rate that makes
the net present value of all cash flows related particular investment equal to zero. Internad dtreturn is gross of expenses related to
investments as these expenses are not allocappetific investments. Investments are considerde texited when the original investment
objective has been achieved through the receigas and/or non-cash consideration upon the repayoha debt investment or sale of an
investment or through the determination that nthierr consideration was collectible and, thus, a toay have been realized. These internal
rates of return results are historical resultstidato our past performance and are not necegsadicative of future results, the achievement
of which cannot be assured.

We and General Electric Capital Corporatiod GE Global Sponsor Finance LLC (collectivel$E") also co-invest through an
unconsolidated vehicle, the Senior Secured Loam W€, which operates using the name "Senior SetLuoan Program” (the "SSLP"). T
SSLP was initially formed in December 2007 by Alli€apital Corporation ("Allied Capital") and GEdo-invest in first lien senior secured
loans of middle-market companies. In October 20@9acquired from Allied Capital

2




subordinated certificates issued by the SSLP anmthgement rights in respect thereto. As of DecerBbeP012, the SSLP had available
capital of $9.0 billion of which approximately $&8lion in aggregate principal amount was funde®acember 31, 2012. As of

December 31, 2012, we had agreed to make avaiialle SSLP approximately $1.8 billion, of whiclpagximately $1.2 billion was funded.
The SSLP is capitalized as transactions are corwbketd all portfolio decisions and generally dfilestdecisions in respect of the SSLP must
be approved by an investment committee of the SQ@ioRisting of representatives of the Company andv@ts approval from a
representative of each required). As of DecembgRB12, our investment in the SSLP was approximaiel3 billion at fair value (including
unrealized appreciation of $25.8 million), whiclpresented approximately 21% of our total portfalidair value.

While our primary focus is to generate eatrincome and capital appreciation through investsiin first and second lien senior secured
loans and mezzanine debt and, to a lesser extgrity esecurities of eligible portfolio companiesg wlso may invest up to 30% of our
portfolio in non-qualifying assets, as permittedthg Investment Company Act. Specifically, as pathis 30% basket, we may invest in
entities that are not considered "eligible pordabmpanies” (as defined in the Investment Compent); including companies outside of the
United States, entities that are operating pursimacertain exceptions to the Investment Companty &ud publicly traded entities whose
public equity market capitalization exceeds theelgprovided for in the Investment Company Act.

In the first quarter of 2011, the stafftioé SEC (the "Staff") informally communicated tataén BDCs the Staff's belief that certain
entities, which would be classified as an "investhtompany" under the Investment Company Act buttfe exception from the definition
"investment company" set forth in Rule 3a-7 pronatdgl under the Investment Company Act, could ndtdsted as eligible portfolio
companies (as defined in Section 2(a)(46) of teestment Company Act) (i.e., in a BDC's 70% baskétualifying assets"). Subsequently,
in August 2011 the SEC issued a concept releasé' @bncept Release") which stated that "[a]s a iggmeatter, the Commission presently
does not believe that Rule 3a-7 issuers are tteedfgmall, developing and financially troubled inesses in which Congress intended BDCs
primarily to invest" and requested comment on wéetr not a 3& issuer should be considered an "eligible podfobmpany.” We provide
a comment letter in respect of the Concept Relaadecontinue to believe that the language of Se@ia)(46) of the Investment Company
Act permits a BDC to treat as "eligible portfoliompanies" entities that rely on the 3a-7 exceptitowever, given the current uncertainty in
this area (including the language in the Concepedde), we have, solely for purposes of calculatiegcomposition of our portfolio pursuant
to Section 55(a) of the Investment Company Actiiied such entities, which include the SSLP, mar-qualifying assets" should the Staff
ultimately take an official view that 3a-7 issuarg not "eligible portfolio companies."”

As of December 31, 2012, our portfolio camp, IHAM, which became an SEC registered investraduiser effective March 30, 2012,
managed 13 credit vehicles and served as the snbgedasub-servicer for three other credit vehitlesse vehicles managed or sub-
managed/sub-serviced by IHAM are collectively refdrto as the "IHAM Vehicles"), which are describednore detail under
"Investments—Ivy Hill Asset Management, L.P." Asldécember 31, 2012, IHAM had total committed cdpiteder management of
approximately $3.3 billion, which included approately $0.2 billion invested by Ares Capital in IHANM connection with IHAM's
registration as a registered investment adviseMarch 30, 2012, we received exemptive relief fithe SEC allowing us to, subject to cert
conditions, own directly or indirectly up to 100%IBIAM's outstanding equity interests and make #ddal investments in IHAM.
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About Ares

Founded in 1997, Ares is a global altersatisset manager and an SEC registered investohdaeawith approximately $59 billion of
total committed capital under management and ajppetely 560 employees as of December 31, 2012.

Ares specializes in originating and manggissets in both the leveraged finance, commeradlestate and private equity markets. A
leveraged finance activities include the originatiacquisition and management of senior loans, Yigld bonds, mezzanine debt and special
situation investments. Ares' commercial real esdatwities generally focus on lending to U.S. niédoharket real estate projects. Ares' priy
equity activities generally focus on control-oriethtequity investments in under-capitalized comawigh capital structure issues. Ares has
the ability to invest across a capital structurent senior debt to common equity. This flexibiliggmbined with Ares' "buy and hold"
philosophy, enables Ares to structure an investi@enieet the specific needs of a company rather tthe less flexible demands of the public
markets.

The following chart shows the structure &adous investment strategies of Ares as of Deezrlh, 2012:

() ARES

Platforms Ares Private Equity Ares Capital Markets
Group Group

Ares Private Debt Ares Commercial
Groop Real Estate Group

Commitied = 59 hillion ~ %25 billion ~ 523 hillion ~$2 billion

Capital

Primary Area of  ULS. Flexible Capital  Leveraged Loans ULS. Corporate Debt U.5. Real Estate Debt
Focus China Growth Capital High Yield Euro Corporate Debt

Structured Credit
Special Situations
Multi-Strategy Credit
Credit Opportunilies

Personnel — 400 investment - 50 investment = 120 investment = 25 investment
professionals professionals professionals prolessionals
Current Portlolio ~ 25 companics ~ 55() companics ~ 525 companics ~ 100 properties

Ares is organized around four primary irweent platforms: Private Equity, Capital MarketsyBte Debt and Commercial Real Estate.
Ares' senior partners have been working togethargrsup for many years and have an average ofa8/gears of experience in leveraged
finance, private equity, distressed debt, commere& estate, investment banking and capital ntarkéhey are backed by a team of
approximately 240 highly disciplined investmentfessionals which as of December 31, 2012 covenessiments in more than 1,100
companies across over 30 industries. Ares' rigoimtestment approach is based upon an intensidependent financial analysis, with a
focus on preservation of capital, diversificatioactive portfolio management. These fundamemntadierlie Ares' investment strategy and
have resulted in large pension funds, banks, imegraompanies, endowments and high net worth iddéls investing in Ares' funds.
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Ares Capital Management

Ares Capital Management, our investmentsatyis served by an origination, investment andfplio management team of
approximately 80 U.S.-based investment professsoasiof December 31, 2012 and led by the seni¢tmgrarof the Ares Private Debt Group:
Michael Arougheti, Eric Beckman, Kipp deVeer, MigthGoldstein and Michael Smith. Ares Capital Masaugnt leverages off of Ares'
investment platform and benefits from the significeapital markets, trading and research expesfigees’' investment professionals. Ares
Capital Management's investment committee has eightbers, including the senior partners of the Abgate Debt Group, senior partners
in the Ares Private Equity Group and a senior aehvig the Ares Capital Markets Group.

MARKET OPPORTUNITY
We believe that current market conditiorsspnt attractive opportunities for us to inveghiddle-market companies; specifically:

. We believe that the disruption and volatility iretbredit markets over the last several years lthgesl capital available to
certain specialty finance companies and other agpribviders, causing a reduction in competitionede market conditions
may continue to create opportunities to achievaetite risk-adjusted returns.

. We believe that many commercial and investmankb have, in recent years, de-emphasized theiceaand product
offerings to middle-market businesses in favoreofding to large corporate clients and managingakapiarkets transactions.
In addition, these lenders are limited in theidigbto underwrite and hold bank loans and highd/gecurities for middle-
market issuers as they seek to meet existing andefuegulatory capital requirements. These faatwayg result in opportunitie
for alternative funding sources to middle-markanpanies and therefore more new-issue market opgtetsi for us.

. We believe that there is a lack of market pagotints that are willing to not only underwrite lal$o hold loans. As a result, we
believe our ability to minimize syndication riskrfa company seeking financing by being able to looidloans without having
to syndicate them is a competitive advantage.

. We believe there is a large pool of un-investedaie equity capital for middle-market businesses.a¥pect private equity
firms will seek to leverage their investments byndxining equity capital with senior secured loand arezzanine debt from
other sources such as us.

. We believe that the scheduled expirations afwestment periods for a significant amount of dellalized loan obligation
vehicles may reduce the amount of funding avail&dréarger middle-market businesses over time.

. A significant volume of senior secured debt is extpd to come due over the next several years acdrdingly, we believe
that the volume of new financing opportunities cbrdmain strong as many companies seek to refinacedebtedness.

COMPETITIVE ADVANTAGES
We believe that we have the following cotitpe advantages over other capital providers tddie-market companies:
The Ares Platform

As of December 31, 2012, Ares had approteigab59 billion of total committed capital undeanmagement in the related asset classes o
non-syndicated first and second lien corporatecmimercial real estate loans, syndicated corparadecommercial real estate loans, high
yield bonds




corporate and commercial real estate mezzanineatiebprivate equity. We believe Ares' current itwesnt platform provides a competitive
advantage in terms of access to origination andetiaug activities and diligence for us. In part@uylwe believe that the Ares platform
provides us with an advantage through its deal fieweration and investment evaluation process.' Assgt management platform also
provides additional market information, company Wietige and industry insight that benefit our inmestt and due diligence process. Ares
professionals maintain extensive financial spomasat intermediary relationships, which provide valedansight and access to transactions
and information.

Seasoned Management Team

The investment professionals in the Araégsa®e Debt Group and members of our investmentsad\s investment committee also have
significant experience investing across marketas/.crhis experience also provides us with a cortigetadvantage in identifying, originatir
investing in and managing a portfolio of investnseintmiddle-market companies.

Broad Origination Strategy

We focus on self-originating most of ouvéstments by pursuing a broad array of investmppbdunities in middle-market companies
across multiple channels. We also leverage offiefextensive relationships of the broader Aredaiat, including relationships with the
portfolio companies in the IHAM Vehicles, to iddgtinvestment opportunities. We believe that tHievas for asset selectivity and that there
is a significant relationship between proprietaggldorigination and credit performance. We belighat our focus on generating proprietary
deal flow and lead investing also gives us greatatrol over capital structure, deal terms, pricamgl documentation and enables us to
actively manage our portfolio investments. Moreg¥grieading the investment process, we are ofdémta secure controlling positions in
credit tranches, thereby providing additional cohitn investment outcomes. We also have originatdabtantial proprietary deal flow from
middle-market intermediaries, which often allows@sct as the sole or principal source of insbhal capital to the borrower.

Scale and Flexible Transaction Structuring

We believe that being one of the largesCBnakes us a more desirable and flexible capitaligher, especially in competitive markets.
We are flexible and have significant experiencstincturing investments, including the types ofeisiments and the terms associated with
such investments. We believe this approach andrexmpe enables our investment adviser to identif@etive investment opportunities
throughout economic cycles and across a compaapltatstructure so we can make investments camdistith our stated investment
objective and preserve principal while seeking appate risk adjusted returns. In addition, we hiéneeability to provide "one stop" financi
with the ability to invest capital across the bakusheet and syndicate and hold larger investntieaitsmany of our competitors. We believe
that the ability to underwrite, syndicate and haldjer investments benefits our stockholders byp@entially increasing net income and
earnings through syndication, (b) increasing oatga deal flow flexibility, (c) broadening marketationships and deal flow, (d) allowing us
to optimize our portfolio composition and (e) aliog us to provide capital to a broader spectrummifdle-market companies, which we
believe currently have limited access to capitaffitraditional lending sources. In addition, weidngd that the ability to provide capital at
every level of the balance sheet provides a stwahge proposition to middle-market borrowers andsmnior debt capabilities provide
superior deal origination and relative value analgapabilities compared to traditional "mezzarong/” lenders.
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Experience with and Focus on Middl-Market Companies

Ares has historically focused on investraeéntmiddle-market companies and we benefit frois éperience. In sourcing and analyzing
deals, our investment adviser benefits from Are&resive network of relationships focused on mieudkrket companies, including
management teams, members of the investment bao&imgiunity, private equity groups and other invesitfirms with whom Ares has h
long-term relationships. We believe this networkldas us to identify well-positioned prospectivetfmlio company investments. The Ares
Private Debt Group works closely with Ares' otherdstment professionals. As of December 31, 201@s Aversaw a portfolio of
investments in over 1,100 companies across ovarddGtries, which provides access to an extensstwark of relationships and insights i
industry trends and the state of the capital market

Disciplined Investment Philosophy

In making its investment decisions, ourgisiment adviser has adopted Ares' long-standimgistent, credit-based investment approach
that was developed over 23 years ago by its found@grecifically, our investment adviser's investipilosophy, portfolio construction and
portfolio management involve an assessment of tieeadl macroeconomic environment and financial re&sland company-specific research
and analysis. Its investment approach emphasizetatpreservation, low volatility and minimizatiai downside risk. In addition to
engaging in extensive due diligence from the patdpe of a long-term investor, our investment advisapproach seeks to reduce risk in
investments by focusing on:

. businesses with strong franchises and sustaraimhpetitive advantages;

. industries with positive long-term dynamics;

. businesses and industries with cash flows tteatlapendable and predictable;

. management teams with demonstrated track reesrdisppropriate economic incentives;
. rates of return commensurate with the percensd;

. securities or investments that are structured sjigbropriate terms and covenants; and

. businesses backed by experienced private equityssps.

Extensive Industry Focus

We seek to concentrate our investing aaiwin industries with a history of predictablelatependable cash flows and in which the /
investment professionals have had extensive invagtexperience. Ares investment professionals baveloped long-term relationships
with management teams and management consultaot®irB0 industries, and have accumulated subatamtbrmation and identified
potential trends within these industries. In tume, benefit from these relationships, informatiod &fentification of potential trends in maki
investments.

OPERATING AND REGULATORY STRUCTURE

Our investment activities are managed bysACapital Management, which is wholly owned bysiiend supervised by our board of
directors, a majority of whom are independent aésAand its affiliates. Ares Capital Managemenegggstered under the Investment Advisers
Act of 1940, or the "Advisers Act." Under our Amemtand Restated Investment Advisory and ManageAgngement with Ares Capital
Management, referred to herein as our "investmdvisary and management agreement,"” we have agrgea/tAres Capital Management an
annual base management fee based on our totad,a@setefined under the Investment Company Ace(dtian cash and cash equivalents
including assets purchased with borrowed fundgj,aanincentive fee based on our
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performance. See "Investment Advisory and Manageérgreement.” Ares Operations provides us withaiaradministrative and other
services necessary for us to operate pursuant foreamded and Restated Administration Agreemengrredl to herein as our "administration
agreement." See "Administration Agreement."

As a BDC, we are required to comply withtam regulatory requirements. For example, wenategenerally permitted to invest in any
portfolio company in which a fund managed by Aresugy of its downstream affiliates (other than nd aur downstream affiliates) currently
has an investment. However, we may co-invest amnauwrent basis with funds managed by Ares or diitg downstream affiliates, subject
to compliance with existing regulatory guidanceplayable regulations and our allocation procedu@sstain types of co-investment
transactions would only be permitted pursuant texamptive order from the SEC, for which we havgligd. Any such order will be subject
to certain terms and conditions. Further thereisgsurance that this application for exemptiviefralill be granted by the SEC.

Also, while we may borrow funds to makedstments, our ability to use debt is limited intair significant aspects. In particular, BD
must have at least 200% asset coverage calculateztordance with the Investment Company Act ireotd incur debt or issue preferred
stock (which we refer to collectively as "seniocseties™), which requires us to finance our invesnts with at least as much equity as senior
securities in the aggregate. Certain of our ciieditities also require that we maintain asset cage of at least 200%.

In addition, as a consequence of our bainegulated investment company ("RIC") for U.S eiedl income tax purposes, as well as our
status as a BDC, our asset growth is dependentioalility to raise equity capital through the i@sae of common stock. RICs generally r
distribute substantially all of their earnings tockholders as dividends in order to preserve #taitus as a RIC and avoid corporiatee| U.S
federal income tax. This requirement, in turn, gat prevents us from using earnings to supportaperations including making new
investments.

MARKET CONDITIONS

Beginning in 2007, the global financial kets experienced stress, volatility, instabilitiiquidity and disruption. While this volatility
and disruption peaked in 2008 to 2009 and appedrave abated somewhat, the availability of capital access to capital markets has been
limited over the last several years. As the gldioailidity situation and market conditions evolves will continue to monitor and adjust our
approach to funding accordingly. Given the insigbih the global markets over the past severatyead the uncertainty around the strength
of the U. S. economic recovery, there can be norasses that these activities will be successhdessuch market conditions could worsen
again in the future. If they do, we could face matky higher financing costs. Consequently, oueigting strategy could be materially and
adversely affected. See "Risk Factors—Risks RejatrOur Business—Capital markets have been irriagef disruption and instability for
an extended period of time. These market conditinaterially and adversely affected debt and eqrapital markets in the United States,
which had, and may in the future have, a negatijgaict on our business and operations."

In connection with the prior depressed maadonditions of the general economy, the stockBEs as an industry have in the past
traded at near historic lows as a result of corecexer liquidity, credit quality, leverage restigets and distribution requirements. In some
cases, certain BDCs became "forced sellers" otgsefaulted on their indebtedness, decreaseddistiibutions to stockholders or
announced share repurchase programs. Although lieé¢hat we currently have sufficient capitaftioad our investments and operations,
we cannot assure you that the market pressuresaydane in the future will not have a material adeeeffect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.




INVESTMENTS
Ares Capital Corporation Portfolio

We have built an investment portfolio oinparily first and second lien loans, mezzanine a@gtat, to a lesser extent, equity investments
in private middle-market companies. Our portfolanell diversified by industry sector and its cantcation to any single issuer is limited.
Our largest investment as of December 31, 2012invdee subordinated certificates of the SSLP. TBEFSconsists of a diverse portfolio of
first lien senior secured loans to 36 differentrbasers as of December 31, 2012 and the portfollopamies in the SSLP are in industries
similar to the companies in Ares Capital's portfolDur investment in the SSLP represented apprdgigna1% of our portfolio fair value as
of December 31, 2012.

Our debt investments in corporate borrovgerserally range between $30 million and $400 omlkeach, investments in project
finance/power generation projects generally raregfevben $10 million and $200 million each and inpesits in early-stage and/or venture
capitalbacked companies generally range between $1 méliwh$25 million each. However, the sizes of ouegtments may be more or |
than these ranges and may vary based on, amongthithgs, our capital availability, the compositiohour portfolio and general micro- and
macro-economic factors.

Our preferred and/or common equity investis&ave generally been non-control equity investmef less than $20 million (usually in
conjunction with a concurrent debt investment). ldger, we may increase the size or change the nattihese investments.

In addition, the proportion of these typéinvestments will change over time given our vdean, among other things, the economic and
credit environment in which we are operating. Inmection with our investing activities, we may maloemitments with respect to
indebtedness or securities of a potential portfotimpany substantially in excess of our expecieal fiold size. In such situations, while we
may initially agree to fund up to a certain dobanount of an investment, we may subsequently sgtel@ portion of such amount such that
we are left with a smaller investment than what vediected in our original commitment. We may atyadicate a "first out" tranche of a loan
to an investor and retain a "last out" trancheughsloan, in which case the "first out” trancheso€h loan will generally receive priority with
respect to payments of principal, interest andahgr amounts due thereunder. In addition to oaigig investments, we may also acquire
investments in the secondary market.

We make senior secured loans primariljhanform of first lien loans (including unitrancteahs) and second lien loans. Our senior
secured loans generally have terms of three teed@sy In connection with our senior secured loamg@nerally receive a security interest in
certain of the assets of the borrower and conselyuguch assets serve as collateral in suppoti@fépayment of such senior secured loans.
Senior secured loans are generally exposed te&st amount of credit risk because they typicadlig la senior position with respect to
scheduled interest and principal payments and ggdoterests in assets of the borrower. Howevalike mezzanine debt, senior secured
loans typically do not receive any stock, warrdaatpurchase stock or other yield enhancementsoSsacured loans may include both
revolving lines of credit and term loans.

Structurally, mezzanine debt usually rasikisordinate in priority of payment to senior sedumans and is often unsecured. However,
mezzanine debt ranks senior to common and prefeqatty in a borrowers' capital structure. Mezzardebt investments offer lenders fixed
returns in the form of interest payments and wfiéio provide lenders an opportunity to participatéhe capital appreciation of a borrower, if
any, through an equity interest. This equity indétgpically takes the form of an equity co-investrhand/or warrants. Due to its higher risk
profile and often less restrictive covenants aspamed to senior secured loans, mezzanine debtajnieears a higher stated interest rate
than senior secured loans. The equity co-investauethivarrants (if any) associated with a
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mezzanine debt investment typically allow lenderseteive repayment of their principal on an agr@madrtization schedule while retaining
their equity interest in the borrower. Equity isgule connection with mezzanine debt also may ineladput” feature, which permits the
holder to sell its equity interest back to the barer at a price determined through an agreed famul

In making an equity investment, in addittorconsidering the factors discussed below unddnVestment Selection," we also consider
the anticipated timing of a liquidity event, suchaapublic offering, sale of the company or redéompdf our equity securities.

We generally seek to invest in companigindustries in which Ares' investment profesale have direct expertise. The following is
a representative list of the industries in whichheee invested:

. Aerospace and Defense

. Automotive Services

. Business Services

. Consumer Products

. Containers and Packaging
. Education

. Energy

. Environmental Services

. Financial Services

. Food and Beverage

. Healthcare Services

. Investment Funds and Vehicles
. Manufacturing

. Oil and Gas

. Other Services

. Restaurant and Food Services
. Retalil

. Telecommunications

However, we may invest in other industifage are presented with attractive opportunities.
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The industrial and geographic compositiohsur portfolio at fair value as of December 3012 and 2011 were as follows:

As of
December 31
2012 2011

Industry

Investment Funds and Vehicles 21.7% 23.%
Healthcare Service 12.¢€ 13.4
Education 7.8 11.2
Financial Service 7.3 6.4
Restaurants and Food Servii 7.1 6.8
Other Service: 6.7 2.5
Consumer Produc 6.6 54
Business Service 6.4 6.€
Containers and Packagi 5.1 4.t
Energy 3.7 1.2
Automotive Service 34 1.1
Manufacturing 2.4 2.8
Aerospace and Defen 2.C 3.€
Telecommunication 1.6 2.C
Oil and Gas 1.C 0.7
Other 4.3 8.1

Total 100.(% 100.(%

(1) Includes our investment in the SSLP, which hedle first lien senior secured loans to 36 andiff@rent borrowers as
of December 31, 2012 and 2011, respectively. Th#glio companies in the SSLP are in industriesilsinto the
companies in the Company's portfol

As of
December 31,
2012 2011
Geographic Region
West 49.1% 48./%
Midwest 19.2 14.F
Southeas 14.7 21.2
Mid Atlantic 12.€ 12.€
Northeas 2.3 1.7
Internationa 1.¢ 14
Total 100.% 100.(%

Ivy Hill Asset Management, L.P.

We have made investments in our portfatimpany, IHAM, an SEC registered investment adviseryell as in certain IHAM Vehicles.
As of December 31, 2012, IHAM managed 13 crediicleb and served as the sub-manager/sub-servicthrée other vehicles. As of
December 31, 2012, IHAM had total committed capitadler management of approximately $3.3 billioniclvlincluded approximately
$0.2 billion invested by Ares Capital in IHAM.
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From time to time, IHAM or certain IHAM Véties may purchase investments from us or sellstments to us, in each case for a price
equal to the fair market value of such investmeletermined at the time of such transactions.

IHAM is party to an administration agreemeaferred to herein as the "IHAM administratiagreement,” with our administrator, Ares
Operations. Pursuant to the IHAM administrationeggnent, Ares Operations provides IHAM with, amotiteothings, office facilities,
equipment, clerical, bookkeeping and record keepargices, services relating to the marketing ahel af interests in vehicles managed by
IHAM, services of, and oversight of, custodiangy@stories, accountants, attorneys, underwritedssarch other persons in any other cap
deemed to be necessary. Under the IHAM administraggreement, IHAM reimburses Ares Operations Hasfahe actual costs associated
with such services, including Ares Operations'alie portion of overhead and the cost of its efic employees and respective staff in
performing its obligations under the IHAM adminaton agreement.

INVESTMENT SELECTION

Ares' investment philosophy was developest the past 23 years and has remained consistdmelevant throughout a number of
economic cycles. We are managed using a similasimvent philosophy used by the investment profaatsmf Ares in Ares' private
investment funds.

This investment philosophy involves, amotiger things:

. an assessment of the overall macroeconomic@amwvient and financial markets and how such assessnagnimpact industry
and asset selection;

. company-specific research and analysis; and

. with respect to each individual company, an emghasicapital preservation, low volatility and mii@ation of downside risk.

The foundation of Ares' investment phildsgs intensive credit investment analysis, a plidfmanagement discipline based on both
market technicals and fundamental value-orientedaxch, and diversification strategy. We follovigiorous investment process based on:

. a comprehensive analysis of issuer creditworthinaskiding a quantitative and qualitative assesgroéthe issuer's business;
. an evaluation of management and its economic inent

. an analysis of business strategy and industry $;esmt

. an in-depth examination of capital structure, fitiahresults and projections.

We seek to identify those companies exinipisuperior fundamental risk-reward profiles atrdrsy defensible business franchises while
focusing on the relative value of the investmembss the industry as well as for the specific camypa

Intensive Due Diligence

The process through which an investmenis@®tis made involves extensive research intddhget company, its industry, its growth
prospects and its ability to withstand adverse dant. If the senior investment professional resible for the transaction determines tha
investment opportunity should be pursued, we wiflage in an intensive due diligence process. Apprately
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30-40% of the investments initially reviewed bypmreceed to this phase. Though each transactioninwvidlve a somewhat different approach,
the regular due diligence steps generally undentaikaude:

. meeting with the target company's management tamgéisider's view of the business, and to prob@dtential weaknesses in
business prospects;

. checking management's backgrounds and references

. performing a detailed review of historical firtgad performance, including performance throughiotzs economic cycles, and
the quality of earnings;

. visiting headquarters and company operations aretintewith top and middle-level executives;
. contacting customers and vendors to assess baittesagprospects and standard practices;
. conducting a competitive analysis, and comparieggbuer to its main competitors on an operatiingcial, market share and

valuation basis;

. researching the industry for historic growtmtite and future prospects as well as to identifyriuexit alternatives (including
available Wall Street research, industry assoaiditerature and general news);

. assessing asset value and the ability of physifadstructure and information systems to handlegated growth; and

. investigating legal risks and financial and accounsystems.
Selective Investment Process

After an investment has been identified praliminary diligence has been completed, a credi¢éarch and analysis report is prepared.
This report is reviewed by the senior investmenfgssional in charge of the potential investmerguth senior and other investment
professionals are in favor of the potential investinthen it is first presented to an underwrittognmittee, which is comprised of the senior
partners of the Ares Private Debt Group.

After the investment is approved by theamditing committee, a more extensive due diligepeess is employed by the transaction
team. Additional due diligence with respect to angestment may be conducted on our behalf by agi@nindependent accountants, and
other third party consultants and research firniar po the closing of the investment, as approprit a case-by-case basis. Approximately 7-
10% of all investments initially reviewed by us Mik presented to the investment committee. Approfzan investment for funding requires
the approval of the majority of the investment cattew of Ares Capital Management, although unansnmmnsent is sought.

Issuance of Formal Commitment

Once we have determined that a prospeptivifolio company is suitable for investment, werkvavith the management and/or sponsor
of that company and its other capital providersluding senior, junior and equity capital provideéfsny, to finalize the structure of the
investment. Approximately 5-7% of the investmenisidlly reviewed by us eventually result in theuance of formal commitments and the
closing of such transactions.

Debt Investments

We invest in portfolio companies primaiiythe form of first lien senior secured loans [iing unitranche loans), second lien senior
secured loans and mezzanine debt. The first armhddien senior secured loans generally have tefrttsree to 10 years. In connection with
our first and second lien senior secured loanseveiglly receive security interests in the assetsioportfolio companies
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that will serve as collateral in support of theayment of such loans. First and second lien sesgioured loans generally have floating inte
rates, which may have LIBOR floors, and also mayvijote for some amortization of principal and exaessh flow payments, with the
remaining principal balance due at maturity.

We structure our mezzanine investments gmilgnas unsecured subordinated loans that prdeideslatively high fixed interest rates that
provide us with significant current interest incarfibe mezzanine debt investments generally hawestef up to 10 years. These loans
typically have interest-only payments, with amatian of principal, if any, deferred to the laterays of the mezzanine investment. In some
cases, we may enter into loans that, by their tecorsvert into equity or additional debt or defayments of interest (or at least cash interest)
for the first few years after our investment. Alsosome cases our mezzanine debt will be secwyredsibordinated lien on some or all of the
assets of the borrower.

In some cases, our debt investments mayigedor a portion of the interest payable to bgrpant-inkind ("PIK") interest. To the exte
interest is PIK, it will be payable through ther@ase of the principal amount of the loan by thewamh of interest due on the then-outstanding
aggregate principal amount of such loan.

In the case of our first and second liemaesecured loans and mezzanine debt, we taiéotetms of the investment to the facts and
circumstances of the transaction and the prospeptivtfolio company, negotiating a structure thatsato protect our rights and manage our
risk while creating incentives for the portfoliorapany to achieve its business plan and improverdgtability. For example, in addition to
seeking a senior position in the capital structfreur portfolio companies, we will seek, where @ygpiate, to limit the downside potential of
our investments by:

. targeting a total return on our investments (intigdoth interest and potential equity apprecigtibat compensates us for
credit risk;

. incorporating "put" rights, call protection and LOR floors for floating rate loans, into the investmstructure; and

. negotiating covenants in connection with our inwesits that afford our portfolio companies as muekilbility in managing

their businesses as possible, consistent with pratsen of our capital. Such restrictions may imtgwaffirmative and negative
covenants, default penalties, lien protection, geant control provisions and board rights, inclyg@ither observation or
participation rights.

We generally require financial covenantd terms that require an issuer to reduce levethgesby enhancing credit quality. These
methods include: (a) maintenance leverage covemeqtsring a decreasing ratio of indebtedness b daw over time, (b) maintenance cash
flow covenants requiring an increasing ratio oftcisw to the sum of interest expense and capitpéaditures and (c) indebtedness
incurrence prohibitions, limiting a company's alitio take on additional indebtedness. In additinincluding limitations on asset sales and
capital expenditures we may be able to preventn@pemy from changing the nature of its businessapitalization without our consent.

Our debt investments may include equityuess, such as warrants or options to buy a minarierest in the portfolio company.
Warrants we receive with our debt investments neayire only a nominal cost to exercise, and thsig, portfolio company appreciates in
value, we may achieve additional investment reftom this equity interest. We may structure thenamats to provide provisions protecting
our rights as a minority-interest holder, as welpats, or rights to sell such securities backoportfolio company, upon the occurrence of
specified events. In many cases, we also obtaistration rights in connection with these equitiemests, which may include demand and
"piggyback" registration rights.
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Equity Investments

To a lesser extent, we also make prefeangtlor common equity investments, which have gdigdraen non-control equity investments
of less than $20 million (usually in conjunctiontive concurrent debt investment). However, we mayeiase the size or change the nature of
these investments.

ON-GOING RELATIONSHIPS WITH AND MONITORING OF PORTF OLIO COMPANIES

We closely monitor each investment we makaintain a regular dialogue with both the managsgrteam and other stakeholders and
seek specifically tailored financial reporting.dddition, senior investment professionals may tada&rd seats or obtain board observation
rights for our portfolio companies. As of DecemBér 2012, of our 152 portfolio companies, we wentitled to board seats or board
observation rights on 50% of these companies.

We seek to exert significant influence gasestment, in addition to covenants and othetremtual rights and through board
participation, when appropriate, by actively workiwith management on strategic initiatives. Wemftearoduce managers of companies in
which we have invested to other portfolio compamiesapitalize on complementary business activiies best practices.

Our investment adviser employs an investreging system to categorize our investmentsdutitaon to various risk management and
monitoring tools, our investment adviser gradesctieglit risk of all investments on a scale of Ztwo less frequently than quarterly. This
system is intended primarily to reflect the undiedyrisk of a portfolio investment relative to aunitial cost basis in respect of such portfolio
investment (i.e., at the time of acquisition), aligh it may also take into account under certaicuonstances the performance of the portfolio
company's business, the collateral coverage ahtrestment and other relevant factors. Under tyssesn, investments with a grade of 4
involve the least amount of risk to our initial tbasis. The trends and risk factors for this itmesit since origination or acquisition are
generally favorable, which may include the perfomeeof the portfolio company or a potential exitvéstments graded 3 involve a level of
risk to our initial cost basis that is similar teetrisk to our initial cost basis at the time dfjoration or acquisition. This portfolio company is
generally performing as expected and the risk fadtw our ability to ultimately recoup the costoafr investment are neutral to favorable. All
investments or acquired investments in new podfoimpanies are initially assessed a grade ofv@stments graded 2 indicate that the risk
to our ability to recoup the initial cost basissoich investment has increased materially sincénatign or acquisition, including as a result of
factors such as declining performance and non-camg® with debt covenants; however, payments arergély not more than 120 days past
due. An investment grade of 1 indicates that thle o our ability to recoup the initial cost basfsuch investment has substantially increased
since origination or acquisition, and the portfalmmpany likely has materially declining performanEor debt investments with an
investment grade of 1, most or all of the debt oawves are out of compliance and payments are sutasha delinquent. For investments
graded 1, it is anticipated that we will not recaup initial cost basis and may realize a substhtass of our initial cost basis upon exit. For
investments graded 1 or 2, our investment adviseaces its level of scrutiny over the monitorifigach portfolio company. Our investm:
adviser grades the investments in our portfolieast each quarter and it is possible that theegohié portfolio investment may be reduced or
increased over time.

As of December 31, 2012, the weighted ayegrade of our portfolio was 3.1. For more infotiora see "Management's Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Ggtems—Portfolio and Investment Activity."

15




MANAGERIAL ASSISTANCE

As a BDC, we must offer, and must provigemirequest, significant managerial assistancet@ia of our portfolio companies. This
assistance could involve, among other things, mani the operations of our portfolio companiestipgating in board and management
meetings, consulting with and advising officergpoftfolio companies and providing other organizagicand financial guidance. Ares
Operations may provide all or a portion of thisists®ice pursuant to our administration agreembatcosts of which will be reimbursed by
us. We may receive fees for these services.

COMPETITION

Our primary competitors include public grévate funds, commercial and investment banks,mmemial finance companies, other BC
and private equity funds, each of which we compeéti for financing opportunities. Many of our contipers are substantially larger and h
considerably greater financial and marketing resesithan we do. For example, some competitors rmag access to funding sources thal
not available to us. In addition, some of our cotitpes may have higher risk tolerances or diffenésit assessments, which could allow them
to consider a wider variety of investments andl#ista more relationships than we do. Furthermoranyrof our competitors are not subjec
the regulatory restrictions that the Investment @any Act imposes on us as a BDC. For additionarimftion concerning the competitive
risks we face, see "Risk Factors—Risks RelatinQuo Business—We operate in a highly competitivekaiafor investment opportunities.”

We believe that the relationships of themhers of our investment adviser's investment cotemind of the senior partners of Ares
enable us to learn about, and compete effectiwlyfihancing opportunities with attractive middtearket companies in the industries in
which we seek to invest. We believe that Ares'gssionals' deep and long-standing direct sponsatiaeships and the resulting proprietary
transaction opportunities that these relationsbffen present, provide valuable insight and actesmnsactions and information. We use the
industry information of Ares' investment professitsnto which we have access to assess investns&atand determine appropriate pricing
for our investments in portfolio companies.

STAFFING

We do not currently have any employeesdmdot expect to have any employees. Services sagefor our business are provided by
individuals who are employees or affiliates of owestment adviser, Ares Capital Management, amédministrator, Ares Operations, each
of which is a wholly owned subsidiary of Ares Maratent, pursuant to the terms of our investmentsadyiand management agreement and
our administration agreement, respectively, eadteasribed below. Each of our executive officerarismployee or affiliate of Ares Capital
Management or Ares Operations. Our day-to-day imvest activities are managed by our investmentsaiviMost of the services necessary
for the origination of our investment portfolio gyeovided by investment professionals employed bgsACapital Management. Ares Capital
Management has approximately 80 Ub&sed investment professionals who focus on ofigimatransaction development, investment ane
ongoing monitoring of our investments. See "Investtmdvisory and Management Agreement"” below. Walerse both Ares Capital
Management and Ares Operations for a certain podfeexpenses incurred in connection with sucHisfas described in more detail
below. Because we have no employees, Ares Capitdl dot have a formal employee relations policy.
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INVESTMENT ADVISORY AND MANAGEMENT AGREEMENT
Management Service

Ares Capital Management serves as our imass adviser and is registered as an investmesigexdunder the Advisers Act. Subject to
the overall supervision of our board of directang; investment adviser manages the day-to-day tipesaof, and provides investment
advisory and management services to, Ares Capitaler the terms of the investment advisory and mement agreement, Ares Capital
Management:

. determines the composition of our portfolio, tiegure and timing of the changes to our portfafid the manner of
implementing such changes;

. identifies, evaluates and negotiates the struaifitiee investments we make (including performing diligence on our
prospective portfolio companies);

. closes and monitors the investments we make;

. determines the investments and other assets thatikgbase, retain or sell; and

. provides us with such other investment advisory@seéarch and related services as we may fromttirtime reasonably
require.

Ares Capital Management's services to aeuthe investment advisory and management agraeareenot exclusive, and it is free to
furnish similar services to other entities. Sinilagffiliates of our investment adviser may difgar indirectly manage funds or other
investment vehicles with investment objectives Ento ours. Accordingly, we may compete with thAses funds or other investment
vehicles managed by our investment adviser araffitates for capital and investment opportunitidses Capital Management endeavors to
allocate investment opportunities in a fair anditdple manner, and in any event consistent withfatuciary duties owed to Ares Capital.
Nevertheless, it is possible that we may not bermgihie opportunity to participate in certain inveshts made by investment funds or of
investment vehicles managed by Ares Capital Manageor its affiliates.

The sole member of Ares Capital ManagernseAtes Management, a global alternative asset garend an SEC registered investment
adviser. As of December 31, 2012, Ares had appratéim $59 billion of total committed capital undaanagement.

Management Fe¢

Pursuant to the investment advisory andagament agreement and subject to the overall sispmmof our board of directors, Ares
Capital Management provides investment advisoryraadagement services to us. For providing thesgécss; Ares Capital Management
receives a fee from us consisting of two componreatdase management fee and an incentive fee.

The base management fee is calculated anamal rate of 1.5% based on the average valoardbtal assets (other than cash or cash
equivalents but including assets purchased witholagrd funds) at the end of the two most recentipgleted calendar quarters. The base
management fee is payable quarterly in arrears.

Incentive Fee

The incentive fee has two parts. The fiest is calculated and payable quarterly in arrbasgd on our pre-incentive fee net investment
income for the quarter. Pre-incentive fee net itmesit income means interest income, dividend incanteany other income (including any
other fees such as commitment, origination, stmiredyl diligence and consulting fees or other féed tve receive from portfolio companies
but excluding fees for providing managerial assistd accrued during the calendar
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quarter, minus operating expenses for the qudrteludiing the base management fee, any expensebleaynder the administration
agreement, and any interest expense and dividexidp any outstanding preferred stock, but exolgdhe incentive fee). Pre-incentive fee
net investment income includes, in the case ofdstments with a deferred interest feature such akehdiscount, debt instruments with PIK
interest, preferred stock with PIK dividends antbzeoupon securities, accrued income that we havget received in cash. Our investment
adviser is not under any obligation to reimburséonsny part of the incentive fee it received thvals based on accrued interest that we never
actually receive. See "Risk Factors—Risks Relatin@ur Business—There are significant potentialflorts of interest that could impact our
investment returns" and "Risk Factors—Risks Refpt;mOur Business—We may be obligated to pay owgdtment adviser incentive
compensation even if we incur a loss."

Preincentive fee net investment income does not irelagly realized capital gains, realized capitaldesanrealized capital appreciati
unrealized capital depreciation or income tax espaelated to realized gains. Because of the smeictf the incentive fee, it is possible that
we may pay an incentive fee in a quarter wherengaria loss. For example, if we receive preentive fee net investment income in exce:
the hurdle rate (as defined below) for a quarterwill pay the applicable incentive fee even if nave incurred a loss in that quarter due to
realized and/or unrealized capital losses.

Pre-incentive fee net investment incomeyressed as a rate of return on the value of ouasstts (defined as total assets less
indebtedness and before taking into account argniinge fees payable during the period) at the dnideoimmediately preceding calendar
quarter, is compared to a fixed "hurdle rate" @b% per quarter. If market credit spreads risemag be able to invest our funds in debt
instruments that provide for a higher return, whicdly increase our pre-incentive fee net investrimauime and make it easier for our
investment adviser to surpass the fixed hurdleaatkreceive an incentive fee based on such nesiment income. To the extent we have
retained pre-incentive fee net investment incora¢ ltlas been used to calculate this part of thenthaefee, it is also included in the amount
of our total assets (other than cash and cash @&euis but including assets purchased with borrdweds) used to calculate the 1.5% base
management fee.

We pay our investment adviser an incerfiseewith respect to our pre-incentive fee net itmesnt income in each calendar quarter as
follows:

. no incentive fee in any calendar quarter in Whaar pre-incentive fee net investment income adugexceed the hurdle rate;

. 100% of our pre-incentive fee net investmenbine with respect to that portion of such pre-inaentee net investment
income, if any, that exceeds the hurdle rate blasis than 2.1875% in any calendar quarter. We tefghis portion of our pre-
incentive fee net investment income (which excdbddurdle rate but is less than 2.1875%) as theHeup" provision. The
"catch-up" is meant to provide our investment aglvigith 20% of the pre-incentive fee net investrirobme as if a hurdle
rate did not apply if this net investment incomeeeded 2.1875% in any calendar quarter; and

. 20% of the amount of our pre-incentive fee ngestment income, if any, that exceeds 2.1875%yncalendar quarter.
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The following is a graphical representatidithe calculation of the income-related portidrite incentive fee:

Quarterly Incentive Fee Based on Net Investment Irame
Pre-incentive fee net investment income return
(expressed as a percentage of the value of net dsye

0 L75% 2.1875%
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Percentage of pre-incentive fee net investment inocee
allocated to income-related portion of incentive fe

These calculations will be appropriatelg pated for any period of less than three monthisaajusted for any share issuances or
repurchases during the calendar quarter.

The second part of the incentive fee (thapgital Gains Fee"), is determined and payablergaas as of the end of each calendar yea
upon termination of our investment advisory and aggment agreement, as of the termination datejsazalculated at the end of each
applicable year by subtracting (a) the sum of aimulative aggregate realized capital losses anteggte unrealized capital depreciation
from (b) our cumulative aggregate realized cagjtahs, in each case calculated from October 8, .2R64dlized capital gains and losses
include gains and losses on investments and foigencies, as well as gains and losses on exsimgent of debt and other assets. If such
amount is positive at the end of such year, therGhpital Gains Fee for such year is equal to 2D8uch amount, less the aggregate amount
of Capital Gains Fees paid in all prior yearsuiéls amount is negative, then there is no Capitat$Gaee for such year.

The cumulative aggregate realized capaaigare calculated as the sum of the differernitpssitive, between (a) the net sales price of
each investment in our portfolio when sold andtfig) accreted or amortized cost basis of such imest

The cumulative aggregate realized capitsdés are calculated as the sum of the amountsioh a) the net sales price of each
investment in our portfolio when sold is less tiflanthe accreted or amortized cost basis of suedsiment.

The aggregate unrealized capital deprecias calculated as the sum of the differencasegfative, between (a) the valuation of each
investment in our portfolio as of the applicablepifal Gains Fee calculation date and (b) the aedret amortized cost basis of such
investment.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, as a restitn amendment to the capital gains portion ofitikentive fee under the investment advisory
and management agreement (the "Capital Gains Amentijrthat was approved on June 6, 2011, if weegeired by generally accepted
accounting principles ("GAAP") to record an investrhat its fair value as of the time of acquisitinstead of at the actual amount paid for
such investment by us (including, for example, assallt of the application of the acquisition methud accounting), then solely for the
purposes of calculating the Capital Gains Fee)dbereted or amortized cost basis" of an investraball be an amount (the "Contractual
Cost Basis") equal to (1) (x) the actual amound figi us for such investment plus (y) any amountenaded in our financial statements as
required by GAAP that are attributable to the atioreof such investment plus (z) any other adjustimenade to the cost basis included in
financial statements, including PIK interest oritiddal amounts funded (net of repayments) minQsa(® amounts recorded in our financial
statements as required by GAAP that are attribatabthe amortization of such investment, whetiiehscalculated Contractual Cost Basis is
higher or lower than the fair value of such investin(as determined in accordance with GAAP) atithe of acquisition.
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We defer cash payment of any incentiveotberwise earned by our investment adviser if dutire most recent four full calendar qué
period ending on or prior to the date such payrietd be made the sum of (a) the aggregate disioisito our stockholders and (b) the
change in net assets (defined as total assetmbdstedness and before taking into account argnimee fees payable during the period) is
less than 7.0% of our net assets (defined asdetats less indebtedness) at the beginning ofpmrabd. Any deferred incentive fees are
carried over for payment in subsequent calculgtiemods to the extent such payment is payable umgleinvestment advisory and
management agreement.

Payment of Our Expense

The services of all investment professisraaid staff of our investment adviser, when antiecextent engaged in providing investment
advisory and management services to us and roov@dead expenses of such personnel allocablectosarvices, are provided and paid for
by Ares Capital Management. We bear all other castsexpenses of our operations and transactiotisding, but not limited to, those
relating to: rent; organization; calculation of st asset value (including, but not limited te tost and expenses of any independent
valuation firm); expenses incurred by Ares Capilahagement payable to third parties, including #geronsultants or other advisers, in
monitoring our financial and legal affairs and immitoring our investments and performing due ditige on our prospective portfolio
companies; interest payable on indebtedness, ifinayrred to finance our investments; offering®of common stock and other securities;
investment advisory and management fees; admitistriees; fees payable to third parties, includiggnts, consultants or other advisers,
relating to, or associated with, evaluating and imgknvestments; transfer agent and custodial fieggstration fees; listing fees; taxes;
independent directors' fees and expenses; coptepéring and filing reports or other documentslie SEC; the costs of any reports, proxy
statements or other notices to stockholders, imetpdrinting costs; to the extent we are covereauty joint insurance policies, our allocable
portion of the insurance premiums for such polictect costs and expenses of administrationudioly auditor and legal costs; and all ot
expenses incurred by us or Ares Operations in adimmewith administering our business as descrihadore detail under "Administration
Agreement” below.

Duration, Termination and Amendmer

At an in-person meeting of our board o&diors on March 16, 2011, the form of our curremestment advisory and management
agreement, including two proposed amendments téheur existing investment advisory and managengmeteanent, was approved by our
board of directors with the recommendation thatldtolders of the Company vote to approve the pregg@nendments. On June 6, 2011,
stockholders approved the proposed amendments amtgered into a restated investment advisory athgement agreement, reflecting
such amendments on June 6, 2011. At an in-persetingeof our board of directors on May 3, 2012, baard of directors, including a
majority of the directors who are not "interestetigons” of the Company as defined in the Investi@emipany Act, voted to approve the
continuation of the investment advisory and managgragreement to June 6, 2013.

Unless terminated earlier, the investmelwtsory and management agreement will automaticatgw for successive annual periods if
approved annually by our board of directors orlmydffirmative vote of the holders of a majorityoafr outstanding voting securities,
including, in either case, approval by a majorityor directors who are not "interested personghefCompany (as defined in the Investment
Company Act).

In voting to approve the current investmahitisory and management agreement, the indepeduleators had the opportunity to consult
in executive session with counsel to the Compaggnding the approval of such agreement. In reachidgcision to approve the current
investment advisory and
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management agreement, our board of directors redewnsignificant amount of information and consedelamong other things:

() the nature, extent and quality of the advisory atier services to be provided to the Company byirougstment adviser;
(i) the long and short-term investment performancé@®Gompany and our investment adviser;

(i)  the costs of the services to be provided by ouestment adviser (including management fees, advfees and expense
ratios);

(iv)  the limited potential for economies of scalénvestment management associated with a lamgtat base for investments in
first and second lien senior loans and mezzanibeated whether such limited economies of scale abehefit our
stockholders;

(v) our investment adviser's estimated pro forma @bility with respect to managing us;

(vi)  the limited potential for our investment advisedats affiliates to derive additional benefits a®ault of our relationship with
our investment adviser; and

(vii)  various other matters.

In voting to approve the current investmahitisory and management agreement, our boardesftdrs, including all of the directors w
are not "interested persons," of the Company, nfaeléollowing conclusions:

. Nature, Extent and Quality of Services Our board of directors considered the naturesrexand quality of the investment
selection process employed by our investment aghiiseluding the flow of transaction opportunitiesulting from Ares
Capital Management's investment professionalsifgignt capital markets, trading and research eigeerthe employment of
Ares Capital Management's investment philosopHigetice procedures, credit recommendation progessstment
structuring, and ongoing relationships with and itwsing of portfolio companies, in light of the iastment objective of the
Company. Our board of directors also consideredraugstment adviser's personnel and their prioeggpce in connection
with the types of investments made by us, includingh personnel's network of relationships witkrmtediaries focused on
middle-market companies. Our board of directors atnsidered the benefit and increasing costs oinvestment adviser
continuing to be able to recruit and retain toprial In addition, our board of directors considdtezlother terms and conditic
of the investment advisory and management agreei®entboard of directors concluded that the sultistaterms of the
investment advisory and management agreement (iththerthe fees payable thereunder, which our bofdiectors reviewed
separately), including the services to be provided,generally the same as those of comparable Ble&sibed in the
available market data and that it would be difficalobtain similar services of similar quality artomparable basis from other
third party services providers or through an indignmanaged structure. In addition, our boardicéators considered the fact
that we have the ability to terminate the investhaslvisory and management agreement without peopliy 60 days' written
notice to our investment adviser. Our board ofaoes further determined that our investment adviseerved by a dedicated
origination, transaction development and investntesitn of investment professionals, and that thegestment professionals
have historically focused on investments in midddarket companies and have developed an investraehiagion process a
an extensive network of relationships with finahsjonsors and intermediaries focused on middleetaompanies, which
experience and relationships coincide with our stwent objective and generally equal or exceecetbbthe management
teams or investment advisers of other comparabl€Bfescribed in the available market data.
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Investment Performance. Our board of directors reviewed the long-term ahdrt-term investment performance of the
Company and our investment adviser, as well as eoatipe data with respect to the long-term andtsteom investment
performance of other externally managed BDCs aeit thvestment advisers. Our board of directorgeined that our
investment adviser was delivering results consistéth the investment objective of the Company #rat the Company's
investment performance was generally above averaga compared to comparable BDCs. Our board otttire further
determined that in light of the performance histofyhe Company, our investment adviser's extensiperience with our
particular investment objectives and policies andinvestment adviser's commitment to the Comp#rg/jnvestment
performance of the Company was likely to remainststent with the approval of the investment adyisorxd management
agreement.

Costs of the Services Provided to the Compan Our board of directors considered (i) comparatisata based on publicly
available information with respect to services emed and the advisory fees (including the base gemant fee and incentive
fees (including hurdle rates)) of other BDCs wiinigar investment objectives, our operating expsresgd expense ratios
compared to other BDCs of similar size and withilsiminvestment objectives and (ii) the administratservices that our
administrator will provide to us at cost. Basedmie review, our board of directors determined tha fees to be paid under
the investment advisory and management agreemegeaerally equal to or less than those payablenagteements of
comparable BDCs described in the available mar&tt.dn addition, after examining market data, infation prepared by
management and a detailed discussion with managemerboard of directors determined that while tmtial expenses
(adjusted for certain non-recurring items and ideilg interest expense and credit facility feesy agrcentage of assets for the
year ended December 31, 2011 were slightly aboeeage as compared to those disclosed in markebglatamparable
BDCs, our total expenses (adjusted for certain maoHring items and excluding interest expensecaedit facility fees) as a
percentage of assets for the year ended Decemb203B1 were similar to or lower than those disatilsg comparable BDCs.
Our board of directors noted that the slightly abaverage total expenses as a percentage of agsetattributable to
increased interest expense as a result of ouegiratf decreasing our balance sheet risk by extgnditbt maturities and
refinancing short-term borrowings under floatinteraecured debt with long-term fixed rate unsecdedat. Our board of
directors further noted that many of our BDC coriipet have been unable to access such unsecuréd deb

Economies of Scale. Our board of directors considered informationwhibe potential for our stockholders to experience
economies of scale as the Company grows in sizeb@ard of directors considered that the privatat desiness is one of the
least scalable businesses because it requirescaddiitesources as it grows and also considerdd#tause there are no break
points in our investment adviser's fees, any b&nefsulting from the growth in the Company's asadtere the Company's
fixed costs did not increase proportionately waudd inure to the benefit of the stockholders. Tgkimto account such
information, the board determined that the advideeystructure with respect to the investment amyisnd management
agreement was reasonable and that no changes wesatty necessary to reflect economies of scale.

Estimated Pro Forma Profitability of the Investment Adviser. Our board of directors considered informationuahmur
investment adviser's budget and determined thagdan the information available to our board oéctors, our investment
adviser's estimated pro forma profitability witlspect to managing the Company was generally equalless than the
profitability of investment advisers managing comgtde BDCs. Our board of directors noted that noketadata was available
for such advisers and that such determination \eaedy in particular, on the fact that the managéfeerpayable to our
investment adviser is 1.50%
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(compared to 2.00% for certain of the Company'sptitors) and is not paid on cash or cash equitalegld by the Company
(unlike several of the Company's competitors).

. Limited Potential for Additional Benefits Derived by the Investment Adviser. Our board of directors considered whether
there was potential for additional benefits, susls@ft dollar arrangements with brokers, to bevéerby our investment
adviser and its affiliates as a result of our iefeghip with our investment adviser and noted thia¢lieved any such potential
was limited.

In view of the wide variety of factors ttair board of directors considered in connectiotts evaluation of the investment advisory
and management agreement, it is not practical amtify, rank or otherwise assign relative weigltshe specific factors it considered in
reaching its decision. Our board of directors ditlumdertake to make any specific determinatioto aghether any particular factor, or any
aspect of any particular factor, was favorablerdauorable to the ultimate determination of ourrloaf directors. Rather, our board of
directors based its approval on the totality obinfation presented to, and the investigation cotedlioy, it. In considering the factors
discussed above, individual directors may havergdiéferent weights to different factors.

Based on the information reviewed and #utdrs discussed above, our directors (includiogétdirectors who are not "interested
persons" of the Company) concluded that the terfnisecinvestment advisory and management agreefimehiding the fee rates thereunder,
are fair and reasonable in relation to the seryizesided and approved the continuation of the strwent advisory and management
agreement with our investment adviser as beingéarbest interests of the Company and its stockislde

The investment advisory and managemeneaggat will automatically terminate in the evenitsfassignment. The investment advisory
and management agreement may be terminated by pihg without penalty upon 60 days' written netio the other party.

Conflicts of interest may arise if our istent adviser seeks to change the terms of oesiment advisory and management agreet
including, for example, the amount of the managérfesn the incentive fee or other compensation seivtaterial amendments to our
investment advisory and management agreement reugtfiroved by the affirmative vote of the holddra majority of our outstanding
voting securities and by a majority of our indepemicdirectors, and we may from time to time dedide appropriate to seek the requisite
approval to change the terms of the agreement.

Indemnification

The investment advisory and managementaugat provides that, absent willful misfeasancd,faith or gross negligence in the
performance of its duties or by reason of the eskidisregard of its duties and obligations, Aragital Management, its members and their
respective officers, managers, partners, agentslogees, controlling persons and members and drer person or entity affiliated with it a
entitled to indemnification from us for any damadebilities, costs and expenses (including reabimattorneys' fees and amounts
reasonably paid in settlement) arising from thelezimg of Ares Capital Management's services uttdemvestment advisory and
management agreement or otherwise as our invesadeiser.

Organization of the Investment Adviser

Ares Capital Management is a Delaware &rdhitability company that is registered as an itwent adviser under the Advisers Act. The
principal executive offices of Ares Capital Managenare located at 2000 Avenue of the Stars, 1@ibrH.os Angeles, California 90067.
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ADMINISTRATION AGREEMENT

We are also party to a separate administraigreement with Ares Operations, an affiliat®@wf investment adviser and a wholly owned
subsidiary of Ares Management. Our board of dinecépproved the continuation of our administraagneement on May 3, 2012, which
extended the term of the agreement to June 1, Z&r8uant to the administration agreement, Areg&@ipas furnishes us with office
equipment and clerical, bookkeeping and record ikeegervices at our office facilities. Under theradistration agreement, Ares Operations
also performs, or oversees the performance oftemuired administrative services, which includepamother things, providing assistance in
accounting, legal, compliance, operations, techmgland investor relations, being responsible lierfinancial records that we are required to
maintain and preparing reports to our stockholdexsreports filed with the SEC. In addition, Argsetations assists us in determining and
publishing our net asset value, assists us in giogimanagerial assistance to our portfolio comgmroversees the preparation and filing of
our tax returns and the printing and disseminatioreports to our stockholders, and generally cesgthe payment of our expenses and the
performance of administrative and professionalises/rendered to us by others. Payments undedthetration agreement are equal to an
amount based upon our allocable portion of Aresr@tfmns' overhead and other expenses (includimgltexpenses) incurred by Ares
Operations in performing its obligations under daeinistration agreement, including our allocalietipn of the compensation of certain of
our officers (including our chief compliance officehief financial officer, general counsel, tre@swand assistant treasurer) and their
respective staffs. The administration agreement beaterminated by either party without penalty upOrdays' written notice to the other

party.
Indemnification

The administration agreement provides thlagent willful misfeasance, bad faith or negligeimcthe performance of its duties or by
reason of the reckless disregard of its dutiesadnligations, Ares Operations, its members and tlesipective officers, managers, partners,
agents, employees, controlling persons and menaperany other person or entity affiliated withrié @ntitled to indemnification from us for
any damages, liabilities, costs and expenses (imdureasonable attorneys' fees and amounts realggread in settlement) arising from the
rendering of Ares Operations' services under tmaimidtration agreement or otherwise as our adnnatist.

LEVERAGE

We may from time to time borrow funds tokmanvestments, a practice known as "leveragegttempt to increase returns to our
stockholders. With certain limited exceptions, we anly allowed to borrow amounts such that ouetssverage, as calculated in accordz
with the Investment Company Act, equals at leaS@2@fter such borrowing. The amount of leveragéweaemploy at any particular time
will depend on our investment adviser's and ourdoé directors' assessments of market and otlogoriat the time of any proposed
borrowing. As of February 22, 2013, we had $2.0dpilof total principal debt outstanding under ttagious debt instruments described
below. See "Risk Factors—Risks Relating to Our Beiss—We borrow money, which magnifies the potefdiagjain or loss on amounts
invested and may increase the risk of investing wg."

We may from time to time seek to retirgepurchase our common stock through cash purchasegll as retire, cancel or purchase our
outstanding debt through cash purchases and/oaagels, in open market purchases, privately negdtiaainsactions or otherwise. Such
repurchases or exchanges, if any, will depend ewgiling market conditions, our liquidity requirems, contractual and regulatory
restrictions and other factors. The amounts inviblvey be material.

We are party to a revolving credit facilityhich as of December 31, 2012, allows us to eup to $900 million at any one time
outstanding (the "Revolving Credit Facility"). TRevolving Credit

24




Facility also includes an "accordion” feature thédws us, under certain circumstances, to incrédassize of the facility to a maximum of
$1.35 billion. The Revolving Credit Facility matsren May 4, 2016. Subject to certain exceptiorsjriterest rate charged on the Revolving
Credit Facility is based on LIBOR plus an applieabpread of 2.25% (with no LIBOR floor) or on a$baate” (as defined in the agreements
governing the Revolving Credit Facility) plus arplgable spread of 1.25% (with no base rate floor).

Our wholly owned subsidiary, Ares Capité Eunding LLC ("Ares Capital CP"), is party to aetving funding facility, which as of
December 31, 2012, allows us to borrow up to $620om at any one time outstanding (the "Revolvifignding Facility"). The Revolving
Funding Facility provides for a three-year reinwesnt period until April 18, 2015 and has a statedunity of April 18, 2017. Subject to
certain exceptions, the interest rate charged emR#wvolving Funding Facility is based on LIBOR péusapplicable spread of between 2.25%
and 2.50% (with no LIBOR floor) or on a "base rata$ defined in the agreements governing the Renglunding Facility) plus an
applicable spread of between 1.25% and 1.50% (wathase rate floor), in each case, determined rhob#sed on the composition of the
borrowing base relative to outstanding borrowingdar the Revolving Funding Facility. See "Managetsdbiscussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of OperatiorReeent Developments" and Note 19 to our consolitfiancial statements for the year en
December 31, 2012 for information on a recent ammamd to the Revolving Funding Facility.

Our wholly owned subsidiary, Ares CapitalBunding LLC ("ACJB LLC") is party to a revolvinfgnding facility with Sumitomo Mitst
Banking Corporation ("SMBC"), which as of DecemBér 2012, allows us to borrow up to $400 millioraay one time outstanding (the
"SMBC Funding Facility" and together with the Rexialy Credit Facility and the Revolving Funding Rigj the "Facilities"). The SMBC
Funding Facility provides for a three-year reinvasint period until September 14, 2015 and has adstatturity of September 14, 2020. The
reinvestment period and the stated maturity dadath subject to two one-year extensions by mutgedement. Subject to certain
exceptions, the interest rate charged on the SM&@liRg Facility is based on LIBOR plus 2.125% (with LIBOR floor) or on a "base
rate" (as defined in the agreements governing MBG Funding Facility) plus an applicable spread df25% (with no base rate floor).

The Company currently has approximatel2 $illlion aggregate principal amount of convertibior unsecured notes outstanding
comprised of $575.0 million aggregate principal amoof convertible senior unsecured notes that readn February 1, 2016 and bear
interest at a rate of 5.75% (the "February 2016v€dible Notes"), $230.0 million aggregate prin¢iamount of convertible senior unsecured
notes that mature on June 1, 2016 and bear intgrastate of 5.125% (the "June 2016 Convertibleebl), $162.5 million aggregate principal
amount of convertible senior unsecured notes tlstira on March 15, 2017 and bear interest at fa4e835% (the "2017 Convertible Note
and $270.0 million aggregate principal amount afwastible senior unsecured notes that mature omaigri5, 2018 and bear interest at a
of 4.75% (the "2018 Convertible Notes", and togethith the February 2016 Convertible Notes, theeJ2®16 Convertible Notes and the
2017 Convertible Notes, the "Convertible Unsecletes").

The Company also currently has approxirge#@b6.3 million aggregate principal amount of seminsecured notes outstanding
comprised of $143.8 million aggregate principal amtoof senior unsecured notes that mature on Fepita 2022 and bear interest at a rate
of 7.00% (the "February 2022 Notes"), $182.5 millaggregate principal amount of senior unsecureerthat mature on October 1, 2022
and bear interest at a rate of 5.875% (the "Octab22 Notes"), $200.0 million aggregate princigaloaint of senior unsecured notes that
mature on October 15, 2040 and bear interestatteaof 7.75% (the "2040 Notes") and $230.0 milkyyregate principal amount of senior
unsecured notes that mature on April 15, 2047 aad imterest at a rate of 6.875% (the "2047 Nates!'together with the February 2022
Notes, the October 2022 Notes and the 2040 Ndtesinsecured Notes"). The Unsecured Notes aesllish The New York Stoc
Exchange.
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We intend to continue borrowing under tlaeifities in the future and we may increase the sizthe Facilities, add additional credit
facilities or otherwise issue additional debt sémg or other evidences of indebtedness in theréytalthough there can be no assurance that
we will be able to do so.

For more information on the Company's dség "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Eiah@ondition and Results of
Operations—Financial Condition, Liquidity and CapiResources."

REGULATION

We have elected to be regulated as a Biemthe Investment Company Act and have electée tioeated as a RIC under the Internal
Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code").ithsother companies regulated by the Investment @2om Act, a BDC must adhere to
certain substantive regulatory requirements. Thedtment Company Act contains prohibitions andrie&ins relating to certain transactions
between BDCs and certain affiliates (including amyestment advisers or sub-advisers), principakmvdters and certain affiliates of those
affiliates or underwriters. Among other things, generally cannot invest in any portfolio companwinich funds managed by Ares or any of
its downstream affiliates (including Ares Capitahivigement) (other than Ares Capital and its dowastraffiliates) currently has an
investment (although we may co-invest on a conatitrasis with other funds managed by Ares or antsafownstream affiliates (including
Ares Capital Management), subject to compliancé esisting regulatory guidance, applicable regataiand our allocation procedures).
Certain types of co-investment transactions woulg be permitted pursuant to an exemptive ordenftbe SEC, for which we have applied.
Any such order will be subject to certain terms aodditions. Further, there is no assurance tleaafiplication for exemptive relief will be
granted by the SEC.

The Investment Company Act also requires shmajority of our directors be persons othen thiaterested persons,” as that term is
defined in Section 2(a)(19) of the Investment ConypAct, referred to herein as "independent directdn addition, the Investment Comp:
Act provides that we may not change the natureuobaisiness so as to cease to be, or to withdrawleation as, a BDC unless that chan
approved by holders of at least a majority of auistanding voting securities. Under the Investn@minpany Act, the vote of holders of at
least a "majority of outstanding voting securitie®®ans the vote of the holders of the lesser pB{& or more of the outstanding shares of
our common stock present at a meeting or represddayt@roxy if holders of more than 50% of the skayEour common stock are present or
represented by proxy or (b) more than 50% of thtstanding shares of our common stock.

We may invest up to 100% of our asset®austies acquired directly from issuers in prilatgegotiated transactions. With respect to
such securities, we may, for the purpose of pukliale, be deemed an "underwriter”" as that tedefiaed in the Securities Act of 1933 (the
"Securities Act"). Our intention is to not writee(§ or buy put or call options to manage risksoagsted with the publicly traded securities of
our portfolio companies. We may enter into hedgmnagsactions to manage the risks associated wiheist rate and currency fluctuations.
We may purchase or otherwise receive warrants twwrepto purchase the common stock of our portfotimpanies in connection with
acquisition financings or other investments. Inreeetion with such an acquisition, we may acquigats to require the issuers of acquired
securities or their affiliates to repurchase therdar certain circumstances.

We also do not intend to acquire securiisged by any investment company that exceedrtfits imposed by the Investment Company
Act. Under these limits, we generally cannot acguiiore than 3% of the voting stock of any investneempany (as defined in the
Investment Company Act), invest more than 5% ofuthlee of our total assets in the securities ofiomestment company or invest more tl
10% of the value of our total assets in the sdegritf investment companies in the
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aggregate. With regard to that portion of our mitfinvested in securities issued by investmemhganies, it should be noted that such
investments might subject our stockholders to amitil expenses.

PRIVACY PRINCIPLES

We are committed to maintaining the privatpur stockholders and to safeguarding their poblic personal information. The
following information is provided to help you und&and what personal information we collect, howpsaect that information and why, in
certain cases, we may share information with selwr parties.

Generally, we do not receive any non-pupécsonal information relating to our stockholdafthough certain non-public personal
information of our stockholders may become avadablus. The non-public personal information thatmay receive falls into the following
categories:

. information we receive from stockholders, whetherreceive it orally, in writing or electronicallyhis includes stockholders'
communications to us concerning their investment;

. information about stockholders' transactions astohy with us; or

. other general information that we may obtain alstotkholders, such as demographic and contactaon such as a
person's address.

We do not disclose any non-public persamfarmation about our stockholders or former stamklers to anyone, except:

. to our affiliates (such as our investment advisel administrator) and their employees that havagiiinate business need for
the information;

. to our service providers (such as our accountatitsneys, custodians, transfer agent, underwriedsproxy solicitors) and
their employees, as is necessary to service reotafelhaccounts or otherwise provide the applicablwices;

. to comply with court orders, subpoenas, lawfatdvery requests or other legal or regulatory irequents; or

. as allowed or required by applicable law or tatian.

When the Company shares non-public stoddrgbersonal information referred to above, therimfation is made available for limited
business purposes and under controlled circumstatesigned to protect our stockholders' privacye Thmpany does not permit use of
stockholder information for any non-business orkating purpose, nor does the Company permit thatigs to rent, sell, trade or otherwise
release or disclose information to any other party.

The Company's service providers, suchsagiestment adviser, administrator and transfenggre required to maintain physical,
electronic, and procedural safeguards to proteckkblder non-public personal information to prevemauthorized access or use and to
dispose of such information when it is no longejuiesd.

Personnel of our affiliates may accesskstolder information only for business purposes. dibgree of access is based on the sensitivity
of the information and on personnel need for tiermation to service a stockholder's account orglgrnwith legal requirements.

If a stockholder ceases to be a stockhplderwill adhere to the privacy policies and praesi as described above. We may choose to
modify our privacy policies at any time. Before de so, we will notify stockholders and provide achiption of our privacy policy.
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In the event of a corporate change in @bmésulting from, for example, a sale to, or mengéh, another entity, or in the event of a sale
of assets, we reserve the right to transfer stddieh® nonpublic personal information to the new party in ttohor the party acquiring asse

AVAILABLE INFORMATION

We file with or submit to the SEC annualaterly and current periodic reports, proxy staeta and other information meeting the
informational requirements of the Securities ExgfeaAct of 1934 (the "Exchange Act"). This infornmattiis available free of charge by
calling us collect at (310) 201-4200 or on our wigbatwww.arescapitalcorp.conThe information on our website is not deemed incoatec
by reference in this Annual Report. You also mapatt and copy these reports, proxy statementsthed information, as well as the Ann
Report and related exhibits and schedules, atibédReference Room of the SEC at 100 F Street,Washington, D.C. 20549. You may
obtain information on the operation of the Publefé&ence Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0B86.SEC maintains an Internet site
that contains reports, proxy and information staets and other information filed electronically ixywith the SEC which are available on
SEC's Internet site atww.sec.gov Copies of these reports, proxy and informati@teshents and other information may be obtainedy aft
paying a duplicating fee, by electronic requedhatfollowing e-mail addrespublicinfo@sec.goyor by writing the SEC's Public Reference
Room, 100 F Street, NE, Washington, D.C. 20549.
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ltem 1A. Risk Factors
RISK FACTORS

You should carefully consider these risk factargether with all of the other information includiedthis Annual Report, including our
consolidated financial statements and the relates thereto, before you decide whether to makewastment in our securities. The risks
set out below are not the only risks we face. Aaltit risks and uncertainties not currently knowrus or that we currently deem to be
immaterial also may materially adversely affect business, financial condition and/or operatinguks. If any of the following events occur,
our business, financial condition and results oéigions could be materially adversely affectedsuich case, the net asset value of our
common stock and the trading price of our secugitieuld decline, and you may lose all or part afryiovestment.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR BUSINESS

Capital markets have been in a period of disruptiorand instability for an extended period of time. Tkese market conditions materially
and adversely affected debt and equity capital marts in the United States, which had, and may in thieiture have, a negative impact
on our business and operations.

The global capital markets have been iexdanded period of instability as evidenced byqu#d disruptions in liquidity in the debt
capital markets, significant write-offs in the fir@al services sector, the re-pricing of credik iisthe broadly syndicated credit market and
the failure of major financial institutions. Desp#ctions of the U.S. federal government and forgmvernments, these events contributed to
worsening general economic conditions that matgraald adversely impacted the broader financial@edit markets and reduced the
availability of debt and equity capital for the rketras a whole and financial services firms inipatar. While recent market conditions have
improved there have been continuing periods oftilitjeand there can be no assurance that adveeskahconditions will not repeat
themselves or worsen in the future. If these advarsl volatile market conditions worsen, we an@éiotiompanies in the financial services
sector may have to access, if available, alteraatiarkets for debt and equity capital in orderrtmag Equity capital may be difficult to raise
because, subject to some limited exceptions, 3@, Bre are generally not able to issue additiohatas of our common stock at a price less
than net asset value without first obtaining apptder such issuance from our stockholders andradgpendent directors. At our 2012 anr
stockholders meeting, subject to certain deternanatrequired to be made by our board of directous,stockholders approved our ability to
sell or otherwise issue shares of our common stoakexceeding 25% of our then outstanding comnbocksat a price below the then cur
net asset value per share during a period begironintune 4, 2012 and expiring on the earlier oeyr2013 and the date of our 2013 annual
stockholders meeting. In addition, our ability neur indebtedness (including by issuing prefertedlq is limited by applicable regulations
such that our asset coverage, as calculated indamoee with the Investment Company Act, must eqtildast 200% immediately after each
time we incur indebtedness. The debt capital thhbe available to us in the future, if at all, ynbe at a higher cost and on less favorable
terms and conditions than what we currently expege Any inability to raise capital could have @ative effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

Moreover, the re-appearance of market ¢mmdi similar to those experienced from 2007 thtoR@09 for any substantial length of time
could make it difficult to extend the maturity af @finance our existing indebtedness under sindlans and any failure to do so could ha
material adverse effect on our business.

Given the extreme volatility and dislocatio the capital markets over the past severalsyeaany BDCs have faced, and may in the
future face, a challenging environment in whichidise or access capital. At times during the resigmificant changes in the capital markets,
our ability to raise
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capital was affected and consequently the pacemihwestment activity had slowed. In addition,réfigant changes in the capital markets,
including the extreme volatility and disruption otke past several years, has had, and may irutbheefhave, a negative effect on the
valuations of our investments and on the potefaidiquidity events involving our investments. Vihimost of our investments are not
publicly traded, applicable accounting standardgiire us to assume as part of our valuation pratedour investments are sold in a
principal market to market participants (even ifpl@n on holding an investment through its matiiriys a result, volatility in the capital
markets can adversely affect our investment valaatiFurther, the illiquidity of our investmentsymaake it difficult for us to sell such
investments to access capital if required. As altewe could realize significantly less than ttedue at which we have recorded our
investments if we were required to sell them fquidity purposes. An inability to raise or acceapital could have a material adverse impact
on our business, financial condition or resultspérations.

A failure on our part to maintain our status as a BDC would significantly reduce our operating flexibiity.

If we fail to maintain our status as a B¥& might be regulated as a closst investment company that is required to registeer the
Investment Company Act, which would subject usdditional regulatory restrictions and significantlgcrease our operating flexibility. In
addition, any such failure could cause an evediefdult under our outstanding indebtedness, whichidchave a material adverse effect on
our business, financial condition or results ofragiens.

We are dependent upon certain key personnel of Ardsr our future success and upon their access tolodr Ares investment
professionals.

We depend on the diligence, skill and neknad business contacts of certain key personnét@fAres Private Debt Group. We also
depend, to a significant extent, on access torthestment professionals of other groups within Aned the information and deal flow
generated by Ares' investment professionals irctlugse of their investment and portfolio managenaetivities. Our future success depends
on the continued service of the key personnel @fAfes Private Debt Group. The departure of arthede individuals, or of a significant
number of the investment professionals or partokéfses, could have a material adverse effect arboginess, financial condition or results
of operations. In addition, we cannot assure yati Mres Capital Management will remain our invesitradviser or that we will continue to
have access to Ares' investment professionals anfisrmation and deal flow. Further, there cambeassurance that Ares Capital will
replicate Ares' historical success, and we cawyt@mnthat our investment returns could be substiint@ver than the returns achieved by
other Ares managed funds.

Our financial condition and results of operations @épend on our ability to manage future growth effedvely.

Our ability to achieve our investment oltijge depends on our ability to acquire suitablessttnents and monitor and administer those
investments, which depends, in turn, on our investradviser's ability to identify, invest in and mitor companies that meet our investment
criteria.

Accomplishing this result on a cost-effeetbasis is largely a function of the structuririgpor investment process and the ability of our
investment adviser to provide competent, atterdive efficient services to us. Our executive oficand the members of our investment
adviser's investment committee have substantipbresbilities in connection with their roles at Arand with the other Ares funds, as well as
responsibilities under the investment advisory mmashagement agreement. They may also be calledtogmovide significant managerial
assistance to certain of our portfolio companid¢®se demands on their time, which will increasthasiumber of investments grow, may
distract them or slow the rate of investment. Iteorto grow, Ares will need to hire, train, supseeyi
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manage and retain new employees. However, we cassate you that we will be able to do so effetfivny failure to manage our future
growth effectively could have a material adverdeatfon our business, financial condition and rissof operations.

In addition, as we grow, we may open up ofiges in new geographic regions that may inoeeas direct operating expenses without
corresponding revenue growth.

Our ability to grow depends on our ability to raisecapital.

We will need to periodically access thei@pnarkets to raise cash to fund new investmanésccess of our repayments. We have
elected to be treated as a RIC and operate in aenao as to qualify for the U.S. federal incomettaatment applicable to RICs. Among
other things, in order to maintain our RIC statMs,must distribute to our stockholders on a tinigis generally an amount equal to at least
90% of our investment company taxable income, asd result, such distributions will not be avdéato fund investment originations. We
must continue to borrow from financial institutioasd issue additional securities to fund our growthfavorable economic or capital market
conditions may increase our funding costs, limit access to the capital markets or could resudtdeecision by lenders not to extend credit to
us. An inability to successfully access the capitatkets could limit our ability to grow our busgseand fully execute our business strategy
and could decrease our earnings, if any.

In addition, with certain limited except®rwe are only allowed to borrow amounts or issela decurities or preferred stock, which we
refer to collectively as "senior securities," sticht our asset coverage, as calculated in accoedaitic the Investment Company Act, equals
at least 200% immediately after such borrowing,olthin certain circumstances, may restrict ourightib borrow or issue debt securities or
preferred stock. The amount of leverage that weleynpill depend on our investment adviser's andhmard of directors' assessments of
market and other factors at the time of any progdmserowing or issuance of senior securities. Wenoaassure you that we will be able to
maintain our current Facilities, obtain other liéredit or issue senior securities at all otenms acceptable to us.

Regulations governing our operation as a BDC affeaiur ability to, and the way in which we, raise addional capital.

We may issue senior securities or borromaydrom banks or other financial institutions,toghe maximum amount permitted by the
Investment Company Act. Under the provisions ofltheestment Company Act, we are permitted, as a BD@Gcur indebtedness or issue
senior securities only in amounts such that ouetassverage, as calculated in accordance withnbhestment Company Act, equals at least
200% after each such incurrence or issuance. Wahee of our assets declines, we may be unaldatisfy this test, which may prohibit us
from paying dividends and could prevent us fromntehing our status as a RIC or may prohibit usifrepurchasing shares of our common
stock. In addition, our inability to satisfy thisst could cause an event of default under ouriegigtdebtedness. If we cannot satisfy this test,
we may be required to sell a portion of our invesits at a time when such sales may be disadvantageal, depending on the nature of our
leverage, repay a portion of our indebtedness. Aticgly, any failure to satisfy this test could baar material adverse effect on our business,
financial condition or results of operations. Adadcember 31, 2012, our asset coverage calculataccordance with the Investment
Company Act was 282%. Also, to generate cash fiodifig new investments, we may in the future seeéksime additional debt or to securil
certain of our loans. The Investment Company Acy mgose restrictions on the structure of any sseturitization.

We are not generally able to issue andogglcommon stock at a price below net asset yadneshare. We may, however, sell our
common stock, or warrants, options or rights tauregour common

31




stock, at a price below the current net asset vadmeshare of our common stock if our board ofdoes determines that such sale is in our
best interests and the best interests of our stdd&hs, and our stockholders approve such sale.sfinfi sale would be dilutive to the net a
value per share of our common stock. In any sush,dhe price at which our securities are to hgedsand sold may not be less than a price
which, in the determination of our board of dirgstaclosely approximates the market value of sedcisties (less any commission or
discount). If our common stock trades at a discoaimet asset value, this restriction could advermaiect our ability to raise capital.

At our 2012 annual stockholders meetingjett to certain determinations required to be madeur board of directors, our stockholc
approved our ability to sell or otherwise issuersha@f our common stock, not exceeding 25% of ben tutstanding common stock, at a
price below the then current net asset value panestiuring a period beginning on June 4, 2012 apiirg on the earlier of June 4, 2013 and
the date of our 2013 annual stockholders meeting.

We borrow money, which magnifies the potential foigain or loss on amounts invested and may increadeet risk of investing with us.

Borrowings, also known as leverage, magthéy/potential for gain or loss on amounts invested, therefore, increase the risks
associated with investing in our securities. Weanity borrow under our Facilities and have issaedssumed other senior securities, and in
the future may borrow from, or issue additionalisesecurities to, banks, insurance companies,dumdtitutional investors and other lenc
and investors. Lenders and holders of such seamurgies have fixed dollar claims on our consdhdbassets that are superior to the clair
our common stockholders or any preferred stockmsldéthe value of our consolidated assets in@gathen leveraging would cause the net
asset value per share of our common stock to isergere sharply than it would have had we not ieclieverage.

Conversely, if the value of our consolidbéssets decreases, leveraging would cause netvvakseto decline more sharply than it
otherwise would have had we not incurred lever&gailarly, any increase in our consolidated incamexcess of consolidated interest
payable on the borrowed funds would cause oumueine to increase more than it would had we natried leverage, while any decrease in
our consolidated income would cause net incomettirte more sharply than it would have had we notiired leverage. Such a decline
could negatively affect our ability to make comnstack dividend payments. There can be no assuthata leveraging strategy will be
successful.

As of December 31, 2012, we had $300.Gonilbf outstanding borrowings under our Faciliti$856.3 million in aggregate principal
amount outstanding of the Unsecured Notes and $528illion in aggregate principal amount outstaigddf the Convertible Unsecured
Notes. In order for us to cover our annual intepagtments on our outstanding indebtedness at Desre®dh 2012, we must achieve ann
returns on our December 31, 2012 total assetslefat 2.0%. The weighted average stated inteaésitharged on our outstanding
indebtedness as of December 31, 2012 was 5.5%n¥&fedi to continue borrowing under the Facilitieshia future and we may increase the
size of the Facilities or issue additional debusiies or other evidences of indebtedness (althahgre can be no assurance that we will be
successful in doing so). Our ability to service debt depends largely on our financial performaanag is subject to prevailing economic
conditions and competitive pressures. The amoulgvefage that we employ at any particular timé éépend on our investment adviser's
and our board of directors' assessments of markkbtner factors at the time of any proposed bamgw

Our Facilities, the Unsecured Notes anddbevertible Unsecured Notes impose financial gmetating covenants that restrict our
business activities, including limitations that twbhinder our ability to finance additional loansdanvestments or to make the distributions
required to maintain
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our status as a RIC. A failure to renew our Faeslior to add new or replacement debt facilitiessue additional debt securities or other
evidences of indebtedness could have a materigrag\effect on our business, financial conditionesults of operations.

The following table illustrates the effeet return to a holder of our common stock of thetage created by our use of borrowing at the
weighted average stated interest rate of 5.5% &&oémber 31, 2012, together with (a) our totaligailf net assets as of December 31, 2012;
(b) $2,293.8 million in aggregate principal amoahindebtedness outstanding as of December 31, @0d4c) hypothetical annual returns
our portfolio of minus 15% to plus 15%.

Assumed Return on Portfolio (Net of

Expenses)(1 -15%  -10% -5% 0% 5% 1% 1%
Corresponding Return to Common
Stockholders(2 2% -19% -11% 3% 5% 13% 21%

(1) The assumed portfolio return is required byCS$Egulations and is not a prediction of, and duEsepresent, our
projected or actual performance. Actual returns tmagreater or less than those appearing in the. tAbrsuant to SEC
regulations, this table is calculated as of Decem8he2012. As a result, it has not been updatedke into account any
changes in assets or leverage since December 32, 20

(2) In order to compute the "Corresponding Return tsm@wmn Stockholders," the "Assumed Return on Podfa$
multiplied by the total value of our assets at Deloer 31, 2012 to obtain an assumed return to wsn fnis amount, the
interest expense (calculated by multiplying theghiééd average stated interest rate of 5.5% by 2t298.8 million of
principal debt) is subtracted to determine therreivailable to stockholders. The return availdablstockholders is then
divided by the total value of our net assets d3afember 31, 2012 to determine the "CorrespondetgrR to Common
Stockholders.

In addition to regulatory requirements that restrict our ability to raise capital, the Facilities, theUnsecured Notes and the Convertible
Unsecured Notes contain various covenants that,ribt complied with, could accelerate repayment undethe Facilities, the Unsecured

Notes and the Convertible Unsecured Notes, therelwgaterially and adversely affecting our liquidity, financial condition and results of
operations.

The agreements governing the Facilities,hsecured Notes and the Convertible UnsecureesNetjuire us to comply with certain
financial and operational covenants. These covemaay include, among other things:

. restrictions on the level of indebtedness thaiane permitted to incur in relation to the valfieur assets;
. restrictions on our ability to incur liens; and
. maintenance of a minimum level of stockholders’ityqu

As of the date of this Annual Report, we &r compliance in all material respects with tbgemants of the Facilities, the Unsecured
Notes and the Convertible Unsecured Notes. Howaercontinued compliance with these covenantsm#pen many factors, some
which are beyond our control. For example, depandimthe condition of the public debt and equitykets and pricing levels, unrealized
depreciation in our portfolio may increase in theufe. Any such increase could result in our irigbib comply with our obligation to restrict
the level of indebtedness that we are able to imctelation to the value of our assets or to nama minimum level of stockholders' equity.

Accordingly, although we believe we willrdue to be in compliance, there are no assurahegsve will continue to comply with the
covenants in the Facilities, the Unsecured Notestla@
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Convertible Unsecured Notes. Failure to comply ulithise covenants could result in a default undeFtcilities, the Unsecured Notes or the
Convertible Unsecured Notes that, if we were unéblebtain a waiver from the lenders or holderswth indebtedness, as applicable, such
lenders or holders could accelerate repayment uwddr indebtedness and thereby have a materiatssdiepact on our business, financial
condition and results of operations.

We operate in a highly competitive market for invement opportunities.

A number of entities compete with us to m#ke types of investments that we make in midadeket companies. We compete with o
BDCs, public and private funds, commercial and streent banks, commercial financing companies, arste companies, hedge funds, and,
to the extent they provide an alternative formioéfcing, private equity funds. Many of our compet are substantially larger and have
considerably greater financial, technical and mmgeresources than we do. Some competitors mag hdower cost of funds and access to
funding sources that are not available to us. biitamh, some of our competitors may have highek tiderances or different risk assessments,
which could allow them to consider a wider variefyinvestments and establish more relationships tisa Furthermore, many of our
competitors are not subject to the regulatory iegins that the Investment Company Act imposes®as a BDC and that the Code imposes
on us as a RIC. We cannot assure you that the ddivp@ressures we face will not have a materisleaise effect on our business, financial
condition and results of operations. Also, as altes this competition, we may not be able to prattractive investment opportunities from
time to time.

We do not seek to compete primarily bagethe interest rates we offer and we believe thatesof our competitors may make loans
with interest rates that are comparable to or Icven the rates we offer. Rather, we compete withcompetitors based on our existing
investment platform, seasoned investment profeatipaxperience and focus on middle-market compadisciplined investment
philosophy, extensive industry focus and flexilbnsaction structuring. For a more detailed disonssf these competitive advantages, see
"Business—Competitive Advantages."

We may lose investment opportunities ifdeenot match our competitors' pricing, terms amndcstire. If we match our competitors'
pricing, terms and structure, we may experienceadsed net interest income and increased riskeditdoss. As a result of operating in such
a competitive environment, we may make investmtraare on less favorable terms than what we raag briginally anticipated, which
may impact our return on these investments.

We may be subject to additional U.S. federal corpate-level taxes if we fail to maintain our statussa RIC.

We have elected to be treated as a RICruhdeCode and operate in a manner so as to quafithe U.S. federal income tax treatment
applicable to RICs. As a RIC, we generally will paty U.S. federal corporate-level income taxeswnmcome and net capital gains that we
distribute to our stockholders as dividends onmreely basis. We will be subject to U.S. federal cogpelevel income tax on any undistribut
income and/or gains. To maintain our status asi Re must meet certain source of income, assetdlfication and annual distribution
requirements. We may also be subject to certain féderal excise taxes, as well as state, locafamign taxes.

To satisfy the annual distribution requissrhfor a RIC we must distribute to our stockhodden a timely basis generally an amount
equal to at least 90% of our investment companglixincome for each year. We have the abilityay @ large portion of our dividends in
shares of our stock, and as long as a portionaf dividend is paid in cash and other requiremargamet, such stock dividends will be
taxable as a dividend for U.S. federal income tasppses. This may result in our U.S. stockholdersry to pay tax on such dividends, even
if no cash is received, and may result in our no8-dtockholders being subject to withholding taxaspect of amounts distributed in our
stock.
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Because we use debt financing, we are subjectrtaic@sset coverage ratio requirements undemthestment Company Act and financial
covenants under our indebtedness that could, watin circumstances, restrict us from makingithistions necessary to qualify as a RIC.
If we are unable to obtain cash from other sounsesmay fail to maintain our status as a RIC andstmay be subject to corporate-level
income tax on all of our income and/or gains.

To maintain our status as a RIC, in additmthe annual distribution requirement, we misb aneet certain annual source of income
requirements at the end of each taxable year as®l diwersification requirements at the end of ezatbndar quarter. Failure to meet these
requirements may result in our having to (a) digpafscertain investments quickly or (b) raise addgl capital to prevent the loss of RIC
status. Because most of our investments are iajgriscompanies and are generally illiquid, any glishositions may be at disadvantageous
prices and may result in losses. Also, the rulgdiegble to our qualification as a RIC are compléth many areas of uncertainty.
Accordingly, no assurance can be given that we aadified or will continue to qualify as a RIC.\fe fail to maintain our status as a RIC
any reason and become subject to regular "C" catjporincome tax, the resulting corporate taxedccsubstantially reduce our net assets,
the amount of income available for distribution &ne amount of our distributions. Such a failurandchave a material adverse effect on us
and on any investment in us. The "Regulated Investr@ompany Modernization Act of 2010," which ifeefive for 2011 and later tax yes
provides some relief from RIC disqualification doefailures of the source of income and asset difieation requirements, although there
may be additional taxes due in such cases. We tassare you that we would qualify for any suclefehould we fail the source of income
or asset diversification requirements.

We may have difficulty paying our required distributions under applicable tax rules if we recognize icome before or without receiving
cash representing such income.

For U.S. federal income tax purposes, wer@quired to include in income certain amountsweahave not yet received in cash, such as
original issue discount, which may arise, for examip we receive warrants in connection with thaking of a loan, or PIK interest
representing contractual interest added to the pogatipal balance and due at the end of the leem.tSuch original issue discount or PIK
interest is included in income before we receive @rresponding cash payments. We also may beregjto include in income certain other
amounts that we will not receive in cash, includifoy example, amounts attributable to hedging faneign currency transactions or
cancellation of indebtedness income resulting feorastructuring of an investment in debt securities

Since, in certain cases, we may recogmieeme before or without receiving cash in respéstuch income, we may have difficulty
meeting the U.S. federal income tax requirementigtribute generally an amount equal to at lea%b @0 our investment company taxable
income to maintain our status as a RIC. Accordingly may have to sell some of our investmentsiagiwe would not consider
advantageous, raise additional debt or equity abpitreduce new investment originations to meeséhdistribution requirements. If we are
not able to obtain cash from other sources, we faidjo qualify as a RIC and thus be subject toitmldal corporate-level income taxes. Such
a failure would have a material adverse effect ®and on any investment in us.

We are exposed to risks associated with changesiimerest rates.

General interest rate fluctuations may hagebstantial negative impact on our investmemtisimvestment opportunities and,
accordingly, may have a material adverse effeawrinvestment objective and rate of return on &teeé capital. Because we borrow money
and may issue debt securities or preferred stockatioe investments, our net investment income iguadgnt upon the difference between the
rate at which we borrow funds or pay interest eid#inds on such debt securities or preferred sdockthe rate at which we invest these
funds. As a result, there can be no
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assurance that a significant change in marketdasteates will not have a material adverse effaahuar net investment income.

Trading prices for debt that pays a fixaterof return tend to fall as interest rates fisading prices tend to fluctuate more for fixederat
securities that have longer maturities. In the ,pasthave entered into certain hedging transactgunsh as interest rate swap agreements, to
mitigate our exposure to adverse fluctuations feregst rates, and we may do so again in the futureddition, we may increase our floating
rate investments to position the portfolio for retereases. However, we cannot assure you thattsaresactions will be successful in
mitigating our exposure to interest rate risk. Haggransactions may also limit our ability to peigiate in the benefits of lower interest rates
with respect to our portfolio investments.

Although we have no policy governing thetuniéies of our investments, under current marketditions we expect that we will invest in
a portfolio of debt generally having maturitiesugf to 10 years. This means that we are subjeaetatey risk (other things being equal) than a
fund invested solely in shorter-term securitiesle&line in the prices of the debt we own could askly affect the trading price of our
common stock. Also, an increase in interest ratadable to investors could make an investmentunabmmon stock less attractive if we are
not able to increase our dividend rate, which caattlice the value of our common stock.

Most of our portfolio investments are not publiclytraded and, as a result, the fair value of these uestments may not be readily
determinable.

A large percentage of our portfolio investits are not publicly traded. The fair value ofeistments that are not publicly traded may not
be readily determinable. We value these investnmsterly at fair value as determined in goodhfliy our board of directors based on,
among other things, the input of our managementaaniit committee and independent valuation firnad ave been engaged at the direction
of our board of directors to assist in the valuatid each portfolio investment without a readilyadable market quotation at least once during
a trailing 12-month period (with certain de miningisceptions). The valuation process is conductéldea¢nd of each fiscal quarter, with a
minimum of 50% (based on value) of our valuatiohpartfolio companies without readily available rkeir quotations subject to review by
independent valuation firm each quarter. Howevermay use these independent valuation firms t@vette value of our investments more
frequently, including in connection with the ocance of significant events or changes in valuectiffg a particular investment. In addition,
our independent accountants review our valuatioegss as part of their overall integrated audit.

The types of factors that may be consid@re@luing our investments include the enterpviakeie of the portfolio company (the entire
value of the portfolio company to a market par@eip including the sum of the values of debt andtgecurities used to capitalize the
enterprise at a point in time), the nature andzable value of any collateral, the portfolio compa ability to make payments and its earn
and discounted cash flows, the markets in whictptir&folio company does business, a comparisohepbrtfolio company's securities to
similar publicly traded securities, changes inititerest rate environment and the credit marketegaly that may affect the price at which
similar investments would trade in their principarkets and other relevant factors. When an exXtexremt such as a purchase transaction,
public offering or subsequent equity sale occuescansider the pricing indicated by the externainé¥o corroborate our valuation. Because
such valuations, and particularly valuations ofaté investments and private companies, are intignemcertain, may fluctuate over short
periods of time and may be based on estimategjatarminations of fair value may differ materiditgm the values that would have been
used if a ready market for these investments ekistel may differ materially from the values thatmway ultimately realize. Our net asset
value per share could be adversely affected ifdeterminations regarding the fair value of thesedtments are materially higher than the
values that we realize upon disposition of suclegtments.
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The lack of liquidity in our investments may advergly affect our business

As we generally make investments in privampanies, substantially all of these investmargssubject to legal and other restriction:
resale or are otherwise less liquid than publicdgéd securities. The illiquidity of our investme&ntay make it difficult for us to sell such
investments if the need arises. In addition, ifase required to liquidate all or a portion of owrtfolio quickly, we could realize significantly
less than the value at which we have recordednwaistments. In addition, we may face other restriston our ability to liquidate an
investment in a portfolio company to the extent tha or an affiliated manager of Ares has materad-public information regarding such
portfolio company.

We may experience fluctuations in our quarterly reslts.

We could experience fluctuations in ourrterdy operating results due to a number of factmrduding the interest rates payable on the
debt investments we make, the default rates on iswelstments, the level of our expenses, variatiorsd the timing of the recognition of
realized and unrealized gains or losses, the degnebich we encounter competition in our marketd general economic conditions. As a
result of these factors, results for any periocdudhaot be relied upon as being indicative of perfance in future periods.

There are significant potential conflicts of interest that could impact our investment returns.

Certain of our executive officers and dioes, and members of the investment committee ofruestment adviser, serve or may serv
officers, directors or principals of other entitesd affiliates of our investment adviser and invesit funds managed by our affiliates.
Accordingly, they may have obligations to investiorshose entities, the fulfillment of which mighot be in our or our stockholders' best
interests or that may require them to devote tiongetvices for other entities, which could integfaiith the time available to provide services
to us. Certain members of our investment adviggrsstment committee have significant responsiedifor other Ares funds. For example,
Mr. Rosenthal is required to devote a substantgbnity of his business time to the affairs of thes Private Equity Group. Similarly,
although the professional staff of our investmeahtiser will devote as much time to the manageméttiejmCompany as appropriate to enable
our investment adviser to perform its duties inoadance with the investment advisory and manageagrneement, the investment
professionals of our investment adviser may hawdlicts in allocating their time and services amahg Company, on the one hand, and
investment vehicles managed by Ares or one or obits affiliates, on the other hand. These adgitould be viewed as creating a conflict
of interest insofar as the time and effort of thef@ssional staff of our investment adviser anaffeers and employees will not be devoted
exclusively to the business of the Company but witead be allocated between the business of thgp@ny and the management of these
other investment vehicles. However, Ares beliehas the efforts of such individuals are synergigtith and beneficial to the affairs of Ares
Capital and these other investment vehicles manbgeédes or its affiliates.

In addition, certain Ares funds may hawestment objectives that compete or overlap witld, may from time to time invest in asset
classes similar to those targeted by, Ares Caiahsequently, we, on the one hand, and these etlities, may from time to time pursue
same or similar capital and investment opportusithres and our investment adviser endeavor teaoinvestment opportunities in a fair
and equitable manner, and in any event consistiéntany fiduciary duties owed to Ares Capital. Netkieless, it is possible that we may not
be given the opportunity to participate in certawvestments made by investment funds managed Bsiment managers affiliated with Ares.
In addition, there may be conflicts in the allooatbf investment opportunities among us and thegunanaged by us or one or more of our
controlled affiliates or among the funds they manalye may or may not participate in investmentsenadfunds managed by us or one or
more of our controlled affiliates.
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We have from time to time sold assets ttage of the vehicles managed by IHAM and, as padur investment strategy, we may offer
to sell additional assets to vehicles managed tand#r one or more of our controlled affiliatesc{uding IHAM) or we may purchase assets
from vehicles managed by us and/or one or moraiptontrolled affiliates. In addition, vehicles naged by us or one or more of our
controlled affiliates (including IHAM) may offer asts to or may purchase assets from one anothéle ¥ésets may be sold or purchased at
prices that are consistent with those that couldliained from third parties in the marketplacel although these types of transactions
generally require approval of one or more indepahgarties, there may be an inherent conflict tr@st in such transactions between us and
funds managed by us or one of our controlled até.

We pay management and incentive fees tinmestment adviser, and reimburse our investmawisar for certain expenses it incurs. In
addition, investors in our common stock will investa gross basis and receive distributions ort bams after expenses, resulting in, among
other things, a lower rate of return than one magtitieve if distributions were made on a grossshasi

Our investment adviser's base managemeris teased on a percentage of our total assetsr (iihin cash or cash equivalents but
including assets purchased with borrowed funds) emlsequently, our investment adviser may havéictof interest in connection with
decisions that could affect our total assets, sisctlecisions as to whether to incur indebtednessmoake future investments.

The part of the incentive fee payable byousur investment advisor that relates to ouripeentive fee net investment income is
computed and paid on income that may include istahat is accrued but not yet received in cash.gbrtfolio company defaults on a loan
that is structured to provide accrued interess, [fossible that accrued interest previously usdtie calculation of the incentive fee will
become uncollectible.

Our investment advisory and managementeageat renews for successive annual periods if agprby our board of directors or by the
affirmative vote of the holders of a majority ofrautstanding voting securities, including, in eitltase, approval by a majority of our
directors who are not "interested persons” of tomfany as defined in Section 2(a)(19) of the Inmesit Company Act. However, both we
and our investment adviser have the right to teateithe agreement without penalty upon 60 day#emrnotice to the other party. Moreover,
conflicts of interest may arise if our investmedviaer seeks to change the terms of our investadrisory and management agreement,
including, for example, the terms for compensatidihile any material change to the investment adyisad management agreement mus
submitted to stockholders for approval under thestiment Company Act, we may from time to time dedt is appropriate to seek
stockholder approval to change the terms of theeagent.

We are party to an administration agreemétht our administrator, Ares Operations, a whallyned subsidiary of Ares Management,
pursuant to which our administrator furnishes uthwertain administrative and other services anghaeour administrator at cost our
allocable portion of overhead and other expensetu(ding travel expenses) incurred by our admiaisirin performing its obligations under
our administration agreement, including our alldegiortion of the cost of certain of our officeisquding our chief compliance officer, ch
financial officer, general counsel, secretary ardgurer) and their respective staffs, but notstmaent professionals.

Our portfolio company, IHAM, is party to administration agreement, referred to herein astHAM administration agreement,” with
Ares Operations. Pursuant to the IHAM administratgreement, our administrator provides IHAM witimanistrative services and IHAM
reimburses our administrator for all of the actu@dts associated with such services, includinglit€able portion of our administrator's
overhead and the cost of our administrator's afieend respective staff in performing its obligaiainder the IHAM administration
agreement. Prior to entering into the IHAM admiraibn agreement, IHAM was party to a services exgent with our investment adviser,
pursuant to which our investment adviser providetlar services.
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We are party to a New York office lease thiéfl expire in February 2026 pursuant to which are leasing office facilities from a third
party. We are also party to an office sublease witts Commercial Real Estate Management LLC ("ACREM wholly owned subsidiary «
Ares Management and the manager of Ares CommeReiall Estate Corporation, pursuant to which we abéessing approximately 12% of
ACREM's Chicago office space for a fixed rent eqodl 2% of the basic annual rent payable by ACREMeu its Chicago office lease, plus
certain additional costs and expenses. We alsoezhieto separate subleases with Ares ManagemerntskiM, pursuant to which Ares
Management and IHAM sublease approximately 15%288d, respectively, of our New York office space, ddixed rent equal to 15% and
20%, respectively, of the basic annual rent paybiplas under our office lease, plus certain add#ficosts and expenses.

As a result of the arrangements descrilbede, there may be times when the management teAne® (including those members of
management focused primarily on managing Ares @jiis interests that differ from those of yogising rise to a conflict.

Our stockholders may have conflicting irtw@ant, tax and other objectives with respect tir theestments in us. The conflicting
interests of individual stockholders may relatet@rise from, among other things, the nature ofimuestments, the structure or the
acquisition of our investments, and the timing ispdsitions of our investments. As a consequermd]icts of interest may arise in
connection with decisions made by our investmenmnisad, including with respect to the nature or ctiting of our investments, that may be
more beneficial for one stockholder than for ano#teckholder, especially with respect to stockbadtindividual tax situations. In selecting
and structuring investments appropriate for us,imuestment adviser will consider the investment tax objectives of the Company and our
stockholders, as a whole, not the investment, tather objectives of any stockholder individually.

Changes in laws or regulations governing our oper&ns or the operations of our portfolio companiesgchanges in the interpretation
thereof or newly enacted laws or regulations, suchs the Dodd-Frank Act, and any failure by us or ourportfolio companies to comply
with these laws or regulations, could require changs to certain business practices of us or our podfio companies, negatively impact
the operations, cash flows or financial condition fous or our portfolio companies, impose additionatosts on us or our portfolio
companies or otherwise adversely affect our busine®r the business of our portfolio companies.

We and our portfolio companies are suljiecegulation by laws and regulations at the lostte, federal and, in some cases, foreign
levels. These laws and regulations, as well as thigrpretation, may be changed from time to tiared new laws and regulations may be
enacted. Accordingly, any change in these lawggulations, changes in their interpretation, orlgeamacted laws or regulations and any
failure by us or our portfolio companies to compligh these laws or regulations, could require clesng certain business practices of us or
our portfolio companies, negatively impact the apiens, cash flows or financial condition of usoor portfolio companies, impose additio
costs on us or our portfolio companies or othenaideersely affect our business or the businessiioportfolio companies.

On July 21, 2010, President Obama signedi@w the Dodd-Frank Act. Many of the provisiorigtee Dodd-Frank Act have had
extended implementation periods and delayed effectates and have required extensive rulemakimgdpylatory authorities. While many of
the rules required to be written have been prontatiasome have not yet been implemented. Manyesietihules will be implemented in
2013. Although the full impact of the Dodetank Act on us and our portfolio companies mayl®known for an extended period of time,
Dodd-Frank Act, including the rules implementing firovisions and the interpretation of those rudésng with other legislative and
regulatory proposals directed at the financial sexvindustry or affecting taxation that are praabsr pending in the U.S. Congress, may
negatively impact the operations, cash flows aarfirial condition
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of us or our portfolio companies, impose additioz@dts on us or our portfolio companies, intengi& regulatory supervision of us or our
portfolio companies or otherwise adversely affaatlousiness or the business of our portfolio corgsgan

Our investment adviser's liability is limited under the investment advisory and management agreemerand we are required to
indemnify our investment adviser against certain kbilities, which may lead our investment adviser t@ct in a riskier manner on our
behalf than it would when acting for its own accouh

Our investment adviser has not assumedeasponsibility to us other than to render the sewidescribed in the investment advisory and
management agreement, and it will not be respanéilolany action of our board of directors in deiclg to follow our investment adviser's
advice or recommendations. Pursuant to the invedtadyvisory and management agreement, our investaerser and its members and tl
respective officers, managers, partners, agentslogees, controlling persons and members and drer gerson or entity affiliated with it
will not be liable to us for their acts under theeéstment advisory and management agreement, abilfult misfeasance, bad faith, gross
negligence or reckless disregard in the performandeeir duties. We have agreed to indemnify, ddfand protect our investment adviser
and its members and their respective officers, mearsa partners, agents, employees, controllingoppsrand members and any other person ot
entity affiliated with it with respect to all dameg liabilities, costs and expenses resulting faots of our investment adviser not arising out
of willful misfeasance, bad faith, gross negligenceeckless disregard in the performance of ttheires under the investment advisory and
management agreement. These protections may leadvestment adviser to act in a riskier mannermaeting on our behalf than it would
when acting for its own account. See "Risk FactdRisks Relating to Our Investments—Our investmentsat's incentive fee may induce it
to make certain investments, including speculativestments."

We may be obligated to pay our investment advisencentive compensation even if we incur a loss.

Our investment adviser is entitled to intcencompensation for each fiscal quarter in an@ambequal to a percentage of the excess ¢
pre-incentive fee net investment income for thatrtgr (before deducting incentive compensationcanthin other items) above a threshold
return for that quarter. Our pre-incentive feeingestment income for incentive compensation pugp@xcludes realized and unrealized
capital losses or depreciation and income taxese@lto realized gains that we may incur in theafigjuarter, even if such capital losses or
depreciation and income taxes related to realiz@asgesult in a net loss on our statement of ajp@=mfor that quarter. Thus, we may be
required to pay our investment adviser incentivegensation for a fiscal quarter even if there d&eline in the value of our portfolio or we
incur a net loss for that quarter.

Under the investment advisory and managéagneement, we will defer cash payment of anyritice fee otherwise earned by our
investment adviser if, during the most recent folircalendar quarter periods ending on or priothe date such payment is to be made, the
sum of (a) our aggregate distributions to our stottters and (b) our change in net assets (defia¢odtal assets less indebtedness and before
taking into account any incentive fees payablerduthe period) is less than 7.0% of our net agsgleffined as total assets less indebtedne:
the beginning of such period. These calculatiodkh&iadjusted for any share issuances or repueshdgy deferred incentive fees will be
carried over for payment in subsequent calculgtiemods to the extent such payment can then be onadkr the investment advisory and
management agreement.

If a portfolio company defaults on a loaattis structured to provide accrued interest iassible that accrued interest previously us
the calculation of the incentive fee will becomealiectible. Our investment adviser is not undey abligation to reimburse us for any par
the
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incentive fee it received that was based on acdneame that we never receive as a result of autteda the obligation that resulted in the
accrual of such income.

RISKS RELATING TO OUR INVESTMENTS

Declines in market prices and liquidity in the corprate debt markets can result in significant net urealized depreciation of our
portfolio, which in turn would reduce our net assetvalue.

As a BDC, we are required to carry our siweents at market value or, if no market valuesteeainable, at fair value as determined in
good faith by or under the direction of our boafdlicectors. We may take into account the followtgiges of factors, if relevant, in
determining the fair value of our investments: éméerprise value of a portfolio company (the entaiie of the portfolio company to a mai
participant, including the sum of the values oftdamid equity securities used to capitalize therpnige at a point in time), the nature and
realizable value of any collateral, the portfolanpany's ability to make payments and its earnamgsdiscounted cash flow, the markets in
which the portfolio company does business, a coispaiof the portfolio company's securities to sampublicly traded securities, changes in
the interest rate environment and the credit margenerally that may affect the price at which Eiminvestments would trade in their
principal markets and other relevant factors. Waemxternal event such as a purchase transactibli¢ pffering or subsequent equity sale
occurs, we use the pricing indicated by the extesment to corroborate our valuation. While mosbof investments are not publicly traded,
applicable accounting standards require us to assapart of our valuation process that our investmare sold in a principal market to
market participants (even if we plan on holdingrarestment through its maturity). As a result, Wit in the capital markets can also
adversely affect our investment valuations. De@gsds the market values or fair values of our ibmesits are recorded as unrealized
depreciation. The effect of all of these factorsoon portfolio can reduce our net asset value byeiasing net unrealized depreciation in our
portfolio. Depending on market conditions, we coulclr substantial realized losses and may suffesalized losses, which could have a
material adverse impact on our business, finaoiatition and results of operations.

Economic recessions or downturns could impair our prtfolio companies and harm our operating results.

Many of our portfolio companies may be symible to economic downturns or recessions (inolythe economic downturn that began
in 2007) and may be unable to repay our loans duhiase periods. Therefore, during these periods@u-performing assets may increase
and the value of our portfolio may decrease if weeraquired to write down the values of our investis. Adverse economic conditions may
also decrease the value of collateral securing safroar loans and the value of our equity investtheBconomic slowdowns or recessions
could lead to financial losses in our portfolio andecrease in revenues, net income and assets/ddable economic conditions also could
increase our funding costs, limit our access tactygtal markets or result in a decision by lendertsto extend credit to us. These events
could prevent us from increasing investments amchlour operating results. We experienced to sorenésuch effects during the economic
downturn that began in 2007 and may experience efiebts again in any future downturn or recession.

A portfolio company's failure to satisfyéincial or operating covenants imposed by us ardémders could lead to defaults and,
potentially, acceleration of the time when the are due and foreclosure on its assets repregertilateral for its obligations, which could
trigger cross defaults under other agreementseoguhjdize our portfolio company's ability to mestabligations under the debt that we hold
and the value of any equity securities we own. Vg incur expenses to the extent necessary to seekery upon default or to negotiate
new terms with a defaulting portfolio company.
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Investments in privately held middle-market companies involve significant risks

We primarily invest in privately held U.®iddle-market companies. Investments in privatelg imiddle-market companies involve a
number of significant risks, including the follovgn

. these companies may have limited financial res@uacel may be unable to meet their obligations, whiay be accompanied
by a deterioration in the value of any collaterad @ reduction in the likelihood of us realizings/guarantees we may have
obtained in connection with our investment;

. they typically have shorter operating historigarower product lines and smaller market shdras targer businesses, which
tend to render them more vulnerable to competitatsons and market conditions, as well as gerem@mhomic downturns;

. they typically depend on the management talentseeffiods of a small group of persons; therefore,drath, disability,
resignation or termination of one or more of thesesons could have a material adverse impact opartfiolio company and,
in turn, on us;

. there is generally little public information alidhese companies. These companies and theircfalanformation are not

subject to the Exchange Act and other regulatibasgovern public companies, and we may be unahledover all material
information about these companies, which may preusrirom making a fully informed investment desisand cause us to
lose money on our investments;

. they generally have less predictable operatsglts and may require substantial additional eadfmtsupport their operations,
finance expansion or maintain their competitiveifims,

. our executive officers, directors and our inwesat adviser may, in the ordinary course of businles named as defendants in
litigation arising from our investments in the golio companies;

. changes in laws and regulations, as well as th&grpretations, may adversely affect their busin@sancial structure or
prospects; and

. they may have difficulty accessing the capitarkets to meet future capital needs.
Our debt investments may be risky and we could losall or part of our investment.

The debt that we invest in is typically matially rated by any rating agency, but we bedighat if such investments were rated, they
would be below investment grade (rated lower tHBa=3" by Moody's Investors Service, lower than "BBIBy Fitch Ratings or lower than
"BBB-" by Standard & Poor's Ratings Services), vahimder the guidelines established by these entgian indication of having
predominantly speculative characteristics with eesppo the issuer's capacity to pay interest apdy@rincipal. Bonds that are rated below
investment grade are sometimes referred to as $hedtt bonds" or "junk bonds." Therefore, our inwesnts may result in an above average
amount of risk and volatility or loss of principal.

Our investment portfolio includes our intreent in the SSLP, which as of December 31, 20pBsented approximately 21% of our
portfolio at fair value. While the SSLP's portfoleocomprised of 36 separate first lien senior esttlpans, any material degradation of the
performance of these loans in the aggregate cayd h material adverse effect on our businessydinhcondition and results of operations.
We also may invest in assets other than first aedrd lien and mezzanine debt investments, inafulligh-yield securities, U.S. government
securities, credit derivatives and other structweclrities and certain direct equity investmenhitgese investments entail additional risks that
could adversely affect our investment returns.
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Investments in equity securities, many of which ardliquid with no readily available market, involve a substantial degree of risk

We may purchase common and other equityrgis. Although common stock has historically gexted higher average total returns
than fixed income securities over the long-ternmamn stock also has experienced significantly nvotatility in those returns and in recent
years has significantly under performed relativéxed income securities. The equity securitiesawquire may fail to appreciate and n
decline in value or become worthless and our ghititrecover our investment will depend on our fadid company's success. Investments in
equity securities involve a number of significaisks, including:

. any equity investment we make in a portfolio compeould be subject to further dilution as a resiithe issuance of
additional equity interests and to serious riska amior security that will be subordinate toiatlebtedness (including trade
creditors) or senior securities in the event thatissuer is unable to meet its obligations or bexsubject to a bankruptcy

process;

. to the extent that the portfolio company requirdgitonal capital and is unable to obtain it, weymat recover our investme!
and

. in some cases, equity securities in which we inwéisthot pay current dividends, and our abilityrealize a return on our

investment, as well as to recover our investmeilitp@ dependent on the success of the portfolimgany. Even if the
portfolio company is successful, our ability tolieathe value of our investment may be dependerihe occurrence of a
liquidity event, such as a public offering or ttaesof the portfolio company. It is likely to takesignificant amount of time
before a liquidity event occurs or we can otherveiskk our investment. In addition, the equity s&es we receive or invest in
may be subject to restrictions on resale duringogsrin which it could be advantageous to sell them

There are special risks associated witksting in preferred securities, including:

. preferred securities may include provisions thexinit the issuer, at its discretion, to defetribstions for a stated period
without any adverse consequences to the issuae twn a preferred security that is deferring idributions, we may be
required to report income for tax purposes befoea@ceive such distributions;

. preferred securities are subordinated to debtrimgef priority to income and liquidation paymerdaad therefore will be
subject to greater credit risk than debt;

. preferred securities may be substantially legsd than many other securities, such as commuekgr U.S. government
securities; and

. generally, preferred security holders have no gptights with respect to the issuing company, stthjelimited exceptions.

Additionally, when we invest in first liesenior secured loans (including unitranche loaseond lien senior secured loans or mezzanine
debt, we may acquire warrants or other equity séesiias well. Our goal is ultimately to disposesath equity interests and realize gains
upon our disposition of such interests. Howeveg,afuity interests we receive may not appreciat@lime and, in fact, may decline in value.
Accordingly, we may not be able to realize gaimsrfrour equity interests and any gains that we dbize2on the disposition of any equity
interests may not be sufficient to offset any otbeses we experience.

We may invest, to the extent permitteddw,lin the equity securities of investment funds thire operating pursuant to certain
exceptions to the Investment Company Act and insads to similar investment funds and, to the extenso invest, will bear our ratable
share of any such company's
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expenses, including management and performanceMiéewvill also remain obligated to pay managemaeutiacentive fees to Ares Capital
Management with respect to the assets investdtkindcurities and instruments of such companieth Wpect to each of these investments,
each of our common stockholders will bear his ardtare of the management and incentive fee of Begstal Management as well as
indirectly bearing the management and performaees &nd other expenses of any such investment éuradbrisers.

There may be circumstances where our debt investmencould be subordinated to claims of other creditis or we could be subject to
lender liability claims.

If one of our portfolio companies were tlgankrupt, even though we may have structurednbeirest as senior debt, depending on the
facts and circumstances, a bankruptcy court migttiaracterize our debt holding as an equity investrand subordinate all or a portion of
our claim to that of other creditors. In addititenders can be subject to lender liability claimsdctions taken by them where they become
too involved in the borrower's business or exercis@rol over the borrower. For example, we cowdddme subject to a lender’s liability
claim, if, among other things, we actually rendgngicant managerial assistance.

Our portfolio companies may incur debt or issue eqity securities that rank equally with, or senior tg our investments in such
companies.

Our portfolio companies may have, or mayémnitted to incur, other debt, or issue othelitggecurities, that rank equally with, or
senior to, our investments. By their terms, susitrilments may provide that the holders are entideeceive payment of dividends, interest
or principal on or before the dates on which weeantitled to receive payments in respect of ouestments. These debt instruments would
usually prohibit the portfolio companies from payiimterest on or repaying our investments in thenéand during the continuance of a
default under such debt. Also, in the event of wesacy, liquidation, dissolution, reorganizationk@amkruptcy of a portfolio company, holders
of securities ranking senior to our investmentiat tportfolio company typically are entitled to ea@ payment in full before we receive any
distribution in respect of our investment. Aftepaging such holders, the portfolio company mayhae any remaining assets to use for
repaying its obligation to us. In the case of siiesrranking equally with our investments, we wbhhve to share on an equal basis any
distributions with other security holders in theeevof an insolvency, liquidation, dissolution, mganization or bankruptcy of the relevant
portfolio company.

The rights we may have with respect todiéateral securing any junior priority loans wekado our portfolio companies may also be
limited pursuant to the terms of one or more imedlitor agreements (including agreements goverfirgg out" and "last out" structures) that
we enter into with the holders of senior debt. Urglech an intercreditor agreement, at any timegbator obligations are outstanding, we
may forfeit certain rights with respect to the atdiral to the holders of the senior obligationsesehrights may include the right to commence
enforcement proceedings against the collateral;igiimt to control the conduct of such enforcementpedings, the right to approve
amendments to collateral documents, the rightlemse liens on the collateral and the right to wagast defaults under collateral documents.
We may not have the ability to control or directis@actions, even if as a result our rights as juleioders are adversely affected.

When we are a debt or minority equity investor in aportfolio company, we are often not in a positiorio exert influence on the entity,
and other equity holders and management of the congmy may make decisions that could decrease the valof our portfolio holdings.

When we make debt or minority equity invesits, we are subject to the risk that a portfatimpany may make business decisions with
which we disagree and the other equity holders and
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management of such company may take risks or otberct in ways that do not serve our interestsa Assult, a portfolio company may
make decisions that could decrease the value ahwastment.

Our portfolio companies may be highly leveraged.

Some of our portfolio companies may be lyidéveraged, which may have adverse consequendbgse companies and to us as an
investor. These companies may be subject to réggifinancial and operating covenants and therlaye may impair these companies' ability
to finance their future operations and capital seéd a result, these companies' flexibility tgoesd to changing business and economic
conditions and to take advantage of business appities may be limited. Further, a leveraged comgfsaimcome and net assets will tend to
increase or decrease at a greater rate than dwed money were not used.

Our investment adviser's incentive fee may induce to make certain investments, including speculate investments.

The incentive fee payable by us to Aresitaaplanagement may create an incentive for Aregit@hManagement to make investments
on our behalf that are risky or more speculatiantivould be the case in the absence of such comp@marrangement. The way in which
incentive fee payable to our investment adviseetermined, which is calculated as a percentagfeeofeturn on invested capital, may
encourage our investment adviser to use leveragetease the return on our investments. Undeaicecircumstances, the use of leverage
may increase the likelihood of default, which wodldfavor the holders of our common stock and tddrs of securities convertible into ¢
common stock. In addition, our investment advis#rneceive the incentive fee based, in part, upehcapital gains realized on our
investments. Unlike the portion of the incentive fmsed on income, there is no hurdle rate appdi¢atihe portion of the incentive fee based
on net capital gains. As a result, our investmeriser may have a tendency to invest more in imeests that are likely to result in capital
gains as compared to income producing securitiash & practice could result in our investing in exspeculative securities than would
otherwise be the case, which could result in higimegstment losses, particularly during economiwakoirns.

The part of the incentive fee payable byhag relates to our pre-incentive fee net investnmecome will be computed and paid on
income that may include interest that is accruddchbuyet received in cash. If a portfolio compalgfaults on a loan that is structured to
provide accrued interest, it is possible that aedrimterest previously used in the calculatiorhefincentive fee will become uncollectible.
Our investment adviser is not under any obligat@reimburse us for any part of the incentive teegeived that was based on such accrued
interest that we never actually receive.

Because of the structure of the incentaes ft is possible that we may have to pay an itimefiee in a quarter where we incur a loss. For
example, if we receive pre-incentive fee net inmesit income in excess of the hurdle rate for atguawne will pay the applicable incentive
fee even if we have incurred a loss in that quatterto realized and/or unrealized capital lodseaddition, if market interest rates rise, we
may be able to invest our funds in debt instrumérds provide for a higher return, which would ie&se our pre-incentive fee net investment
income and make it easier for our investment ad¥ssurpass the fixed hurdle rate and receivenearitive fee based on such net investment
income.

Our investments in foreign companies may involve gnificant risks in addition to the risks inherent in U.S. investments.

Our investment strategy contemplates p@tkintvestments in foreign companies. Investindpireign companies may expose us to
additional risks not typically associated with isting in U.S. companies. These risks include chaimgexchange control regulations, polit
and social instability,
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expropriation, imposition of foreign taxes (potaiiti at confiscatory levels), less liquid markééss available information than is generally
the case in the United States, higher transactistscless government supervision of exchangekels@nd issuers, less developed
bankruptcy laws, difficulty in enforcing contractbligations, lack of uniform accounting and aimdjtstandards and greater price volatility.

Although most of our investments will beSUdollar denominated, our investments that aremdémated in a foreign currency will be
subject to the risk that the value of a particalarency will change in relation to one or moreestburrencies. Among the factors that may
affect currency values are trade balances, thé ¢tdshort-term interest rates, differences intietavalues of similar assets in different
currencies, long-term opportunities for investmamd capital appreciation and political developmeWwes may employ hedging techniques to
minimize these risks, but we cannot assure yousthett strategies will be effective or without riskus.

We may expose ourselves to risks if we engage indgéng transactions.

We have and may in the future enter intbgigg transactions, which may expose us to riske@ated with such transactions. We may
utilize instruments such as forward contracts,angy options and interest rate swaps, caps, catat<loors to seek to hedge against
fluctuations in the relative values of our portéopositions from changes in currency exchange matdsnarket interest rates. Use of these
hedging instruments may include counter-party ¢nesk.

Hedging against a decline in the valuesuwfportfolio positions does not eliminate the foitisy of fluctuations in the values of such
positions or prevent losses if the values of surditipns decline. However, such hedging can estaldiher positions designed to gain from
those same developments, thereby offsetting thinddan the value of such portfolio positions. Su@dging transactions may also limit the
opportunity for gain if the values of the underlyiportfolio positions should increase. Moreovemdy not be possible to hedge against an
exchange rate or interest rate fluctuation thabigenerally anticipated that we are not able terento a hedging transaction at an acceptable
price.

The success of our hedging transactionsdepend on our ability to correctly predict movertsein currencies and interest rates.
Therefore, while we may enter into such transastiornseek to reduce currency exchange rate anést@te risks, unanticipated changes in
currency exchange rates or interest rates maytiieguborer overall investment performance thaméfhad not engaged in any such hedging
transactions. In addition, the degree of corretalietween price movements of the instruments usachiedging strategy and price movem
in the portfolio positions being hedged may vanarbbver, for a variety of reasons, we may not sedkr be able to) establish a perfect
correlation between such hedging instruments aagdhtfolio holdings being hedged. Any such impetrfeorrelation may prevent us from
achieving the intended hedge and expose us tofilgss. In addition, it may not be possible todeedully or perfectly against currency
fluctuations affecting the value of securities dainmated in non-U.S. currencies because the valtieose securities is likely to fluctuate as a
result of factors not related to currency fluctaasi. See also "Risk Factors—Risk Relating to Ouwsillzss—We are exposed to risks
associated with changes in interest rates."

RISKS RELATING TO OUR COMMON STOCK AND PUBLICLY TRA DED NOTES

Our shares of common stock have traded at a discoufrom net asset value and may do so again in thattire, which could limit our
ability to raise additional equity capital.

Shares of closed-end investment companégméntly trade at a market price that is less thamet asset value that is attributable to
those shares. This characteristic of closad-investment companies is separate and distimt the risk that our net asset value per share
decline. It is not possible to predict whether ahgres of our common stock will trade at, abovdyedow net asset value. In the recent past,
including during much of 2009, the stocks of BDGsaa industry, including
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at times shares of our common stock, traded bektvasset value and at near historic lows as atreScbncerns over liquidity, leverage
restrictions and distribution requirements. Whena@aammon stock is trading below its net asset vakreshare, we will generally not be able
to issue additional shares of our common stoctsaharket price without first obtaining approvat gach issuance from our stockholders and
our independent directors. At our 2012 annual dtolders meeting, subject to certain determinatreqsired to be made by our board of
directors, our stockholders approved our abilitgetl or otherwise issue shares of our common stoatkexceeding 25% of our then
outstanding common stock, at a price below the therent net asset value per share during a peggdning on June 4, 2012 and expiring
on the earlier of June 4, 2013 and the date o26B annual stockholders meeting.

There is a risk that investors in our common stocknay not receive dividends or that our dividends mayot grow over time and that
investors in our debt securities may not receive bbf the interest income to which they are entitled

We intend to make distributions on a quéyrteasis to our stockholders out of assets legaligilable for distribution. We cannot assure
you that we will achieve investment results thdt allow us to make a specified level of cash disttions or yee-to-year increases in cash
distributions. If we declare a dividend and if msteckholders opt to receive cash distributionseathan participate in our dividend
reinvestment plan, we may be forced to sell sommuoinvestments in order to make cash dividendvgays.

In addition, due to the asset coveragedgglicable to us as a BDC, we may be limited inahility to make distributions. Further, if we
invest a greater amount of assets in equity séesitihat do not pay current dividends, it coulduesthe amount available for distribution.
"Dividend/Distribution Policy."

The above-referenced restrictions on distions may also inhibit our ability to make reguirinterest payments to holders of our debt,
which may cause a default under the terms of obt @greements. Such a default could materiallyeimse our cost of raising capital, as well
as cause us to incur penalties under the termsradebt agreements.

Provisions of the Maryland General Corporation Lawand of our charter and bylaws could deter takeoveattempts and have an
adverse impact on the price of our common stock.

The Maryland General Corporation Law, duarter and our bylaws contain provisions that magalirage, delay or make more difficult
a change in control of Ares Capital or the rem@falur directors. We are subject to the MarylandiBass Combination Act (the "Business
Combination Act"), subject to any applicable regments of the Investment Company Act. Our boamdireictors has adopted a resolution
exempting from the Business Combination Act anyiriess combination between us and any other pessdjgct to prior approval of such
business combination by our board, including aparby a majority of our disinterested directorghié resolution exempting business
combinations is repealed or our board or disinteckdirectors do not approve a business combinati@Business Combination Act may
discourage third parties from trying to acquiretcolof us and increase the difficulty of consumimgtsuch an offer. Our bylaws exempt
from the Maryland Control Share Acquisition ActgtfControl Share Acquisition Act") acquisitionsafr stock by any person. If we amend
our bylaws to repeal the exemption from the Corfitwhre Acquisition Act, the Control Share AcqudsitiAct also may make it more difficult
for a third party to obtain control of us and irese the difficulty of consummating such an offer.

We have also adopted measures that may inditgcult for a third party to obtain controfas, including provisions of our charter
classifying our board of directors into three céssserving staggered three-year terms, and prosgisibour charter authorizing our board of
directors to classify or
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reclassify shares of our stock into one or moresea or series, to cause the issuance of addisbaeds of our stock, and to amend our cf
from time to time, without stockholder approvaljtierease or decrease the aggregate number ossbfastock or the number of shares of
stock of any class or series that we have authtiritysue. These provisions, as well as other pionws of our charter and bylaws, may
discourage, delay, defer, make more difficult a@vemt a transaction or a change in control thahtratherwise be in your best interest.

Investing in our common stock may involve an abovaverage degree of risk.

The investments we make in accordance auithinvestment objective may result in a higher am®f risk than alternative investment
options and volatility or loss of principal. Ouvgstments in portfolio companies may be highly sfstve and aggressive and, therefore, an
investment in our securities may not be suitabteséaneone with lower risk tolerance.

The market price of our common stock may fluctuatesignificantly.

The capital and credit markets have expegd periods of extreme volatility and disruptioreothe past several years. The market price
and liquidity of the market for shares of our conmstock may be significantly affected by numeraactdrs, some of which are beyond our
control and may not be directly related to our ating performance. These factors include:

. significant volatility in the market price and tiag volume of securities of publicly traded RICE)8s or other companies in
our sector, which are not necessarily related ecogherating performance of these companies;

. price and volume fluctuations in the overallcktonarket from time to time;

. changes in law, regulatory policies or tax glirdss, or interpretations thereof, particularly lmespect to RICs or BDCs;

. loss of our RIC status;

. changes in our earnings or variations in our opegaesults;

. changes in the value of our portfolio of investnsent

. any shortfall in revenue or net income or any iasgein losses from levels expected by investoseaurities analysts;

. departure of Ares Capital Management's key perdpnne

. operating performance of companies comparable;to us

. short-selling pressure with respect to shares nEommon stock or BDCs generally;

. future sales of our securities convertible int@rchangeable or exercisable for our common stotkeoconversion of such

securities, including the Convertible Unsecureddspt

. uncertainty surrounding the strength of the &&nomic recovery;
. concerns regarding European sovereign debt;

. general economic trends and other external fachons;

. loss of a major funding source.

In the past, following periods of volatliin the market price of a company's securitiesygtes class action litigation has often been
brought against that company. If our stock pricetilates significantly, we may be the target otisiéies litigation in the future. Securities
litigation could result in substantial costs andedi management's attention and resources frorbusiness.
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We may in the future determine to issue preferredteck, which could adversely affect the market valu@f our common stock.

The issuance of shares of preferred stattkdividend or conversion rights, liquidation peegnces or other economic terms favorable to
the holders of preferred stock could adverselycafftee market price for our common stock by makingnvestment in the common stock |
attractive. In addition, the dividends on any prefd stock we issue must be cumulative. Paymedividends and repayment of the
liquidation preference of preferred stock must tpieference over any dividends or other paymentsaitacommon stockholders, and holders
of preferred stock are not subject to any of oyesmses or losses and are not entitled to parteipasny income or appreciation in excess of
their stated preference (other than convertibléepred stock that converts into common stock).ddition, under the Investment Company
Act, preferred stock constitutes a "senior secufity purposes of the 200% asset coverage test.

Our stockholders will experience dilution in their ownership percentage if they opt out of our divided reinvestment plan.

All dividends declared in cash payablettzkholders that are participants in our dividegitivestment plan are automatically reinvested
in shares of our common stock. As a result, ourks$tolders that opt out of our dividend reinvestn@an will experience dilution in their
ownership percentage of our common stock over time.

Our stockholders may experience dilution upon the @anversion of the Convertible Unsecured Notes.

The February 2016 Convertible Notes arevedible into shares of our common stock beginigust 15, 2015 or, under certain
circumstances, earlier. The June 2016 Convertiblieare convertible into shares of our commorkdbeginning on December 15, 2015 or,
under certain circumstances, earlier. The 2017 Exitnke Notes are convertible into shares of ouniewn stock beginning on September 15,
2016 or, under certain circumstances, earlier. 2018 Convertible Notes are convertible into shafesur common stock beginning on
July 15, 2017 or, under certain circumstancesiezatlpon conversion of the Convertible Unsecureded, we have the choice to pay or
deliver, as the case may be, at our election, chelres of our common stock or a combination df easl shares of our common stock. The
current conversion price of the February 2016 Cdible Notes is approximately $18.89 per shareasfimon stock, the current conversion
price of the June 2016 Convertible Notes is appnexély $18.80 per share, the current conversiaremf the 2017 Convertible Notes is
approximately $19.21 per share and the currentasion price of the 2018 Convertible Notes is apipnately $19.81 per share, in each case
subject to adjustment in certain circumstanceselklect to deliver shares of common stock upoora@rsion at the time our tangible book
value per share exceeds the conversion price éttedit such time, our stockholders may incur ditutin addition, our stockholders will
experience dilution in their ownership percentafjeommon stock upon our issuance of common stodommection with the conversion of
the Convertible Unsecured Notes and any dividemdl$ @n our common stock will also be paid on sh&®sed in connection with such
conversion after such issuance.

Our stockholders may receive shares of our commonaek as dividends, which could result in adverse taconsequences to them.

In order to satisfy the annual distributrequirement applicable to RICs, we have the gitititdeclare a large portion of a dividend in
shares of our common stock instead of in cashoAg ks a portion of such dividend is paid in caghi¢h portion can be as low as 10% for
dividends declared with respect to our taxablegyeading on or before December 31, 2011) and caragjuirements are met, the entire
distribution would be treated as a dividend for Uesleral income tax purposes. As a result, a swider would be taxed on 100% of the fair
market value of the dividend on the date a
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stockholder received it in the same manner astadiaglend, even though most of the dividend wad pashares of our common stock.

Sales of substantial amounts of our common stock the public market may have an adverse effect on éhmarket price of our common
stock.

Sales of substantial amounts of our comstook, or the availability of such common stockgate (including as a result of the
conversion of our Convertible Unsecured Notes aimmon stock), could adversely affect the prevagitimarket prices for our common sta
If this occurs and continues, it could impair ohility to raise additional capital through the safesecurities should we desire to do so.

The trading market or market value of our publicly issued debt securities may fluctuate.

Our publicly issued debt securities maynary not have an established trading market. Weataassure our noteholders that a trading
market for our publicly issued debt securities witer develop or be maintained if developed. Intamdto our creditworthiness, many fact
may materially adversely affect the trading mafketand market value of, our publicly issued dedaturities. These factors include, but are
not limited to, the following:

. the time remaining to the maturity of these debusées;

. the outstanding principal amount of debt securitith terms identical to these debt securities;
. the ratings assigned by national statistical ratiagencies;

. the general economic environment;

. the supply of debt securities trading in the seaopndnarket, if any;

. the redemption or repayment features, if anyhe$e debt securities;

. the level, direction and volatility of marketémest rates generally; and

. market rates of interest higher or lower thaesdorne by the debt securities.

Our noteholders should also be aware tettmay be a limited number of buyers when theydeeto sell their debt securities. This too
may materially adversely affect the market valu¢hefdebt securities or the trading market fordbbt securities.

Terms relating to redemption may materially adverséy affect our noteholders return on any debt secuties that we may issue.

If our noteholders' debt securities areeesdable at our option, we may choose to redeemdhbbt securities at times when prevailing
interest rates are lower than the interest raté paitheir debt securities. In addition, if ouretmtlders' debt securities are subject to mand
redemption, we may be required to redeem their sietuirities also at times when prevailing interatgs are lower than the interest rate paid
on their debt securities. In this circumstance,rmieholders may not be able to reinvest the retlemproceeds in a comparable security at
an effective interest rate as high as their detr$es being redeemed.

Our credit ratings may not reflect all risks of aninvestment in our debt securities.

Our credit ratings are an assessment by farties of our ability to pay our obligationr@equently, real or anticipated changes in our
credit ratings will generally affect the marketwalof our debt securities. Our credit ratings, heavemay not reflect the potential impact of
risks related to
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market conditions generally or other factors disedsabove on the market value of or trading mddeahe publicly issued debt securities.
Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
Item 2. Properties

We do not own any real estate or other ighyproperties materially important to our opavatiOur headquarters are currently located at
245 Park Avenue, 44th Floor, New York, New York 6@1We rent the New York office space directly frarthird party pursuant to a lease
that expires in February 2026. We entered intorsgpaubleases with Ares Management and IHAM, auntsto which Ares Management ¢
IHAM sublease approximately 15% and 20%, respelgtivd our New York office space, for a fixed readual to 15% and 20%, respectively,
of the basic annual rent payable by us under digedease, plus certain additional costs and exgenWe have also entered into a sublease
with ACREM, a wholly owned subsidiary of Ares Mamagent, pursuant to which we are subleasing appiein 12% of ACREM's
Chicago office space for a fixed rent equal to 1d%he basic annual rent payable by ACREM unde€hgago office lease, plus certain
additional costs and expenses.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

We are party to certain lawsuits in themnmalrcourse of business. In addition, Allied Capitals involved in various legal proceedings
that we assumed in connection with the Allied Astfion. Furthermore, third parties may try to s&ekmpose liability on us in connection
with the activities of our portfolio companies. Whihe outcome of any such legal proceedings caairtbis time be predicted with certainty,
we do not expect that these legal proceedingsméterially affect our business, financial conditmrresults of operations.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures
Not applicable.
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PART Il
Item 5. Market For Registrant's Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters And Issuer Purchases CEquity Securities
PRICE RANGE OF COMMON STOCK

Our common stock is traded on The NASDA®@Kal Select Market under the symbol "ARCC." Our owon stock has historically
traded at prices both above and below our net aafgt per share. It is not possible to predicttwbeour common stock will trade at, above
or below net asset value. See "Risk Factors—RigtatiRg to our Common Stock and Publicly TradededetOur shares of common stock
have traded at a discount from net asset valuerayddo so again in the future, which could limit ability to raise additional equity capite

The following table sets forth the net assdue per share of our common stock, the randeghf and low closing sales prices of our
common stock as reported on The NASDAQ Global $&tecket and the dividends declared by us for dedal quarter for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2012. On February 22, 28&3ast reported closing sales price of our comstook on The NASDAQ Global Selt
Market was $18.30 per share, which representedrmipm of approximately 14% to the net asset vakreshare reported by us as of
December 31, 2012.

Net Asset Price Range Cash Dividend
Value(1) High Low Per Share(2)
Fiscal 2011
First Quarte! $ 154 $ 17.8: $ 16.0¢ $ 0.3t
Second Quarte $ 152¢ $ 17.71 $ 15.7C $ 0.3t
Third Quartel $ 151 $ 16.3C $ 13.07 $ 0.3t
Fourth Quarte $ 153¢ $ 159t $ 13.2¢ $ 0.3¢€
Fiscal 2012
First Quartel $ 1547 $ 16.7C $ 1551 $ 0.37
Second Quarte $ 1551 $ 165t $ 1467 $ 0.37
Third Quartel $ 157« $ 17.6¢ $ 16.0¢ $ 0.45(3)
Fourth Quarte $ 16.0¢ $ 17.7¢ $ 16.0¢ $ 0.45(3)

(1) Net asset value per share is determined as oast@ay in the relevant quarter and therefore noayetilect the net ass
value per share on the date of the high and losimipsales prices. The net asset values showraaegllon outstanding
shares at the end of the relevant quarter.

(2 Represents the dividends declared in the relevaantey.

(3) Consists of a quarterly dividend of $0.38 per slzene an additional dividend of $0.05 per sh

HOLDERS

As of February 22, 2013, there were 1,88i@drs of record of our common stock (including €&dCo.).

DIVIDEND/DISTRIBUTION POLICY

We currently intend to distribute dividermtsmake distributions to our stockholders on artguily basis out of assets legally available for
distribution. We may also distribute additionalidends or make additional distributions to our ktadders from time to time. Our quarterly
and additional dividends or distributions, if amyjll be determined by our board of directors.
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The following table summarizes our dividem#clared during 2011 and 2012:

Date Declared Record Date Payment Date Amount
March 1, 201! March 15, 201 March 30,201 $ 0.3t
May 3, 2011 June 15, 201 June 30,201 $ 0.3t
August 4, 201: September 15, 20 September 30,20 $ 0.3t
November 8, 201 December 15, 20: December 30, 20: $ 0.3¢
Total declared for 201 $ 1.4
February 28, 201 March 15, 201 March 30,201 $ 0.37
May 8, 2012 June 15, 201 June 29,201 $ 0.37
August 7, 201: September 14,20 September 28,20 $ 0.3¢
August 7, 201: September 14, 20 September 28,20 $ 0.05(1)
November 5, 201 December 14, 20: December 28,20: $ 0.3¢
November 5, 201 December 14, 20. December 28,20. $ 0.05(1)
Total declared for 201 $ 1.6C

(1) Represents an additional divide:

Of the $1.60 per share in dividends dedaharing the year ended December 31, 2012, $1.66ha@e was comprised of ordinary incc
and $0.04 per share was comprised of long-termalagins.

To maintain our RIC status, we must timdistribute an amount equal to at least 90% of puestment company taxable income (as
defined by the Code, which generally includes mdinary income and net short term taxable gaingutostockholders. In addition, the
Company generally will be required to pay an extéseequal to 4% of the amount by which (i) 98%lef Company's ordinary income
recognized during a calendar year and (ii) 98.2%efCompany's capital gain net income, as definyeithe Code, recognized for the one y
period ending on October 3%0of a calendar year exceeds the distributionseryear. The taxable income on which excise t@aig is
generally distributed to stockholders in the nextyear. Depending on the level of taxable incoaraed in a tax year, we may choose to
carry forward taxable income for distribution iretfollowing year, and pay any applicable excise Eot the years ended December 31, 2012
and 2011, we recorded an excise tax expense of$ilidn and $6.6 million, respectively. We canrasisure you that we will achieve results
that will permit the payment of any cash distribns. We maintain an "opt out" dividend reinvestnydan for our common stockholders. A
result, if we declare a cash dividend, stockhold=sh dividends will be automatically reinveste@ddditional shares of our common stock,
unless they specifically opt out of the dividenohvestment plan so as to receive cash dividends.

RECENT SALES OF UNREGISTERED EQUITY SECURITIES

We have reported all sales of our unreggstequity securities that occurred during thequkdovered by this report in our Reports on
Form 10-Q or Form 8-K, as applicable.

ISSUER PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES
For the year ended December 31, 2012, di@dal purchase any shares of our common stock.
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COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN AMONG ARES CA PITAL
CORPORATION, S&P 500 INDEX AND S&P SPECIALIZED FINA NCE INDEX

Comparison of Cumulative Five-Year Total Return
$250

—@— Ares Capital Corporation
—— S&P 500 Index

$200 |--{ =—d— S&P Specialized Finance Index

$150

$50

$D T T T T

12/31/07 12/31/08 12/31/09 12/31/10 12/31/111 12/3112
SOURCE: Standard & Poor's Institutional Market Servi
NOTES:

Assumes $100 invested on December 31, 2007 is @apital, in S&P 500 Index and in S&P Specialiegthnce Index.
Assumes all dividends are reinvested on the reisgedividend payment dates without commissic

Dec08 Dec09 Decl0 Decll
Ares Capita

Dec12

56.0¢ 123.7( 179.8¢ 184.5¢ 225.8¢

S&P 500 Inde» 63.0( 79.61 91.6¢ 93.6] 108.5¢
S&P Specialized Finance Ind

34.7: 44 .5; 46.5¢ 42.7¢ 50.4

The graph and other information furnisheder this Part Il Item 5(d) of this Form X0shall not be deemed to be "soliciting material
to be "filed" with the SEC or subject to RegulatibdA or 14C, or to the liabilities of Section 18thé Exchange Act, as amended.
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Item 6. Selected Financial Dat:

The following selected financial and otlata for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2@1.D, 2009 and 2008 are derived from our
consolidated financial statements which have beelited by KPMG LLP, an independent registered puaticounting firm whose report
thereon is included elsewhere in this Annual Regdre data should be read in conjunction with aursolidated financial statements and
notes thereto and "Management's Discussion andysisadf Financial Condition and Results of Operadid which are included elsewhere in
this Annual Report.

ARES CAPITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA
(dollar amounts in millions, except per share data)

As of and For the Year Ended December 3.

2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
Total Investment Incom $ 748.C $ 6345 $ 4832 $§ 245: $ 240«
Total Expense 387.¢ 344.¢ 262.2 111.2 113.2
Net Investment Income Before Incol
Taxes 360.1 289.¢ 221.% 134.( 127.2
Income Tax Expense, Including Excise
Tax 11.2 7.5 5.4 0.€ 0.2
Net Investment Incom 348.¢ 282.¢ 215.¢ 133.¢ 127.C
Net Realized and Unrealized Ga
(Losses) on Investments, Foreign
Currencies, Extinguishment of Debt
and Other Assel 159.: 37.1 280.1 69.2 (266.5)
Gain on the Allied Acquisition(1 — — 195.¢ — —
Net Increase (Decrease) in Stockhold
Equity Resulting from Operatior $ 5082z $ 3195 $ 691.f $ 2027 $ (139.5)
Per Share Dat:
Net Increase (Decrease) in
Stockholders' Equity Resulting frol
Operations
Basic(2) $ 221 $ 156 $ 391 $ 19¢ $ (1.5
Diluted(2) $ 221 % 156 $ 391 % 19¢ $ (1.5
Cash Dividends Declare $ 16C $ 141 $ 14 $ 147 $ 1.6¢
Net Asset Value $ 16.0¢ $ 153¢ $ 149: $ 114 $ 11.25
Total Asset: $6,401.. $5,387.« $4,562.f $2,313.! $2,091.
Total Debt (Carrying Value $2,195.¢ $2,073.¢ $1,3785 $ 969.t $ 908.¢
Total Debt (Principal Value $2,293.¢ $2,170.F $1,435.. $ 969.t $ 908.¢
Total Stockholders' Equit $3,988.0 $3,147.0 $3,050.f $1,257.¢ $1,094.¢
Other Data
Number of Portfolio Companies at
Period End(3 152 141 17C 95 91
Principal Amount of Investments
Purchase: $3,161.¢ $3,239.C $1,583.¢ $ 575.C $ 925.¢
Principal Amount of Investments
Acquired as part of the Allied
Acquisition $ — $ — $1.833.¢ % — $ —
Principal Amount of Investments So
and Repaymen $2,482.¢ $2,468.. $1,555.¢ $ 515z $ 485.:
Total Return Based on Market Value
4 23.6% 2.% 43.6€% 119.%  (45.9%
Total Return Based on Net Asset Ve |
(5) 14.2% 10.5% 31.6% 17.8%  (11.2%

Weighted Average Yield of Debt anc

Other Income Producing Securitie

at Fair Value(6 11.2% 12.(% 12.% 12.7% 12.8%
Weighted Average Yield of Debt anc

Other Income Producing Securitie

at Amortized Cost(6 11.4% 12.1% 13.2% 12.1% 11.7%

(1) See Note 17 to our consolidated financial statesfemtthe year ended December 31, 2012 for momerimtion on the
Allied Acquisition.



2) In accordance with Accounting Standards CodificaftASC") 260-10, the weighted average shares ofroon stock
outstanding used in computing basic and dilutediegs per common share have been adjusted retrechy a factor
of 1.02% to recognize the bonus element associgtbdights to acquirt
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3)
(4)

(5)

(6)

shares of common stock that we issued to stockilferecord as of March 24, 2008 in connectiomwitights
offering.

Includes commitments to portfolio companies for ethiunding had yet to occur.

Total return based on market value for the yeaedrdecember 31, 2012 equalled the increase oftlie@ market
value at December 31, 2012 of $17.50 per share fhenending market value at December 31, 2011 5f45lper share
plus the declared dividends of $1.60 per shar¢h®year ended December 31, 2012. Total returrdoasenarket value
for the year ended December 31, 2011 equalledebeedse of the ending market value at Decembe2@d, of $15.45
per share from the ending market value at Decei®be?010 of $16.48 per share plus the declaredeinds of $1.41
per share for the year ended December 31, 2014l figstirn based on market value for the year efmszember 31,
2010 equalled the increase of the ending markeeval December 31, 2010 of $16.48 per share oeegritling market
value at December 31, 2009 of $12.45 per sharetptudeclared dividends of $1.40 per share foy#ds ended
December 31, 2010. Total return based on markeevalr the year ended December 31, 2009 equaléeththease of
the ending market value at December 31, 2009 o#$l2er share over the ending market value at DeeeBi, 2008 ¢
$6.33 per share plus the declared dividends of7¥iet share for the year ended December 31, 2@08l feturn based
on market value for the year ended December 318 2g0alled the decrease of the ending market \slDecember 3:
2008 of $6.33 per share from the ending marketevattDecember 31, 2007 of $14.63 per share pludebtlared
dividends of $1.68 per share for the year endeceBéer 31, 2008. Total return based on market vialnet annualizec
Our shares fluctuate in value. Our performance ghamver time and currently may be different theat shown. Past
performance is no guarantee of future results.

Total return based on net asset value for the geded December 31, 2012 equalled the change #sBet value during
the period (adjusted for share issuances) pludé¢bkared dividends of $1.60 per share for the gaded December 31,
2012, divided by the beginning net asset valuealTreturn based on net asset value for the yeasdeBgcember 31,
2011 equalled the change in net asset value dthingeriod (adjusted for share issuances) pludebkared dividends
$1.41 per share for the year ended December 31, 20dded by the beginning net asset value. Tietalrn based on n
asset value for the year ended December 31, 2Qidlled the change in net asset value during thegéadjusted for
share issuances) plus the declared dividends 40%fer share for the year ended December 31, 2ified by the
beginning net asset value. Total return based basset value for the year ended December 31, @§6alled the
change in net asset value during the period (agfjustr share issuances) plus the declared dividenh#$.47 per share
for the year ended December 31, 2009, divided byb#ginning net asset value. Total return basetkbasset value for
the year ended December 31, 2008 equalled the ehiamget asset value during the period (adjustegHare issuances)
plus the declared dividends of $1.68 per shar¢h®year ended December 31, 2008, divided by thmbmg net asset
value. Total return based on net asset value iasmutalized. Our performance changes over timeanéntly may be
different than that shown. Past performance isuarantee of future results.

Weighted average yield of debt and other ine@roducing securities at fair value is computethashe annual stated
interest rate or yield earned plus the net annmairization of original issue discount and markistdunt earned on
accruing debt and income producing securitiesdeéitiby (b) total debt and income producing se&git fair value ar
income producing securities. Weighted average yoéllebt and other income producing securitiesvairéized cost is
computed as (a) annual stated interest rate ai gieined plus the net annual amortization of osigssue discount and
market discount earned on accruing debt and ingmeducing securities, divided by (b) total debt ammbme producin
securities at amortized co
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ltem 7. Management's Discussion And Analysis (Financial Condition And Results Of Operations

The information contained in this section shoulddeed in conjunction with the Selected Financiat®and our financial statements
and notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this AhRegort. In addition, some of the statements ismport (including in the following
discussion) constitute forward- looking statemewtsich relate to future events or the future pariance or financial condition of Ares
Capital Corporation (the "Company,” "ARCC," "Aregydital,” "we," "us," or "our"). The forward-lookingtatements contained in this report
involve a number of risks and uncertainties, inalgdstatements concerning:

. our, or our portfolio companies’, future busineggerations, operating results or prospects;

. the return or impact of current and future invesitag

. the impact of a protracted decline in the liquidifycredit markets on our business;

. the impact of fluctuations in interest rates on lousiness;

. the impact of changes in laws or regulations (iditig the interpretation thereof) governing our @piens or the operations of

our portfolio companies;

. the valuation of our investments in portfoliangeanies, particularly those having no liquid tradmarket;

. our ability to recover unrealized losses;

. market conditions and our ability to accessralive debt markets and additional debt and eaquaipital;

. our contractual arrangements and relationshigisthird parties;

. Middle East turmoil and the potential for risingeegy prices and its impact on the industries inclvhwe invest;

. the general economy and its impact on the indwssinievhich we invest;

. the uncertainty surrounding the strength of the. @c®nomic recovery;

. European sovereign debt issues;

. the financial condition of and ability of our cunteand prospective portfolio companies to achiénedrtobjectives;
. our expected financings and investments;

. our ability to successfully complete and integiatg acquisitions;

. the adequacy of our cash resources and workipiad;

. the timing, form and amount of any dividend dizitions;

. the timing of cash flows, if any, from the optiwas of our portfolio companies; and

. the ability of our investment adviser to locatgtable investments for us and to monitor and agst@r our investments.

We use words such as "anticipates,” "bebgV'expects," "intends," "will," "should," "maghd similar expressions to identify forward-
looking statements, although not all forward-loakstatements include these words. Our actual sesaatl condition could differ materially
from those implied or expressed in the forward-lngkstatements for any reason, including the facset forth in "Risk Factors" and
elsewhere in this Annual Report.
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We have based the forward-looking statemerdiuded in this Annual Report on information iadale to us on the date of this Annual
Report, and we assume no obligation to update acly ®rward-looking statements. Although we undestao obligation to revise or update
any forward-looking statements, whether as a reguiew information, future events or otherwisey e advised to consult any additional
disclosures that we may make directly to you ootigh reports that we have filed or in the futureyfile with the SEC, including annual
reports on Form 10-K, registration statements amAd-2, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q and currepbrts on Form 8-K.

OVERVIEW

We are a specialty finance company thatdksed-end, non-diversified management investw@mnipany incorporated in Maryland. We
have elected to be regulated as a BDC under thestment Company Act of 1940, as amended (togetitlerthre rules and regulations
promulgated thereunder, the "Investment Company)Act

We are externally managed by Ares Capitah&yement, a wholly owned subsidiary of Ares Mamsagd, a global alternative asset
manager and an SEC-registered investment advisesyant to our investment advisory and managengaeaent. Ares Operations, a
wholly owned subsidiary of Ares Management, progidertain administrative and other services necg$saus to operate.

Our investment objective is to generaténlmoirrent income and capital appreciation througiht @nd equity investments. We invest
primarily in first lien senior secured loans (inding unitranche loans), second lien senior seclo@us and mezzanine debt, which in some
cases includes an equity component like warrants.

To a lesser extent, we also make prefaangtlor common equity investments, which have gdigdraen non-control equity investments,
of less than $20 million (usually in conjunctiontive concurrent debt investment). However, we mayeiase the size or change the nature of
these investments.

As a BDC, we are required to comply withtaim regulatory requirements. For instance, weegaty have to invest at least 70% of our
total assets in "qualifying assets," including sés and indebtedness of private U.S. companiéscartain public U.S. companies, cash,
cash equivalents, U.S. government securities agtt-¢puality debt investments that mature in one pedess. We also may invest up to 30%
of our portfolio in non-qualifying assets, as peted by the Investment Company Act. Specificallypart of this 30% basket, we may invest
in entities that are not considered "eligible palitf companies” (as defined in the Investment Camypact), including companies located
outside of the United States, entities that areaipg pursuant to certain exceptions under thesdtment Company Act, and publicly traded
entities whose public equity market capitalizatweeds the levels provided for under the Investt@empany Act.

We have elected to be treated as a RICruhdeCode, and operate in a manner so as to gdiatithe tax treatment applicable to RICs.
To qualify as a RIC, we must, among other thingsettertain source-of-income and asset diversifisatquirements and timely distribute
to our stockholders generally at least 90% of auestment company taxable income, as defined b tuke, for each year. Pursuant to this
election, we generally will not have to pay corgergvel taxes on any income that we distributeunstockholders provided that we satisfy
those requirements.
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PORTFOLIO AND INVESTMENT ACTIVITY

The Company's investment activity for tleass ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 ismpeesbelow (information presented
herein is at amortized cost unless otherwise india

Year Ended December 31

(dollar amounts in millions) 2012 2011 2010
New investment commitments(1):
New portfolio companie $ 1,794 $ 1,778.( $ T774.:
Existing portfolio companies(: 1,402.: 1,896.¢ 933.¢
Total new investment commitmer 3,197.( 3,674. 1,708.:
Less:
Investment commitments exiti 2,614 2,603.: 1,644
Net investment commitmen $ 582f $ 10710 $ 63.€
Principal amount of investments funded:
Senior term dek $ 2,686.. $ 2,484.. $ 1,376.
Subordinated Certificates of the SSLF 270.( 496.¢ 391.¢
Senior subordinated de 101.: 51.¢ 1,055.:
Collateralized loan obligatior — — 166.1
Preferred equity securitit — 164.1 91.7
Other equity securitie 103.¢ 41.2 295.¢
Commercial real esta — 0.¢ 41.2
Total $ 3,161.¢ $ 3,239. $ 3,417.
Principal amount of investments sold or repaid:
Senior term dek $ 1,786.¢ $ 1,607 $ 987.
Subordinated Certificates of the SS 66.% — 15.¢
Senior subordinated de 409.( 463.2 461.¢
Collateralized loan obligatior 55.k 166.: 6.€
Preferred equity securitit 26.2 43.F 21.t
Other equity securitie 126.( 166.1 61.¢
Commercial real esta 13.C 21.¢ 1.C
Total $ 2,482.¢ $ 2,468.0 $ 1,555.¢
Number of new investment commitments(4) 82 72 63
Average new investment commitment amour $ 39 % 51C $ 271
Weighted average term for new investment commitmest
(in months) 66 63 61
Percentage of new investment commitments at floatin
rates 88% 94% 71%
Percentage of new investment commitments at fixedites 8% 5% 23%
Weighted average yield of debt and other incom
producing securities(5):
Funded during the period at fair value 9.€% 10.9% 13.1%
Funded during the period at amortized ¢ 9.€% 10.€% 13.2%
Exited or repaid during the period at fair value 9.€% 10.1% 12.%
Exited or repaid during the period at amortized 9.7% 10.2% 12.9%

Q) New investment commitments include new agreemenfisnd revolving credit facilities or delayed drévans.
(2) Includes investment commitments to the SSLP to ncakievestments with GE in first lien senior seclil@ans of

middle market companies of $270.0 million, $496i8iom and $391.6 million for the years ended Debem31, 2012,
2011 and 2010, respective
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3) See "Senior Secured Loan Program" below and Ntteodir consolidated financial statements for tharynded
December 31, 2012 for more detail on the SSLP.

4 Number of new investment commitments represeath commitment to a particular portfolio company

(5) "Weighted average yield of debt and other megroducing securities at fair value" is compwsdhe (a) annual stated
interest rate or yield earned plus the net annualréization of original issue discount and markistdunt earned on
accruing debt and other income producing secuyidieded by (b) total debt and other income pradgsecurities at
fair value. "Weighted average yield of debt andeotincome producing securities at amortized castbimputed as the
(a) annual stated interest rate or yield earnes {ble net annual amortization of original issuedaiisit and market
discount earned on accruing debt and other incawduging securities, divided by (b) total debt atider income
producing securities at amortized cost.

(6) Represents fair value for investments in the pbatfas of the most recent prior quarter end, iflaale.
As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, our itnaests consisted of the following:

As of December 31

2012 2011
(in millions) Amortized Cost Fair Value Amortized Cost Fair Value
Senior term dek $ 3,587.¢ $ 3555.. $ 2,691.C $ 2,671.:
Subordinated Certificates of the SSLF 1,237.¢ 1,263.¢ 1,034.: 1,059.:
Senior subordinated de 321.C 259.¢ 592.¢ 515.(
Collateralized loan obligatior — — 55.t 54.C
Preferred equity securitit 238.¢ 250.1 251.2 251.1
Other equity securitie 430.¢ 584.1 463.¢ 527.(
Commercial real esta 7.3 11.¢€ 20.2 17.1
Total $ 5,823 $ 5924.¢ $ 5,108." $ 5,094.

(1)  The proceeds from these certificates were appliemiinvestments with GE to fund first lien sersecured loans to 36
and 32 different borrowers as of December 31, 2012011, respectivel
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The weighted average yields at fair valog amortized cost of the following portions of gartfolio as of December 31, 2012 and 2011
were as follows:

As of December 31
2012 2011
Amortized Cost Fair Value Amortized Cost Fair Value

Debt and other income producing

securities 11.2% 11.2% 12.1% 12.(%
Total portfolio 10.1% 10.(% 10.4% 10.£%
Senior term dek 9.5% 9.6% 10.5% 10.5%

First lien senior term del 9.C% 9.C% 9.6% 9.7%

Second lien senior term de 10.5% 10.7% 12.48% 12.2%
Subordinated Certificates of the SSLF 15.€% 15.4% 16.(% 15.7%
Senior subordinated de 11.7% 14.5% 10.2% 11.%
Collateralized loan obligatior —% —% 8.8% 9.1%

Income producing equity securities
(excluding collateralized loan
obligations) 9.€% 8.£% 10.4% 10.(%

(1)  The proceeds from these certificates were applied-investments with GE to fund first lien senior selitoans

Ares Capital Management, our investmentsatyemploys an investment rating system to categour investments. In addition to
various risk management and monitoring tools, ouestment adviser grades the credit risk of akéstments on a scale of 1 to 4 no less
frequently than quarterly. This system is intengecharily to reflect the underlying risk of a pantib investment relative to our initial cost
basis in respect of such portfolio investment,(aéthe time of acquisition), although it may afake into account under certain circumstatr
the performance of the portfolio company's busingescollateral coverage of the investment anérotblevant factors. Under this system,
investments with a grade of 4 involve the least amaf risk to our initial cost basis. The trendasl aisk factors for this investment since
origination or acquisition are generally favorabigjch may include the performance of the portfaliompany or a potential exit. Investments
graded 3 involve a level of risk to our initial ¢@ssis that is similar to the risk to our init@st basis at the time of origination or acquisitio
This portfolio company is generally performing apected and the risk factors to our ability torakitely recoup the cost of our investment
are neutral to favorable. All investments or acediinvestments in new portfolio companies aredlijtiassessed a grade of 3. Investments
graded 2 indicate that the risk to our ability écoup the initial cost basis of such investmentiha®ased materially since origination or
acquisition, including as a result of factors sastdeclining performance and non-compliance witht devenants; however, payments are
generally not more than 120 days past due. An tmwest grade of 1 indicates that the risk to oulitgtib recoup the initial cost basis of such
investment has substantially increased since @igin or acquisition, and the portfolio companyelikhas materially declining performance.
For debt investments with an investment grade afdst or all of the debt covenants are out of cienpk and payments are substantially
delinquent. For investments graded 1, it is angitgd that we will not recoup our initial cost baei®l may realize a substantial loss of our
initial cost basis upon exit. For investments gaatler 2, our investment adviser enhances its lefvetrutiny over the monitoring of such
portfolio company. Our investment adviser gradesitivestments in our portfolio at least each quantel it is possible that the grade of a
portfolio investment may be reduced or increaseat time.
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Set forth below is the grade distributidroor portfolio companies as of December 31, 20i@ 2011:

As of December 31

2012 2011
Fair Number of Fair Number of

(dollar amounts in millions) Value % Companies % Value % Companies %
Grade 1 $ 751 1.3% 9 5.5%% 77.1 1.5% 9 6.4%
Grade 2z 136.7 2.2% 9 5% 184. 3.7% 11 7.8%
Grade & 5,108.f 86.2% 121 79.% 4,265.! 83.7% 11C 78.(%
Grade 4 604.C 10.2% 13 85% 567.f 11.1% 11 7.8%

Total $5,924.¢ 100.(% 152 100.(%$ 5,094.t 100.(% 141 100.(%

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the wethhverage grade of the investments in our pdaotédlfair value was 3.1 and 3.0,
respectively.

As of December 31, 2012, loans on non-ad@tatus represented 2.3% and 0.6% of the totabiments at amortized cost and at fair
value, respectively. As of December 31, 2011, laansonaccrual status represented 3.3% and 0.9% of theitetestments at amortized c
and at fair value, respectively.

Senior Secured Loan Prograr

The Company co-invests in first lien sersecured loans of middle market companies with I@&ugh an unconsolidated Delaware
limited liability company, the Senior Secured Ldamd LLC (d/b/a "The Senior Secured Loan Programn'the SSLP. The SSLP is
capitalized as transactions are completed anddfigtio decisions and generally all other decisiamrespect of the SSLP must be approved
by an investment committee of the SSLP consistimgpresentatives of the Company and GE (with apgdrivom a representative of each
required). The Company provides capital to the SBLtRe form of subordinated certificates (the "$3Lertificates").

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the S&dPavailable capital of $9.0 billion and $7.7ibifl, respectively, of which approximately
$6.3 billion and $5.0 billion in aggregate prindipaount was funded at December 31, 2012 and 2@s%fectively. As of December 31, 2(
and 2011, the Company had agreed to make avatlabhe SSLP approximately $1.8 billion and $1.%dnil, respectively, of which
approximately $1.2 billion and $1.0 billion was &led, respectively. Investment of any unfunded arhomwst still be approved by the
investment committee of the SSLP as described above

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the S&idPtotal assets of $6.3 billion and $5.1 billimspectively. As of December 31, 2012 and
2011, GE's investment in the SSLP consisted obsentes of $4.8 billion and $3.8 billion, respeety, and SSLP Certificates of
$178 million and $149 million, respectively. Thel¥SCertificates are junior in right of payment ke tsenior notes held by GE. As of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company and GEb8h&% and 12.5%, respectively, of the outstan&i8gP Certificates.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the SShéYtfolio was comprised of all first lien seng@cured loans to U.S. middle-market
companies and none of these loans was oragorual status. The portfolio companies in the S8tePin industries similar to the companie
the Company's portfolio.
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Below is a summary of the SSLP's portfdiddlowed by a listing of the individual first liegsenior secured loans in the SSLP's portfolio
as of December 31, 2012 and 2011:

As of December 31

(dollar amounts in millions) 2012 2011
Total first lien senior secured loans $ 5,998.. $ 5,017.¢
Weighted average yield on first lien senior secuoaths(2) 8.C% 8.2%
Number of borrowers in the SSI 36 32
Largest loan to a single borrower: $ 330.C $ 300.(
Total of five largest loans to borrowers $ 1,441 $ 1,362.¢

(1) At principal amount.

(2) Computed as the (a) annual stated interest rateaning first lien senior secured loans, dividgdlt total first lien
senior secured loans at principal amol
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SSLP Loan Portfolio as of December 31, 2012

(dollar amounts in millions)
Portfolio Company

Access CIG, LLC(3)

ADG, LLC
AMZ Products Merger Corporatic
BECO Holding Company, Inc.(5)

Cambridge International, Inc.

CCS Group Holdings, LLC(E
Chariot Acquisition, LLC

CIBT Holdings, Inc.(5)

CT Technologies Intermediate Holdings, Ir
and CT Technologies Holdings LLC(3)(
CWD, LLC

Drayer Physical Therapy Institute, LL
Driven Holdings, LLC(5;
Excelligence Learning Corporation(5)

Fleischmann's Vinegar Company, Inc.

Fox Hill Holdings, LLC

Il US Holdings, LLC

Implus Footcare, LLC(S

Instituto de Banca y Comercio, Inc. & Leec
IV Advisors, Inc.(5)

Intermedix Corporation(4)

LJSS Acquisition, Inc.
MWI Holdings, Inc.(3)
Nordco, Inc.

Oak Parent, Inc.(Z

Opinionology, LLC and Survey Sampling
International LLC

Penn Detroit Diesel Allison, LLC

PetroChoice Holdings, LLt
Power Buyer, LLC

Powersport Auctioneer Holdings, LLC(
Pregis Corporation, Pregis Intellipack Cor
and Pregis Innovative Packaging Inc.

PSSI Holdings, LLC

Selig Sealing Products, Inc.

Singer Sewing Compar
Strategic Partners, Inc.

Talent Partners G.P. and Print Payroll
Services, G.P

The Teaching Company, LLC and The
Teaching Company Holdings, Inc.(3)(

WB Merger Sub, Inc.

@
@

Stated
Maturity Interest Principal Fair
Value
Business Descriptior Date Rate(l) Amount (2)

Records and information management
services provide 10/201° 7.C%$ 152.6$ 152.¢
Dental service 10/201¢ 8.8% 199.¢ 199.c
Specialty chemicals manufactu 12/201¢ 6.8%  240.C 240.(
Wholesale distributor of first response {
protection equipment and related pi 12/201° 8.2% 160.C  160.C
Manufacturer of custom designed and
engineered metal produc 4/201¢ 8.C% 88.2 83.¢
Correctional facility healthcare opera 4/201¢ 8.C%  142.¢ 142¢
Distributor and designer of aftermarket gol
cart parts and accessor 1/201¢ 8.8% 146.¢  146.¢
Expedited travel document processing
services 12/201° 8.5% 146.¢  146.¢
Healthcare analysis servic 3/2017 7.8%  284.¢ 273t
Supplier of automotive aftermarket brake
parts 3/201+« 8.8%  119.6 110.
Outpatient physical therapy provic 7/201¢ 7.5% 138.1 138.1
Automotive aftermarket car care franchi 3/201: 7.L% 160.« 160.¢
Developer, manufacturer and retailer of
educational produci 8/201¢ 8.C%  115.¢ 115.
Manufacturer and marketer of industrial
vinegar 5/201¢ 8.€% 59.€ 59.€
Operating company that develops middle
market manufacturing and industrial
distribution companie 12/201° 8.0% 292t 292t
Provider of library automation software ant
systems 3/201¢ 7.€6% 202.¢ 202.¢
Provider of footwear and other accesso 10/201¢ 9.5% 178.C  178.C
Private school operat: 6/201¢ 10.5% 165.¢  165.€
Revenue cycle management provider to th
emergency healthcare indus 12/201¢ 6.3%  330.C 330.(
Fluid power distribution company in the
industrial and mobile equipment mark 9/2017 6.€%  163.¢ 163.¢
Highly engineered springs, fasteners, and
other precision componer 6/201% 8.(% 251z 251.Z
Designer and manufacturer of railroad
maintenanc-of-way machinery 6/201¢ 7.C% 113.2 113.2
Manufacturer of athletic appat 4/201¢ 8.C%  282.f 282.¢
Provider of outsourced data collection to tt
market research indust 7/2017 8.5% 152.:  152.%
Distributor of new equipment and aftermar
parts to the hea-duty truck industry 12/201¢ 9.C% 65.2 65.2
Provider of lubrication solutior 1/2017 10.% 162.¢ 162.
Provider of emergency maintenance servic
for power transmission, distribution, and
substation infrastructui 12/201¢ 8.6%  208.C 208.(
Powersport vehicle auction opera 12/201¢ 8.5% 40.7 40.7
Provider of highly-customized and tailored
protective packaging solutiol 3/201% 7.8% 125.¢ 125.¢
Provider of mission-critical outsourced
cleaning and sanitation services to the foo
processing industr 6/2017 6.€% 161.7 161.i
Manufacturer of container sealing products
for rigid packaging applicatior 7/201¢ 7.8% 169.¢  169.€
Manufacturer of consumer sewing machi 6/201% 7.2% 199.C  199.C
Designer, manufacturer and distributor of
medical uniforms 8/201¢ 7.8%  234.¢ 234
Provider of technology-enabled payroll to t
advertising industr 10/201° 8.C% 65.5 65.5
Education publications provid: 3/201% 9.C% 113.¢  113.¢
Importer, distributor and developer of
premium wine and spirit 12/201¢ 9.C% 164.2 164.;

$ 5,998.: $5,972.7

process described elsewhere herein.

(©)
(©)
©)

The Company holds an equity investment in thisfpliotcompany.

The Company also holds a second lien senior sedo@edn the portfolio company.

The Company also holds a portion of the first Benior secured loan in this portfolio company.

Represents the weighted average annual statedshtate as of December 31, 2012. All interessrate payable in cash.

Represents the fair value in accordance with ASGB2 The determination of such fair value is matuded in the Company's board of directors vadumati
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SSLP Loan Portfolio as of December 31, 2011

(dollar amounts in millions)

Portfolio Company

ADG, LLC

AMZ Products Merger Corporatic
Anthony, Inc. and Anthony Holdings, Inc.

Augusta Sportswear, Inc.(
BECO Holding Company, Inc.(5)

Cambridge International, Inc.

CCS Group Holdings, LLC(E
CIBT Holdings, Inc.(5)

CWD, LLC

CT Technologies Intermediate
Holdings, Inc. and CT Technologies
Holdings LLC (3)(5)

Driven Holdings, LLC(5]

Excelligence Learning Corporation(5)

Fleischmann's Vinegar Company, Inc.

Fox Hill Holdings, LLC

Huddle House, Inc.(4)(5)

Implus Footcare, LLC(5

Industrial Air Tool, L.P.

Instituto de Banca y Comercio, Inc. & Lee
IV Advisors, Inc.(5)

Intermedix Corporation

LJSS Acquisition, Inc.

MWI Holdings, Inc.(3)

Nivel Parts and Manufacturing Co., LL
Nordco, Inc.

Opinionology, LLC and Survey Sampling

International LLC
Penn Detroit Diesel Allison, LLC

PG Mergersub, Inc. and PGA Holdings, Ii
(3)(4)(5)

Powersport Auctioneer Holdings, LL
PSSI Holdings, LLC

The Teaching Company, LLC and The
Teaching Company Holdings, Inc.(

United Central Industrial Supply
Company, LLC

WB Merger Sub, Inc.

WP CPP Holdings, LLC(3

@
@

Stated
Maturity Interest  Principal
Fair

Business Descriptior Date Rate(l) Amount Value(2)
Dental service 10/201¢ 8.8%$ 176..$ 176.
Specialty chemicals manufactu 6/201¢ 7.8% 156.€ 156.€
Manufacturer of refrigeration glass doors
and related produc 6/2017 7.1% 243.¢ 243.¢
Manufacturer of athletic appai 7/201¢ 8.5% 239.¢ 239.¢
Wholesale distributor of first response {
protection equipment and related pi 7/201¢ 9.C% 116.( 116.C
Manufacturer of custom designed and
engineered metal produc 12/201! 8.8% 73.1 73.7
Correctional facility healthcare opera 4/201¢ 8.C% 109.¢ 109.¢
Expedited travel document processing
services 12/201° 9.2% 133.( 133.(
Supplier of automotive aftermarket brake
parts 3/201+« 8.8% 123.¢ 123.¢
Healthcare analysis servic 3/201% 7.8% 288.t 274.1
Automotive aftermarket car care franchi 12/201¢ 8.5% 170.C 170.C
Developer, manufacturer and retailer of
educational produci 8/201¢ 8.C% 121.C 121.C
Manufacturer and marketer of industrial
vinegar 5/201¢ 8.8% 62.2 62.2
Operating company that develops middle
market manufacturing and industrial
distribution companie 12/201° 8.8% 300.( 300.(

%

Restaurant owner and opera 6/201: 11.¢(6) 58.2 58.2
Provider of footwear and other accesso 10/201¢ 9.5% 179.¢ 179.¢
Industrial product: 6/201¢ 7.5% 34.1 34.1
Private school operat: 6/201¢ 10.5% 173.¢ 173.¢
Revenue cycle management provider to 1
emergency healthcare indus 8/201¢ 6.C% 225.¢ 225.¢
Fluid power distribution company in the
industrial and mobile equipment mark 10/201° 8.8% 167.C 167.C
Highly engineered springs, fasteners, ant
other precision componer 6/2017 8.C% 253.% 253.7
Provider of golf car aftermarket parts and
accessorie 2/201¢ 8.C% 88.( 88.C
Designer and manufacturer of railroad
maintenanc-of-way machiner 6/201¢ 7.C% 119.¢ 119.¢
Provider of outsourced data collection to
market research indust 7/2017 9.C% 158.% 158.t
Distributor of new equipment and
aftermarket parts to the heavy-duty truck
industry 12/201¢ 9.C% 66.( 66.C
Provider of patient surveys, management
reports and national databases for the
integrated healthcare delivery syst 11/201! 6.8% 267.% 267.%
Powersport vehicle auction opera 12/201¢ 8.8% 74.5 74.5
Provider of mission-critical outsourced
cleaning and sanitation services to the fo
processing industr 6/2017 6.8% 158.¢ 158.¢
Education publications provid: 3/201% 9.C% 116.2 116.2
Provider of mining supplies and services
the U.S. underground coal mining indus 10/201! 6.3% 152t 152.5
Importer, distributor and developer of
premium wine and spirit 12/201¢ 9.C% 155.¢ 155.¢
Precision engineered castings manufact ~ 10/201° 8.5% 253.¢ 248.:

process described elsewhere herein.

©)
4
©)
(6)

The Company holds a senior subordinated loan ghpbitfolio company.
The Company holds an equity investment in thisfpbiotcompany.

Consists of 9.0% interest payable in cash and 208ayment-in-kind interest.
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$ 5,017.¢ $4,998.«

The Company also holds a portion of the first Bemior secured loan in this portfolio company.

Represents the weighted average annual statedshtate as of December 31, 2011. Unless othestased, all interest rates are payable in cash.

Represents the fair value in accordance with ASGB2 The determination of such fair value is metuded in the Company's board of directors vadunati






The amortized cost and fair value of th& B&ertificates held by the Company was $1.2 billkmd $1.3 billion, respectively, as of
December 31, 2012, and $1.0 billion and $1.1 hilliespectively, as of December 31, 2011. The SS¢fficates pay a weighted average
contractual coupon of three month LIBOR plus apprately 8.0% and also entitle the holders thereatteive a portion of the excess cash
flow from the underlying loan portfolio, which magsult in a return to the holders of the SSLP @eaties that is greater than both the
contractual coupon on the SSLP Certificates as agelhe weighted average yield on the SSLP's piortf68.0% and 8.2% at December 31,
2012 and 2011, respectively. The Company's yieldsoimvestment in the SSLP at fair value was 15at% 15.7% as of December 31, 2012
and 2011, respectively. For the years ended Decegihe®012, 2011 and 2010, the Company earnecesttarcome of $185 million,
$118 million and $50 million, respectively, frons investment in the SSLP Certificates.

The Company is also entitled to certairsfimeconnection with the SSLP. For the years emstember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, in
connection with the SSLP, the Company earned dagbitecturing service fees and sourcing, manageieaiother fees totaling $58 million,
$55 million and $36 million, respectively.

Effective March 30, 2012, Ares Capital Mgement assumed from the Company the role of co-gaarad the SSLP. However, this
change did not impact the Company's economicssipe of its participation in the SSLP and Aresi@dManagement does not receive any
remuneration in respect of its co-manager role.

Below is certain summarized financial imf@tion for the SSLP as of and for the years endsgkber 31, 2012 and 2011:

For the Years Ended
December 31,

!in miIIions! 2012 2011
Selected Balance Sheet Informatior

Investments in loans receivable, net of discountdan origination

fees $ 59520 $ 4,981.
Cash and other asst $ 369.:. $ 126.4
Total asset $ 6,321 $ 5,107.
Senior note: $ 4,840« $ 3,846.
Other liabilities $ 46.¢ $ 66.7
Total liabilities $ 4887 $ 3,912
Subordinated certificates and members' ec $ 1,434 $ 1,194.¢
Total liabilities and members' capi $ 6,321 $ 5,107.
Selected Statement of Operations Information
Total revenue: $ 479..  $ 284.¢
Total expense $ 258.71 % 155.7
Net income $ 220.7 $ 129.1
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
For the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and201
Operating results for the years ended Déegr81, 2012, 2011 and 2010 are as follows:

For the Years Ended December 31

(in millions) 2012 2011 2010
Total investment incom $ 748.C $ 634 $ 483.
Total expense 387.¢ 344.¢ 262.2
Net investment income before income ta 360.1 289.¢ 221.2
Income tax expense, including excise 112 7.5 5.4
Net investment incom 348.¢ 282.¢ 215.¢
Net realized gains on investme 46.7 96.¢€ 45t
Net unrealized gains (losses) on investm 115.: (40.2)  230.7
Gain from the acquisition of Allied Capit — — 195.¢
Realized losses on extinquishment of ¢ (2.7 (29.9) (2.0
Realized gain on sale of other as: — — 5.¢
Net increase in stockholders' equity resulting fromerations $ 508.2 $ 319.F $ 691.¢

Investment Income

For the Years Ended December 31

(in millions) 2012 2011 2010
Interest income from investmer $ 571t $ 4732 $ 393.¢
Capital structuring service fe 102.1 97.4 54.7
Dividend income 39.7 38.4 14.4
Management and other fe 18.€ 16.7 14.4
Other income 15.€ 8.8 6.3
Total investment incom $ 748.C $ 6345 $ 483.c

The increase in interest income from inwvesits for the year ended December 31, 2012 frorodheparable period in 2011 was
primarily due to the increase in the size of thefptio, which increased from an average of $416dsi at amortized cost for the year ended
December 31, 2011 to an average of $5.5 billicenadrtized cost for the comparable period in 20d2rBhough new investment
commitments decreased from $3.7 billion for therysaled December 31, 2011 to $3.2 billion for thmparable period in 2012, capital
structuring service fees increased for the yeaeémecember 31, 2012 from the comparable peri@did primarily due to the increase in
the average capital structuring service fees reckdn new investments, which increased from 2.7201itl to 3.2% in 2012. For the year
ended December 31, 2012, dividend income includ€d%million from the Company's investment in IHAdd well as $2.2 million of
dividend income that was non-recurring in natuogrfmon-income producing equity securities. Thegase in other income for the year
ended December 31, 2012 from the comparable parigd11 was primarily attributable to higher ameahtn letter of credit and agency fe

The increase in interest income from inwvesits for the year ended December 31, 2011 froradh®parable period in 2010 was
primarily due to the increase in the size of thetfpbo, which increased from an average of $3llidsi at amortized cost for the year ended
December 31, 2010 to an average of $4.6 billicenadrtized cost from the comparable period in 20hk increase in
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capital structuring service fees for the year erldedember 31, 2011 from the comparable period iD2@as primarily due to the increase in
new investment commitments, which increased frord $illion for the year ended December 31, 20193 billion for the comparable
period in 2011. The increase in dividend incometlieryear ended December 31, 2011 from the comigapabiod in 2010 is primarily
attributable to the increase in dividend incomerfiélAM, which was $7.3 million for the year ende@dmber 31, 2010 and $19.0 million
for the comparable period in 2011, which resultedifthe growth of and increased earnings of IHAMadldition, there was an increase in
dividends from certain portfolio companies in whigh have an equity investment. Total dividend inedor the year ended December 31,
2011 included $10.3 million of dividend income thas non-recurring in nature from non-income praggi@quity securities.

Operating Expenses

For the Years Ended December 3]

(in millions) 2012 2011 2010
Interest and credit facility fee $ 143.C $ 1228 $ 79.:
Incentive fees related to |-incentive fee net investment incol 95.2 79.C 61.2
Incentive fees related to capital gains per G# 31.¢€ 33.8 15.€
Base management fe 86.2 71.¢ 52.C
Professional fee 12.C 16.7 290.¢
Administrative fee: 9.3 9.5 10.€
Other general and administrati 10.2 12.C 13.2
Total operating expens $ 387.¢ $ 344.€ $ 262.:

Interest and credit facility fees for theays ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, wemerised of the following:

For the Years Ended December 3:

(in millions) 2012 2011 2010
Stated interest expen $ 1131 $ 92z $ 57.7
Facility fees 5.€ 6.1 4.€
Amortization of debt issuance co: 13.C 13.2 8.8
Accretion of discount on notes paya 11.2 11.C 8.2
Total interest and credit facility fees expe $ 143.C $ 1228 $ 79.:

Stated interest expense for the year eBds@mber 31, 2012 increased from the comparabiedbier 2011 due to the increase in the
average principal amount of debt outstanding anitherease in our weighted average stated intea¢stof our debt. For the year ended
December 31, 2012, our average principal debt andstg was $2.2 billion as compared to $1.8 bilfionthe comparable period in 2011, ¢
the weighted average stated interest rate on dairvaes 5.2% for the year ended December 31, 20t2rapared to 5.1% for the comparable
period in 2011.

Stated interest expense for the year eBde@mber 31, 2011 increased from the comparabiedoigr 2010 due to the increase in our
average principal debt outstanding and an incrizaser weighted average stated interest rate ofiebt. For the year ended December 31,
2011, our average principal debt outstanding waB Billion as compared to $1.5 billion for the caangble period in 2010, and the weighted
average stated interest rate on our debt was 5s1€6rapared to 3.9% for the comparable period ir02@uUr weighted average stated interest
rate of our debt for the year ended December 311 2icreased from 2010 due to having higher amoofntssecured indebtedness, with
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longer durations to maturity and higher statedrégerates, outstanding during the comparable géni@011. Amortization of debt issuance
costs for the year ended December 31, 2011 inaldesm the comparable period in 2010 primarily doi¢he debt issuance costs associated
with convertible notes that we issued in early 2011

The increase in base management fees aadtine fees related to pre-incentive fee net itnaest income for the year ended
December 31, 2012 from the comparable period il 201 for the year ended December 31, 2011 fromdhgparable period in 2010 were
both primarily due to the increase in the sizehef portfolio and in the case of incentive fees,riiated increase in pre-incentive fee net
investment income.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, 208112010 the capital gains incentive fee expensiakcalculated in accordance with
GAAP was $31.9 million, $33.3 million and $15.6 hoih, respectively. As a result of the Capital Gakmendment to our investment
advisory and management agreement during 2011 evaext $26.0 million of capital gains incentive féesccordance with GAAP for the
year ended December 31, 2011 as a result of tHeajpn of the Capital Gains Amendment with regfgedhe assets purchased in the All
Acquisition. The capital gains incentive fee acdruader GAAP includes an accrual related to urzedlicapital appreciation, whereas the
capital gains incentive fee actually payable uraigrinvestment advisory and management agreemestriat. There can be no assurance
such unrealized capital appreciation will be readim the future. The accrual for any capital gaieentive fee under GAAP in a given per
may result in an additional expense if such cungamount is greater than in the prior period ceduction of previously recorded expense
if such cumulative amount is less than in the ppierod. If such cumulative amount is negativenttiere is no accrual. As of December 31,
2012, the total capital gains incentive fee accoaidulated in accordance with GAAP was $80.8 oiill{included in management and
incentive fees payable in the consolidated balaheet). However, the Capital Gains Fee actuallgpleyunder our investment advisory and
management agreement for the year ended Decempb20 B4 was $11.5 million. For the years ended Déezr81, 2011 and 2010, there was
no Capital Gains Fee payable under our investrairisary and management agreement.

See Note 3 to the Company's consolidatehfiial statements for the year ended Decemb&(3P, for more information on the
incentive and base management fees.

Professional fees include legal, accountaduation and other professional fees incurréated to the management of the Company.
decrease in professional fees for the year endedrbiger 31, 2012 from the comparable period in 2Glwell as the decrease from the year
ended December 31, 2011 from the comparable paria@10 primarily resulted from declines in professl fees related to the Allied
Acquisition following its completion in 2010 andvhiiag substantially completed the integration ofiédl Capital by early 2011.
Administrative fees represent fees paid to Aresr@ymns for our allocable portion of overhead attteo expenses incurred by Ares
Operations in performing its obligations under dainistration agreement, including our allocalietipn of the cost of certain of our
executive officers and their respective staffs.@Dtieneral and administrative expenses includeg iresurance, depreciation, director's fees
and other costs.

Income Tax Expense, Including Excise Tax

The Company has elected to be treatedRA€ ainder the Code and operates in a manner soqastify for the tax treatment applicable
to RICs. To qualify as a RIC, the Company must, mgnather things, timely distribute to its stockhesl generally at least 90% of its
investment company taxable income, as defined &yCibde, for each year. In order to maintain its Rigus, the Company, among other
things, has made and intends to continue to makeetijuisite distributions to its stockholders whigh generally relieve the Company from
U.S. federal income taxes.
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Depending on the level of taxable incommed in a tax year, we may choose to carry forviaxeble income in excess of current year
dividend distributions from such current year tdgahcome into the next tax year and pay a 4% exgis on such income, as required. Tc
extent that the Company determines that its estichatirrent year annual taxable income will be icess of estimated current year dividend
distributions from such income, the Company accex&ise tax on estimated excess taxable incomechstaxable income is earned. For the
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010,expetse of $7.9 million, $6.6 million and $2.2lmoit was recorded for U.S. fede!
excise tax, respectively.

Certain of our consolidated subsidiariessrbject to U.S. federal and state income tax@sthié years ended December 31, 2012, 2011
and 2010, we recorded a tax expense of approxiyn@82 million, $0.9 million and $3.2 million, resgtively, for these subsidiaries.

Net Realized Gains/Losses

During the year ended December 31, 20Cihmpany had $2.5 billion of sales, repaymenexis of investments resulting in
$46.7 million of net realized gains. These salegayments or exits included $256.9 million of inwesnts sold to IHAM and certain vehicles
managed by IHAM. A net realized gain of $2.3 miflivas recorded on these transactions. See Notethé Company's consolidated
financial statements for the year ended Decembge2@112 for more detail on IHAM and its managed ¢kds. Net realized gains of
$46.7 million on investments were comprised of $Q78illion of gross realized gains and $125.3 miilof gross realized losses.
Additionally, during the year ended December 31, 20n connection with the repayment in full of 80 million aggregate principal amo!
of the Company's asset-backed notes (the "CLO Nas=ssied under its 2006 debt securitization (tDebt Securitization") ahead of their
scheduled maturities, $2.7 million of unamortizethdissuance costs were expensed and recordectakzad loss on the extinguishment of
debt.

The realized gains and losses on invesisrauning the year ended December 31, 2012 consstibe following:

(in millions) Net Realized
Portfolio Company Gains (Losses)
Reed Group, Ltd $ 41.t
Sta¢-Parkway, Inc. 30.C
R3 Education, Inc. and EIC Acquisitions Col 18.2
Savers, Inc. and SAI Acquisition Corporati 15.2
BenefitMall Holdings Inc. 12.t
Things Remembered Inc. and TRM Holdings Corpore 9.€
Sunquest Information Systems, Ir 9.1
Norwescc 5.7
OTG Management, Inc 4.C
Crescent Hotels & Resorts, LLC and affilia (5.5
LVCG Holdings LLC (6.€)
Direct Buy Holdings, Inc. and Direct Buy Investok®, (8.3
Aquila Binks Forest Development, LL (9.5
Making Memories Wholesale, In (12.9)
Firstlight Financial Corporatio (26.0
Prommis Solutions, LL( (46.¢)
Other, ne 15.¢
Total (net) $ 46.7
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During the year ended December 31, 20ELCihmpany had $2.5 billion of sales, repaymenexis of investments resulting in
$96.6 million of net realized gains. These salepayments or exits included $261.3 million of intwesnts sold to IHAM or certain vehicles
managed by IHAM. A net realized gain of $0.1 miflizvas recorded on these transactions. Net reajaet of $96.6 million on investments
were comprised of $249.1 million of gross realipaihs and $152.5 million of gross realized losgelgitionally, during the year ended
December 31, 2011, in connection with the redemptif all of the Company's outstanding 6.000% ndteson April 1, 2012 (the "2012
Notes") and all the Company's outstanding 6.625%sdue on July 15, 2011 (the "2011 Notes"), them@my recognized a realized loss
the extinguishment of debt of $19.3 million.

The realized gains and losses on invesisrauning the year ended December 31, 2011 cons$tibe following:

(in millions) Net Realized
Portfolio Company Gains (Losses)
Reflexite Corporatiol $ 40.¢
DSI Renal, Inc. 27.t
Callidus Debt Partners CLO Fund VI, Lt 23.¢
Industrial Container Services, LL 19.¢
Dryden XVIII Leveraged Loan 2007 Limite 19.:
Penn Detroit Diesel Allison, LL¢ 18.4
Callidus MAPS CLO Fund | LL( 15.C
Callidus Debt Partners CLO Fund VII, Lt 10.¢
Callidus MAPS CLO Fund I, Ltd 8.2
Callidus Debt Partners CLO Fund IV, Lt 8.C
Callidus Debt Partners CLO Fund V, Lt 5.7
Border Foods, Inc 5.2
Driven Brands, Inc. 4.t
Callidus Debt Partners CLO Fund I, Lt 4.4
Sigma International Group, Inc 4.3
AWTP, LLC (7.€)
Universal Trailer Corporatio (7.9
HB&G Building Products, Inc. (9.2
Summit Business Media, LL (20.7)
Wastequip, Inc. (10.2)
Coverall North America, Inc (12.9)
Primis Marketing Group, Inc (14.7
Cook Inlet Alternative Risk, LL( (15.9)
Direct Buy Holdings, Inc. (17.9)
MPBP Holdings, Inc. (27.7)
Other, ne 21.¢
Total (net) $ 96.€

During the year ended December 31, 20E0Cihmpany had $1.6 billion of sales, repaymenexis of investments resulting in
$45.5 million of net realized gains. These salepayments or exits included $113.1 million of intwesnts sold to IHAM or certain vehicles
managed by IHAM. A net realized loss of $1.3 milliwas recorded on these transactions. Net reaiaets of $45.5 million on investments
were comprised of $64.6 million of gross realizathg and $19.1 million of gross realized lossedi#ahally, during the year ended
December 31, 2010, the Company purchased $19./bmébgregate principal amount of the 2011 Notes%8%.4 million aggregate princig
amount of the 2012
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Notes. As a result of these transactions, the Cagnpecognized a realized loss on the extinguishroedebt of $2.0 million

The realized gains and losses on invesisrauning the year ended December 31, 2010 conss$tibe following:

(in millions) Net Realized
Portfolio Company Gains (Losses
Air Medical Group Holdings, LL( $ 14.¢
Bumble Bee Foods, LL! 6.1
Growing Family, Inc. (7.7)
Other, ne 32.2
Total (net) $ 45k

Net Unrealized Gains/Losses

We value our portfolio investments quastenhd the changes in value are recorded as uredalains or losses. Net unrealized gains anc
losses for the Company's portfolio for the yeaideehDecember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, were cordpuisthe following:

For the Years Ended December 31

(in millions) 2012 2011 2010
Unrealized appreciatic $ 151.C $ 1441 $ 317.t
Unrealized depreciatic (126.%) (205.7) (85.9)
Net unrealized (appreciation) depreciation reverséated to ne
realized gains or losses( 91.C 20.¢ (1.5
Total net unrealized gains (losses) from invests $ 115 $ (40.2) $ 230.7

(1)  The net unrealized (appreciation) depreciationnerelated to net realized gains or losses repteshe unrealized
appreciation or depreciation recorded on the relatset at the end of the prior peri
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The changes in unrealized appreciationdmpdeciation during the year ended December 312 26fisisted of the following:

Net Unrealized

(in millions) Appreciation
Portfolio Company (Depreciation)
Ivy Hill Asset Management, L.F $ 41.€
ADF Restaurant Group, LL 12.2
R3 Education, Inc 6.¢
Performant Financial Corporatic 6.5
Tradesmen International, In 6.5
AWTP, LLC 6.2
Financial Pacific Compan 6.C
ELC Acquisition Corp. 5.1
The Dwyer Groug 5.C
Campus Management Cor (4.5
Community Education Centers, In (4.6)
Matrixx Initiatives, Inc. (4.8
HCP Acquisition Holdings, LL( (6.2)
UL Holding Co., LLC (7.0
RE Community Holdings I, Inc (7.9
American Broadband Communications, L (8.5
Orion Foods, LLC (10.9
elnstruction Corporatio (16.7)
MVL Group, Inc (27.9)
Other, ne 26.2
Total (net) $ 24.%
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The changes in unrealized appreciationdmpdeciation during the year ended December 311 26fsisted of the following:

Net Unrealized

(in millions) Appreciation
Portfolio Company (Depreciation)
Ivy Hill Asset Management, L.F $ 48.¢
Firstlight Financial Corporatio 15.4
BenefitMall Holdings, Inc. 9.t
Things Remembered Inc 5.t
American Broadband Holding Compa 5.2
Insight Pharmaceuticals Corporati 4.€
Savers, Inc. 4.S
The Step2 Company, LL (4.5
Direct Buy Holdings, Inc. (5.6)
VSS-Tranzact Holdings, LLC (6.3
Orion Foods, LLC (6.9
Making Memories Wholesale, In (7.0
Reed Group, Ltd (8.9
CitiPostal Inc. (11.0
Pillar Processing, LL( (22.¢)
Ciena Capital LLC (27.0)
elnstruction Corporatio (27.9)
Prommis Solutions, LL( (43.2)
Other, ne 4.&
Total (net) $ (61.0
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The changes in unrealized appreciationdmpdeciation during the year ended December 310 26fsisted of the following:

Net Unrealized

(in millions) Appreciation
Portfolio Company (Depreciation)
DSI Renal Inc. $ 247
Senior Secured Loan Fund LL 24
Ivy Hill Asset Management, L.F 21.€
R3 Education, Inc 16.2
Sta¢-Parkway, Inc. 15.t
Callidus Debt Partners CDO Fund VI, Lt 127
Hot Stuff Foods, LLC 11.5
Things Remembered, In 11.1
Dryden XVIII Leveraged Loan 2007 Limite 8.2
Vantage Oncology, Inc 7.€
Tradesmen International, Ini 7.7
Industrial Container Services, LL 7.C
Callidus Debt Partners CDO Fund VII, Lt 7.C
S.B. Restaurant Compal 6.€
Callidus MAPS CLO Fund |, Ltd 6.2
Reflexite Corporatiot 5.¢
Callidus MAPS CLO Fund I, Ltd 5.7
Component Hardware Group, In 5.t
Woodstream Corporatic 5.2
American Broadband Holding Compa 4.
Callidus Debt Partners CDO Fund IV, Lt 4.7
Direct Buy Holdings, Inc. 4.2
The Step2Company, LL 4.C
MPBP Holdings, Inc. (4.7)
Reed Group, Ltd. (5.6)
Ciena Capital LLC (6.2)
Aquila Binks Forest Development, LL (6.5)
ADF Restaurant Group, LL (6.7)
Coverall North America, Inc (7.6)
Other, ne 41.2
Total (net) $ 232

FINANCIAL CONDITION, LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCE S

The Company's liquidity and capital resesrare generated primarily from the net proceegmblic offerings of equity and debt
securities, advances from the Facilities, net pedsdrom the issuance of other securities, inclydionvertible notes, as well as cash flows
from operations.

As of December 31, 2012, the Company h&®$¥Pmillion in cash and cash equivalents and $2li2n in total debt outstanding at
carrying value ($2.3 billion at principal amourSubject to leverage and borrowing base restrictidresCompany had approximately
$1.6 billion available for additional borrowingsder the Facilities as of December 31, 2012.

We may from time to time seek to retirgepurchase our common stock through cash purchasegll as retire, cancel or purchase our
outstanding debt through cash purchases and/oaagels, in open market purchases, privately negdtiaainsactions or otherwise. Such
repurchases or exchanges,
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if any, will depend on prevailing market conditigsir liquidity requirements, contractual and regaoity restrictions and other factors. The
amounts involved may be material. In addition, waeyrfrom time to time enter into additional debtiliies, increase the size of existing
facilities or issue additional debt securities Julding unsecured debt and/or debt securities caoilleinto common stock. Any such
incurrence or issuance would be subject to pravgitharket conditions, our liquidity requirementsntractual and regulatory restrictions and
other factors. In accordance with the Investmenmth@any Act, with certain limited exceptions, we ardy allowed to borrow amounts such
that our asset coverage, calculated pursuant tmtlestment Company Act, is at least 200% aftehdarrowing.

Equity Issuances

The following table summarizes the totarsls issued and proceeds we received in undemvptiblic offerings of our common stock
net of underwriting discounts and offering coststfe years ended December 31, 2012 and 2010. Wereeno sales of our equity securities
during the year ended December 31, 2011.

Offering Proceeds net o
Shares price per underwriting discounts
(in millions, except per share data issued share and offering costs
2012
August 2012 public offerin 25.¢ $ 16.551)% 427.€
January 2012 public offerir 164 $ 15412)$% 252.¢
Total for the year ended December 31, 2 42.: $ 680.(
2010
November 2010 public offerin 115 $ 165 $ 180.€
February 2010 public offerin 23.C $ 12.7F % 2772
Total for the year ended December 31, 2 34.5 $ 457.¢

(1) The shares were sold to the underwriters fatige of $16.55 per share, which the underwritegge then permitted to
sell at variable prices to the public.

(2)  The shares were sold to the underwriters for aefcb15.41 per share, which the underwriters weza permitted to
sell at variable prices to the publ

The Company used the net proceeds fronethellic equity offerings in 2012 and 2010 to repaystanding debt and for general
corporate purposes, which included funding investié accordance with our investment objective.

As of December 31, 2012, total equity madapitalization for the Company was $4.4 billimngared to $3.2 billion as of
December 31, 2011.
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Debt Capital Activities
Our debt obligations consisted of the feilog as of December 31, 2012 and 2011:

As of December 31

2012 2011
Total Total
Aggregate Aggregate
Principal Principal
Amount Principal Amount Principal
Committed/ Amount Carrying Committed/ Amount Carrying
(in millions) QOutstanding(1) Outstanding Value Outstanding(1) Outstanding Value
Revolving
Credit
Facility $ 900.((2)$ — % — 3 810.C $ 395.( $ 395.(
Revolving
Funding
Facility 620.((3) 300.( 300.( 500.( 463.( 463.(
SMBC
Funding
Facility 400.( — — — — —
Debt
Securitizat — — — 77.5 77.5 77.5
February
2016
Convertiblt
Notes 575.( 575.( 548.54) 575.( 575.( 541.%(4)
June 2016
Convertibli
Notes 230.( 230.( 218.6(4) 230.( 230.( 215.4(4)
2017
Convertible
Notes 162.5 162.5 158.5(4) — — —
2018
Convertiblt
Notes 270.C 270.C 262.6(4) — — —
February
2022 Note 143.¢ 143.¢ 143.¢ — — —
October 202
Notes 182.t 182.% 182.5 — — —
2040 Notes 200.( 200.( 200.( 200.( 200.( 200.(
2047 Notes 230.( 230.( 181.45) 230.C 230.( 181.((5)

$ 3913.¢ $ 2,293.¢ $2,195¢ $ 2,622 $ 2,170 $2,073.¢

(1) Subject to borrowing base and leverage restnis. Represents the total aggregate amount cdethut outstanding, as
applicable, under such instrument.

(2 Provides for a feature that allows the Companygeumeértain circumstances, to increase the sizeeoRevolving Credit
Facility to a maximum of $1,350.0 million as of Reaber 31, 2012.

3) Provides for a feature that allows the Company/ed Capital CP, under certain circumstances,dcease the size of
the Revolving Funding Facility to a maximum of $8&Hillion as of December 31, 2012.

(4) Represents the aggregate principal amountamgdmg of the Convertible Unsecured Notes lessitteecreted discount
initially recorded upon issuance of the Convertiblesecured Notes. The total unaccreted discourthéoFebruary 201
Convertible Notes, the June 2016 Convertible Ndates2017 Convertible Notes and the 2018 Convertilites was
$26.5 million, $11.2 million, $4.2 million and $7illion, respectively, as of December 31, 2012e Tttal unaccreted
discount for the February 2016 Convertible Notes thie June 2016 Convertible Notes was $33.8 mibiod
$14.1 million, respectively, as of December 31,201

(5) Represents the aggregate principal amount outstahels the unaccreted purchased discount. THeuttaacreted
purchased discount on the 2047 Notes was $48.®Bmadind $49.0 million as of December 31, 2012 aeddber 31,
2011, respectively

The weighted average stated interest radeneighted average maturity, both on aggregateipél amount, of all our debt outstanding
as of December 31, 2012 were 5.5% and 9.8 yeasectvely, and as of December 31, 2011 were 418302 years, respectivel



The ratio of total principal amount of delbitstanding to stockholders' equity as of Decer3tie2012 was 0.58:1.00 compared to
0.69:1.00 as of December 31, 2011. The ratio @f wdrrying value of debt outstanding to stockhrdtlequity as of December 31, 2012 was
0.55:1.00 compared to 0.66:1.00 as of Decembe2(®11].

In accordance with the Investment Companly ith certain limited exceptions, we are onlpaled to borrow amounts such that our
asset coverage, as calculated in accordance véth th
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Investment Company Act, is at least 200% after ©aarhowing. As of December 31, 2012, our asset Ggewas 282%.
Revolving Credit Facility

In December 2005, we entered into a sesgoured revolving credit facility (as amended aslated, the "Revolving Credit Facility"),
which as of December 31, 2012, allowed us to boupvwio $900 million at any one time outstandingMay 2012, we amended and restated
the Revolving Credit Facility to, among other thengcrease the size of the facility from $810 imillto $900 million, extend the expiration
of the revolving period from January 22, 2013 toyMa 2015 and extend the stated maturity date framuary 22, 2013 to May 4, 2016. The
Revolving Credit Facility also provides for a femthat allows us, under certain circumstancemadease the size of the facility to a
maximum of $1.35 billion. As of December 31, 20t interest rate charged on the Revolving CrealiflFy is based on LIBOR plus an
applicable spread of 2.25% or a "base rate" (aselin the agreements governing the Revolving iCfetility) plus an applicable spread of
1.25%. Additionally, we are required to pay a commmeint fee of 0.375% per annum on any unused poafitine Revolving Credit Facility.

As of December 31, 2012, there were no amountganding under the Revolving Credit Facility andwere in compliance in all material
respects with the terms of the Revolving Creditilfgc

Revolving Funding Facility

In October 2004, we established throughoomsolidated subsidiary, Ares Capital CP Fundib@ I("Ares Capital CP"), a revolving
funding facility (as amended, the "Revolving Furgdiracility"), which as of December 31, 2012 allowses Capital CP to borrow up to
$620 million at any one time outstanding. The Rev Funding Facility is secured by all of the dsdeeld by, and its membership interest
in, Ares Capital CP. In June 2012, we and Ares @ah@iP amended the Revolving Funding Facility tapag other things, (i) increase the
size of the Revolving Funding Facility from $500llioh to $580 million, (ii) add a feature that alls, under certain circumstances, for an
increase in the size of the facility to a maximuin$865 million, (iii) extend the reinvestment petifrom January 18, 2015 to April 18, 2015,
and (iv) extend the stated maturity date from Jan8, 2017 to April 18, 2017. In July 2012, thengmany and Ares Capital CP received an
increase in the commitments under the RevolvingdigFacility of $40 million, bringing the total mamitments to $620 million. As of
December 31, 2012, the interest rate charged oR¢lvelving Funding Facility was one month LIBOR pkn applicable spread of 2.50%
"base rate" (as defined in the agreements govethm@Revolving Funding Facility) plus an applicabpread of 1.50%. See "Recent
Developments" as well as Note 19 to our consolifiteancial statements for the year ended Decer@bg2012 for more information on a
recent amendment to the Revolving Funding Faciigditionally, we are required to pay a commitmta® of between 0.50% and 1.75%
depending on the size of the unused portion oRieolving Funding Facility. As of December 31, 20t principal amount outstanding
under the Revolving Funding Facility was $300.0liotl and we and Ares Capital CP were in compliancal material respects with the
terms of the Revolving Funding Facility.

SMBC Funding Facility

In January 2012, we established throughconsolidated subsidiary, Ares Capital JB Fundih@L("ACJB"), a revolving funding
facility (as amended, the "SMBC Funding Facilityihich as of December 31, 2012 allowed ACJB toderp to $400 million at any one
time outstanding. The SMBC Funding Facility is gecuby all of the assets held by ACJB. In Septer2bd2, the Company and ACJB
amended the SMBC Funding Facility to, among othirgs, (i) increase the size of the SMBC Fundingilfg from $200 million to
$400 million, (i) extend the
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reinvestment period from January 20, 2015 to Sejpéerh4, 2015 and (jii) extend the stated maturitiedrom January 20, 2020 to
September 14, 2020. The reinvestment period anstéted maturity date are both subject to two yesr-extensions by mutual agreement
of December 31, 2012, the interest rate chargeti@®MBC Funding Facility is based on one month@RBplus an applicable spread of
2.125% or a "base rate" (as defined in the agretnggverning the SMBC Funding Facility) plus anlaggble spread of 1.125%. As a result
of the September 2012 amendment to the SMBC Furfehedity described above, ACJB is not requiregpag a commitment fee until
September 15, 2013, at which time ACJB is requiogoly a commitment fee of 0.50% depending onitteeaf the unused portion of the
SMBC Funding Facility. As of December 31, 2012 réheas no amounts outstanding under the SMBC Fygriehwility and we and ACJB
were in compliance in all material respects with trms of the SMBC Funding Facility.

Debt Securitization

In July 2006, through ARCC Commercial Ldanst 2006, a vehicle serviced by our consolidatgdkidiary, ARCC CLO 2006 LLC
("ARCC CLQ"), we completed the $400 million debtsgtization (the "Debt Securitization") and isswuggproximately $314 million
aggregate principal amount of asset backed notésrtbparties (the "CLO Notes") that were securgd pool of middle market loans that
were purchased or originated by us. We initialkaireed approximately $86 million of aggregate pipat amount of certain "BBB" and non-
rated securities in the Debt Securitization andsegbently repurchased $35 million of the CLO Noleslune 2012, we repaid in full the
$60 million aggregate principal amount outstandifthe CLO Notes and terminated or discharged ¢gineeanents governing the Debt
Securitization.

Convertible Unsecured Notes

In January 2011, we issued $575 millionraggte principal amount of unsecured convertibiéssenotes that mature on February 1,
2016, unless previously converted or repurchasegdordance with their terms (the "February 2016v@dible Notes"). In March 2011, we
issued $230 million aggregate principal amountrefacured convertible senior notes that mature na 1u2016, unless previously converted
or repurchased in accordance with their terms"dtiee 2016 Convertible Notes"). In March 2012, ssued $162.5 million aggregate
principal amount of unsecured convertible senidesithat mature on March 15, 2017, unless prewaatverted or repurchased in
accordance with their terms (the "2017 Convertibddes"). In the fourth quarter of 2012, we issu2@@®0 million aggregate principal amo
of unsecured convertible senior notes that mataréamuary 15, 2018, unless previously convertadpurchased in accordance with their
terms (the "2018 Convertible Notes" and togetheh wie February 2016 Convertible Notes, the Juri® Zlonvertible Notes and the
2017 Convertible Notes, the "Convertible Unsecletes"). We do not have the right to redeem thev@dible Unsecured Notes prior to
maturity. The February 2016 Convertible Notes,Jhiee 2016 Convertible Notes, the 2017 Convertildtesland the 2018 Convertible Notes
bear interest at a rate of 5.750%, 5.125%, 4.8788e4a750%, respectively, per year, payable semixalhn

In certain circumstances, the Convertiblesétured Notes will be convertible into cash, shafeour common stock or a combination of
cash and shares of our common stock, at our efecticheir respective conversion rates (listedWwels of December 31, 2012) subject to
customary antdilution adjustments and the requirements of tfespective indenture (the "Convertible Unsecureteblindentures™). Prior
the close of business on the business day immédfaieceding their respective conversion dategtidtelow), holders may convert their
Convertible Unsecured Notes only under certainuoinstances set forth in the respective Convertilnisddured Notes Indenture. On or after
their respective conversion dates until the clddausiness on the scheduled trading day immedigtelgeding their respective maturity date,
holders may convert their Convertible UnsecuredeNeatt any time. In addition, if we engage in certairporate events as described in their
respective Convertible
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Unsecured Notes Indenture, holders of the Convertilmsecured Notes may require us to repurchaseafir all or part of the Convertible
Unsecured Notes at a repurchase price equal to Bd@€ principal amount of the Convertible UnsetliNotes to be repurchased, plus
accrued and unpaid interest through, but excludheyrequired repurchase date.

Certain key terms related to the convestibhtures for each of the Convertible Unsecuregdare listed below.

February 2016 2018
Convertible June 2016 2017 Convertible
Notes Convertible Notes Convertible Notes Notes
Conversion premiur 17.5% 17.5% 17.5% 17.5%
Closing stock price at issuan $16.2¢ $16.2( $16.4¢ $16.9:
January 1¢ March 22 October &
Closing stock price dat 2011 2011 March 8, 201 2012
Conversion price as of
December 31, 201 $18.8¢ $18.8( $19.2: $19.8:
Conversion rate as of
December 31, 2012 (shares
per one thousand dollar
principal amount 52.928¢ 53.190¢ 52.060t 50.473:
August 15 December 1! September 1 July 15
Conversion date 201t 201t 201¢ 2017

As of December 31, 2012, we were in conmgkain all material respects with the terms of@mavertible Unsecured Notes Indentures.
Unsecured Notes
February 2022 Notes

In February 2012, we issued $143.8 miliimaggregate principal amount of senior unsecumds) which bear interest at a rate of 7.
per year and mature on February 15, 2022 (the Usepr2022 Notes"). The February 2022 Notes requagament of interest quarterly, and all
principal is due upon maturity. These notes areeathble in whole or in part at any time or frometita time at our option on or after
February 15, 2015, at a par redemption price of2per security plus accrued and unpaid interest.

October 2022 Notes

In September 2012 and October 2012, wets$1.82.5 million in aggregate principal amounsefior unsecured notes, which bear
interest at a rate of 5.875% per year and matui@aiaber 1, 2022 (the "October 2022 Notes"). Theoer 2022 Notes require payment of
interest quarterly commencing on January 1, 2048,a principal is due upon maturity. These na@msredeemable in whole or in part at
time or from time to time at our option on or af@ctober 1, 2015, at a par redemption price of 82per security plus accrued interest and
unpaid interest.

2040 Notes

In October 2010, we issued $200 milliomggregate principal amount of senior unsecuredsnebéch bear interest at a rate of 7.75%
and mature on October 15, 2040 (the "2040 Notd$i%.2040 Notes require payment of interest quartarid all principal is due upon
maturity. These notes are redeemable in whole paihat any time or from time to time at our opt@n or after October 15, 2015, at a par
redemption price of $25.00 per security plus aatrared unpaid interest.

2047 Notes

As part of the Allied Acquisition, we assen$230 million aggregate principal amount outsiragaf senior unsecured notes which bear
interest at a rate of 6.875% and mature on April2087 (the "2047 Notes" and together with the Bakyr 2022 Notes, the October 2022
Notes and the 2040 Note
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the "Unsecured Notes"). The 2047 Notes require geyraf interest quarterly, and all principal is dymn maturity. These notes are
redeemable in whole or in part at any time or fitome to time at our option, at a par redemptiocg@of $25.00 per security plus accrued and
unpaid interest and upon the occurrence of cetéairvents as described in the indenture govelthie@047 Notes.

As of December 31, 2012 we were in comkgim all material respects with the terms of ti@entures governing the Unsecured Notes.

The Convertible Unsecured Notes and thestin®d Notes are our senior unsecured obligatiotdsank senior in right of payment to
our existing and future indebtedness that is estyesibordinated in right of payment to the ConbégtUnsecured Notes and the Unsecured
Notes; equal in right of payment to our existingl &mure unsecured indebtedness that is not eXgregisordinated; effectively junior in rigl
of payment to any of our secured indebtednessuirng existing unsecured indebtedness that we sateure) to the extent of the value of the
assets securing such indebtedness; and structjumaity to all existing and future indebtednesgl(iding trade payables) incurred by our
subsidiaries, financing vehicles or similar fagit

See Note 5 to our consolidated financiaieshents for the year ended December 31, 2012dog detail on the Company's debt
obligations.

CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS

A summary of the maturities of our prindipenounts of debt and other contractual paymengatibns as of December 31, 2012 are as
follows:

Payments Due by Perioc

After

(in millions) Total Less than 1 yea 1-3 years 3-5 years 5 years
Revolving Credit Facility $ — % — 3 — $ — $ —
Revolving Funding Facilit 300.( — — 300.( —
SMBC Funding Facility — — — — —
February 2016 Convertible No 575.( — — 575.(C —
June 2016 Convertible Not 230.( — — 230.( —
2017 Convertible Note 162. — — 162.F —
2018 Convertible Note 270.( — — — 270.(
February 2022 Note 143.¢ — — — 143.¢
October 2022 Note 182.% — — — 182.%
2040 Notes 200.( — — — 200.(
2047 Notes 230.( — — — 230.(
Operating lease obligatiol 73.C 7.1 11.¢ 10.¢ 43.2

$ 2,366.{ $ 71 $ 11¢ $ 1,278. $ 1,069.
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OFF BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
The Company has various commitments to fomdstments in its portfolio, as described below.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Coypad the following commitments to fund variougaleing and delayed draw senior
secured and subordinated loans, including commitsrtenfund which are at (or substantially at) tr@rany's discretion:

As of December 31

(in millions) 2012 2011
Total revolving and delayed draw commitme $ 466.6 $ 565.¢
Less: funded commitmen (107.7) (125.0
Total unfunded commitmen 359.t 440.¢
Less: commitments substantially at discretion ef th
Company (6.0 (64.¢)
Less: unavailable commitments due to borrowing loa
other covenant restrictiol (0.6) (5.5
Total net adjusted unfunded revolving and delayravd
commitments $ 352¢ $ 370.

Included within the total revolving and agbd draw commitments as of December 31, 2012 e@ranitments to issue up to
$62.3 million in standby letters of credit througliinancial intermediary on behalf of certain polif companies. Under these arrangements,
if the standby letters of credit were to be issulkd,Company would be required to make paymentsirtd parties if the portfolio companies
were to default on their related payment obligatioks of December 31, 2012, the Company had $41lidmin standby letters of credit
issued and outstanding under these commitmentgloalfof the portfolio companies, of which no amisuwere recorded as a liability on our
balance sheet as such letters of credit are carside the valuation of the investments in the fotic company. Of these letters of credit
$41.3 million expire in 2013 and $0.1 million expin 2014.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Cowypaas party to subscription agreements to fundtgiuwestments in private equity
investment partnerships as follows:

As of December 31

(in millions) 2012 2011
Total private equity commitmen $ 131.C $ 132«
Less: funded private equity commitme (66.5) (67.9
Total unfunded private equity commitme| 64.5 64.€
Less: private equity commitments substantially at
discretion of the Compar (53.7) (53.5)

Total net adjusted unfunded private equity committs $ 114 $ 111

In addition, as of December 31, 2012 antl26he Company had outstanding guarantees orssiotiligations on behalf of certain
portfolio companies totaling $0.8 million.

In the ordinary course of business, we s®lycertain of our investments to third party fasers. In particular, in connection with the
sale of certain controlled portfolio company equiityestments (as well as certain other sales),ave hand may continue to do so in the
future, agreed to indemnify such purchasers farrtutiabilities arising from the investments and tklated sale transaction. Such
indemnification provisions may give rise to futdigbilities.
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As of December 31, 2012, one of the Com|sgogrtfolio companies, Ciena Capital LLC ("Ciendiad one non-recourse securitization
Small Business Administration ("SBA") loan warehedacility, which has reached its maturity date tamhains outstanding. Ciena is work
with the providers of the SBA loan warehouse facilvith regard to the repayment of that facilityllidd Capital had previously issued a
performance guaranty (which Ares Capital succed¢ded a result of the Allied Acquisition) wherebyea Capital must indemnify the
warehouse providers for any damages, losses,ifiabiand related costs and expenses that theyimoayas a result of Ciena's failure to
perform any of its obligations as loan originatogn seller or loan servicer under the warehousiéitia As of December 31, 2012, there were
no known issues or claims with respect to thisqranince guaranty.

RECENT DEVELOPMENTS

On January 25, 2013, Ares Capital and Aragital CP, entered into an amendment to the Rengolunding Facility. The amendment,
among other things, modified the interest chargethe Revolving Funding Facility from the previayplicable spreads of 2.50% over
LIBOR and 1.50% over "base rate" (as defined indtpeeements governing the Revolving Funding Fggild applicable spreads ranging
from 2.25% to 2.50% over LIBOR and ranging from5B&2to 1.50% over "base rate," in each case, detednmonthly based on the
composition of the borrowing base relative to aurtging borrowings under the facility. After givieffect to the amendment and the relevant
borrowing base and amounts outstanding thereuttdemterest charged on the Revolving Funding gk of January 25, 2013 was based
on a spread over one-month LIBOR of 2.25% or aspower "base rate" of 1.25%. As of such date,rmapath LIBOR was 0.2037% and the
"base rate" was 3.25%.

From January 1, 2013 through February 2232we made new investment commitments of $16Bomjlof which $162 million were
funded. Of these new commitments, 60% were in sktien senior secured loans, 30% were in first §enior secured loans, 9% were
investments in subordinated certificates of the BShe proceeds of which were applied to co-investswith GE to fund first lien senior
secured loans through the SSLP, and 1% were ienpeef equity securities. Of the $165 million of niewestment commitments, 92% were
floating rate and 8% were fixed rate. The weightedrage yield of debt and other income producincgsies funded during the period at
amortized cost was 9.5%. We may seek to syndicptetin of these new investment commitments, algfinothere can be no assurance that
we will be able to do so.

From January 1, 2013 through February 2232we exited $208 million of investment commitigeOf these investment commitments,
47% were first lien senior secured loans, 45% wewond lien senior secured loans, 7% were investnesubordinated certificates of the
SSLP and 1% were other equity securities. Of tha8$8illion of exited investment commitments, 97%evlloating rate, 2% were fixed rate
and 1% were non-interest bearing. The weightedaanxeyield of debt and other income producing séearexited or repaid during the period
at amortized cost was 9.8%. On the $208 milliomeéstment commitments exited from January 1, 20i®ugh February 22, 2013, we
recognized total net realized gains of approxinyad0 million.

In addition, as of February 22, 2013, wd ha investment backlog and pipeline of approxitge#290 million and $155 million,
respectively. Investment backlog includes transastiapproved by our investment adviser's investm@mimittee and/or for which a formal
mandate, letter of intent or a signed commitmereHzeen issued, and therefore we believe are liketyose. Investment pipeline includes
transactions where due diligence and analysisngpeocess, but no formal mandate, letter of intersigned commitment have been issued.
The consummation of any of the investments inlthisklog and pipeline depends upon, among othegshione or more of the following:
satisfactory completion of our due diligence inigegion of the prospective portfolio company, oaceptance of the terms and structure of
such investment and the execution and deliverao$factory transaction
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documentation. In addition, we may syndicate aiponf these investments. We cannot assure youmbartill make any of these investme
or that we will syndicate any portion of these isiveents.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentatiol

The accompanying consolidated financiakstents have been prepared on the accrual baatzofinting in conformity with GAAP,
and include the accounts of the Company and itsalaated subsidiaries. The consolidated finarst@iements reflect all adjustments and
reclassifications that, in the opinion of managetnare necessary for the fair presentation of #salts of the operations and financial
condition as of and for the periods presentedsigihificant intercompany balances and transactiave been eliminated.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include funds fime to time deposited with financial institut®and short-term, liquid investments in a
money market fund. Cash and cash equivalents ariedat cost which approximates fair value.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company places its cash and cash dguaigawith financial institutions and, at timesskdeld in money market accounts may
exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporatsuréad limit.

Investments

Investment transactions are recorded ofr#lue date. Realized gains or losses are meabyrié difference between the net proceeds
from the repayment or sale and the amortized asslof the investment without regard to unrealigaiths or losses previously recognized,
and include investments charged off during theqakmet of recoveries. Unrealized gains or lossesapily reflect the change in investment
values, including the reversal of previously reeafdinrealized gains or losses when gains or I@gse®alized.

Investments for which market quotationsraaily available are typically valued at such keiquotations. In order to validate market
guotations, we look at a number of factors to deiee if the quotations are representative of falue, including the source and nature of the
guotations. Debt and equity securities that arepnbticly traded or whose market prices are naditgavailable (i.e., substantially all of our
investments) are valued at fair value as determimggod faith by our board of directors, basedamong other things, the input of our
investment adviser, audit committee and indepenttiérat-party valuation firms that have been engaaieithe direction of our board of
directors to assist in the valuation of each ptidfmvestment without a readily available markabtption at least once during a trailing
12 month period (with certain de minimis exceptjossd under a valuation policy and a consistentlyliad valuation process. The valuation
process is conducted at the end of each fiscatepiand a minimum of 50% of our portfolio at faalue is subject to review by an
independent valuation firm each quarter. In addijtmur independent accountants review our valugtiooess as part of their overall
integrated audit.

As part of the valuation process, we m&g tato account the following types of factorsigfevant, in determining the fair value of our
investments: the enterprise value of a portfolimpany (the entire value of the portfolio companwntmarket participant, including the sun
the values of debt and equity securities usedpdalae the enterprise at a point in time), theunaand realizable value of any collateral, the
portfolio company's ability to make payments aisceiirnings and discounted cash flow, the marketdhiah the portfolio company does
business, a comparison of the
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portfolio company's securities to any similar palylitraded securities, changes in the interesteatéronment and the credit markets
generally that may affect the price at which simitevestments would trade in their principal maskahd other relevant factors. When an
external event such as a purchase transactionicmfféring or subsequent equity sale occurs, wesitter the pricing indicated by the extel
event to corroborate our valuation.

Because there is not a readily availableketavalue for most of the investments in our paitf, we value substantially all of our
portfolio investments at fair value as determinedaod faith by our board of directors, as describerein. Due to the inherent uncertainty of
determining the fair value of investments that dohmve a readily available market value, thevalue of our investments may fluctuate fr
period to period. Additionally, the fair value afiminvestments may differ significantly from thelwas that would have been used had a ready
market existed for such investments and may diffaterially from the values that we may ultimatedglize. Further, such investments are
generally subject to legal and other restrictiongasale or otherwise are less liquid than publicged securities. If we were required to
liquidate a portfolio investment in a forced ordidation sale, we could realize significantly I&san the value at which we have recorded it.

In addition, changes in the market envirentrand other events that may occur over the fith@minvestments may cause the gains or
losses ultimately realized on these investmenbetdifferent than the unrealized gains or lossésated in the valuations currently assigned.

Our board of directors undertakes a mutdtpvaluation process each quarter, as descridedbe

. Our quarterly valuation process begins with eaattffgi@ company or investment being initially valliey the investment
professionals responsible for the portfolio investitnin conjunction with our portfolio managemersrte

. Preliminary valuations are reviewed and discussi#ul our investment adviser's management and invegtprofessionals, ar
then valuation recommendations are presented tb@and of directors.

. The audit committee of our board of directors rexi¢hese valuations, as well as the input of thadies, including
independent third-party valuation firms, with resjpi® the valuations of a minimum of 50% of ourtfaio at fair value.

. Our board of directors discusses valuations anchately determines the fair value of each investneour portfolio without
readily available market quotation in good faitlséh on, among other things, the input of our inwesit adviser, audit
committee and, where applicable, independent tipiadty valuation firms.

Interest and Dividend Income Recognitic

Interest income is recorded on an accrasisband includes the accretion of discounts armttération of premiums. Discounts from and
premiums to par value on securities purchasedamei@d/amortized into interest income over tredif the respective security using the
effective yield method. The amortized cost of irtm@nts represents the original cost adjusted ®atttretion of discounts and amortization
of premiums, if any.

Loans are generally placed on non-acctia&lis when principal or interest payments are @ast30 days or more or when there is
reasonable doubt that principal or interest wilicbdlected in full. Accrued and unpaid interesgénerally reversed when a loan is placed on
non-accrual status. Interest payments receivecoraacrual loans may be recognized as income dieap principal depending upon
management's judgment regarding collectability. fdoarual loans are restored to accrual status whendue principal and interest is paid
and, in management's judgment, are likely to reroaiment. The Company may make exceptions to thieiloan has sufficient collateral
value and is in the process of collection.
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Dividend income on preferred equity sedesiis recorded as dividend income on an accruss$lva the extent that such amounts are
payable by the portfolio company and are expedadsktcollected. Dividend income on common equitusiéies is recorded on the record
date for private portfolio companies or on the @xebnd date for publicly traded portfolio compasie

Paymen-in-Kind Interest

The Company has loans in its portfolio ttantain PIK provisions. The PIK interest, compus¢the contractual rate specified in each
loan agreement, is added to the principal balahtteedoan and recorded as interest income. To taiginthe Company's status as a RIC, this
non-cash source of income must be paid out to btadkrs in the form of dividends even though thenfany has not yet collected the cash.

Capital Structuring Service Fees and Other Income

The Company's investment adviser seeksaige assistance to our portfolio companies innemtion with the Company's investments
and in return the Company may receive fees fortahgiructuring services. These fees are genenally available to the Company as a result
of the Company's underlying investments, are ndynpalid at the closing of the investments, are gahenon-recurring and are recognized
as revenue when earned upon closing of the investriibe services that the Company's investmensadwyrovides vary by investment, but
generally include reviewing existing credit fadééi, arranging bank financing, arranging equitgaficing, structuring financing from multiple
lenders, structuring financing from multiple equityestors, restructuring existing loans, raisiggigy and debt capital, and providing general
financial advice, which concludes upon closinghef investment. Any services of the above natursesipent to the closing would generally
generate a separate fee payable to the Compaogrtain instances where the Company is invitecattiggpate as a co-lender in a transaction
and does not provide significant services in cotioeavith the investment, a portion of loan feegda the Company in such situations will
be deferred and amortized over the estimated fifeeloan. The Company's investment adviser msgy ke a seat on the board of directors
of a portfolio company, or observe the meetingthefboard of directors without taking a formal seat

Other income includes fees for asset manage management and consulting services, loaragtess, commitments, amendments and
other services rendered by the Company to portfmimpanies. Such fees are recognized as income @drard or the services are rendered.

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company's books and records are magddn U.S. dollars. Any foreign currency amountsteanslated into U.S. dollars on the
following basis:

(1) Fair value of investment securities, other assadisliabilities—at the exchange rates prevailinthatend of the period.

(2) Purchases and sales of investment securities, e expenses—at the exchange rates prevailittgeaespective dates of
such transactions, income or expenses.

Results of operations based on changesxé@igih exchange rates are separately disclosér isthtement of operations. Foreign security
and currency translations may involve certain adesitions and risks not typically associated witkesting in U.S. companies and U.S.
government securities. These risks include, buhatdimited to, currency fluctuations and revaloas and future adverse political, social i
economic developments, which could cause invessriarforeign markets to be less liquid and pricesemolatile than those of comparable
U.S. companies or U.S. government securities.
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Equity Offering Expense:
The Company's offering costs, excludingamditers' fees, are charged against the proceedsdquity offerings when received.
Debt Issuance Cosi

Debt issuance costs are amortized ovelifthef the related debt instrument using the gtialine method, which closely approximates
the effective yield method.

U.S. Federal Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be treatedrA€ ainder the Code and operates in a manner soqgtify for the tax treatment applicable
to RICs. To qualify as a RIC, the Company must, mgnather things, timely distribute to its stockhaisl at least 90% of its investment
company taxable income, as defined by the Codesdoh year. The Company, among other things, hds erad intends to continue to make
the requisite distributions to its stockholdersjakhwill generally relieve the Company from U.Sdéeal income taxes.

Depending on the level of taxable incommed in a tax year, we may choose to carry forviaxdble income in excess of current year
dividend distributions from such income into thtntax year and pay a 4% excise tax on such incasmegquired. To the extent that the
Company determines that its estimated current eaual taxable income will be in excess of estithatarent year dividend distributions,
the Company accrues excise tax, if any, on estiineteess taxable income as such taxable inconarneed.

Certain of our consolidated subsidiariessrbject to U.S. federal and state income taxes.
Dividends to Common Stockholde

Dividends and distributions to common staulklers are recorded on the ex-dividend date. Tieuat to be paid out as a dividend is
determined by our board of directors each quartdrigsgenerally based upon the earnings estimatedadmagement. Net realized capital
gains, if any, are generally distributed, althomghmay decide to retain such capital gains for stwent.

We have adopted a dividend reinvestmenmt filat provides for reinvestment of any distribntiave declare in cash on behalf of our
stockholders, unless a stockholder elects to reasagh. As a result, if our board of directors arifles, and we declare, a cash dividend, then
our stockholders who have not "opted out" of owidéind reinvestment plan will have their cash davids automatically reinvested in
additional shares of our common stock, rather teariving the cash dividend. We intend to use priignaewly issued shares to implement
the dividend reinvestment plan (so long as weradirig at a premium to net asset value). If oureshare trading at a significant enough
discount to net asset value and we are otherwiseitied under applicable law to purchase such shave intend to purchase shares in the
open market in connection with our obligations urulér dividend reinvestment plan. However, we reséhe right to issue new shares of
common stock in connection with our obligations entthe dividend reinvestment plan even if our share trading below net asset value.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financialé&@ements

The preparation of financial statementsanformity with GAAP requires management to makéretes and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of actual and contingent asselttiahilities at the date of the financial statetsesind the reported amounts of income or
loss and expenses during the reporting period.adctsults could differ from those estimates. Sigant estimates include the valuation of
investments.
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ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk
We are subject to financial market riskgJuding changes in interest rates and the valnsiid our investment portfolio.
Interest Rate Risl

Interest rate sensitivity refers to therggin our earnings that may result from changekarevel of interest rates. Because we fund a
portion of our investments with borrowings, our imetestment income is affected by the differencevieen the rate at which we invest and
the rate at which we borrow. As a result, therelmamo assurance that a significant change in rmartarest rates will not have a material
adverse effect on our net investment income. Sék'IRactors—We are exposed to risks associatedolihges in interest rates."

As of December 31, 2012, approximately I&%he investments at fair value in our portfoliore interest at fixed rates, approximately
75% bore interest at variable rates, 11% were ntarést earning and 1% were on non-accrual stAtiditionally, for the variable rate
investments, 70% of these investments containeddst rate floors (representing 53% of total investts at fair value). The Facilities all b
interest at variable rates with no interest rater, while the Unsecured Notes and the Convertibbisecured Notes bear interest at fixed
rates.

We regularly measure our exposure to istae risk. We assess interest rate risk and geaoar interest rate exposure on an ongoing
basis by comparing our interest rate sensitivetass@ur interest rate sensitive liabilities. Bhsa that review, we determine whether or not
any hedging transactions are necessary to mitegqiesure to changes in interest rates.

While hedging activities may mitigate oupesure to adverse fluctuations in interest ratedain hedging transactions that we may ¢
into in the future, such as interest rate swapegents, may also limit our ability to participatetihe benefits of lower interest rates with
respect to our portfolio investments. In addititrere can be no assurance that we will be abl&dotvely hedge our interest rate risk.

Based on our December 31, 2012 balance,ghedollowing table shows the annual impact ehincome of base rate changes in
interest rates (considering interest rate floors/émiable rate instruments) assuming no changesrifinvestment and borrowing structure:

(in millions) Interest Interest Net
Basis Point Change Income Expense Income

62€ $ OC $ 53.¢
221 $ 6L $ 16.1
(146 $ 3.C $ (17.9
58 $ (06 $ 6.4
58 $ (06 $ 6.4
56 $ (06 $ 6.2

Up 300 basis poini
Up 200 basis poini
Up 100 basis poini
Down 100 basis point
Down 200 basis point
Down 300 basis point

o
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Based on our December 31, 2011 balance,shedollowing table shows the annual impact ehincome of base rate changes in
interest rates (considering interest rate floors/émiable rate instruments) assuming no changesriinvestment and borrowing structure:

(in millions) Interest Interest Net
Basis Point Change Income Expense Income
Up 300 basis point $ 657 $ 281 $ 37.
Up 200 basis point $ 328 $ 187 $ 13
Up 100 basis point $ 08 $ 94 % (89
Down 100 basis poini $ 38 % (31 $ 6.¢
Down 200 basis poini $ 3€ % (31H)$ 6.7
Down 300 basis point $ 34 % (31)$ 6L

Item 8. Financial Statements And Supplementary Bta
See the Index to Consolidated FinanciaeBtants.

Item 9. Changes In And Disagreements With Accoudants On Accounting And Financial Disclosure
None.

Item 9A. Controls And Procedures

(a) Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures. The Company's management, with the participatidche Company's
President and Chief Financial Officer, has evallithe effectiveness of the Company's disclosuré¢ralsnand procedures (as defined in
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Exchange a@sctf the end of the period covered by this re@Bated upon such evaluation, the
Company's President and Chief Financial Officerctmhed that our disclosure controls and procedwess effective, as of December 31,
2012, to provide assurance that information thatdgiired to be disclosed by the Company in thentsphat it files or submits under the
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarizediegrorted, within the time periods specified by 8EC's rules and forms. Disclosure
controls and procedures include, without limitatioantrols and procedures designed to ensurenfahiation required to be disclosed by
Company in the reports that it files or submitsemithe Exchange Act is accumulated and communidatdte Company's management,
including its President and Chief Financial Officer persons performing similar functions, as appeade, to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosure.

(b) Management's Report on Internal Control over Finaiad Reporting. The Company's management is responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internalrotsover financial reporting (as defined in Ruléa-15(f) and 15d-15(f) of the Exchange
Act). Under the supervision and with the participatof management, including the President and {Ghieancial Officer, the Company
conducted an evaluation of the effectiveness ofbmpany's internal controls over financial repatbased on the criteria established in
Internal Contro—Integrated Frameworissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrie Treadway Commission (COSO). Based
on the Company's evaluation under the framewotktegrnal Control—Integrated Frameworknanagement concluded that the Company's
internal controls over financial reporting was effee as of December 31, 2012. The Company's iat@wntrols over financial reporting as
December 31, 2012, has been audited by our indepénegistered public accounting firm, KPMG LLP stated in its report titled "Report
Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm" aggF-2.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrols over financial reporting may not prevendetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periogssabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.
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(c) Audit Report of the Registered Public Accountingrii. The Company's independent registered publiowdmg firm,
KPMG LLP, has issued an audit report on the effectess of the Company's internal control over fireimeporting which is set forth under
the heading "Report of Independent Registered Pémcounting Firm" on page F-2.

(d) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporttn  There have been no changes in our internataomier financial
reporting (as defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 151 the Exchange Act) during our most recentiynpleted fiscal quarter, that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely totenally affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.

Item 9B. Other Information
None.
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PART Il
Iltem 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corpmate Governance

The information required by this item wik contained in the Company's definitive Proxy&tagnt for its 2013 Annual Stockholder
Meeting, to be filed with the SEC within 120 dayeaDecember 31, 2012, and is incorporated hdrgireference.

ltem 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item wil contained in the Company's definitive Proxy&tagnt for its 2013 Annual Stockholder
Meeting, to be filed with the SEC within 120 dayeaDecember 31, 2012, and is incorporated hdrgireference.

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain BeneficibOwners and Management and Related Stockholder Médrs

The information required by this item wil contained in the Company's definitive Proxy&tagnt for its 2013 Annual Stockholder
Meeting, to be filed with the SEC within 120 dayeaDecember 31, 2012, and is incorporated hdrgireference.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Trarections, and Director Independence

The information required by this item wil contained in the Company's definitive Proxy&tagnt for its 2013 Annual Stockholder
Meeting, to be filed with the SEC within 120 dayeaDecember 31, 2012, and is incorporated hdrgireference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item wik contained in the Company's definitive Proxy&tagnt for its 2013 Annual Stockholder
Meeting, to be filed with the SEC within 120 dayeaDecember 31, 2012, and is incorporated hdrgireference.
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PART IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules
The following documents are filed as pdrthis Annual Report:

1. Financial Statements—See the Index to Consolidaiteghcial Statements on Page F-1.

2. Financial Statement Schedules—None. We have onfittadcial statement schedules because they ameqotred or are not
applicable, or the required information is showrha financial statements or notes to the finarat@lements.

3. Exhibits.

Number Description
2.1 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of OctabeR009, among Ares Capital
Corporation, ARCC Odyssey Corp. and Allied Cap@afporation(1’

3.1 Articles of Amendment and Restatement, as amenjl
3.2 Second Amended and Restated Bylaws, as amenc
4.1 Form of Stock Certificate(«

4.2 Indenture, dated June 16, 2006, between Allied t&e@ibrporation and The Bank of New
York, as trustee(t

4.2 Form of Note under the Indenture, dated June 1@6 20etween Allied Capital Corporati
and The Bank of New York, as trustee

4.4 Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of March2P8y, between Allied Capital
Corporation and The Bank of New York, as truste

4.5 Form of 6.875% Notes due 2047

4.€ Fourth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of ApraiL0, among Ares Capital Corporation,
Allied Capital Corporation and The Bank of New Ydviellon, as trustee(i

4.7 Indenture, dated as of October 21, 2010, betwees Sapital Corporation and U.S. Bank
National Association, as trustee:

4.8 First Supplemental Indenture, dated as of OctolheR@10, relating to the 7.75% Senior
Notes due 2040, between Ares Capital Corporatiohla®. Bank National Association,
trustee(8

4.6 Form of 7.75% Senior Notes due 204C

4.1C Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of FebRj&g12, relating to the 7.00% Senior
Notes due 2022, between Ares Capital Corporatiohla®. Bank National Association,
trustee(9

4.11 Form of 7.00% Senior Notes due 2022

4.1z Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of Septe@®e?012, relating to the 5.875%
Senior Notes due 2022, between Ares Capital Cotiporand U.S. Bank National
Association, as trustee(1

4.1% Form of 5.875% Senior Notes due 2022(

4.14 Indenture, dated as of January 25, 2011, betwees Bapital Corporation and U.S. Bank
National Association, as trustee(’
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Number

Description

4.1¢

4.1¢

4.17

4.1¢

4.1¢

4.2C

4.21

10.1

10.2

10.c

10.4

10.5

10.€

10.7

10.€

10.€

10.1C

10.11

10.12

Form of 5.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2016

Indenture, dated as of March 28, 2011, between Eggstal Corporation and U.S. Bank
National Association, as trustee(’

Form of 5.125% Convertible Senior Notes due 2016

Indenture, dated as of March 14, 2012, between Bggstal Corporation and U.S. Bank
National Association, as trustee(’

Form of 4.875% Convertible Senior Notes due 201)/

Indenture, dated as of October 10, 2012, betwees Sapital Corporation and U.S. Bank
National Association, as trustee(’

Form of 4.75% Convertible Senior Notes due 2018
Dividend Reinvestment Plan of Ares Capital Corporgil5)

Restated Investment Advisory and Management Agragrdated as of June 6, 2011,
between Ares Capital Corporation and Ares Capitahdyement LLC(1€

Amended and Restated Custodian Agreement, dateid\éay 15, 2009, between Ares
Capital Corporation and U.S. Bank National Assaciaf17)

Amended and Restated Administration Agreement,ddaseof June 1, 2007, between Ares
Capital Corporation and Ares Operations LLC(

Trademark License Agreement between Ares Capitgd@ation and Ares
Management LLC(19

Form of Indemnification Agreement between Ares @dforporation and directors and
certain officers(4

Form of Indemnification Agreement between Ares Gdlorporation and members of
Ares Capital Management LLC investment committe

Amended and Restated Purchase and Sale Agreemagsd, abs of January 22, 2010, among
Ares Capital Corporation, as seller, and Ares GaiP Funding Holdings LLC, as
purchaser(20

Amendment No. 1 to Amended and Restated Purchak8ala Agreement, dated as of
June 7, 2012, among Ares Capital Corporation, bersand Ares Capital CP Funding
Holdings LLC, as purchaser(2

Second Tier Purchase and Sale Agreement, datddJasuwary 22, 2010, among Ares
Capital CP Funding Holdings LLC, as seller, andsA@apital CP Funding LLC, as
purchaser(20

Amendment No. 1 to Second Tier Purchase and Saleefitient, dated as of June 7, 2012,
among Ares Capital CP Funding Holdings LLC, aseselind Ares Capital CP
Funding LLC, as purchaser(2

Amended and Restated Sale and Servicing Agreemiated as of January 22, 2010, am
Ares Capital CP Funding LLC, as borrower, Ares Gdorporation, as servicer,
Wachovia Bank, National Association, as note pusehaJ.S. Bank National Association,
as trustee and collateral custodian, and Wellsd-8agurities, LLC, as agent(Z
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Number

Description

10.1¢

10.1¢4

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.1%

10.1¢

10.1¢

10.2C

10.21

10.2:

Amendment No. 1 to the Amended and Restatedeé®aleServicing Agreement, dated as of
May 6, 2010, among Ares Capital CP Funding LLChasower, Ares Capital Corporatic
as servicer, Wells Fargo Bank, National Associgtamsuccessor by merger to Wachovia
Bank as note purchaser, U.S. Bank, National Astoaiaas trustee and collateral
custodian, and Wells Fargo Securities LLC, as dg&h

Amendment No. 2 to the Amended and Restated SdlSarvicing Agreement, dated as of
January 18, 2011, among Ares Capital CP Funding, lds®orrower, Ares Capital
Corporation, as servicer, Wells Fargo Bank, Natidwsociation, as successor by merg:
Wachovia Bank as note purchaser, U.S. Bank Natidasbciation, as trustee and collate
custodian, and Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, as #88h

Amendment No. 3 to the Amended and Restated Sdl&arvicing Agreement, dated as of
October 13, 2011, among Ares Capital CP Funding,ldsborrower, Ares Capital
Corporation, as servicer and as transferor, Weltg® Bank, National Association (as
successor by merger to Wachovia Bank, National éiation), as note purchaser, U.S.
Bank National Association, as trustee, collateuatadian and bank and Wells Fargo
Securities, LLC, as agent(2

Amendment No. 4 to the Amended and Restated Sdl&arvicing Agreement, dated as of
January 18, 2012, among Ares Capital CP Funding, lds®horrower, Ares Capital
Corporation, as servicer and transferor, Wells &&gnk, National Association (as
successor by merger to Wachovia Bank, National éiation), as note purchaser, Wells
Fargo Securities, LLC, as agent, and U.S. BankadXatiAssociation, as collateral
custodian, trustee and bank(:

Amendment No. 5 to the Amended and Restated Sdl&arvicing Agreement, dated as of
June 7, 2012, among Ares Capital CP Funding LL®oaower, Ares Capital Corporatic

as servicer and transferor, Wells Fargo Bank, Matidssociation (as successor by merger
to Wachovia Bank, National Association), as notecpaser, Wells Fargo Securities, LLC,
as agent, and U.S. Bank National Association, datecal custodian, trustee and bank(

Amendment No. 6 to Loan and Servicing Agreemertedias of January 25, 2013, among
Ares Capital CP Funding LLC, as borrower, Ares Gadlorporation, as servicer and
transferor, Wells Fargo Securities, LLC, as agérells Fargo Bank, National Association,
as swingline lender, and the other lenders pa#yeth(26)

Second Amended and Restated Senior Secured Reydlvedit Agreement, dated as of
May 4, 2012, between Ares Capital Corporation,|énelers party thereto, and JPMorgan
Chase Bank, N.A., as administrative agent

First Amendment Agreement and Waiver, dated asovehber 13, 2007, between Ares
Capital Corporation, as borrower, Ares Capital Faldihgs LLC, ARCC CIC Flex Corp.,
ARCC Imperial Corporation and ARCC Imperial LLC,fsidiary guarantors, and BMO
Capital Markets Financing, Inc., Merrill Lynch CtgliCorporation, SunTrust Bank,
Commerzbank AG, New York and Grand Cayman BrandiBS§ Loan Finance LLC,
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., Wachovia Bank, Natiésalociation and KBC Bank N.V.,
as lenders(2€

Form of Indemnification Agreement between Alliedp@al Corporation and its directors
and certain officers (2¢

Custodian Agreement, dated as of April 3, 2009wben Allied Capital Corporation and
U.S. Bank National Association(3
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Number Description
10.2: Loan and Servicing Agreement, dated as of Jar2@r2012, among Ares Capital JB

Funding LLC, as borrower, Ares Capital Corporatias servicer and transferor, Sumitomo
Mitsui Banking Corporation, as administrative ageollateral agent and lender, and U.S.
Bank National Association, as collateral custodiad bank(31



10.2¢ Purchase and Sale Agreement, dated as of Janua2@P®, between Ares Capital JB
Funding LLC, as purchaser, and Ares Capital Cotgmraas seller(31

10.28  Omnibus Amendment No. 1, dated as of Septembe2d¥, among Ares Capital JB
Funding LLC, as borrower, Ares Capital Corporatias servicer and transferor, Sumitomo
Mitsui Banking Corporation, as administrative agéender and collateral agent, and U.S.
Bank National Association, as collateral custodiad bank (amending the Loan and
Servicing Agreement, dated as of January 20, 2@ the Purchase and Sale Agreement,
dated as of January 20, 2012)(:

10.2¢ Form of Underwriting Agreement for Equity Secuisi(i27)
10.27 Form of Underwriting Agreement for Debt Securita)
11.1 Statement of Computation of Per Share Earnings
21.1 Subsidiaries of Ares Capital Corporatic

31.1 Certification by President pursuant to ExchangePule 13a-14(a), as adopted pursuant to
Section 302 of the Sarbal-Oxley Act of 2002*

31.Zz Certification by Chief Financial Officer pursuantExchange Act Rule 13a-14(a), as
adopted pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarl-Oxley Act of 2002*

32.1 Certification by President and Chief Financial ©éfi pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350,
as adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sar-Oxley Act of 2002*

(1)
(2)

3)

(4)

()

(6)

(7)

Filed herewith
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 te @ompany's Form 8-K (File No. 814-00663), filed@ctober 30, 2009.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 te @ompany's Form 10-Q (File No. 814-00663) forgharter ended
September 30, 2012, filed on November 5, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the @any's Form 10-Q (File No. 814-00663) for the qeraeinded
June 30, 2010, filed on August 5, 2010.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits (d)(4k)and (k)(5), as applicable, to the Company'sgffective Amendment
No. 2 to the Registration Statement under the $tiez1Act of 1933, as amended, on Form N-2 (File 883-114656),
filed on September 28, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit d.2 to Alli@dpital's Registration Statement under the Seearfict of 1933, as
amended, on Form N-2/A (File No. 333-133755), filedJune 21, 2006.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits d.8 and a@s9applicable, to Allied Capital's post-effectivem@ndment No. 3 to
the Registration Statement under the SecuritiesoAt933, as amended, on Form N-2/A (File No. 333755), filed or
March 28, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Form -K (File No. 81--00663), filed on April 7, 201(
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(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)
(16)

(17)

(18)

(19)

(20)

(21)

(22)

(23)
(24)
(25)

(26)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 4.1, 4.2 /3] as applicable, to the Company's Form 8-K (Rite 814-00663),
filed on October 22, 2010.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 4.1 4r®j as applicable, to the Company's Form 8-K (Nibe 814-00663), filed
on February 2, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 4.1 4rRj as applicable, to the Company's Form 8-Ke(Rib. 814-00663), filed
on September 25, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 4.1 and ds2applicable, to the Company's Form 8-K (File 8101-00663), filed
on January 28, 2011.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 4.1 4rfj as applicable, to the Company's Form 8-ke(Rib. 814-00663), filed
on March 28, 2011.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 4.1 4rR]j as applicable, to the Company's Form 8-ke(Rib. 814-00663), filed
on March 14, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 4.1 and ds2applicable, to the Company's Form 8-K (File 811-00663), filed
on October 10, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.the Company's Form 8-K (File No. 814-00663), fitedFebruary 27, 2012.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.th® Company's Form 8-K (File No. 814-00663), fitedJune 8, 2011.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit (j) he tCompany's pre-effective Amendment No. 1 to tegifration Statement
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, omP&2 (File No. 333-158211), filed on May 28, 2009

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Form 10-Q (File No. 814-00663) for the tpraended
June 30, 2007, filed on August 9, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit (k)(3) to tbempany's pre-effective Amendment No. 1 to the Reafion
Statement under the Securities Act of 1933, as dawtron Form N-2 (File No. 333-114656), filed opt@enber 17,
2004.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.2 thro§h4, as applicable, to the Company's Form 8-Ke(Rib. 81400663).
filed on January 25, 2010.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits 10.1 thro@@!B, as applicable, to the Company's Form 8-ke(Rib. 814-0663),
filed on June 8, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5t® Company's Form 10-Q (File No. 814-00663) ferdnarter ended
March 30, 2010, filed on May 10, 2010.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Form 8-K (File No. 814-00663), filed onuarry 19, 2011.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Form 8-K (File No. 814-00663), filed on Glstr 14, 2011.
Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Form 8-K (File No. 814-00663), filed onuarry 19, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to thenpany's Form -K (File No. 81--00663), filed on January 28, 20:
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(27)

(28)

(29)

(30)

(31)

(32)

(33)

Incorporated by reference to Exhibits (h)(1), (hg&d (k)(13), as applicable, to the Company's eagion Statement
under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, omP&2 (File No. 333-181563), filed on May 21, 2012

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.the Company's Form 8-K (File No. 814-00663) filedNovember 14, 2007.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3Alkked Capital's Form 10-K (File No. 811-02708) the year ended
December 31, 2003, filed on March 12, 2004.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.44 to Alli@apital's Form 10-Q (File No. 814-00138) for therter ended
March 31, 2009, filed on May 11, 2009.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 and 18applicable, to the Company's Form 8-K (File 8131-00663), filec
on January 24, 2012.

Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.the Company's Form 8-K (File No. 808663) filed on September 17, 20

Included in Note 10 to the Company's Notes to Chdated Financial Statements filed herew
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and 201( F-45
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Ares Capital Corporation:

We have audited the accompanying conselitibalance sheet of Ares Capital Corporation (abdidiaries) (the Company) as of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, including the consmiidachedules of investments as of December 32, 20d 2011, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, stockhdldgtsty, and cash flows, and the financial hightigy(included in Note 15), for each of the
years in the thre-year period ended December 31, 2012. These cdasedi financial statements are the responsibifith® Company's
management. Our responsibility is to express aniopion these consolidated financial statementedas our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance thighstandards of the Public Company Accounting €lgat Board (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet dndbtain reasonable assurance about whethdindrecial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on glasis, evidence supporting the amounts and digids in the financial statements. Our
procedures included confirmation of securities osvas of December 31, 2012 and 2011, by correspaedeith custodians, or by other
appropriate auditing procedures. An audit alsouides assessing the accounting principles usedigmifiGant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall fiimhistatement presentation. We believe that oditaprovide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated finan@tltements referred to above present fairly, imallerial respects, the financial position of Ares
Capital Corporation (and subsidiaries) as of Decan3l, 2012 and 2011, and the results of theiraijmers and their cash flows for each of
the years in the three-year period ended Decenthet(@.2, in conformity with U.S. generally accepéagdounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogatd8oard (United States), Ares Capital
Corporation's internal control over financial rejing as of December 31, 2012, based on criteribéished innternal Control—Integrated
Frameworkissued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrigeadway Commission (COSQO), and our reportai&bruary 27, 2013
expressed an unqualified opinion on the effectigere Ares Capital Corporation's internal contnetofinancial reporting.

As explained in Note 8 to the consoliddirdncial statements, the accompanying consolidfitedhcial statements include investments
valued at $5.9 billion (149% of net assets), whHagevalues have been estimated by the Board afddars and management in the absence of
readily determinable fair values. Such estimateshased on financial and other information providgdnanagement of its portfolio
companies, pertinent market and industry data,ellsas input from independent valuation firms. Tdhes/estments are valued in accordance
with FASB ASC 820Fair Value Measurements and Disclosurasghich requires the Company to assume that thiégliorinvestments are
sold in a principal market to market participafiise Company has considered its principal markét@snarket in which the Company exits
its portfolio investments with the greatest voluamal level of activity. ASC 820 specifies a hieraroii valuation techniques based on whe
the inputs to these valuation techniques are obbéor unobservable. $5.9 billion of investmentdecember 31, 2012 are valued based on
unobservable inputs. Because such valuations, aritydarly valuations of private investments amivgte companies, are inherently
uncertain, they may fluctuate significantly oveostperiods of time. These determinations of failue could differ materially from the valu
that would have been utilized had a ready markettiese investments existed.

KPMe LLP

Los Angeles, California
February 27, 2013




Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Ares Capital Corporation:

We have audited Ares Capital Corporatigths Company) internal control over financial rejpay as of December 31, 2012, based on
criteria established imternal Control—Integrated Frameworgsued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidribe Treadway
Commission (COSO). Ares Capital Corporation's manant is responsible for maintaining effective iing control over financial reporting
and for its assessment of the effectiveness ofriate&ontrol over financial reporting, includedtive accompanying Management's Report on
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our r@sgibility is to express an opinion on the Compsumternal control over financial
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance withdtandards of the Public Company Accounting Ogiet8oard (United States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet dndbtain reasonable assurance about whetheatigieanternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe®is:. audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness eaististesting and evaluating the design and operaffiectiveness of internal control based on
the assessed risk. Our audit also included perfagreuch other procedures as we considered necesghg/circumstances. We believe that
our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opini

A company's internal control over finangigborting is a process designed to provide reddersssurance regarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal control over fica reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accuratelyfainly reflect the transactions and dispositionshaf assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeztessary to permit preparation of financétkestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being madeinrdgcordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the company; and @)ige reasonable assurance regarding preventibmely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the compangsets that could have a material effect on theniisd statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, intdroontrol over financial reporting may not preventetect misstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future perioassabject to the risk that controls may becomdenaate because of changes in conditions,
or that the degree of compliance with the policeprocedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, Ares Capital Corporationintained, in all material respects, effective inedrcontrol over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2012, based on criteria establishbdemal Control—Integrated Frameworksued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance wighstndards of the Public Company Accounting Ogbtd8oard (United States), the
consolidated balance sheet of Ares Capital Corfmorgand subsidiaries) as of December 31, 20128dd, including the consolidated
schedules of investments as of December 31, 20d2@h1, and the related consolidated statemergparftions, stockholders' equity, and
cash flows, and the financial highlights (includedNote 15), for each of the years in the threeryegiod ended December 31, 2012, and our
report dated February 27, 2013 expressed an ufigdadpinion on those consolidated financial staats.

KPMa LLP

Los Angeles, California
February 27, 2013
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ARES CAPITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

(in thousands, except per share data)

As of December 31

2012 2011
ASSETS
Investments at fair valt
Nor-controlled/noraffiliate investment: $ 3,822,71! $ 3,060,08
Non-controlled affiliate company investmer 323,05¢ 267,32
Controlled affiliate company investmet 1,778,78 1,767,09i
Total investments at fair value (amortized cos$®#823,451
and $5,108,663, respective 5,924,55! 5,094,501
Cash and cash equivalel 269,04. 120,78
Interest receivabl 108,99 99,07¢
Receivable for open trad 131 55(
Other asset 98,49" 72,52:
Total asset $ 6,401,22. $ 5,387,43
LIABILITIES
Debt $ 2,195,87. $ 2,073,60:
Management and incentive fees pay: 131,58! 92,49¢
Accounts payable and other liabiliti 53,17¢ 47,69:
Interest and facility fees payat 30,60: 26,38:
Payable for open tradi 1,64( —
Total liabilities 2,412,87 2,240,17.
Commitments and contingencies (Note
STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
Common stock, par value $0.001 per share, 500,06@80,000
common shares authorized; 248,653 and 205,130 consheres
issued and outstanding, respectiv 24¢ 20t
Capital in excess of par vall 4,117,51 3,390,35.
Accumulated overdistributed net investment incc (27,910 (10,449
Accumulated net realized loss on investments, §oreurrency
transactions, extinguishment of debt and otherntsa (202,614) (218,689
Net unrealized gain (loss) on investme 101,10« (14,159
Total stockholders' equit 3,988,34 3,147,26!
Total liabilities and stockholders' equ $ 6,401,22. $ 5,387,43
NET ASSETS PER SHARE $ 16.0¢ $ 15.3¢

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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ARES CAPITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except per share data)

INVESTMENT INCOME:
From nor-controlled/nor-affiliate company investment
Interest income from investmer
Capital structuring service fe
Dividend income
Management and other fe
Other income

Total investment income from n-controlled/nor-affiliate company investmen
From nor-controlled affiliate company investmen
Interest income from investmer
Capital structuring service fe
Dividend income
Management and other fe
Other income

Total investment income from n-controlled affiliate company investmer
From controlled affiliate company investmer
Interest income from investmer
Capital structuring service fe
Dividend income
Management and other fe
Other income

Total investment income from controlled affiliatengpany investment
Total investment incom

EXPENSES
Interest and credit facility fee
Incentive fees
Base management fe
Professional fee
Administrative fee:
Other general and administrati

Total expense

NET INVESTMENT INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXE!
Income tax expense, including excise

NET INVESTMENT INCOME

REALIZED AND UNREALIZED NET GAINS (LOSSES) ON INVEBMENTS:
Net realized gains (losse:
Non-controlled/nok-affiliate company investmen
Non-controlled affiliate company investmer
Controlled affiliate company investmer
Foreign currency transactio

Net realized gain
Net unrealized gains (losse
Non-controlled/nor-affiliate company investmen
Non-controlled affiliate company investmer
Controlled affiliate company investmer
Foreign currency transactio

Net unrealized gains (losse¢

Net realized and unrealized gains on investm
GAIN ON THE ACQUISITION OF ALLIED CAPITAL CORPORATDN
REALIZED LOSS ON EXTINGUISHMENT OF DEB’
REALIZED GAIN ON SALE OF OTHER ASSET

NET INCREASE IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY RESULTING FRO
OPERATIONS

BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE (see 010)

WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES OF COMMON STOCK OUTSTANDIM—
BASIC AND DILUTED (see Note 1C

For the Years Ended

December 31,

2012 2011 2010
32834, $ 267,15 $ 238,39
58,10t 55,01 23,92
17,21¢ 12,43( 4,34¢
1,34z 1,31¢ 4,79
13,17 6,13 5,31(
418,17" 342,05 276,75
21,76 30,56( 51,38t
3,68z 73C 81z
1,32 4,29 2,12t
20C 502 81z
52¢ 881 56¢
27,50: 36,96, 55,70t
221,36 175,53 103,85:
40,34¢ 41,59 29,94¢
21,198 21,64 7,90¢
17,38: 14,92t 8,76:
2,05¢ 1,771 46¢
302,34 255,46 150,93
748,02! 634,48 483,390
142,971 122,51; 79,34
127,04 112,37 76,89
86,22 71,60: 51,99¢
12,04( 16,52¢ 29,94:
9,32 9,56: 10,97¢
10,38: 12,02t 13,02t
387,99 344,60 262,18
360,03 289,87 221,200
11,17: 7,47 5,39:
348,86 282,40 215,810
61,85 24,61 26,86t
(36,766 13,64 11,96¢
21,64 58,298 6,56%
— — 85
46,73 96,561 45 47¢
54,52; (29,43) 138,61
49,38 (19,399 40,59
11,35¢ 8,63: 51,68
— — (152)
115,26. (@0,19) ~ 230,74
161,99! 56,36t 276,22,
= = 195,871
(2,679 (19,319 (1,961)
— — 5,88
508,17 $ 31945, $ 691,83
221 § 156 $§  3.91
230,15 204,86( 176,73;

See accompanying notes to consolidated finan@&stents.
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ARES CAPITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS
As of December 31, 2012

(dollar amounts in thousands)

Percentag:
Acquisition
Amortized of Net
Company(1, Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Investment Funds and Vehicle:
AGILE Fund I, LLC(9) Investment partnership Meen interest (0.50% 4/1/201C  $ 124 $ 25(2)
interest)
CIC Flex, LP(9) Investment partnership  Limited partnership units (0.9 9/7/200° 2,302 3,57((2)
unit)
Covestia Capital Partners, LP(9) Investment gastmip Limited partnership interest 6/17/200¢ 1,05¢ 1,1352)
(47.00% interest
Dynamic India Fund IV, LLC(9) Investment company Member interest (5.44% 4/1/201( 4,82 3,10¢
interest)
HCI Equity, LLC(7)(8)(9) Investment company Mier interest (100.00% 4/1/201( 452 447
interest)
Imperial Capital Private Investment partnership  Limited partnership interest 5/10/200° 6,05! 8,341(2)
Opportunities, LP(9 (80.00% interest
Partnership Capital Growth Investment partnership Limited partnershipriese 6/16/200¢ 1,59¢ 4,197(2)
Fund I, L.P.(9] (25.00% interest
Partnership Capital Growth Investment partnership  Limited partnership interest 10/5/201: 1,96¢ 1,81¢42)
Fund IlI, L.P.(9) (2.50% interest
Piper Jaffray Merchant Banking Investment partnership Limited partnershipriese 8/16/201: 28¢€ 25¢(2)
Fund I, L.P.(9] (2.00% interest
Senior Secured Loan Fund LLC Co-investment vehicle Subordinated certificates 8.31% 10/30/200! 1,237,88 1,263,64
(7)(20) ($1,244,969 par due 12/2022 (Libor + 8.00%/Q)
(21)
VSC Investors LLC(9) Investment company Membarnterest (1.95% 1/24/200¢ 387 854(2)
interest)
1,256,931 1,287,39 32.2%
Healthcare—Services
California Forensic Medical Correctional facility Senior secured revolving loan 10.25% (Base 11/16/201: 2,00( 2,00((2)
Group, Incorporate healthcare operatt ($2,000 par due 11/201 Rate + 7.00%/Q (20)
Senior secured loan ($54,182 9.25% 11/16/201: 54,18: 54,184(2)
par due 11/201¢ (Libor + 8.00%/Q) (20)
56,18: 56,18:
CCS Group Holdings, LLC Correctional facility Class A units (601,937 units) 8/19/201( 602 1,205(2)
healthcare operat
CT Technologies Intermediate ~ Healthcare analysis Senior secured loan ($7,565 | 7.75% 3/15/201.: 7,56¢ 7,26%(2)
Holdings, Inc. and services due 3/2017) (Libor + 6.50%/Q) (20)
CT Technologies Holdings LLC
6
Senior secured loan ($7,172 | 7.75% 3/15/201: 7,17: 6,88(3)
due 3/2017 (Libor + 6.50%/Q) (20)
Class A common stock (9,679 6/15/200° 4,00( 4,77%(2)
shares
Class C common stock (1,546 6/15/200° — 1,31¢(2)
shares
18,73° 20,23¢
F-6
Percentagr
Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
INC Research, Inc. Pharmaceutical and Common stock (1,410,000 9/27/201( 1,517 92¢(2)
biotechnology consulting shares)
services
Intermedix Corporation Revenue cycle Junior secured loan ($112,000 10.25% 12/27/201. 112,00( 112,00((2)
management provider to par due 6/2019) (Libor + 9.00%/Q) (20)



the emergency healthcare

therapies to improve
cardiovascular healt

due 7/2015)

industry
Magnacare Holdings, Inc., Healthcare professional ~ Senior secured loan ($15,29¢ 9.75% 9/15/201( 15,29¢ 15,2942)
Magnacare Administrative provider par due 3/2018) (Libor + 8.75%/Q) (20)
Services, LLC, and
Magnacare, LLC
Senior secured loan ($42,84€ 9.75% 9/15/201( 42,84¢ 42,84¢(3)
par due 3/201€ (Libor + 8.75%/Q) (20)
Senior secured loan ($4,869 | 9.75% 9/15/201( 4,86¢ 4,86¢(4)
due 3/2018 (Libor + 8.75%/Q) (20)
Senior secured loan ($55,307 9.75% 3/16/201. 55,30 55,30(2)
par due 3/201¢8 (Libor + 8.75%/Q) (20)
Senior secured loan ($15,57¢ 9.75% 3/16/201. 15,57¢ 15,5743)
par due 3/201€ (Libor + 8.75%/Q) (20)
133,89¢ 133,89!
MW Dental Holding Corp. Dental services Sersecured revolving loan 8.50% 4/12/201.: 3,00 3,00((2)
($3,000 par due 4/201 (Libor + 7.00%/M) (20)
Senior secured loan ($55,034 8.50% 4/12/201: 55,03 55,03¢(2)
par due 4/2017 (Libor + 7.00%/M) (20)
Senior secured loan ($49,253 8.50% 4/12/201: 49,25: 49,254(3)
par due 4/2017 (Libor + 7.00%/M) (20)
Senior secured loan ($9,900 | 8.50% 4/12/201.: 9,90( 9,90((4)
due 4/2017 (Libor + 7.00%/M) (20)
117,18 117,18
Napa Management Servic Anesthesia managemen Senior secured revolving loar 7.50% 4/15/201: 5,25( 5,25((2)
Corporation services provide ($5,250 par due 4/201 (Libor + 6.00%/M) (20)
Senior secured loan ($9,062 | 7.50% 4/15/201. 8,98¢ 9,06%(2)
due 4/2016 (Libor + 6.00%/Q) (20)
Senior secured loan ($28,125 7.50% 4/15/201. 28,12 28,1243)
par due 4/201€ (Libor + 6.00%/Q) (20)
Common units (5,000 unit 4/15/201: 5,00( 6,1642)
47,35¢ 48,60¢
Netsmart Technologies, Inc. a  Healthcare technology Senior secured loan ($40,095 7.25% 12/18/201. 40,09t 40,0942)
NS Holdings, Inc provider par due 12/2017) (Libor + 6.00%/Q) (17)
(20)
Common stock (2,500,000 6/21/201( 2,50( 2,611(2)
shares’
42,59t 42,70¢
OnCURE Medical Corp. Radiation oncology care Common stock (857,143 8/18/200¢ 3,00 —(2)
provider shares
Passport Health Healthcare technology Series A preferred stock 7/30/200¢ 11,15¢ 11,4442)
Communications, Inc., Passport provider (1,594,457 shares)
Holding Corp. and Prism
Holding Corp.
Common stock (16,106 shar¢ 7/30/200¢ 10C —(2)
11,25¢ 11,44¢
F-7
Percentagt
Acquisition ~ Amortized
of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
PG Mergersub, Inc. and Provider of patient Junior secured loan ($45,000 8.25% 4/19/201: 45,00( 45,00((2)
PGA Holdings, Inc. surveys, management par due 10/2018) (Libor + 7.00%/Q) (20)
reports and national
databases for the
integrated healthcare
delivery systen
Preferred stock (333 shar¢ 3/12/200¢ 12¢ 14(2)
Common stock (16,667 shar¢ 3/12/200¢ 167 697(2)
45,29; 45,71:
RCHP, Inc. Operator of general acute Junior secured loan ($15,000 11.50% 11/4/201: 15,00( 15,00((2)
care hospital par due 5/201¢ (Libor + 10.00%/S (20)
Junior secured loan ($50,000 11.50% 11/4/201. 50,00( 50,00((3)
par due 5/201¢ (Libor + 10.00%/S (20)
65,00( 65,00(
Reed Group, Ltd. Medical disability Equity interests 4/1/201( — 435(2)
management services
provider
Respicardia, Inc. Developer of implantableSenior secured loan ($6,000 | 11.00% 6/28/201: 5,96¢ 6,00((2)



Warrants to purchase up 6/28/201: 38 2¢(2)
99,094 shares of Series C
preferred stocl
6,00¢ 6,02¢
Sage Products Holdings I, LL( Patient infection control  Junior secured loan ($75,000 9.25% 12/13/201. 75,00( 75,00((2)
and preventive care par due 6/2020) (Libor + 8.00%/Q) (20)
solutions provide
Soteria Imaging Services, LLC( Outpatient medical Junior secured loan ($2,521 par 4/1/201( 2,05( 845(2)
imaging providel due 11/2010 (19)
Preferred member units 4/1/201( — —
(1,823,179 units
2,05( 84:
SurgiQuest, Inc. Medical device Senior secured loan ($7,000 | 10.00% 9/28/201: 6,801 7,00((2)
manufacture due 10/2016
Warrants to purchase up 9/28/201 — —(2)
54,672 shares of Series D-4
convertible preferred stoc
6,801 7,00(
U.S. Anesthesia Partners, Inc. Anesthesiologyicer Senior secured loan ($15,000 6.50% 12/27/201. 15,00( 15,00((2)
provider par due 12/201¢ (Libor + 5.50%/Q) (20)
Vantage Oncology, Inc. Radiation oncology care Common stock (62,157 share 2/3/201: 4,67( 2,616(2)
provider
764,144 762,03: 19.11%
F-8
Percentag:
Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Education
American Academy Provider of education, Senior secured loan ($541 pa 9.50% 3/18/201. 541 541(2)
Holdings, LLC training, certification, due 3/2016) (Libor + 8.50%/Q) (20)
networking, and
consulting services to
medical coders and othe
healthcare professione
Senior secured loan ($10,357 9.50% 3/18/201. 10,357 10,357(2)
par due 3/201€ (Libor + 8.50%/Q), (20)
Senior secured loan ($60,904 9.50% 3/18/201. 60,90 60,904(3)
par due 3/201€ (Libor + 8.50%/Q); (20)
Senior secured loan ($4,782 | 9.50% 3/18/201: 4,782 4,784(4)
due 3/2016 (Libor + 8.50%/Q) (20)
76,58¢ 76,58¢
Campus Management Corp. and Education software Preferred stock (485,159 2/8/200¢ 10,52( 6,58¢(2)
Campus Management developer shares)
Acquisition Corp.(6,
Community Education Offender re-entry and in ~ Senior secured loan ($15,00C 6.25% 12/10/201 15,00( 15,00((2)
Centers, Inc. prison treatment service par due 12/2014) (Libor + 5.25%/Q) (15)
provider (20)
Senior secured loan ($714 ps 7.50% (Base 12/10/2011 714 714(2)
due 12/2014) Rate + 4.25%/Q) (15)
(20)
Junior secured loan ($33,150 15.33% 12/10/2011 33,15( 29,83(2)
par due 12/2015) (Libor + 8.50% Cast
6.50% PIK/Q)
Junior secured loan ($9,978 ¢ 15.31% 12/10/201 9,97¢ 8,98((2)
due 12/2015) (Libor + 8.50% Cast
6.50% PIK/Q)
Warrants to purchase up 12/13/201 — —(2)
654,618 share
58,84: 54,53:
elnstruction Corporation Developer, manufacturerJunior secured loan ($17,000 4/1/201( 15,257 —(2)
and retailer of education par due 7/2014) (19)
products
Senior subordinated loan 4/1/201( 24,15: —(2)
($31,997 par due 1/201 (19)
Common stock (2,406 share 4/1/201( 92¢€ —(2)
40,33« —
ELC Acquisition Corp., Developer, manufacture  Preferred stock (99,492 share 12.00% PIK 8/1/201: 10,49: 11,76(2)

ELC Holdings Corporation, and
Excelligence Learning

and retailer of education
products



Corporation(6;

Infilaw Holding, LLC

Operator of three for-
profit law schools

Common stock (50,800 share

Senior secured loan ($1 par due 9.50%
8/2016) (Libor + 8.50%/Q)
Senior secured loan ($19,157 9.50%

par due 8/201€ (Libor + 8.50%/Q);
Series A preferred units 9.50%
(124,890 units (Libor + 8.50%/Q)
Series B preferred stock (3.91

units)

F-9

8/1/201:

8/25/201:

8/25/201:

8/25/201:

10/19/201.

51 2,7842)
10,54 14,55¢
1 1(2)
(20)
19,15 19,151(3)
(20)
124,89( 124,89(2)
(20)
9,24t 9,5242)
153,29 153,57



Percentag:

Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Instituto de Banca y Private school operator  Series B preferred stock 8/5/201( 5,00( 7,143(2)
Comercio, Inc. & Leeds IV (2,750,000 shares)
Advisors, Inc.
Series C preferred stock 6/7/201( 68¢ 15¢(2)
(2,512,586 share:
Common stock (20 share 6/7/201( — —(2)
5,68¢ 7,30:
Lakeland Tours, LLC Educational travel Senior secured loan ($58,826 9.25% 10/4/201.: 58,67( 58,82((14)
provider par due 12/201€ (Libor + 8.25%/Q) (20)
Senior secured loan ($1,793 | 5.25% 10/4/201: 1,78¢ 1,7942)
due 12/2016 (Libor + 4.25%/Q) (20)
Senior secured loan ($40,362 9.25% 10/4/201. 40,25¢ 40,364(3)
par due 12/2016) (Libor + 8.25%/Q) (14)
(20)
Senior secured loan ($8,967 | 5.25% 10/4/201: 8,94 8,96%(3)
due 12/2016 (Libor + 4.25%/Q) (20)
Common stock (5,000 share 10/4/201: 5,00( 4,5552)
114,65 114,50:
R3 Education, Inc. and Medical school operator  Preferred stock (8,800 shares 7/30/200¢ 2,20( 1,93¢(2)
EIC Acquisitions Corp
Common membership interes 9/21/200° 15,80( 29,8242)
(26.27% interest
Warrants to purchase up 12/8/200¢ — —(2)
27,890 share
18,00( 31,76:
488,46 459,40: 11.52%
Financial Services
AlIBridge Financial, LLC(7) Asset management Equity interests 4/1/201( 5,67¢ 7,81«
services
Callidus Capital Corporation(7) Asset management Common stock (100 shares) 4/1/201( 3,00( 1,71¢
services
Ciena Capital LLC(7) Real estate and small Senior secured revolving loar 6.00% 11/29/2011 14,00( 14,00((2)
business loan servic ($14,000 par due 12/201
Senior secured loan ($32,00C 12.00% 11/29/2011 32,00( 32,00((2)
par due 12/201€
Equity interest: 11/29/2011 53,37« 18,61¢2)
99,37 64,61¢
Commercial Credit Group, Inc. Commercial equiptmen Senior subordinated loan 12.75% 5/10/201: 28,000 28,00((2)
finance and leasing ($28,000 par due 5/2018)
company
Cook Inlet Alternative Risk, LLC Risk management servic  Senior subordinated loan 9.00% 9/30/201: 2,75( 2,75((2)
($2,750 par due 9/201
Financial Pacific Company Commercial finance Preferred stock (6,500 shares) 8.00% PIK 10/13/201 3,73 13,68
leasing
Common stock (650,000 10/13/2011 — —
shares
3,73¢ 13,68:
Gordian Acquisition Corporatio  Financial services firr Common stock (526 share 11/30/201: — —
F-10
Percentag:
Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Imperial Capital Group LLC Investment services Class A common units (7,710 5/10/200° 14,997 18,95¢2)
units)
2006 Class B common units 5/10/200° 3 4(2)
(2,526 units’
2007 Class B common units 5/10/200° — 1(2)
(315 units)
15,00( 18,95¢
Ivy Hill Asset Management, L.F  Asset management Member interest (100.00% 6/15/200! 170,96: 294,25
(7)(9) services interest)
328,49: 431,80: 10.8%%

Restaurants and Food Service




ADF Capital, Inc. & Restaurant owner and Senior secured revolving loar 6.50% 11/27/200 1,46¢ 1,46¢(2)
ADF Restaurant Group, LL operatol ($1,468 par due 11/201 (Libor + 3.50%/Q) (20)
Senior secured revolving loar 6.50% (Base 11/27/200! 20C 200(2)
($200 par due 11/201: Rate + 2.50%/Q (20)
Senior secured loan ($9,200 | 12.50% 11/27/200 9,20( 9,20((2)
due 11/2014 (Libor + 9.50%/Q) (20)
Senior secured loan ($11,034 12.50% 11/27/200 11,037 11,03¢3)
par due 11/2014 (Libor + 9.50%/Q) (20)
Promissory note ($14,897,36! 12.00% PIK 11/27/200 16,00: 18,71¢2)
par due 11/201€
Warrants to purchase up to 0 6/1/200¢ — 5,49¢(2)
shares
37,90¢ 46,117
Benihana, Inc. Restaurant owner and  Senior secured revolving loan 9.25% 8/21/201. 431 431(2)
operatol ($431 par due 8/201° (Libor + 8.00%/M) (20)
Senior secured loan ($21,769 9.25% 8/21/201. 21,76¢ 21,7642)
par due 2/201€ (Libor + 8.00%/Q) (20)
Senior secured loan ($10,000 9.25% 8/21/201. 10,00( 10,00((4)
par due 2/201¢ (Libor + 8.00%/Q) (20)
32,20( 32,20(
Hojeij Branded Foods, Inc. Airport restaurant Senior secured revolving loar 9.00% 2/15/201: 1,90(¢ 1,90((2)
operatol ($1,900 par due 2/201 (Libor + 8.00%/Q) (20)
Senior secured loan ($22,60C 9.00% 2/15/201: 22,02¢ 22,60((2)
par due 2/2017 (Libor + 8.00%/Q) (20)
Warrants to purchase up 2/15/201: — 13%(2)
7.5% of membership intere
Warrants to purchase up to 3 2/15/201: 66¢ 1,8942)
shares of Class A common
stock
24,59: 26,53:
F-11
Percentag:
Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Orion Foods, LLC (fka Hot Stuff Convenience food service Senior secured revolving loan 10.75% (Base 4/1/201( 7,80( 7,80((2)
Foods, LLC)(7) retailer ($7,800 par due 9/201. Rate + 7.50%/M (20)
Senior secured loan ($33,477 10.00% 4/1/201( 33,47 33,47(3)
par due 9/2014 (Libor + 8.50%/Q) (20)
Junior secured loan ($37,552 4/1/201( 23,69¢ 17,80%(2)
par due 9/2014 (29)
Preferred units (10,000 unit 10/28/2011 — —(2)
Class A common units (25,001 4/1/201( — —(2)
units)
Class B common units 4/1/201( — —(2)
(1,122,452 units
64,97: 59,08
OTG Management, LLC Airport restaurant Senior secured loan ($25,00C 8.75% 12/11/201: 25,00( 25,00((2)
operatol par due 12/2017 (Libor + 7.25%/Q) (20)
Common units (3,000,000 1/5/201: 3,00( 2,0442)
units)
Warrants to purchase up 6/19/200¢ 10C 4,3342)
7.73% of common unit
28,10( 31,37¢
Performance Food Group, Inc.  Food service distributor Junior secured lod&0(800 11.00% 5/30/201: 50,00( 50,00((2)
and Wellspring Distribution Cor par due 5/201E
Junior secured loan ($50,250 11.00% 5/23/200t¢ 49,52¢ 50,25((2)
par due 5/201E
Junior secured loan ($50,000 11.00% 5/23/200¢ 49,70 50,00((3)
par due 5/201&
Class A non-voting common 5/3/200¢ 7,50( 6,7342)
stock (1,366,120 share
156,73: 156,98:
Restaurant Holding Fast food restaurant Senior secured loan ($61,332 9.00% 2/15/201. 60,28( 61,33(3)
Company, LLC operatol par due 2/2017 (Libor + 7.50%/M) (20)
Senior secured loan ($9,436 | 9.00% 2/15/201: 9,27: 9,43¢(4)
due 2/2017 (Libor + 7.50%/M) (20)
69,55: 70,76¢
S.B. Restaurant Company Restaurant owner and Preferred stock (46,690 shares) 4/1/201( — —(2)
operatol
Warrants to purchase up 4/1/201( — —(2)

257,429 shares of common
stock




Service—Other
Capital Investments and
Ventures Corp

SCUBA diver training Senior secured loan ($64,837
and certification provide  par due 8/201¢
Senior secured loan ($9,975 |
due 8/2018

F-12

8.50%
(Libor + 7.25%/Q)
8.50%
(Libor + 7.25%/Q)

8/9/201:

8/9/201:

414,05 423,05 10.61%
64,83 64,831(2)
(20)
9,07t 9,9754)
(20)
74,81 74,81



Percentag:

Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Competitor Group, Inc. and Endurance sports medie  Senior secured revolving loar 10.00% (Base 11/30/201: 2,85( 2,85((2)
Calera XVI, LLC and event operatt (%$2,850 par due 11/201 Rate + 6.75%/Q (20)
Senior secured revolving loar 9.00% 11/30/201: 90C 90((2)
($900 par due 11/201: (Libor + 7.75%/Q) (20)
Senior secured loan ($54,50C 9.00% 11/30/201. 54,50( 54,50((2)
par due 11/201¢ (Libor + 7.75%/Q) (20)
Membership units (2,500,000 11/30/201: 2,50( 2,50((2)
units) 9)
60,75( 60,75(
Massage Envy, LLC Franchiser in the massag8enior secured loan ($80,494 8.50% 9/27/201: 80,49« 80,4942)
industry par due 9/201¢ (Libor + 7.25%/Q) (20)
Common stock (3,000,000 9/27/201. 3,00¢( 3,00((2)
shares
83,49 83,49:
McKenzie Sports Products, LLC Designer, manuf@etu  Senior secured loan ($11,833 7.00% 3/30/201. 11,83: 11,834(2)
and distributor of par due 3/2017) (Libor + 5.50%/M) (20)
taxidermy forms and
supplies
Senior secured loan ($28 par 7.75% (Base 3/30/201. 28 2§(2)
due 3/2017 Rate + 4.50%/M (20)
Senior secured loan ($9,902 | 7.00% 3/30/201. 9,90z 9,90%(4)
due 3/2017 (Libor + 5.50%/M) (20)
Senior secured loan ($23 par 7.75% (Base 3/30/201: 23 23(4)
due 3/2017 Rate + 4.50%/M (20)
21,78t¢ 21,78t
The Dwyer Group(6) Operator of multiple Senior subordinated loan 12.00% Cash, 1.50% 12/22/201 25,40( 25,40((2)
franchise concepts ($25,400 par due 6/2018) PIK
primarily related to home
maintenance or repai
Series A preferred units 8.00% PIK 12/22/2011 6,337 13,964(2)
(13,292,377 units
31,731 39,36:
Wash Multifamily Laundry Laundry service and Senior secured loan ($27,172 7.00% (Base 6/26/201. 27,09: 27,1742)
Systems, LLC (fka Web Service equipment provider par due 8/2014) Rate + 3.75%/Q) (20)
Company, LLC)
Junior secured loan ($40,000 10.88% 1/25/201. 40,00( 40,00((2)
par due 8/201E (Libor + 9.38%/Q) (20)
Junior secured loan ($50,000 10.88% 1/25/201.: 50,00( 50,00((3)
par due 8/201¢ (Libor + 9.38%/Q) (20)
117,09: 117,17.
389,67 397,371 9.96%
Business Service
Access CIG, LLC Records and informatior ~ Senior secured loan ($1,000 | 7.00% 10/5/201. 1,00( 1,00((2)
management services due 10/2017) (Libor + 5.75%/Q) (20)
provider
Cast & Crew Payroll, LLC and  Payroll and accounting  Senior secured loan ($100,000 7.50% 12/24/201. 100,00t( 100,00((2)
Centerstage Co-Investors, L.L.C. services provider to the  par due 12/2017) (Libor + 6.50%/Q) (20)
(6) entertainment industr
Class A membership units 12/24/201. 2,50( 2,50((2)
(2,500,000 units
Class B membership units 12/24/201. 2,50( 2,50((2)
(2,500,000 units
105,00( 105,00(
F-13
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Acquisition  Amortized
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Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
CIBT Investment Holdings, LLC Expedited travel Class A shares (2,500 shares 12/15/201. 2,50( 3,54%2)
document processing
services
CitiPostal Inc.(7) Document storage and  Senior secured revolving loan 6.75% (Base 4/1/201( 1,00(¢ 1,00((2)
management servic ($1,000 par due 12/201 Rate + 3.25%/Q (20)
Senior secured loan ($523 par  8.50% Cash, 5.50% 4/1/201( 52: 52%(2)
due 12/2013 PIK
Senior secured loan ($53,561  8.50% Cash, 5.50% 4/1/201( 53,56. 53,56(3)
par due 12/201% PIK
Senior subordinated loan 4/1/201( 13,03¢ 1,55¢€(2)



foreclosure processing
services

units)

($17,224 par due 12/201 (19)
Common stock (37,024 shar¢ 4/1/201( — —
68,12: 56,64(

Command Alkon, Inc. Software solutions Junior secured loan ($39,130 9.75% 9/28/201. 39,13( 39,13((2)
provider to the ready-mi: par due 3/2018) (Libor + 8.50%/Q) (20)
concrete industr

Cornerstone Records Physical records storage Senior secured loan ($18,460 10.50% 8/12/201.: 18,46( 17,724(2)

Management, LLC and management service par due 8/2016) (Libor + 9.00%/Q) (20)
provider

HCP Acquisition Holdings, LLC Healthcare compliance  Class A units (12,287,082 uni 6/26/200! 12,34° —(2)

(@) advisory service

IfByPhone Inc. Voice-based marketing Senior secured loan ($2,000 | 11.00% 10/15/201: 1,915 2,00((2)
automation software due 11/2015)
provider

Senior secured loan ($1,000 | 11.00% 10/15/201. 1,00( 1,00((2)
due 1/2016
Warrant to purchase up 10/15/201: 88 88(2)
124,300 shares of Series C
preferred stocl

3,00¢ 3,08¢

Impact Innovations Group, LLC IT consulting and Member interest (50.00% 4/1/201( — 20C
outsourcing service interest)

Investor Group Services, LLC(6)  Business consglfor Limited liability company 6/22/2001 — 711
private equity and membership interest (10.00%
corporate client interest)

Itel Laboratories, Inc. Data services provider fc  Senior secured loan ($12,262 6.25% 6/29/201. 12,26 12,2642)
building materials to par due 6/2018) (Libor + 5.00%/Q) (20)
property insurance
industry

Preferred units (1,798,391 6/29/201: 1,00( 1,095(2)
units)
13,26 13,35¢

Multi-Ad Services, Inc.(6) Marketing services and Preferred units (1,725,280 4/1/201( 78¢ 2,037
software provide units)

Common units (1,725,280 4/1/201( — —
units)
78¢ 2,03
F-14
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Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets

MVL Group, Inc.(7) Marketing research Senior secured revolving loar 4.94% 6/28/201. 80€ 80€(2)
provider ($806 par due 6/201: (Libor + 4.50%/Q)

Senior subordinated loan 4/1/201( 34,63¢ 5,33((2)
($36,766 par due 7/201 (19)
Junior subordinated loan ($1¢ 4/1/201( — —(2)
par due 7/2012 (29)
Common stock (560,716 4/1/201( — —(2)
shares
35,44 6,13¢
Performant Financial Corporatit  Collections services Common stock (772,130 4/1/201( 1,191 7,79¢2)
shares
Common stock (207,912 2/5/200¢ 241 2,10((2)
shares’
1,43: 9,89¢

Pillar Processing LLC and Mortgage services Senior secured loan ($7,033 | 7/31/200¢ 6,70¢ 7,03%(2)

PHL Holding Co.(6, due 11/2018 (19)

Senior secured loan ($7,375 | 11/20/200° 6,661 522(2)
due 5/2019 (19)
Class A common stock (576 7/31/201: 3,76¢ —(2)
shares

17,13¢ 7,55¢

Powersport Auctioneer Powersport vehicle Common units (1,972 units) 3/2/201: 1,00( 73€(2)

Holdings, LLC auction operatc

Prommis Holdings, LLC Bankruptcy and Class B common units (1,727 6/12/201. — —(2)



Promo Works, LLC Marketing services Senior secured loan ($8,655 | 4/1/201( 3,24¢ 2,0442)
due 12/2013 (19)
R2 Acquisition Corp. Marketing services Common stock (250,000 5/29/200° 25C 137(2)
shares
Strident Holding, Inc. Recovery audit services Senior secured loan ($7,935 | 6.50% 7/26/201: 7,93t 7,9352)
provider to commercial ~ due 7/2018) (Libor + 5.25%/Q) (20)
and governmental
healthcare payol
Senior secured loan ($9,975 | 6.50% 7/26/201: 9,97¢ 9,97%(4)
due 7/2018 (Libor + 5.25%/Q) (20)
17,91( 17,91(
Summit Business Media Paren  Business media consulti  Limited liability company 5/20/201: — 875(2)
Holding Company LLC services membership interest (45.98%
interest)
TOA Technologies, Inc. Cloud based, mobile Senior secured loan ($13,000 10.25% 10/31/201. 12,41°¢ 12,48((2)
workforce management  par due 10/2016)
applications provide
Warrant to purchase up 10/31/201: 60t 617(2)
2,509,770 shares of Series D
preferred stocl
13,02( 13,09°
Tradesmen International, Inc. Construction labor Warrants to purchase up 4/1/201( — 10,15(
suppori 771,036 share
F-15
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Company(1; Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Tripwire, Inc. IT security software Senior secured loan ($50,000 6.00% 5/23/201: 50,00( 50,00((3)
provider par due 5/201¢ (Libor + 4.75%/Q) (20)
Senior secured loan ($10,000 6.00% 5/23/201.: 10,00( 10,00((4)
par due 5/201€ (Libor + 4.75%/Q) (20)
Class A common stock (2,970 5/23/201.: 2,97( 6,941(2)
shares
Class B common stock 5/23/201. 3C 70(2)
(2,655,638 share:
63,00( 67,01:
Venturehouse-Cibernet Financial settlement Equity interest 4/1/201( — —(2)
Investors, LLC services for intercarrier
wireless roaming
VSS-Tranzact Holdings, LLC(6) Management coneglti  Common membership interest 10/26/200¢ 10,20 3,65¢
services (5.98% interest
426,26! 381,62! 9.51%
Containers—Packaging
ICSH, Inc. Industrial container Senior secured loan ($22,569 8.00% 8/31/201.: 22,56¢ 22,5642)
manufacturer, par due 8/2016) (Libor + 7.00%/Q) (20)
reconditioner and servic
Senior secured loan ($3,750 | 9.25% (Base 8/31/201: 3,75( 3,75((2)
due 8/2016 Rate + 6.00%/Q (20)
Senior secured loan ($24,217 8.04% 8/31/201.: 24,217 24,217(2)
par due 8/201€ (Libor + 7.00%/Q) (20)
Senior secured loan ($67,961 8.04% 8/31/201.: 67,96 67,96(3)
par due 8/201€ (Libor + 7.00%/Q) (20)
Senior secured loan ($353 par 8.00% 8/31/201: 352 35%(3)
due 8/2016 (Libor + 7.00%/Q) (20)
Senior secured loan ($14,795 8.04% 8/31/201.: 14,79¢ 14,7944)
par due 8/201€ (Libor + 7.00%/Q) (20)
Senior secured loan ($77 par 8.00% 8/31/201. 77 77(4)
due 8/2016 (Libor + 7.00%/Q) (20)
133,72: 133,72:
Microstar Logistics LLC, Keg management Junior secured loan ($165,00 8.50% 12/14/201: 165,00! 165,00((2)
Microstar Global Asset solutions provider par due 12/2018) (Libor + 7.50%/Q) (20)
Management LLC and MStar
Holding Corporatior
Common Stock (50,000 shart 12/14/201: 5,00( 5,00((2)
170,00( 170,00(
Pregis Corporation, Pregis Provider of highly- Senior secured loan ($3 par due 8.50% (Base 4/25/201: 3 3(2)
Intellipack Corp. and Pregis customized, tailored 3/2017) Rate + 5.25%/Q) (20)

Innovative Packaging Inc.

protective packaging



solutions

Senior secured loan ($992 par 7.75% 4/25/201: 99z 99%(2)
due 3/2017 (Libor + 6.25%/Q) (20)
99t 99t
304,71 304,71 7.6%
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Percentag:

Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Consumer Product—Non-
durable
Gilchrist & Soames, Inc. Personal care Senior secured revolving loan 6.25% 4/1/201( 9,20( 9,20((2)
manufacture ($9,200 par due 10/201 (Libor + 5.00%/M) (20)
Senior secured loan ($21,941 13.44% 4/1/201( 21,71( 20,847(2)
par due 10/201%
30,91( 30,04"
Implus Footcare, LLC Provider of footwear anc  Preferred stock (455 shares) 6.00% PIK 10/31/201. 4,87 4,87%2)
other accessori¢
Common stock (455 share 10/31/201 45¢E 19€(2)
5,32¢ 5,06¢
Insight Pharmaceuticals OTC drug products Junior secured loan ($19,310 13.25% 8/26/201: 19,13¢ 19,31((3)
Corporation(6, manufactue par due 8/2017 (Libor + 11.75%/Q; (20)
Class A common stock 8/26/201.: 6,03t 8,271(2)
(155,000 share
Class B common stock 8/26/201.: 6,03t 8,271(2)
(155,000 share
31,20t 35,86¢
Matrixx Initiatives, Inc. and Developer and marketer  Senior secured revolving loar 13.00% 6/30/201.: 9,50( 8,55((2)
Wonder Holdings of over-the-counter ($9,500 par due 6/2016) (Libor + 12.00%/M) (20)
Acquisition Corp. healthcare produc
Senior secured loan ($38,781 13.00% 6/30/201.: 38,58: 34,90%(3)
par due 6/201€ (Libor + 12.00%/Q; (20)
Warrants to purchase up 7127/201: — —(2)
1,654,678 shares of common
stock
Warrants to purchase up 7127/201: — —(2)
1,489 shares of preferred stc
48,08: 43,45
Oak Parent, Inc. Manufacturer of athletic Senior secured loan ($41,299 8.00% 4/2/201: 41,12 41,2942)
appare par due 4/201€ (Libor + 7.00%/Q) (20)
Senior secured loan ($9,428 | 8.00% 4/2/201: 9,38¢ 9,42¢(4)
due 4/2018 (Libor + 7.00%/Q) (20)
50,51 50,721
PG-ACP Co-Invest, LLC Supplier of medical Class A membership units 8/29/201. 1,00(¢ 1,2952)
uniforms, specialized (2,000,0000 units)
medical footwear and
accessorie
The Step2 Company, LLC Toy manufacturer Jusémured loan ($27,000 10.00% 4/1/201( 26,09: 27,00((2)
par due 4/201&
Junior secured loan ($32,814 10.00% Cash, 6.00% 4/1/201( 31,85¢ 28,87¢(2)
par due 4/201E PIK
Common units (1,116,879 4/1/201( 24 94
units)
Warrants to purchase up 4/1/201( — 26¢
3,157,895 unit:
57,97¢ 56,23¢
The Thymes, LLC(7) Cosmetic products Preferred units (6,283 units) 8.00% PIK 6/21/200° 5,631 5,24¢
manufacture
Common units (5,400 unit 6/21/200° — 3,13¢
5,631 8,38:
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Woodstream Corporatic Pet products manufactur  Senior secured loan ($3,000 | 6.50% 4/18/201: 3,00( 3,00((2)
due 8/2014 (Libor + 5.00%/Q) (20)
Senior secured loan ($15,000 6.50% 4/18/201. 15,00( 15,00((4)
par due 8/2014 (Libor + 5.00%/Q) (20)
Senior subordinated loan 12.00% 1/22/2011 41,637 45,00((2)
($45,000 par due 2/201
Common stock (4,254 share 1/22/2011 1,22z 2,99¢2)
60,85¢ 65,99¢
291,50: 297,07: 7.45%
Energy
Centinela Funding, LLC Solar power generation  eni6r secured loan ($45,000 10.00% 11/14/201. 45,00( 45,00((2)



facility developer and par due 11/2020) (Libor + 8.75%/Q) (20)
operatol
EquiPower Resources Gas-fired power Junior secured loan ($22,500 10.00% 6/27/201. 22,07 22,50((2)
Holdings, LLC generation facilities par due 6/2019) (Libor + 8.50%/Q) (20)
operatot
La Paloma Generating Natural gas fired Junior secured loan ($59,000 10.25% 8/9/201: 57,90¢ 56,64((2)
Company, LLC combined cycle plant par due 8/2018) (Libor + 8.75%/Q) (20)
operatot
Panda Sherman Power, LLC Developer and operator ~ Senior secured loan ($32,50C 9.00% 9/14/201: 32,50( 32,50((2)
a gas turbine power pla  par due 9/201¢ (Libor + 7.50%/Q) (20)
Panda Temple Power, LLC Developer and operator ~ Senior secured loan ($60,000 11.50% 7/17/201. 58,157 60,00((2)
a gas turbine power pla  par due 7/201¢ (Libor + 10.00%/Q’ (20)
215,63t 216,641 5.45%
Automotive Services
Driven Holdings, LLC Automotive aftermarket Preferred stock (247,500 units) 12/16/201 2,47 2,68¢(2)
car care franchisc
Common stock (25,000 unit 12/16/201 25 137%(2)
2,50C 2,82t
Eckler Industries, Inc. Restoration parts and Senior secured revolving loar 8.25% (Base 7/12/201. 1,30C 1,30((2)
accessories provider for  ($1,300 par due 7/2017) Rate + 5.00%/M) (20)
classic automobile
Senior secured loan ($52,071 7.25% 7/12/201: 52,07 52,07(2)
par due 7/2017 (Libor + 6.00%/M) (20)
Series A preferred stock (1,8( 7/12/201. 1,80( 1,871(2)
shares
Common stock (20,000 share 7/12/201: 20C 200(2)
55,37: 55,44
EcoMotors, Inc. Engine developer Senior secured loan ($5,000 | 10.13% 12/28/201. 4,85( 5,00((2)
due 7/2016
Warrant to purchase up 12/28/201. — 84(2)
321,888 shares of Series C
Preferred Stoc
4,85( 5,08¢
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Service King Paint & Body, LLC  Collision repair site Senior secured loan ($122,8 8.50% 8/20/201: 122,85( 122,85((2)
operators par due 8/2017) (Libor + 7.25%/Q) (16)
(20)
Senior secured loan ($9,925 | 5.50% 8/20/201: 9,92t 9,92%(2)
due 8/2017 (Libor + 4.25%/Q) (20)
Membership interes 8/20/201: 5,00( 6,684(2)
137,77! 139,45¢
200,491 202,81 5.09%
Manufacturing
Cambrios Technologies Nanotechnolog-based Senior secured loan ($4,848 | 12.00% 8/7/201: 4,84¢ 4,84¢(2)
Corporation solutions for electronic due 8/2015)
devices and compute
Warrants to purchase up 8/2/201: — 8(2)
400,000 shares of Series D-4
convertible preferred stoc
4,84¢ 4,85¢
Component Hardware Group, | Commercial equipment Junior secured loan ($3p20 7.00% Cash, 3.00% 8/4/201( 3,20z 3,20%(2)
due 12/2014 PIK
Senior subordinated loan 7.50% Cash, 5.00% 4/1/201( 8,34 11,1442)
($11,142 par due 12/201 PIK
Warrants to purchase up 8/4/201( — 7,32%(2)
1,462,500 shares of common
stock
11,54¢ 21,66¢
MWI Holdings, Inc. Provider of engineered  Senior secured loan ($38,274 10.00% 6/15/201.: 38,27 38,2742)
springs, fasteners, and  par due 6/2017) (Libor + 8.00%/Q) (20)
other precision
component:
Senior secured loan ($10,00C 10.00% 6/15/201. 10,00( 10,00((4)
par due 6/2017 (Libor + 8.00%/Q) (20)




48,27 48,27
NetShape Technologies, Ir Metal precision Senior secured revolving loan 3.96% 4/1/201( 41F 3752)
engineered componer ($415 par due 2/201. (Libor + 3.75%/M)
Pelican Products, Inc. Flashlights Senior secured loan ($7,960 | 7.00% 7/13/201: 7,96( 7,96((4)
due 7/2018 (Libor + 5.50%/Q) (20)
Junior secured loan ($32,000 11.50% 7/13/201. 32,00( 32,00((2)
par due 6/201¢ (Libor + 10.00%/Q (20)
39,96( 39,96(
Protective Industries, Inc. Plastic protection produc  Senior secured revolving loan 5.75% 5/23/201. 1,63 1,63%2)
dba Caplug: ($1,633 par due 5/201 (Libor + 4.25%/M) (20)
Senior secured loan ($1,500 | 5.75% 11/30/201: 1,50( 1,50((2)
due 5/2017 (Libor + 4.25%/M) (20)
Senior subordinated loan ($695 8.00% Cash, 7.25%  5/23/201: 69t 695(2)
par due 5/201€ PIK
Preferred stock (2,379,361 5/23/201.: 2,307 4,6442)
shares
6,13t 8,47:
Saw Mill PCG Partners LLC Metal precision Common units (1,000 units) 1/30/200° 1,00( —(2)
engineered componer
Sigma International Group, Inc. Water treatment par Junior secured loan ($4,195 par 10.00% 7/8/201: 4,19t 4,1952)
due 4/2014) (Libor + 5.00% Cash, (20)
5.00% PIK/Q)
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SSH Environmental Magnetic sensors and Senior secured loan ($11,62& 9.00% 3/23/201: 11,42« 11,62%2)
Industries, Inc. and SSH Non-  supporting sensor par due 12/2016) (Libor + 7.50%/Q) (20)
Destructive Testing, Inc products
127,791 139,42: 3.5(%
Aerospace and Defens
ILC Industries, LLC Designer and Senior secured loan ($4,925 | 7.50% 7/13/201: 4,83¢ 4,9252)
manufacturer of protecti due 7/2018) (Libor + 6.00%/Q) (20)
cases and technically
advanced lighting syster
Senior secured loan ($19,95C 7.50% 7/13/201. 19,57 19,95((4)
par due 7/201¢8 (Libor + 6.00%/Q) (20)
24,41 24,87"
PRV Aerospace, LLC Aerospace precision Senior secured loan ($1,136 | 6.50% 5/15/201: 1,13( 1,13¢(2)
components manufactur due 5/2018 (Libor + 5.25%/Q) (20)
Senior secured loan ($8,460 | 6.50% 5/15/201: 8,38 8,46((4)
due 5/2018 (Libor + 5.25%/Q) (20)
Junior secured loan ($80,000 10.50% 5/10/201. 80,00( 80,00((2)
par due 5/201¢ (Libor + 9.25%/Q) (20)
89,51! 89,59¢
Wyle Laboratories, Inc. and Wy  Provider of specialized Senior preferred stock (775 8.00% PIK 1/17/200¢ 10z 10%(2)
Holdings, Inc. engineering, scientific ar  shares)
technical service
Common stock (1,885,195 1/17/200¢ 2,29! 2,34€(2)
shares
2,39¢ 2,44¢
116,31! 116,92( 2.9%
Telecommunications
American Broadband Broadband Senior secured loan ($7,666 | 7.50% 9/1/201( 7,66¢ 7,66€(2)
Communications, LLC, Americe communication services due 9/2013) (Libor + 5.50%/Q) (20)
Broadband Holding Company,
Cameron Holdings of NC, Inc.,
and Dialog Telecom LL(
Senior secured loan ($16,47€ 12.00% 6/20/201: 16,47¢ 16,47¢2)
par due 12/201% (Libor + 11.50%/Q; (20)
Senior subordinated loan 12.00% Cash, 2.00¢ 9/1/201( 10,74: 10,3142)
($10,741 par due 11/201 PIK
Senior subordinated loan 12.00% Cash, 2.00¢ 11/7/200° 34,104 32,74((3)
($34,104 par due 11/201 PIK
Senior subordinated loan 10.00% Cash, 4.00¢ 11/7/200° 23,51 22,5742)
($23,513 par due 11/201 PIK
Warrants to purchase up to 3 11/7/200° — 2,53
shares
Warrants to purchase up to 2 9/1/201( — 1,34((2)



shares

92,50( 93,64:

Startec Equity, LLC(7 Communication service ~ Member interes 4/1/201( — —
92,50( 93,64 2.35%
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Consumer Product—Durable
Bushnell Inc. Sports optics Junior secured loan ($48,825 9.00% 4/1/201( 44,00( 48,33(2)
manufacture par due 2/201€ (Libor + 7.50%/Q) (20)
Junior secured loan ($43,675 9.50% 4/30/201. 43,67 43,67%2)
par due 2/201€ (Libor + 8.00%/Q) (20)
87,67¢ 92,01: 2.31%
Oil and Gas
Geotrace Technologies, Inc. Reservoir processmly Warrants to purchase up 4/1/201( 88 —(2)
developmen 69,978 shares of common stc
Warrants to purchase up 4/1/201( 2,80¢ 1,751(2)
210,453 shares of preferred
stock
2,89: 1,757
UL Holding Co., LLC and Petroleum product Junior secured loan ($4,935 ¢ 9.19% 4/30/201: 4,93t 4,9352)
Universal Lubricants, LLC(6) manufacturer due 12/2014) (Libor + 7.19% Cash
2.00% PIK/Q)
Junior secured loan ($25,413 9.19% 4/30/201. 25,41 25,41%3)
par due 12/2014) (Libor + 7.19% Cash
2.00% PIK/Q)
Junior secured loan ($4,920 1  12.00% Cash, 2.009 4/30/201: 4,92( 4,92((2)
due 12/2014 PIK
Junior secured loan ($5,078 1  12.00% Cash, 3.009 4/30/201: 5,07¢ 5,07¢2)
due 12/2014 PIK
Junior secured loan ($18,614 12.00% Cash, 2.009 4/30/201. 18,61 18,6143)
par due 12/2014 PIK
Class A common units (10,78 6/17/201: 1,51: 57(2)
units)
Class B-5 common units 4/25/200! 5,47: 22€(2)
(599,200 units
Class B-4 common units 6/17/201: 50( 19(2)
(50,000 units.
Class C common units (618,C 4/25/200t — 287(2)
units)
66,44 59,54¢
69,33 61,30¢ 1.5/%
Retail
Fulton Holdings Corp. Airport restaurant Senior secured loan ($40,00C 12.50% 5/28/201( 40,00( 40,00((3)
operatol par due 5/201€ (22)
Common stock (19,672 shar¢ 5/28/201( 1,967 1,872
41,967 41,87
Things Remembered Inc. and Personalized gifts retailer ~ Senior secured ($44,962 8.00% 5/24/201. 14,96: 14,96:(4)
TRM Holdings Corporatiol par due 5/201€ (Libor + 6.50%/Q) (20)
56,92¢ 56,83¢ 1.4%%
Printing, Publishing and Media
Batanga, Inc. Independent digital med  Senior secured loan ($5,500 | 9.60% 10/31/201: 5,50( 5,594(2)
company due 10/2016 (18)
Earthcolor Group, LLC Printing management Limited liability company 5/18/201: — —
services interests (9.30%
F-21
Percentag:
Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1, Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
National Print Group, Inc Printing management Senior secured revolving loan 9.00% 3/2/200¢ 913 89E5(2)
services ($913 par due 10/201: (Libor + 6.00%/Q) (20)
Senior secured revolving loan 9.00% (Base 3/2/200¢ 1,03¢ 1,017%(2)
($1,038 par due 10/201 Rate + 5.00%/M (20)
Senior secured loan ($6,903 | 10.00% 3/2/200¢ 6,631 6,8342)
due 10/2013) (Libor + 9.00% Cash, (20)
1.00% PIK/Q)
Senior secured loan ($331 par 10.00% (Base 3/2/200¢ 31¢ 327(2)
due 10/2013) Rate + 9.00% Cash, (20)
1.00% PIK/Q)
Preferred stock (9,344 shar 3/2/200¢ 2,00( —(2)
10,90( 9,07:
The Teaching Company, LLC Education publications Senior secured loan ($21,31¢ 9.00% 9/29/200¢ 21,31¢ 21,3142)
and The Teaching Company provider par due 3/2017) (Libor + 7.50%/Q) (20)

Holdings, Inc.



Senior secured loan ($9,902 | 9.00% 9/29/200t 9,90z 9,9044)
due 3/2017 (Libor + 7.50%/Q) (20)
Preferred stock (10,663 shar 9/29/200t 1,06¢ 3,225(2)
Common stock (15,393 share 9/29/200¢ 3 8(2)
32,29( 34,45:¢
48,69( 49,12 1.22%
Environmental Services
AWTP, LLC(7) Water treatment servict  Junior secured loan ($4,212 10.00% 4/18/201: 4,21 4,2142)
due 6/2015
Junior secured loan ($6,121 15.00% PIK 4/18/201. 6,121 6,121(2)
due 6/2015
Membership interests (90% 4/18/201: — 4,58((2)
interest)
10,33¢ 14,91
RE Community Holdings I, Inc. Operator of municipal Preferred stock (1,000 shares) 3/1/201: 8,83¢ 1,487(2)
and Pegasus Community recycling facilities
Energy, LLC.
Waste Pro USA, In Waste manageme Preferred Class A common 11/9/200t 12,26 24,2142)
services equity (611,615 share
31,43¢ 40,61¢ 1.02%
Transportation
PODS Funding Corp. Storage and warehousir  Junior subordinated loan 12.75% Cash, 2.759  11/29/201. 40,22¢ 40,22¢2)
($40,228 par due 5/201 PIK
United Road Towing, Inc. Towing company Warrants to purchase up to € 4/1/201( — —
shares
40,22¢ 40,22¢ 1.01%
Commercial Real Estate
Finance
10th Street, LLC(6) Real estate holding Senior subordinated loan 8.93% Cash, 4.07% 4/1/201( 25,20¢ 25,20¢2)
company ($25,208 par due 11/201 PIK
Member interest (10.00% 4/1/201( 594 —
interest)
Option (25,000 units 4/1/201( 2t 501
25,827 25,70¢
F-22
Percentagt
Acquisition  Amortized
of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
American Commercial Real estate property Commercial mortgage loan 4/1/201( 92€ 2,061(19)
Coatings, Inc ($2,505 par due 12/202
Cleveland East Equity, LL! Hotel operato Real estate equity intere: 4/1/201( 1,02¢ 3,63¢
Commons -3, LLC Real estate develop Real estate equity intere: 4/1/201( — —
Crescent Hotels & Resorts, LLC Hotel operator Senior subordinated loan 4/1/201( — —(2)
and affiliates(7' ($2,236 par due 9/201 (19)
Senior subordinated loan 4/1/201( — —(2)
($2,092 par due 6/201 (19)
Common equity intere: 4/1/201( — —
Limited liability company 6/19/201: — —(2)
membership interest (100%
interest)
Hot Light Brands, Inc.(7) Real estate holding Senior secured loan ($32,957 4/1/201( 1,66¢ 1,12¢2)
company par due 2/2011 (19)
Common stock (93,500 share 4/1/201( — —(2)
1,66¢ 1,12¢
NPH, Inc. Hotel property Real estate equity intere: 4/1/201( 5,291 6,12:
34,73« 38,66( 0.97%
Health Clubs
Athletic Club Holdings, Inc. Premier health club Senior secured loan ($11,500 4.71% 10/11/200 11,50( 11,50((2)
operatol par due 10/201: (Libor + 4.50%/M) (13)
CFW Co-Invest, L.P. and Health club franchisor Limited partnership interest 7/31/201: 4,15 4,154(2)
NCP Curves, L.F (4,152,165 share:
Limited partnership interest 7/31/201: 1,84¢ 1,84¢(2)

(1,847,835 share:



Food and Beverage
Apple & Eve, LLC and US Juic¢  Juice manufacturer
Partners, LLC(6

Charter Baking Company, Inc. Baked goods
manufacture
Distant Lands Trading Co. Coffee manufacturer

Senior units (50,000 units)

Senior subordinated loan
($8,885 par due 2/201.
Preferred stock (6,258 shar

Class A common stock (1,29«
shares
Class A1 common stock (2,1!
shares’

F-23

6,00( 6,000
17,50 17,50(
10/5/200 5,00( 1,39¢
16.00% PIK 2/6/200¢ 8,88t 8,885(2)
9/1/200¢ 2,56¢ 1,61%(2)
11,45 10,50:
4/1/201( 98¢ —(2)
4/1/201( — —(2)
98¢ —
17,43 11,90(

0.4:%

0.2¢%



Percentag:

Acquisition
Amortized of Net
Company(1, Business Descriptior Investment Interest(5)(11) Date Cost Fair Value Assets
Wholesale Distribution
BECO Holding Company, Inc. ~ Wholesale distributor ¢ Common stock (25,000 share 7/30/201( 2,50( 2,451(2)
first response fire
protection equipment an
related part:
2,50( 2,451 0.05%
$5,823,45 $5,924,55! 148.5"%

)

@

©)

4)

®)
(6)

@)

Other than the Company's investments listed imfatet 7 below (subject to the limitations set fditarein), the Company does not "Control" any opitstfolio companies, for tt
purposes of the Investment Company Act of 194@nasnded (together with the rules and regulatioamplgated thereunder, the "Investment Company Abt'general, under
the Investment Company Act, the Company would "@ha portfolio company if the Company owned mtiran 25% of its outstanding voting securities (securities with th
right to elect directors) and/or had the powentereise control over the management or policiesueh portfolio company. All of the Company's pditicompany investments,
which as of December 31, 2012 represented 149%eofbmpany's net assets or 93% of the Companglsagrets, are subject to legal restrictions agssal

These assets are pledged as collateral for thelReyCredit Facility and, as a result, are noedtly available to the creditors of the Compangatsfy any obligations of the
Company other than the Company's obligations utideRevolving Credit Facility (see Note 5 to theswlidated financial statements).

These assets are owned by the Company's consdlisiaitsidiary Ares Capital CP Funding LLC ("Ares E&pCP"), are pledged as collateral for the RewgvFunding Facility
and, as a result, are not directly available toctieelitors of the Company to satisfy any obligatiofthe Company other than Ares Capital CP's abligs under the Revolving
Funding Facility (see Note 5 to the consolidatedificial statements).

These assets are owned by the Company's consdlisiaibsidiary Ares Capital JB Funding LLC ("ACJBH)e pledged as collateral for the SMBC FundingIfgeind, as a
result, are not directly available to the creditoff¢he Company to satisfy any obligations of ttempany other than ACJB's obligations under the SNHBBding Facility (see
Note 5 to the consolidated financial statements).

Investments without an interest rate are non-incproducing.
As defined in the Investment Company Act, the Comypa deemed to be an "Affiliated Person” of a fodid company because it owns 5% or more of théfplio company's

outstanding voting securities or it has the powesxercise control over the management or polmiesich portfolio company (including through a mgerment agreement).
Transactions during the year ended December 32, @0dhich the issuer was an Affiliated companyt(bot a portfolio company that the Company ("Colstfoare as follows

Capital
Redemptions structuring Dividend Net Net
Purchases Sales Interest Other realized unrealized

Company (cost) (cost) (cost) income service fee: income income gains (losses gains (losses
10th Street, LLC $ —$ —$ —$ 3227 % —$ —%$ —3% —$ (54)
Apple & Eve, LLC

and US Juice

Partners, LLC $ 50C $ 32,34¢ $ — $ 3,39: % —$ —$ 443 —$ (1,929
Campus

Management Corp.

and Campus

Management

Acquisition Corg~ $ —$ —$% —3 —$ —$ —% —9 —$ (4,509
Cast & Crew

Payroll, LLC and

Centerstage Co-

Investors, L.L.C ~ $ 105,00( $ —$ —$ 167 % 2,78¢ $ 36 $ 23 — $ —
CT Technologies

Intermediate

Holdings, Inc. and

CT Technologies

Holdings, LLC $ —$ 18¢€ $ —$ 1,16¢$ —$ —%$ —3% —$ (3,899
Direct Buy

Holdings, Inc. and

Direct Buy

Investors, LF $ — 3 — $10,92° $ — 3 —$ —$ —3 (10,92) % 10,927
The Dwyer Grouj $ —$ —$ — 9% 295¢% 162 $ 7853% B85S — 3 5,02i
ELC Acquisition Corg

and ELC Holdings

Corporation $ —$ — $ —$ —$ — % 345 $ 6% — $ 5,05¢
Firstlight Financial

Corporation $ —$ 28,89( $84,15: $ 1,77¢ $ —$ —$ 20C$ (25,959 % 43,32:
Insight

Pharmaceuticals

Corporation $ —$ 5,63¢ $ —$ 3,24: % — % —$ 171 % 54 $ (1,649
Investor Group

Services, LLC $ —$ —$ —$ —$ —$ 16($ 15% —$ (14¢)
Multi-Ad

Services, Inc $ —$ —$ — 3 — 3 — $ —%$ — % — 3 20¢
Pillar Processing LLC

and

PHL Holding Co. $ —$ 547¢ $ —$ —$ —$ —$ 9% 23 1,11C
Soteria Imaging

Services, LLC $ —$ 41% — % —$ —$ —$ — % 64 $ (584
VSS-Tranzact

Holdings, LLC $ —$ —$ 867%$ —$ —$ —3% —8 — 3 3,45
UL Holding Co., LLC $ 44,53 $ 13,76¢ $ — $ 5831 % 73z % —$ 197% —$ (6,959

As defined in the Investment Company Act, the Comypa deemed to be both an "Affiliated Person" &dntrol" this portfolio company because it ownsrenthan 25% of the
portfolio company's outstanding voting securitiest dlas the power to exercise control over the agament or policies of su
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©)

(10

(1

portfolio company (including through a managememeament). Transactions during the period for #er¥nded December 31, 2012 in which the issuebothsan Affiliated
company and a portfolio company that the Compamig@ned to Control are as follov

Capital
Redemptions structuring Net Net
Sales Interest Dividend Other realized unrealized

Company Purchases (cost) (cost) income service fee: income income gains (losses gains (losses
AGILE

Fund I, LLC $ — % 9% — 3 — % — % 1% — % —$ (19)
Allied Capital

REIT, Inc. $ — $ —$ 37ES — $ — $ 41 % — $ 147 $ (319)
AllBridge

Financial, LLC $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — % — $ — $ — $ 1,801
Aviation

Properties

Corporation  $ —$ —%$ —89 — ¢ —$ —$ — 3 291 $ —
AWTP, LLC $ — % —$ —$ 129¢$ — % — % 50 $ —$ 6,22¢
BenefitMall

Holdings, Inc. $ — $ 40,32¢ $53,51( $ 2,44( $ — $ —$ 167 % 12,54¢ $ (6,47¢)
Callidus Capital

Corporation  $ — 3 —%$ —9 — % —$ —% —9 —$ 942
Ciena

Capital LLC  $ — $ —$ —$ 4,75t $ — $ — $ — $ —$ (1,43¢)
Citipostal, Inc.  $ — % 2,71C $ —$ 7,71 % — % — % 112 % — $ (28)
Crescent Hotels

Resorts, LLC

and affiliates  $ — % — $ 2,84: % 20 % — % — $ — $ (5,479 % 5,59¢
HCI Equity, LLC $ — $ — 3 — 3 — % — % — 3 — % — $ (20¢)
HCP Acquisition

Holdings, LLC $ 1,25¢ $ — % — % — % — % — $ — $ — 3 (6,177)
Hot Light

Brands, Inc $ — $ 2,28: $ — $ — $ —$ — $ — $ — % (282)
Huddle

House Inc $ — % 20,80: $ — % 67¢ $ — % —$ 187 % (2,290 % 1,701
Ivy Hill Asset

Management, $ 58,08t $ —%$ —9 — 3 —$ 1993¢$ — % —$ 41,57¢
Ivy Hill Middle

Market Credit

Fund, Ltd. $ — $ 25,000 $30,51t $ 3,94: $ — $ — $ — $ 1,65 $ 1,51¢
LVCG

Holdings, LLC $ — 3 — $ 6,60 $ — % — % — % — % (6,590 $ 6,60(
Making

Memories

Wholesale, Inc $ — $ 2,22¢ $ — $ — $ — $ — $ — $ (12,28) % 12,47¢
MVL Group, Inc. $ 2,54( $ 25,607 $ —$ 439%% —$ — % — % — $ (27,867
Orion

Foods, LLC  $ 6,50( $ 514: $ —$ 7,20C$ — $ — $ 80t $ — $ (10,260)
Senior Secured

Loan

Fund LLC* $ 269,96 $ 66,33 $ — $184,70: $ 40,34¢ $ — $17,86F $ 3,641 % 83:
Stag-

Parkway, Inc  $ — $ 34,500 % 3,09($ 4,21t $ — $ 73:$ 251% 29,99¢ $ (16,639
The

Thymes, LLC $ — % 56C $ — 3 — % — % 481 $ — % —$ 1,681

* Together with GE Global Sponsor Finance L@ General Electric Capital Corporation (togeth®E"), the Company co-invests through the
Senior Secured Loan Fund LLC d/b/a the "Senior &etloan Program" (the "SSLP"). The SSLP is capidl as transactions are completed and all
portfolio decisions and generally all other degisiin respect of the SSLP must be approved bywasiment committee of the SSLP consisting of
representatives of the Company and GE (with apprfoma a representative of each required); theesfatthough the Company owns more than 25%
of the voting securities of the SSLP, the Compamgsdhot believe that it has control over the SSbPpurposes of the Investment Company Act or
otherwise) because, among other things, thesentystcurities" do not afford the Company the righelect directors of the SSLP or any other
special rights (see Note 4 to the consolidatechfife statements

Non-U.S. company or principal place of businessidetthe U.S. and as a result is not a qualifysggaunder Section 55(a) of the Investment CompatyUnder the
Investment Company Act, the Company may not acquisenon-qualifying asset unless, at the time swcjuisition is made, qualifying assets represelegtzast 70% of the
Company's total assets.

Excepted from the definition of investment companyer Section 3(c) of the Investment Company Adtaa result is not a qualifying asset under 8e&b(a) of the
Investment Company Act. Under the Investment Compent, the Company may not acquire any non-qualdyasset unless, at the time such acquisition dengualifying
assets represent at least 70% of the Companyl saitstzts.

In the first quarter of 2011, the staff of the S&@s and Exchange Commission (the "Staff") infatiy communicated to certain business developmemipanies the Staff's
belief that certain entities, which would be cléissias an "investment company" under the Investr@@mpany Act but for the exception from the defom of "investment
company" set forth in Rule 3a-7 promulgated unterlbvestment Company Act, could not be treatesligible portfolio companies (as defined in Secta)(46) of the
Investment Company Act). Subsequently, in Augudti2the Securities and Exchange Commission isswedeept release (the "Concept Release") whichsstas "[a]s a
general matter, the Commission presently does el@ve that Rule 3a-7 issuers are the type of smedleloping and financially troubled businessestich Congress intended
BDCs primarily to invest" and requested commenivbether or not a 3a-7 issuer should be considerédlaible portfolio company”. Ares Capital proeid a comment letter in
respect of the Concept Release and continuesivbehat the language of Section 2(a)(46) of theestment Company Act permits a business developooanpany to treat as
"eligible portfolio companies" entities that relp the 3a-7 exception. However, given the curregettainty in this area (including the languagehi@ €oncept Release) and
subsequent discussions with the Staff, Ares Cabpita) solely for purposes of calculating the coritosof its portfolio pursuant to Section 55(a)tbé Investment Company A
identified these entities in the Company's schedfilevestments as "non-qualifying assets" shoéStaff ultimately disagree with Ares Capital'sigion.

Variable rate loans to the Company's portfolio cames bear interest at a rate that may be detednbipneeference to either LIBOR or an alternate iase (commonly based on
the Federal Funds Rate or the Prime Rate), atdirewer's option, which reset annually (A), semiaally (S), quarterly (Q), bi-monthly (B), monthiy) or daily (D). For each
such loan, the Company has provided the interésimaeffect on the date present



(12) In addition to the interest earned based on thedsiaterest rate of this security, the Comparsnistled to receive an additional interest amour.00% on $16 million aggregz
principal amount of a "first out" tranche of therifolio company's senior term debt previously sgatitd by the Company into "first out" and "last'dtanches, whereby the
"first out" tranche will have priority as to theat out" tranche with respect to payments of ppialcinterest and any other amounts due thereunder.

(13) In addition to the interest earned based on thedsiaterest rate of this security, the Comparsnitled to receive an additional interest amour2.60% on $12 million aggregz
principal amount of a "first out" tranche of therifolio company's senior term debt previously sgatid by the Company into "first out" and "last'dtanches, whereby the
"first out" tranche will have priority as to theadt out" tranche with respect to payments of ppaicinterest and any other amounts due thereunder.

(14) In addition to the interest earned based on thtedstaterest rate of this security, the Comparsnistled to receive an additional interest amourt.00% on $65 million aggrege

principal amount of a "first out" tranche of thertfolio company's senior term debt previously sgatied by the Company into "first out” and "last'dténches, whereby the
"first out" tranche will have priority as to theadt out" tranche with respect to payments of ppaicinterest and any other amounts due thereu

F-25




F-26




ARES CAPITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

As of December 31, 2011
(dollar amounts in thousands)

Percentag:
Acquisition  Amortized
Fair of Net
Company(1, Business Descriptior Investment Interest(4)(10) Date Cost Value Assets
Investment Funds and Vehicle:
AGILE Fund I, LLC(6)(8) Investment partnership  Member interest (0.50% 4/1/201C  $ 21€ $ 13z
interest)
CIC Flex, LP(8) Investment partnership  Limited partnership units (0.9 9/7/200° 2,53 3,13(
unit)
Covestia Capital Partners, LP(8) Investment gastmip Limited partnership interest 6/17/200: 1,05¢ 1,111
(47.00% interest
Dynamic India Fund 1V, LLC(8) Investment company Member interest (5.44% 4/1/201( 4,82; 4,72¢
interest)
Firstlight Financial Corporation(5) Investment company Senior subordinated loan 1.00% PIK 12/31/2001 71,26¢ 67,94°
(8) ($71,542 par due 12/201
Class A common stock (10,000 12/31/200¢ 10,00( —
shares’
Class B common stock (30,000 12/31/200¢ 30,00( —
shares
111,26¢ 67,94°
HCI Equity, LLC(6)(7)(8) Investment company Member interest (100.00% 4/1/201( 80¢ 73C
interest)
Imperial Capital Private Investment partnership Limited partnershipriesée 5/10/200° 6,64: 5,12(
Opportunities, LP(8 (80.00% interest
Ivy Hill Middle Market Credit Investment company Class B deferrable interest nc 6.25% 11/20/200° 40,00( 38,00(
Fund, Ltd.(6)(7)(8 ($40,000 par due 11/201 (Libor + 6.00%/Q)
Subordinated notes ($16 par 15.00% 11/20/200 15,51¢ 16,00(
due 11/2018
55,51¢ 54,00(
Kodiak Funding, LP(8) Investment partnership mited partnership interest 4/1/201( 86¢ 82¢
(1.52% interest
Novak Biddle Ventur¢ Investment partnership  Limited partnership interest 4/1/201( 221 19¢
Partners Ill, L.P.(8 (2.47% interest
Partnership Capital Growth Investment partnership Limited partnershipriese 6/16/2001 1,791 3,72¢
Fund I, L.P.(8] (25.00% interest
Partnership Capital Growth Investment partnership  Limited partnership interest 10/5/201: 1,322 1,25(
Fund IlI, L.P.(8) (2.50% interest
Senior Secured Loan Fund LLC(6) Co-investment vehicle Subordinated certificates 8.38% 10/30/200! 1,034,25: 1,059,17:
9) ($1,044,977 par due 12/2020)  (Libor + 8.00%/Q)
17
VSC Investors LLC(8) Investment company Membership interest (1.95% 1/24/200: 1,13¢ 997
interest)
1,222,461  1,203,06: 38.2%
Healthcare—Services
BenefitMall Holdings Inc.(6) Employee benefitoker  Senior subordinated loan 18.00% 4/1/201( 40,32¢ 40,32¢
services compan ($40,326 par due 6/201
Common stock (39,274,290 4/1/201( 53,51( 59,99(
shares’
Warrants 4/1/201( — —
93,83¢ 100,31t
CCS Group Holdings, LLC Correctional facility Class A units (601,937 units) 8/19/2011 602 1,15¢
healthcare operat:
CT Technologies Intermediate Healthcare analysis Senior secured loan ($7,245 | 7.75% 3/15/201: 7,24 6,88%(2)
Holdings, Inc. and CT services due 3/2017) (Libor + 6.50%/Q) (16)

Technologies Holdings LLC(®
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Percentag:

Acquisition  Amortized
Fair of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(4)(10) Date Cost Value Assets
Senior secured loan ($18 par 8.75% (Base 3/15/201.: 18 17(2)
due 3/2017 Rate + 5.50%/Q (16)
Senior secured loan ($7,642 | 7.75% 3/15/201.: 7,642 7,26((3)
due 3/2017 (Libor + 6.50%/Q) (16)
Senior secured loan ($19 par 8.75% (Base 3/15/201: 19 18(3)
due 3/2017 Rate + 5.50%/Q (16)
Class A common stock (9,679 6/15/200° 4,00( 8,74
shares
Class C common stock (1,546 6/15/200° — 1,397
shares
18,92¢ 24,32(
INC Research, Inc. Pharmaceutical and Common stock (1,410,000 9/27/201( 1,51z 1,40¢
biotechnology consulting  shares)
services
Magnacare Holdings, Inc., Healthcare professional  Senior secured loan ($12,638 9.75% 9/15/201( 12,63¢ 12,63{(16)
Magnacare Administrative provider par due 9/2016) (Libor + 8.75%/Q)
Services, LLC, and
Magnacare, LLC
Senior secured loan ($44,393 9.75% 9/15/201( 44,39: 44,394(2)
par due 9/201€ (Libor + 8.75%/Q) (16)
Senior secured loan ($8,257 | 9.75% 9/15/201( 8,257 8,251(3)
due 9/2016 (Libor + 8.75%/Q) (16)
65,28t¢ 65,28¢
MW Dental Holding Corp. Dental services Senior secured revolving loar 8.50% 4/12/201: 1,70C 1,70((16)
($1,700 par due 4/201 (Libor + 7.00%/M)
Senior secured loan ($15,384 8.50% 4/12/201: 15,38¢ 15,38416)
par due 4/2017 (Libor + 7.00%/M)
Senior secured loan ($49,75C 8.50% 4/12/201: 49,75( 49,75((2)
par due 4/2017 (Libor + 7.00%/M) (16)
Senior secured loan ($2,686 | 8.50% 4/12/201: 2,68¢€ 2,68¢(3)
due 4/2017 (Libor + 7.00%/M) (16)
69,52( 69,52(
Napa Management Servic Anesthesia management Senior secured loan ($10,892 8.50% 4/15/201.: 10,56: 10,89:(16)
Corporation services provide par due 4/201€ (Libor + 7.00%/Q)
Senior secured loan ($29,437 8.50% 4/15/201: 29,437 29,43(2)
par due 4/201€ (Libor + 7.00%/Q) (16)
Senior secured loan ($7,752 | 8.50% 4/15/201. 7,752 7,7543)
due 4/2016 (Libor + 7.00%/Q) (16)
Common units (5,000 unit 4/15/201: 5,00(C 5,561%
52,75: 53,59
NS Merger Sub. Inc. and N Healthcare technology Senior subordinated loan ($5' 13.50% 6/21/201( 57¢ 57¢
Holdings, Inc. provider par due 6/2017
Senior subordinated loan 13.50% 6/21/201( 50,00( 50,00((2)
($50,000 par due 6/201
Common stock (2,500,000 6/21/201( 2,50( 2,98t
shares’
53,07¢ 53,56¢
OnCURE Medical Corp. Radiation oncology care Common stock (857,143 8/18/200¢ 3,00(¢ 3,07
provider shares
Passport Health Healthcare technology Series A preferred stock 7/30/200¢ 11,15¢ 9,21¢
Communications, Inc., Passport  provider (1,594,457 shares)
Holding Corp. and Prism Holding
Corp.
Common stock (16,106 shar¢ 7/30/200¢ 10C —
11,25¢ 9,21¢
PG Mergersub, Inc. and PGA Provider of patient Senior secured loan ($9,108 | 6.75% 11/3/201( 9,08t 9,10¢(3)
Holdings, Inc. surveys, management due 11/2015) (Libor + 5.00%/Q) (16)
reports and national
databases for the
integrated healthcare
delivery systen
F-28
Percentag:
Acquisition  Amortized
Fair of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(4)(10) Date Cost Value Assets
Senior subordinated loan 12.50% 3/12/200: 3,95¢ 4,00(
($4,000 par due 3/201
Preferred stock (333 share 3/12/200i 12t 15



Common stock (16,667 shart 3/12/200: 167 754
13,33¢ 13,87:
PRA Holdings, Inc. Drug testing services Senior secured loan ($11,33C 4.56% 12/14/200 11,03« 11,1042)
par due 12/2014 (Libor + 4.00%/Q)
Senior secured loan ($12,00C 4.56% 12/14/200 11,68: 11,76((3)
par due 12/2014 (Libor + 4.00%/Q)
22,71¢ 22,86
RCHP, Inc. Operator of general acute Junior secured loan ($15,000 11.50% 11/4/201: 15,00( 15,00((16)
care hospital par due 5/201¢ (Libor + 10.00%/Q;
Junior secured loan ($50,000 11.50% 11/4/201: 50,00( 50,00((2)
par due 5/201¢ (Libor + 10.00%/Q; (16)
65,00( 65,00(
Reed Group, Ltd. Medical disability Senior secured revolving loar 4/1/201( 1,491 1,40%(15)
management services ($1,650 par due 12/2013)
provider
Senior secured loan ($10,755 4/1/201( 9,12¢ 9,14%(15)
par due 12/201%
Senior secured loan ($20,777 4/1/201( 15,91¢ 2,43](15)
par due 12/201%
Equity interest: 4/1/201( 20z —
26,74 12,97¢
Soteria Imaging Services, LLC(5) Outpatient mabic Junior secured loan ($1,189 par 14.50% 4/1/201( 1,057 80¢
imaging providel due 11/2010
Junior secured loan ($1,699 par 12.50% 4/1/201( 1,52¢ 1,15¢
due 11/2010
Preferred member units 4/1/201( — —
(1,823,179 units
2,58¢ 1,96
Sunquest Information Systems, | Laboratory software Junior secured loan ($75,000 9.75% 12/16/201 75,00( 74,25((16)
solutions provide par due 6/2017 (Libor + 8.50%/Q)
Junior secured loan ($50,000 9.75% 12/16/201 50,00( 49,50((2)
par due 6/2017 (Libor + 8.50%/Q) (16)
125,00( 123,75(
U.S. Renal Care, Inc. Dialysis provider Senior secured loan ($7,444 | 5.50% 6/9/201: 7,407 7,295(16)
due 12/2016 (Libor + 4.00%/Q)
Senior subordinated loan 11.25% Cash, 2.00% 5/24/201! 50,56¢ 50,5642)
($50,569 par due 6/201 PIK
57,97¢ 57,86¢
Vantage Oncology, Inc. Radiation oncology care Common stock (62,157 share 2/3/201: 4,67( 5,057
provider
687,79 684,80: 21.7¢%
Education
American Academy Holdings, LL  Provider of education, Senior secured revolving loan 9.50% 3/18/201: 10C 10((16)
training, certification, ($100 par due 3/2016) (Libor + 8.50%/Q)
networking, and
consulting services to
medical coders and other
healthcare professione
Senior secured loan ($26,199 9.50% 3/18/201. 26,19¢ 26,19¢16)
par due 3/201€ (Libor + 8.50%/Q)
Senior secured loan ($53,468 9.50% 3/18/201. 53,46¢ 53,46¢(2)
par due 3/201€ (Libor + 8.50%/Q) (16)
79,76 79,76
Campus Management Corp. and Education software Preferred stock (485,159 2/8/200¢ 10,52( 11,09¢
Campus Management Acquisitiol  developer shares)
Corp.(5)
F-29
Percentag:
Acquisition  Amortized
Fair of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(4)(10) Date Cost Value Assets
Community Education Centers, I  Offender re-entry and in- Senior secured loan ($17,857 6.25% 12/10/201 17,857 17,857(16)
prison treatment services par due 12/2014) (Libor + 5.25%/Q)
provider
Junior secured loan ($31,835 15.40% 12/10/2011 31,83t 31,83t
par due 12/2015) (Libor + 11.00%
Cash, 4.00% PIK /C
Junior secured loan ($9,582 par 15.46% 12/10/2011 9,58: 9,58:
due 12/2015) (Libor + 11.00%
Cash, 4.00% PIK /C
Warrants to purchase up 12/10/2011 — 25¢



578,427 share

59,27¢ 59,53:
elnstruction Corporation Developer and Junior secured loan ($17,000 12.00% (Base 4/1/201( 15,39¢ 12,41(
manufacturer of par due 7/2014) Rate + 8.25%/M)
educational software
products
Senior subordinated loan 4/1/201( 24,15: 1,467(15)
($27,281 par due 1/201
Common stock (2,406 shar¢ 4/1/201( 92¢€ —
40,47 13,871
ELC Acquisition Corp., ELC Developer, manufacturer Preferred stock (99,492 shares) 8/1/201: 10,14¢ 9,15¢
Holdings Corporation, and and distributor of
Excelligence Learning Corporation educational products
(5)
Common stock (50,800 shar¢ 8/1/201: 51 —
10,20( 9,15¢
Infilaw Holding, LLC Operator of for-profit lan ~ Senior secured loan ($29,92& 9.50% 8/25/201. 29,92t 29,9242)
schools par due 8/201€ (Libor + 8.50%/Q) (16)
Series A preferred units 10.75% (Base 8/25/201. 131,00( 131,00((16)
(131,000 units Rate + 7.50%/Q
160,92! 160,92!
Instituto de Banca y Private school operator Series B preferredkstoc 8/5/201( 5,00 6,15%
Comercio, Inc. & Leeds IV (1,750,000 shares)
Advisors, Inc.
Series C preferred stock 6/7/201( 68¢ 30z
(2,512,586 share:
Common stock (20 share 6/7/201( — —
5,68¢ 6,45¢
JTC Education Holdings, Inc. Postsecondary school Senior secured revolving loar 12.75% (Base 12/31/200! 2,22¢ 2,225(16)
operatol ($2,225 par due 12/201 Rate + 9.50%/Q
Senior secured loan ($20,05€ 12.50% 12/31/200! 20,05¢ 20,05¢(16)
par due 12/2014 (Libor + 9.50%/M)
Senior secured loan ($9,714 | 12.50% 12/31/200! 9,71« 9,7143)
due 12/2014 (Libor + 9.50%/M) (16)
31,99¢ 31,99¢
Lakeland Tours, LLC Educational travel Senior secured revolving loan 6.75% (Base 10/4/201: 3,75( 3,75((16)
provider ($3,750 par due 12/201 Rate + 3.50%/Q
Senior secured loan ($64,338 10.00% 10/4/201. 64,13¢ 64,33¢(13)
par due 12/201€ (Libor + 8.50%/Q) (16)
Senior secured loan ($15,362 6.00% 10/4/201. 15,31« 15,36%(16)
par due 12/201€ (Libor + 4.50%/Q)
Senior secured loan ($40,362 10.00% 10/4/201. 40,23: 40,36%(2)
par due 12/2016) (Libor + 8.50%/Q) (13)
(16)
Senior secured loan ($9,638 | 6.00% 10/4/201.: 9,60¢ 9,63¢(2)
due 12/2016 (Libor + 4.50%/Q) (16)
Common stock (5,000 share 10/4/201.: 5,00(C 5,00(
138,03 138,45(
R3 Education, Inc. and EIC Medical school operator ~ Senior secured loan ($6,162 | 9.00% 9/21/200° 6,162 11,50¢(16)
Acquisitions Corp.(7 due 4/2013 (Libor + 6.00%/Q)
Senior secured loan ($4,819 | 9.00% 9/21/200° 4,81¢ 8,99¢(3)
due 4/2013 (Libor + 6.00%/Q) (16)
F-30
Percentag:
Acquisition  Amortized
Fair of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(4)(10) Date Cost Value Assets
Senior secured loan ($6,509 | 13.00% PIK 12/8/200! 4,03( 12,14¢
due 4/2013
Preferred stock (8,800 shar 7/30/200¢ 2,20 1,65(
Common membership interes 9/21/200° 15,80( 23,20°
(26.27% interest
Warrants to purchase up 12/8/200¢ — —
27,890 share
33,01: 57,51(
569,89: 568,76: 18.01%
Restaurants and Food Service
ADF Capital, Inc. & ADF Restaurant owner and Senior secured revolving loan 6.50% 11/27/2001 2,01C 2,01((16)
Restaurant Group, LL! operatol ($2,010 par due 11/201 (Libor + 3.50%/Q)
Senior secured revolving loan 6.50% (Base 11/27/2001 25¢ 25¢(16)
($258 par due 11/201: Rate + 2.50%/Q
Senior secured loan ($7,305 | 6.50% 11/27/2001 7,30t 7,305(16)

due 11/2013 (Libor + 3.50%/Q)



Senior secured loan ($64 par 6.50% (Base 11/27/2001 64 64(16)

due 11/2013 Rate + 2.50%/Q
Senior secured loan ($11,277 12.50% 11/27/2001 11,28( 11,27°(2)
par due 11/2014 (Libor + 9.50%/Q) (16)
Senior secured loan ($9,402 | 12.50% 11/27/2001 9,40z 9,40%(3)
due 11/2014 (Libor + 9.50%/Q) (16)
Promissory note ($14,897,360 6/1/200¢ 14,88¢ 10,90¢
par due 11/201€
Warrants to purchase up to 0 6/1/200¢ — —
shares
45,20: 41,22:
Huddle House, Inc.(6) Restaurant owner and Senior subordinated loan 12.00% Cash, 3.00¢ 4/1/201( 20,64 18,93¢
operatol ($20,924 par due 12/201 PIK
Common stock (358,279 4/1/201( — —
shares
20,64: 18,93¢
Orion Foods, LLC (fka Hot Stuff ~ Convenience food service Senior secured revolving loan 10.75% (Base 4/1/201( 3,30 3,30((16)
Foods, LLC)(6) retailer ($3,300 par due 9/201. Rate + 7.50%/M
Senior secured loan ($33,917 10.00% 4/1/201( 33,917 33,91°(2)
par due 9/2014 (Libor + 8.50%/Q) (16)
Junior secured loan ($37,552 14.00% 4/1/201( 26,11: 30,48
par due 9/2014
Preferred units (10,000 unit 10/28/201! — —
Class A common units (25,001 4/1/201( — —
units)
Class B common units 4/1/201( — —
(1,122,452 units
63,32¢ 67,70(
OTG Management, Inc. Airport restaurant Senior secured revolving loar 8.50% 8/9/201: 1,87t 1,875(16)
operatol ($1,875 par due 8/201 (Libor + 7.00%/Q)
Senior secured revolving loar 9.25% (Base 8/9/201: 937 937%(16)
($937 par due 8/2011 Rate + 6.00%/M
Senior secured loan ($17,187 8.50% 8/9/201: 17,187 17,18(16)
par due 8/201€ (Libor + 7.00%/Q)
Junior secured loan ($29,285 14.50% 8/9/201: 29,28t 29,28(16)
par due 8/201€ (Libor + 13.00%/M)
Common units (3,000,000 1/5/201: 3,00¢ 2,61(
units)
Warrants to purchase up 6/19/200i 10C 4,541
100,866 shares of common
stock
52,38 56,43t
PMI Holdings, Inc. Restaurant owner and  Senior secured revolving loan 10.00% 5/5/201( 2,50( 2,50((16)
operatol ($2,500 par due 5/201 (Libor + 8.00%/M)
Senior secured revolving loan 10.25% (Base 5/5/201( 25(C 25((16)
($250 par due 5/201! Rate + 7.00%/Q
Senior secured loan ($9,008 | 10.00% 5/5/201( 9,00¢ 9,00¢(2)
due 5/2015 (Libor + 8.00%/M) (16)
F-31
Percentagt
Acquisition  Amortized
Fair of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(4)(10) Date Cost Value Assets
Senior secured loan ($4 par due  10.25% (Base 5/5/201( 4 4(2)
5/2015) Rate + 7.00%/M (16)
Senior secured loan ($9,008 | 10.00% 5/5/201( 9,00¢ 9,00¢(3)
due 5/2015 (Libor + 8.00%/M) (16)
Senior secured loan ($4 par due  10.25% (Base 5/5/201( 4 4(3)
5/2015) Rate + 7.00%/M (16)
20,77: 20,77:
S.B. Restaurant Company Restaurant owner and Senior secured loan ($34,57& 13.00% 4/1/201( 31,28! 34,57%(16)
operator par due 7/2012) (Libor + 9.00% Cast
2.00% PIK /Q)
Preferred stock (46,690 shar 4/1/201( — 117
Warrants to purchase up 4/1/201( — —
257,429 shares of common
stock
31,28 34,69:
Vistar Corporation and Wellspring Food service distributor Junior secured loaf0($50 11.00% 5/23/200¢ 68,88! 70,25(
Distribution Corp. par due 5/201&
Junior secured loan ($30,000 11.00% 5/23/200t¢ 30,00( 30,00((2)
par due 5/201&
Class A non-voting common 5/3/200¢ 7,50( 6,211

stock (1,366,120 share

106,38t 106,46:



340,00( 346,22! 11.0(%
Business Service
Acentia (fka Interactive IT services provider Senior secured loan ($7,332 | 8.75% (Base 10/21/201 7,33% 7,33%416)
Technology Solutions, LLC due 6/2015 Rate + 5.50%/Q
Senior secured loan ($8,214 | 8.75% (Base 10/21/201 8,21¢ 8,2143)
due 6/2015 Rate + 5.50%/Q (16)
15,54¢ 15,54¢
Aviation Properties Corporation(  Aviation services Common stock (100 share 4/1/201( — —
CIBT Investment Holdings, LLC ~ Expedited travel Class A shares (2,500 shares 12/15/201 2,50( 2,50(
document processing
services
CitiPostal Inc.(6) Document storage and  Senior secured revolving loan 6.75% (Base 4/1/201( 3,20( 3,20((16)
management servic ($3,200 par due 12/201 Rate + 3.25%/Q
Senior secured loan ($499 par 8.50% Cash, 5.50% 4/1/201( 49¢ 49¢
due 12/2013 PIK
Senior secured loan ($51,161  8.50% Cash, 5.50% 4/1/201( 51,16: 51,161(2)
par due 12/201: PIK
Senior subordinated loan 4/1/201( 13,03¢ 1,57415)
($14,698 par due 12/201
Common stock (37,024 shar¢ 4/1/201( — —
67,89¢ 56,43«
Cornerstone Records Physical records storage Senior secured loan ($18,377 8.50% 8/12/201. 18,37% 18,19(16)
Management, LLC and management servic  par due 8/2016) (Libor + 7.00%/Q)
provider
Coverall North America, Inc.(6) Commercial jamigd Subordinated notes ($9,386 par 10.00% Cash, 2.00%  2/22/201. 9,38¢ 9,38¢
service provide due 2/2016 PIK
Diversified Collections Collections services Senior secured loan ($34,00C  14.00% (Base Rate 6/25/201( 34,00( 34,00((2)
Services, Inc par due 9/2012 10.75%/M) (16)
Senior secured loan ($5,263 | 7.75% (Base 6/25/201( 5,26 5,26%(3)
due 3/2012 Rate + 4.50%/M (16)
Senior secured loan ($2,000 | 14.00% (Base 6/25/201( 2,00 2,00((3)
due 9/2012 Rate +10.75%/M) (16)
Preferred stock (14,927 shar 5/18/200( 16¢ 32¢
Common stock (478,816 4/1/201( 1,47¢ 3,27¢
shares’
F-32
Percentag:
Acquisition  Amortized
Fair of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(4)(10) Date Cost Value Assets
Common stock (114,004 2/5/200¢ 29t 91¢
shares
43,20t 45,78
HCP Acquisition Holdings, LLC(€ Healthcare compliance Class A units (11,092,585 uni 6/26/200:! 11,09: 4,92:
advisory service
Impact Innovations Group, LLC IT consulting and Member interest (50.00% 4/1/201( — 20C
outsourcing service interest)
Investor Group Services, LLC(5) Business consglfor Limited liability company 6/22/2001 — 85¢
private equity and membership interest (10.00%
corporate client interest)
Multi-Ad Services, Inc.(5) Marketing services and  Preferred units (1,725,280 4/1/201( 78¢ 1,82¢
software provide units)
Common units (1,725,280 4/1/201( — —
units)
78¢ 1,82¢
MVL Group, Inc.(6) Marketing research Senior secured loan ($22,772 12.00% 4/1/201( 22,77. 22,77.
provider par due 7/2012
Senior subordinated loan 12.00% Cash, 2.50' 4/1/201( 35,28 33,84«
($35,851 par due 7/201 PIK
Junior subordinated loan ($144 10.00% 4/1/201( — —
par due 7/2012
Common stock (560,716 4/1/201( — —
shares
58,05t 56,61¢
Pillar Processing LLC and PHL Mortgage services Senior secured loan ($7,375 | 7/31/200i 7,37¢ 1,25((15)
Holding Co.(5) due 5/2014
Senior secured loan ($7,142 | 11/20/200 7,064 6,571(15)
due 11/2013
Senior secured loan ($4,458 | 11/20/200 4,40¢ 4,101(3)



due 11/2013

(15)

Common stock (85 share 3,76¢
22,61¢ 11,92:
Prommis Solutions, LLC, Befaull Bankruptcy and Senior subordinated loan 2/9/200° 43,81¢ 5,27%(15)
Services, LLC, Statewide Tax and foreclosure processing ($44,926 par due 2/2014)
Title Services, LLC & Statewide services
Publishing Services, LLt
Preferred units (30,000 unit 4/11/2001 3,00( —
46,81¢ 5,27:%
Promo Works, LLC Marketing services Senior secured loan ($8,655 | 4/1/201( 4,22: 3,38¢(15)
due 12/2013
R2 Acquisition Corp. Marketing services Comnstock (250,000 5/29/200° 25(C 157
shares
Summit Business Media Parent ~ Business media consulti Limited liability company 5/20/201: — 56€
Holding Company LLC services membership interest (45.98%
interest)
Tradesmen International, Inc. Construction labor Junior secured loan ($10,050 13.00% Cash, 1.00' 4/1/201( 7,872 10,05(
suppori par due 5/2014 PIK
Warrants to purchase up 4/1/201( — 5,00z
771,036 share
7,872 15,05:
Tripwire, Inc. IT security software Senior secured loan ($30,00C 8.50% 5/23/201: 30,00( 30,00((16)
provider par due 5/201€ (Libor + 7.25%/Q)
Senior secured loan ($50,00C 8.50% 5/23/201. 50,00( 50,00((2)
par due 5/201¢ (Libor + 7.25%/Q) (16)
Class B common stock 5/23/201. 30 38
(2,655,638 share:
Class A common stock (2,97( 5/23/201.: 2,97(C 3,75¢
shares’
83,00( 83,79:
F-33
Percentag:
Acquisition  Amortized
Fair of Net
Company(1, Business Descriptior Investment Interest(4)(10) Date Cost Value Assets
Venturehouse-Cibernet Financial settlement Equity interest 4/1/201( — —
Investors, LLC services for intercarrier
wireless roaming
VSS-Tranzact Holdings, LLC(5)  Management consulting Series B preferred units (854 11/7/201: 867 76¢
services units)
Common membership interes 10/26/200° 10,20+ 20C
(8.54% interest
Warrants to purchase up 11/7/201: — 98
4,206 units
11,07: 1,06€
402,69t 333,48! 10.6(%
Financial Services
AlIBridge Financial, LLC(6) Asset management Equity interests 4/1/201( 11,39¢ 11,738
services
Callidus Capital Corporation(6) Asset management Common stock (100 shares) 4/1/201( 3,00( 77€
services
Ciena Capital LLC(6) Real estate and small ~ Senior secured revolving loan 6.00% 11/29/201 14,000 14,00(
business loan servic ($14,000 par due 12/201
Senior secured loan ($32,000 12.00% 11/29/2011 32,00( 32,00(
par due 12/201¢
Equity interest: 11/29/2011 53,37 20,05:
99,37« 66,05:
Commercial Credit Group, Inc. Commercial equipment  Senior subordinated loan 15.00% 4/1/201( 19,50( 19,50(
finance and leasing ($19,500 par due 6/2015)
company
Cook Inlet Alternative Risk, LLC ~ Risk management servic  Senior subordinated loan 9.00% 9/30/201.: 3,75( 3,55(
($3,750 par due 9/201
Financial Pacific Company Commercial finance Preferred stock (6,500 shares 8.00% PIK 10/13/2011 6,50( 7,822
leasing
Common stock (650,000 10/13/201¢ — —

shares




6,50( 7,822
Imperial Capital Group, LLC Investment services Class A common units (7,710 5/10/200° 14,997 20,44"
units)
2006 Class B common units 5/10/200° 3 4
(2,526 units’
2007 Class B common units 5/10/200° — —
(315 units)
15,00( 20,44¢
Ivy Hill Asset Management, L.P.( Asset management Member interest (100.00% 6/15/200! 112,87¢ 194,59
(8) services interest)
271,39 324,47t 10.31%
Consumer Product— Non-
durable
Augusta Sportswear, Inc. Manufacturer of athletic Senior secured loan ($26 par 9.50% (Base 9/3/201( 26 26(3)
appare due 7/2015 Rate + 6.25%/Q (16)
Senior secured loan ($8,819 | 8.50% 9/3/201( 8,81¢ 8,819(9)(16)
due 7/2015 (Libor + 7.50%/Q)
8,84t 8,84t
Gilchrist & Soames, Inc. Personal care Senior secured loan ($21,941 13.44% 4/1/201( 21,43t 21,94:
manufacture par due 10/201%
Implus Footcare, LLC Provider of footwear and Preferred stock (455 shares) 6.00% PIK 10/31/201. 4,591 4,591
other accessori¢
F-34
Percentagt
Acquisition  Amortized
Fair of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(4)(10) Date Cost Value Assets
Common stock (455 share 10/31/201 45k 45k
5,04¢ 5,04¢
Insight Pharmaceuticals OTC drug products Junior secured loan ($25,000 13.25% 8/26/201. 24,74( 24,00((2)
Corporation(5; manufacture par due 8/2017 (Libor + 11.75%/Q; (16)
Class A common stock 8/26/201.: 6,03t 9,55¢
(155,000 share
Class B common stock 8/26/201.: 6,03t 9,55¢
(155,000 share
36,81( 43,11¢
Making Memories Wholesale, Inc. Scrapbooking branded Senior secured revolving loan 8/21/200! 2,22¢ 965(15)
(6) products manufactur ($2,250 par due 8/201.
Senior secured loan ($9,625 | 8/21/200! 7,19: —(15)
due 8/2014
Senior secured loan ($5,973 | 8/21/200! 3,87¢ —(15)
due 8/2014
Common stock (100 share 8/21/200! — —
13,29¢ 96°
Matrixx Initiatives, Inc. and Developer and marketer ~ Senior secured revolving loar 13.00% 6/30/201: 10,00( 9,70((16)
Wonder Holdings Acquisitio of over-the-counter ($10,000 par due 6/2016) (Libor + 12.00%/M)
Corp. healthcare produc
Senior secured loan ($41,437 13.00% 6/30/201.: 41,17¢ 40,19¢2)
par due 6/201€ (Libor + 12.00%/Q; (16)
Warrants to purchase up 7/127/201: — —
1,654,678 shares of common
stock
Warrants to purchase up 7/127/201: — 1,504
1,489 shares of preferred stc
51,17¢ 51,39¢
The Step2 Company, LLC Toy manufacturer Jusamured loan ($27,000 10.00% 4/1/201( 25,76« 27,00(
par due 4/201&
Junior secured loan ($31,178 10.00% Cash, 5.00% 4/1/201( 29,87¢ 28,06(
par due 4/201E PIK
Common units (1,116,879 4/1/201( 24 25
units)
Warrants to purchase up 4/1/201( — 72
3,157,895 unit:
55,66" 55,15°
The Thymes, LLC(6) Cosmetic products Preferred units (6,283 units) 8.00% PIK 6/21/200° 6,111 6,42(
manufacture
Common units (5,400 unit 6/21/200° — 754
6,111 7,174
Woodstream Corporatic Pet products manufactur  Senior subordinated loan 12.00% 1/22/201( 40,44« 44,10(




($45,000 par due 2/201

Common stock (4,254 share 1/22/201( 1,222 2,28(
41,66¢ 46,38(
240,05« 240,02: 7.65%
Containers—Packaging
ICSH, Inc. Industrial container Senior secured loan ($71,31€ 8.00% 8/31/201.: 71,31¢ 69,89:(16)
manufacturer, par due 8/2016) (Libor + 7.00%/Q)
reconditioner and servic
Senior secured loan ($49,872 8.00% 8/31/201.: 49,87: 48,87%2)
par due 8/201€ (Libor + 7.00%/Q) (16)
121,19: 118,76t
Microstar Logistics LLC Keg management Junior secured loan ($60,000 10.00% 8/5/201: 60,00( 60,00((16)
solutions provide par due 8/201€ (Libor + 9.00%/Q)
F-35
Percentag:
Acquisition  Amortized
Fair of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(4)(10) Date Cost Value Assets
Junior secured loan ($50,000 10.00% 8/5/201: 50,00( 50,00((2)
par due 8/201€ (Libor + 9.00%/Q) (16)
110,00( 110,00(
231,19: 228,76t 7.21%
Aerospace and Defens
AP Global Holdings, Inc. Safety and security Senior secured loan ($134,47 7.25% 7/22/201: 134,47" 132,79(14)
equipment manufactur par due 7/2017 (Libor + 5.75%/M) (16)
Senior secured loan ($49,87% 7.25% 7/22/201.: 49,87 49,254(2)
par due 7/2017 (Libor + 5.75%/M) (16)
184,35( 182,04t
Wyle Laboratories, Inc. and Wy Provider of specialized  Senior preferred stock (775 8.00% PIK 1/17/200¢ 95 95
Holdings, Inc. engineering, scientific ar  shares)
technical service
Common stock (1,885,195 1/17/200i 2,291 1,92(
shares’
2,38¢ 2,01t
186,73t 184,06: 5.85%
Manufacturing
Component Hardware Group, Inc Commercial equipment  Junior secured loan ($3,106 f  7.00% Cash, 3.00% 8/4/201( 3,10¢ 3,10¢
due 12/2014 PIK
Senior subordinated loan 7.50% Cash, 5.00% 4/1/201( 6,932 10,59¢
($10,596 par due 12/201 PIK
Warrants to purchase up 8/4/201( — 3,181
1,462,500 shares of common
stock
10,03¢ 16,88:
HOPPY Holdings Corp. Automotive and Senior secured loan ($13,988 5.00% 6/3/201: 13,98¢ 13,2816)
recreational vehicle par due 6/2016) (Libor + 3.75%/M)
aftermarket product
MWI Holdings, Inc. Provider of highly Senior secured loan ($29,914 10.00% 6/15/201.: 29,91« 29,914(16)
engineered springs, par due 6/2017) (Libor + 8.00%/Q)
fasteners, and other
precision componen
NetShape Technologies, Ir Metal precision Senior secured revolving loan 3.96% 4/1/201( 44 69
engineered components  ($91 par due 2/2013) (Libor + 3.75%/M)
manufacture
Senior secured revolving loan 4.33% 4/1/201( 374 587
($778 par due 2/201: (Libor + 3.75%/Q)
41¢ 65€
Protective Industries, Inc. Plastic protection produc  Senior secured loan ($14 par 6.25% (Base 5/23/201. 14 14(16)
due 5/2017 Rate + 3.00%/M
Senior secured loan ($5,589 | 5.75% 5/23/201: 5,58¢ 5,421(16)
due 5/2017 (Libor + 4.25%/M)
Senior subordinated loan ($7:  8.00% Cash, 7.25% 5/23/201. 72C 72C
par due 5/201€ PIK
Preferred stock (2,379,361 5/23/201: 2,307 3,101
shares’
8,63( 9,25¢
Saw Mill PCG Partners LLC Metal precision Common units (1,000 units) 1/30/200° 1,00 —

engineered componer



Sigma International Group, Inc.(i

WP CPP Holdings, LL(

Water treatment par

Precision engineered
castings

Junior secured loan ($4,048 ¢ 10.00% 7/8/201:
due 4/2014) (Libor + 3.50% Cast

5.00% PIK /A)
Senior secured loan ($20,822 8.50% 10/11/201
par due 10/2017 (Libor + 7.00%/M)
Senior secured loan ($50,000 8.50% 10/11/201
par due 10/2017 (Libor + 7.00%/M)

F-36

4,04¢

20,72(

49,74%

3,03¢(16)

20,40((16)

49,00((2)
(16)



Percentag:

Acquisition  Amortized
Fair of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(4)(10) Date Cost Value Assets
70,46¢ 69,40¢
138,50: 142,44 4.5%%
Service—Other
The Dwyer Group(5) Operator of multiple Senior subordinated loan 14.50% 12/22/2011 17,100 17,10(
franchise concepts ($17,100 par due 12/2016)
primarily related to home
maintenance or repai
Series A preferred units 8.00% PIK 12/22/2011 14,41 17,01
(13,292,377 units
31,51 34,11
Wash Multifamily Laundry Laundry service and Senior secured loan ($4,850 | 7.00% (Base 6/15/200! 4,727 4,85((3)
Systems, LLC (fka Web Services equipment provider due 8/2014) Rate + 3.75%/Q) (16)
Company, LLC)
Junior secured loan ($36,900 10.88% 1/25/201.: 36,90( 36,90((16)
par due 8/201E (Libor + 9.38%/Q)
Junior secured loan ($50,000 10.88% 1/25/201: 50,00( 50,00((2)
par due 8/201& (Libor + 9.38%/Q) (16)
Junior secured loan ($3,100 par 10.88% 1/25/201.: 3,10 3,10((3)
due 8/2015 (Libor + 9.38%/Q) (16)
94,72 94,85(
126,23t 128,96: 4.1(%
Telecommunications
American Broadband Broadband Senior secured loan ($8,754 | 7.50% 9/1/201( 8,75¢ 8,7543)
Communications, LLC, American communication services due 9/2013) (Libor + 5.50%/Q) (26)
Broadband Holding Company an
Cameron Holdings of NC, Ini
Senior subordinated loan 12.00% Cash, 2.00¢ 11/7/200° 10,52¢ 10,52¢
($10,529 par due 11/201 PIK
Senior subordinated loan 12.00% Cash, 4.00¢ 9/1/201( 22,15( 22,15(
($22,150 par due 11/201 PIK
Senior subordinated loan 12.00% Cash, 2.00¢ 2/8/200¢ 33,42¢ 33,42¢?2)
($33,429 par due 11/201 PIK
Warrants to purchase up to 3 11/7/200° — 6,28¢
shares
Warrants to purchase up to 2 9/1/201( — 3,32¢
shares
74,86 84,47
Dialog Telecom LLC Broadband Senior secured loan ($16,412 12.08% 6/20/201.: 16,41 16,41416)
communication services par due 12/2012) (Libor + 7.50% Cast
4.00% PIK /Q)
Startec Equity, LLC(6 Communication service ~ Member interes 4/1/201( — —
91,27« 100,88t 3.21%
Grocery
Grocery Outlet Inc. Value grocery retailer Sergecured revolving loan 11.25% (Base 12/15/201 3,10 3,10((16)
($3,100 par due 12/201 Rate + 8.00%/Q
Senior secured loan ($91,500 10.50% 12/15/201 91,50( 91,50((16)
par due 12/2017 (Libor + 9.00%/Q)
94,60( 94,60(
94,60( 94,60( 3.01%
Retail
Direct Buy Holdings, Inc. and Membership based buyi  Limited partnership interest 4/1/201( 2,59/ —
Direct Buy Investors, LP(5) club franchisor and (66,667 shares)
operatol
Limited partnership interest 11/30/200 8,33: —
(83,333 shares
F-37
Percentagt
Acquisition  Amortized
Fair of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(4)(10) Date Cost Value Assets
10,92 —
Fulton Holdings Corp. Airport restaurant Senior secured loan ($40,000 12.50% 5/28/2011 40,00( 40,00((2)
operatol par due 5/201€ (11)
Common stock (19,672 share 5/28/201( 1,961 1,61¢
41,96° 41,61¢



Savers, Inc. and SAI Acquisition  For-profit thrift retailer Common stock (1,218,481 8/8/200¢ 4,90¢ 12,55¢
Corporation shares
Things Remembered Inc. and TRM Personalized gifts retailer ~ Senior secured ($21,433 9.00% (Base 9/28/2001 21,41« 21,43{(16)
Holdings Corporatiol par due 3/2014 Rate + 7.00%/M
Senior secured loan ($8,226 | 9.00% (Base 9/28/2001 8,30z 8,22¢(3)
due 3/2014 Rate + 7.00%/M (16)
Class B Preferred stock 3/19/200! — 2,05¢
(73 shares
Preferred stock (80 share 9/28/2001 1,80( 2,24¢
Common stock (800 share 9/28/2001 20C 2,17z
Warrants to purchase up to 8 3/19/200! — 2,32¢
shares of preferred sto
31,71¢ 38,46(
89,51¢ 92,63¢ 2.9/%
Energy
La Paloma Generating Natural gas fired Junior secured loan ($59,000 10.25% 8/9/201: 57,77¢ 56,05((16)
Company, LLC combined cycle plant par due 8/2018) (Libor + 8.75%/Q)
operatol
USG Nevada LLC Geothermal, renewable Junior secured loan ($7,500 par 3.94% 11/9/201: 7,50( 7,50(
energy, developer for due 6/2012) (Libor + 3.50%/Q)
electrical power and dire
uses
65,27¢ 63,55( 2.02%
Automotive Services
Driven Holdings, LLC Automotive aftermarket  Preferred stock (247,500 unit: 12/16/201 2,A7¢ 2,A7¢
car care franchisc
Common stock (25,000 unit 12/16/201 25 25
2,50( 2,50(
Stag-Parkway, Inc.(6) Automotive aftermarket Senior secured loan ($34,500 12.50% 9/30/2011 34,50( 34,50((16)
components suppli¢ par due 12/2014 (Libor + 11.00%/Q’
Preferred stock (4,200 shar 16.50% PIK 9/30/201( 2,36¢ 4,20(
Common stock (10,200 shar¢ 9/30/201( — 14,807
36,86¢ 53,50
39,36¢ 56,00 1.7&%
Commercial Real Estate Finance
10th Street, LLC(5) Real estate holding Senior subordinated loan 8.93% Cash, 4.07% 4/1/201( 24,21 24,21
company ($24,213 par due 11/201 PIK
Member interest (10.00% 4/1/201( 594 52¢
interest)
Option (25,000 units 4/1/201( 2t 25
24,83 24,767
Allied Capital REIT, Inc.(6) Real estate investmhe Real estate equity interests 4/1/201( 5C 50
trust
Real estate equity intere: 4/1/201( 32t 63¢
37t 68¢
American Commercial Real estate property Commercial mortgage loan 4/1/201( 1,611 1,967(15)
Coatings, Inc (%$2,000 par due 12/202
F-38
Percentagt
Acquisition  Amortized
Fair of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(4)(10) Date Cost Value Assets
Aquila Binks Forest Real estate developer Commercial mortgage loan 4/1/201( 11,90( 4,015(15)
Development, LLC ($13,477 par due 12/201
Real estate equity intere: 4/1/201( — —
11,90( 4,01z
Cleveland East Equity, LLt Hotel operato Real estate equity intere: 4/1/201( 1,02¢ 2,507
Commons |-3, LLC Real estate develop Real estate equity intere: 4/1/201( — —
Crescent Hotels & Resorts, LLC ~ Hotel operator Senior secured loan ($433 pa 10.00% 4/1/201( 43¢ 444
and affiliates(6, due 6/2010
Senior subordinated loan 4/1/201( 1,47¢ 13€(15)
($9,071 par due 1/201.
Senior subordinated loan 4/1/201( 2,41( 241(15)
($9,399 par due 6/201
Senior subordinated loan 4/1/201( 2,051 202(15)
($10,967 par due 9/201
Senior subordinated loan ($2! 4/1/201( 265 9(15)



par due 3/2013

Senior subordinated loan 4/1/201( — —(15)
($2,236 par due 9/201
Preferred equity intere 4/1/201( — 39
Common equity intere! 4/1/201( 35 —
6,661 1,07
Hot Light Brands, Inc.(6) Real estate holding Senior secured loan ($35,239 4/1/201( 3,94¢ 3,69%(15)
company par due 2/2011
Common stock (93,500 shar¢ 4/1/201( — —
3,94¢ 3,69z
NPH, Inc. Hotel property Real estate equity intere: 4/1/201( 5,291 7,95¢
55,64 46,66 1.4&%
Food and Beverage
Apple & Eve, LLC and US Juice  Juice manufacturer Senior secured revolving loa 12.00% 10/5/200° 2,00( 2,00((16)
Partners, LLC(5 (%$2,000 par due 10/201 (Libor + 9.00%/M)
Senior secured revolving loan 12.00% (Base 10/5/200° 2,50( 2,50((16)
(%$2,500 par due 10/201 Rate + 8.00%/Q
Senior secured loan ($13,325 12.00% 10/5/200° 13,32t 13,32(16)
par due 10/201: (Libor + 9.00%/M)
Senior secured loan ($14,019 12.00% 10/5/200° 14,01¢ 14,0143)
par due 10/201% (Libor + 9.00%/M) (16)
Senior units (50,000 unit 10/5/200° 5,00( 3,32¢
36,84« 35,17(
Charter Baking Company, Inc. Baked goods Senior subordinated loan 16.00% PIK 2/6/200¢ 7,61F 7,61F
manufacture ($7,615 par due 2/201.
Preferred stock (6,258 shar 9/1/200¢ 2,50( 1,51¢
10,11¢ 9,13¢
Distant Lands Trading Co. Coffee manufacturer las€ A common stock (1,294 4/1/201( 98( 56€
shares
Class At common stock (2,1! 4/1/201( — —
shares’
98( 56€
47,93¢ 44,87. 1.4%%
Consumer Product—Durable
Bushnell Inc. Sports optics Junior secured loan ($41,325 7.08% 4/1/201( 33,46 37,19:
manufacture par due 2/2014 (Libor + 6.50%/Q);
33,46 37,19: 1.1&%
Transportation
PODS Funding Corp. Storage and warehousing odsobordinated loan 10.50% Cash, 5.00% 11/29/201 37,02( 37,02(
($37,020 par due 5/201 PIK
F-39
Percentag:
Acquisition  Amortized
Fair of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(4)(10) Date Cost Value Assets
United Road Towing, Inc. Towing company Warrants to purchase up to 6 4/1/201( — —
shares
37,02( 37,02( 1.1&%
Environmental Services
AWTP, LLC(6) Water treatment servici Junior secured loan ($4,109 par 5.00% Cash, 5.00%  4/18/201. 4,10¢ 4,10¢
due 6/2015 PIK
Junior secured loan ($896 par 15.00% PIK 4/18/201: 89€ 622
due 6/2015
Junior secured loan ($4,518 par ~ 15.00% PIK 4/18/201: 4,51¢ 3,14%3)
due 6/2015
Membership interests (90% 4/18/201. — —
interest)
9,562t 7,87¢
RE Community Operator of municipal Preferred stock (1,000 shares 12.50% PIK 3/1/201: 8,311 8,28:
Holdings Il, Inc.and Pegasus recycling facilities
Community Energy, LLC
Waste Pro USA, In Waste manageme Preferred Class A common 11/9/2001 12,26 20,54(
services equity (611,615 share
30,09° 36,69' 1.17%
Oil and Gas
Geotrace Technologies, Inc. Reservoir processing, ai  Warrants to purchase up 4/1/201( 88 —



developmen 69,978 shares of common stc
Warrants to purchase up 4/1/201( 2,80¢ 17z
210,453 shares of preferred
stock
2,89: 172
UL Holding Co., LLC Petroleum product Junior secured loan ($2,098 par 9.31% 12/24/200 2,09¢ 2,09¢
manufacture due 12/2012 (Libor + 8.88%/Q)
Junior secured loan ($4,073 par 14.00% 12/24/200 4,077 4,07:
due 12/2012
Junior secured loan ($2,000 par 9.45% 6/17/201: 2,00( 2,00(
due 12/2012 (Libor + 8.88%/Q)
Junior secured loan ($5,000 par 15.00% 8/13/201( 5,00(C 5,00(
due 12/2012
Junior secured loan ($2,926 par 14.00% 12/24/200 2,92¢ 2,92€(2)
due 12/2012
Junior secured loan ($835 par 9.31% 12/24/200 83t 835(3)
due 12/2012 (Libor + 8.88%/Q)
Junior secured loan ($1,801 par 14.00% 12/24/200 1,801 1,801(3)
due 12/2012
Junior secured loan ($10,728 9.32% 12/24/200 10,72¢ 10,7243)
par due 12/2012 (Libor + 8.88%/Q)
Class A common units (8,982 6/17/201. a0 46
units)
Class B-4 common units 4/25/200i 50C 25t
(50,000 units.
Class B-5 common units 6/17/201. 4,99( 2,541
(499,000 units
Class C common units (549,4 4/25/200i — 2,79¢
units)
35,04: 35,10:
37,93¢ 35,27 1.12%
F-40
Percentagt
Acquisition  Amortized
Fair of Net
Company(1 Business Descriptior Investment Interest(4)(10) Date Cost Value Assets
Chemicals, Plastic and Rubbe
Emerald Performance Polymers and Senior secured loan ($3,603| 13.00% Cash, 3.00¢ 5/22/200t 3,60: 3,60:
Materials, LLC performance materials due 11/2013) PIK
manufacture
Senior secured loan ($9,967 | 10.25% (Base 6/29/201. 9,967 9,967(16)
due 11/2013 Rate + 3.50%/M
Senior secured loan ($6,639 | 10.00% 6/29/201: 6,63¢ 6,63¢(16)
due 11/2013 (Libor + 6.00%/M)
Senior secured loan ($5,246| 13.00% Cash, 3.00¢ 5/22/200t 5,24¢ 5,24¢€(2)
due 11/2013 PIK
Senior secured loan ($8,227 | 8.25% 5/22/200t 8,221 8,221(3)
due 11/2013 (Libor + 4.25%/M) (26)
Senior secured loan ($915 ps 10.25% (Base 6/29/201: 91¢ 915(3)
due 11/2013 Rate + 3.50%/M (26)
Senior secured loan ($610 ps 10.00% 6/29/201: 61C 61((3)
due 11/2013 (Libor + 6.00%/M) (16)
35,201 35,201
35,20° 35,20° 1.12%
Printing, Publishing and Media
EarthColor, Inc.(6) Printing management ~ Common stock (89,435 shares) 4/1/201( — —
services
LVCG Holdings LLC(6) Commercial printer Membership interests (56.53¢ 10/12/200° 6,60( —
interest)
National Print Group, Inc Printing management Senior secured revolving loan 9.00% 3/2/200¢ 1,141 1,027(16)
services ($1,141 par due 10/201 (Libor + 6.00%/M)
Senior secured revolving loan 9.00% (Base 3/2/200¢ 1,031 92¢(16)
($1,031 par due 10/201 Rate + 5.00%/M
Senior secured loan ($20 par 10.00% 3/2/200¢ 20 18(16)
due 10/2013) (Libor + 6.00% Cast
1.00% PIK/Q)
Senior secured loan ($7,520 | 10.00% 3/2/200¢ 7,217 6,9143)
due 10/2013) (Libor + 6.00% Cast (26)
1.00% PIK/Q)
Senior secured loan ($181 par 10.00% (Base 3/2/200¢ 174 16€(3)
due 10/2013) Rate + 5.00% Cash, (16)
1.00% PIK/M)
Preferred stock (9,344 shar 3/2/200¢ 2,00( —
11,58¢ 9,05¢



The Teaching Company, LLC an  Education publications Preferred stock (21,711 share 9/29/200t 2,171 5,33¢

The Teaching Company provider
Holdings, Inc.
Common stock (15,393 shar¢ 9/29/200¢ 3 13
2,174 5,352
20,357 14,41( 0.4€%
Health Clubs
Athletic Club Holdings, Inc. Premier health club Senior secured loan ($11,500 4.80% 10/11/200 11,50( 11,27((3)
operatol par due 10/201% (Libor + 4.50%/M) (12)
11,50( 11,27( 0.36%

Wholesale Distribution

BECO Holding Company, Inc. Wholesale distributor ¢ Common stock (25,000 share 7/30/201( 2,50( 3,151
first response fire
protection equipment an
related part:

2,50( 3,151 0.1(%
$5,108,66. $5,094,501 161.8%
1) Other than the Company's investments listed imiotet6 below, the Company does not "Control" anigsofortfolio companies, for purposes of the Iriieent Company Act of

1940, as amended (together with the rules andatgos promulgated thereunder, the "Investment Gop@\ct”). In general, under the Investment Compaaty the Company
would "Control" a portfolio company if it owned neothan 25% of its outstanding voting securities (securities with the right to elect directonsjlar had the power to exerc
control over the management or policies of sucltfplas company. All of the Company's portfolio coany investments, which as of December 31, 201septed 162% of the
Company's net assets or 95% of the Company'sassels, are subject to legal restrictions on s
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The investments not otherwise pledged as collaterahe Debt Securitization or the Revolving FurgdFacility by the respective obligors thereundermedged as collateral by
the Company and certain of its other subsidiawestfe Revolving Credit Facility (see Note 5 to tmmsolidated financial statements) (except fomééd number of exceptions
as provided in the credit agreement governing tiseoRing Credit Facility).

(2) These assets are owned by the Company's consdlisiaitsidiary, Ares Capital CP, are pledged asteodafor the Revolving Funding Facility and, asault, are not directly
available to the creditors of the Company to satisfy obligations of the Company other than ArepitahCP's obligations under the Revolving Fundiagility (see Note 5 to
the consolidated financial statements).

(3) Pledged as collateral for the Debt Securitization.
(4) Investments without an interest rate are non-incproducing.
(5) As defined in the Investment Company Act, the Comypa deemed to be an "Affiliated Person" of a fadid company because the Company owns 5% or niatieegportfolio

company's outstanding voting securities or the Gomhas the power to exercise control over the gemant or policies of such portfolio company (imthg through a
management agreement). Transactions during theeyeld December 31, 2011 in which the issuer wasfdiated company (but not a portfolio companyththe Company
"Controls") are as follows

Net Net
Capital realized unrealized
Redemption: Interest structuring Dividend
Sales Other gains gains

Company Purchase: (cost) (cost) income service fee Income income (losses) (losses)
10th Street, LLC $ —$ —% —$ 309 $ —$ —$ —3 —$ (49)
Apple &

Eve, LLC and

US Juice

Partners, LLC $ 5,50C $ 3,91¢$ —$ 347t $ — % —$ 353% —$ (1,709
BB&T Capital

Partners/Wind

Mezzanine

Fund, LLC $ —$ 2,64(%926($ — $ —$ —% —9% 3902% (3,809
Carador, PLC  $ —$ —$9038 — % —$ 16($ —$ (2,989 3,70(
Campus

Management

Corp. and

Campus

Management

Acquisition

Corp. $ 571 % —$ —3% —9 —$ —$ —3 —$ (3,309
CT Technologie

Intermediate

Holdings, Inc.

and CT

Technologies

Holdings, LLC $ —$ 75$ 8,76:% 94: $ —$ 259 —9$ 1561% (1,369
Direct Buy

Holdings, Inc.

and Direct Bu

Investors, LF $ 38,80( $ 80,31f$40,69:$ 2,637 $ —$ —% —9$(17,66)% (9,356
Driven

Brands, Inc  $ —$ 3,56¢$ 4,93¢$ 255 $ — % —$ —$ 451($ (1,47
DSl Renal, Inc $ —$ 77,77:$19,68:$ 7,91¢ $ —$ —9$ 33%$27,52:$ (21,56
The Dwyer

Group $ —$ — $11,70¢$ 3,47¢ $ —$ 1,13t —$ —$ 2,59¢
ELC Acquisition

Corp., ELC

Holdings

Corporation,

and

Excelligence

Learning

Corporation $ 137,20($ 135,66:$ —$ 1,05¢ $ —$ 20:% 22% — $ (1,04¢)
Firstlight

Financial

Corporation  $ —$ 2,98t —$% 681% — % —3$ 25($ 12$ 16,19
Growing

Family, Inc.

and GFH

Holdings, LLC $ —$ 34$10,29¢$ 61t $ —$ —$% 13% (1,549% 5,991
Industrial

Container

Services, LLC $ 3,30 $ 8,491% 1,80($ 6S $ —$ —$ 10¢$19,88:$ (13,409
Insight

Pharmaceutici

Corporatior  $ 24,73( $ 56,08($ —$ 4,42¢ % 73C $ —$ 76:E$ —$ 494
Investor Group

Services, LLC $ 50C $ 50 —9% 3$ —$ 20€$ 9% —$ 29t
Multi-Ad

Services, Inc $ — $ —$ —3% —9 — 9% —$ —3 —$ 462
Pillar

Processing LL

and PHL

Holding Co. $ —$ 12,45($ —$ 1,58 % —$ —$ 147% — $ (12,62%)
Primis

Marketing

Group, Inc.

and Primis

Holdings, LLC $ —$ 154$14,06¢$ — $ —$ —% —$(14,069% 14,12(

Regency



Healthcare

Group, LLC  $ —$ —$ 200 — % — $ —% —3% 38C$ 33t
Soteria Imaging

Services, LLC $ —$ 141¢$ —$ 321% —$ —$ —3% 72 % 12
VSS-Tranzact

Holdings, LLC $ 867 $ —$ —3$ — 89 — ¢ —$ —9% — $ (6,27%)
Universal

Environmenta

Services, LLC $ — 3 —3$ —3 —$ —$ —$ —% —$ —
Universal Traile

Corporation  $ —$ —$793(8 — $ —$ —$ —$(7,930% 7,93(

(6) As defined in the Investment Company Act, the Comypa deemed to be both an "Affiliated Person" emtiControl" this portfolio company because it ownere than 25% of

the portfolio company's outstanding voting secesitdr it has the power to exercise control oventheagement or policies of such portfolio
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company (including through a management agreemerathsactions during the period for the year eridecember 31, 2011 in which the issuer was bothféiiated company
and a portfolio company that the Company is deetoébntrol are as follows:

Capital Net Net
structuring realized unrealized
Redemptions Dividend
Sales Interest service Other gains gains

Company Purchase: (cost) (cost) income fees Income income (losses) (losses)
AGILE Fund

I, LLC $ — 3 368 —9$ —$ — 3 108 —¢% —$ 37
Allied Capital

REIT, Inc. $ 32t % 11£¢ —$ —$ —$ —$ —$ 58E% (255)
AllBridge

Financial, LLC $ — $ —3$ —9% — % —$ —3$ —9% —$ (1379
Aviation

Properties

Corporation  $ — —$ —3 — 3 —$ —$ —3 —$ —
AWTP, LLC $ 292t $ —$ —$ 751% —$ —3$ —93 —$ (1,649
BenefitMall

Holdings, Inc. $ — $ —$ —9% 7,36($% —$ —$ 50C$ —$ 9,541
Border

Foods, Inc $ — 3 28,52¢$34,81¢$ 1,401 $ —3 —$ —$ 517¢% 3,601
Callidus Capital

Corporatior  $ 6,000 $ 3,000 —% — % —$ —% —3 —$ (2,470
Ciena

Capital LLC  $ — $ —$ —$ 354¢% —$ —3$ —9 —$ (27,01)
Citipostal, Inc. $ 2,85( $ 2,80:$ —$ 7,35¢$ —$ —$ 35¢% — $ (10,960
Coverall North

America, Inc.  $ — % 30,90 —$ 64z% —3 —%$ —9$(12,339$ 7,62¢
Crescent Hotels

Resorts, LLC

and affiliates  $ — ¢ —$ —% 21:3 —$ —$ —93 —$ (2,660
EarthColor, Inc  $ — 9 —$ —% —$ —$ —3$ —9 —$ —
HCI Equity, LLC $ — ¢ —$ —3 —$ —$ —$ —3 —$ (26%)
HCP Acquisition

Holdings, LLC $ 1,04¢ $ —3$ —% — 3 —$ —3 —3 —$  (1,19)
Hot Light

Brands, Inc  $ — $ 92¢s —$% — $ —$ —$ —3 — 3 (8)
Huddle

House Inc $ — % —$ —% 312t% —$ —$ 75($ —$ 22¢
Industrial Air

Tool, LP and

affiliates $ — $ — $13,41¢$ — 3 —$ 1,17($ 18:$ 581% (1,519)
Ivy Hill Asset

Management, |$  9,41¢ $ —3$ —9% —$ — $ 19,048 —$ — $ 48,94
Ivy Hill Middle

Market Credit

Fund, Ltd. $ — ¢ —$ —% 487¢$ —$ —$ —3 —$ 1,89¢
Knightsbridge

CLO 2007-

1 Ltd. $ —$ —$14,85:$% 1,01¢$ —$ —$ —$ 372¢% 307
Knightsbridge

CLO 2008-

1 Ltd. $ — $ 36,99t —$ 2,56t % —$ —$ —$ 1,25¢% 3,10¢
LVCG

Holdings, LLC $ —$ —$ —% —$ —$ -3 —3$ —5 —
Making

Memories

Wholesale, Inc $ 1,75( $ 345 —$ 34 $ —$ —$ 2% —$ (7,090
MVL Group, Inc. $ — % —$ —% 845.% —3 —3 —3 —$ (2529
Orion

Foods,LLC $ 3,30( $ 33($ —¢$ 10,269 —$ —$ 811% —$ (6,839
Penn Detroit

Diesel

Allison, LLC  $ — 8 4,077$15,99: % —$ — 9% —$ 50C$18,38¢$ (1,987)
Reflexite

Corporation  $ — $ 9,281$27,43!$ 1,13( $ —$ —$ 39%$4092:% (3,089
Senior Secured

Loan

Fund LLC* $ 496,81t $ —$ —$11842($% 4159:% — $13,30°% —$ 68€
Stag-

Parkway, Inc  $ — $ —$ —9$ 437:% —$ 925§ 24¢$ —$ 78C
Startec

Equity, LLC  $ — % —3$ —3 — 3 —$ —$ —3 —$ —
The

Thymes, LLC $ — ¢ 1,162 —$ —$ —$ 49 —$ —$ 94k

* Together with GE, the Company @osests through the SSLP. The SSLP is capitalizelamsactions are completed and all portfoliosiens and generally all otk
decisions in respect of the SSLP must be approyethbnvestment committee of the SSLP consistingpfesentatives of the Company and GE (with aggrioom a
representative of each required); therefore, althabhe Company owns more than 25% of the votingrtés of the SSLP, the Company does not belibaeit has
control over the SSLP (for purposes of the Investn@mpany Act or otherwise) because, among ottiegs, these "voting securities" do not afford @@mpany the
right to elect directors of the SSLP or any othgcial rights (see Note 4 to the consolidated fiferstatements).

()] Non-U.S. company or principal place of businessidatthe U.S. and as a result is not a qualifysgeunder Section 55(a) of the Investment CompahyUnder the
Investment Company Act, the Company may not acarigeno-qualifying asset unless, at the time such acqaisis made, qualifying assets represent at led@étaftthe



®)

©)

(10)

(1

(12)

Company's total assets.

Excepted from the definition of investment companger Section 3(c) of the Investment Company Adtasa result is not a qualifying asset under Sed&b(a) of the
Investment Company Act. Under the Investment Compent, the Company may not acquire any non-qualdyasset unless, at the time such acquisition dengualifying
assets represent at least 70% of the Companylsassigts.

In the first quarter of 2011, the Staff informalgmmunicated to certain business development corpéme Staff's belief that certain entities, whigbuld be classified as an
"investment company" under the Investment Compactybiit for the exception from the definition of Vestment company" set forth in Rule 3a-7 promuldjateder the
Investment Company Act, could not be treated aghddi portfolio companies (as defined in Sectioa)@6) of the Investment Company Act). Subsequeimthiugust 2011 the
Securities and Exchange Commission issued a CoRedpase which states that "[a]s a general matieiCommission presently does not believe that Bai@ issuers are the
type of small, developing and financially troubleusinesses in which Congress intended BDCs priynariinvest” and requested comment on whether baida-7 issuer should
be considered an "eligible portfolio company”. A@apital provided a comment letter in respect ef@oncept Release and continues to believe théatigeiage of Section 2(a)
(46) of the Investment Company Act permits a bussréevelopment company to treat as "eligible pliotfmmpanies” entities that rely on the Baxception. However, given tl
current uncertainty in this area (including theglaage in the Concept Release) and subsequent slistsisvith the Staff, Ares Capital has, solelygarposes of calculating the
composition of its portfolio pursuant to Sectior(@5of the Investment Company Act, identified therséties in the Company's schedule of investmast$ion-qualifying assets"
should the Staff ultimately disagree with Ares Qalfs position.

Variable rate loans to the Company's portfolio cames bear interest at a rate that may be detednbipneeference to either LIBOR or an alternate iase (commonly based on
the Federal Funds Rate or the Prime Rate), atdirewer's option, which reset annually (A), semivaally (S), quarterly (Q), bi-monthly (B), monthiy) or daily (D). For each
such loan, the Company has provided the interéstmaeffect on the date presented.

In addition to the interest earned based on thedsiaterest rate of this security, the Comparsnitled to receive an additional interest amour.00% on $18 million aggregz
principal amount of a "first out" tranche of thertbolio company's senior term debt previously sygatiéd by the Company into "first out" and "last"dtainches, whereby the
"first out" tranche will have priority as to theat out" tranche with respect to payments of ppialcinterest and any other amounts due thereunder.

In addition to the interest earned based on thedsiaterest rate of this security, the Comparsnistled to receive an additional interest amour2.60% on $12 million aggregz
principal amount of a "first out" tranche of thertfolio company's senior term debt previously sgatid by the Company into "first out"
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and "last out" tranches, whereby the "first outthtthe will have priority as to the "last out" traaavith respect to payments of principal, inteeest any other amounts due
thereunder.

In addition to the interest earned based on thtedstaterest rate of this security, the Comparsnistled to receive an additional interest amourt.00% on $45 million aggrege
principal amount of a "first out" tranche of therifolio company's senior term debt previously sgatid by the Company into "first out" and "last'dtanches, whereby the
"first out" tranche will have priority as to theat out" tranche with respect to payments of ppialcinterest and any other amounts due thereunder.

In addition to the interest earned based on thedsiaterest rate of this security, the Comparsnitled to receive an additional interest amourit.25% on $74 million aggrege
principal amount of a "first out" tranche of therifolio company's senior term debt previously sgatid by the Company into "first out" and "last'dtanches, whereby the
"first out" tranche will have priority as to thea4t out" tranche with respect to payments of ppialcinterest and any other amounts due thereunder.

Loan was on non-accrual status as of December(@1,.2

Loan includes interest rate floor feature.

In addition to the interest earned based on thedtontractual interest rate of this security,dbsificates entitle the holders thereof to reeewortion of the excess cash flow
from the SSLP's loan portfolio, which may resultireturn to the Company greater than the contahstated interest rate.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsgistents.
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Balance at
December 31
2009
Issuances of

common
stock in
add-on
offerings
(net of
offering anc
underwriting
costs)

Shares issuet
in
connection
with
dividend
reinvestmet
plan

Issuance of
common
stock in the
acquisition
of Allied
Capital
Corporation

Gain on the
acquisition
of Allied
Capital
Corporation

Net increase i
stockholder
equity
resulting
from
operations
(excluding
gain on the
acquisition
of Allied
Capital
Corporation

Dividends
declared
($1.40 per
share)

Tax
reclassifical
of
stockholder
equity in
accordance
with
generally
accepted
accounting
principles

Balance at
December 31
2010

Shares issuec
in
connection
with
dividend
reinvestmer
plan

Issuances of
the

ARES CAPITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

(in thousands, except per share data)

Accumulated Net
Realized Loss
on Investments,

Accumulated Foreign Currency Net

Common Stock Overdistributed Transactions, Unrealized Total

—————— Capitalin Extinguishment of ~ Gain (Loss) or  Stockholders'
Excess of Net Investment Debt and Other

Shares Amount Par Value Income Assets Investments Equity
109,94 $ 11C $1,49045 $ 3,14: ¢ (31,11%) $ (204,70) $ 1,257,88:
34,45¢ 34 457,81! — — — 457,84¢
1,52¢ 2 22,52¢ — — — 22,53:
58,49: 58 872,66 — — — 872,72
— — — — 195,87t — 195,87t
— — — 215,81t 49,39¢ 230,74 495,95t
— — — (252,291) — — (252,29)
— — 361,85! 22,00: (383,85() — —
204,41¢ $ 204 $3,20532 $ (11,33¢) $ (169,69 $ 26,03t ¢ 3,050,53
711 1 11,55: — — — 11,55:



Convertible

Unsecured

Notes (See

Note 5) — — 54,71¢ — — — 54,71¢
Net increase i

stockholder

equity

resulting

from

operations — — — 282,40 77,24. (40,197) 319,45:
Dividends

declared

($1.41 per

share) — — — (288,991) — — (288,99()
Tax

reclassifical

of

stockholder

equity in

accordance

with

generally

accepted

accounting

principles — — 118,76( 7,47¢ (126,23 — —

Balance at

December 31
2011 205,13( $ 205 $3,390,35 $ (10,449 $ (218,68 $ (14,157 $ 3,147,26!

Issuances of

common

stock in

add-on

offerings

(net of

offering anc

underwriting

costs) 42,29; 43 679,93t — — — 679,98:
Shares issuec

in

connection

with

dividend

reinvestmer

plan 1,22¢ 1 20,44¢ — — — 20,44¢
Issuances of

the

Convertible

Unsecured

Notes (See

Note 5) — — 9,96 — — — 9,96
Net increase i

stockholder

equity

resulting

from

operations — — — 348,86 44,05¢ 115,26: 508,17¢
Dividends

declared

($1.60 per

share) — — — (377,49 — — (377,499
Tax

reclassificat

of

stockholder

equity in

accordance

with

generally

accepted

accounting

principles — — 16,81( 11,17: (27,987) — —

Balance at

December 31
2012 248,65. $ 24¢ $4,11751 $ (27,910 $ (202,61, $ 101,10 $ 3,988,34

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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ARES CAPITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(in thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net increase in stockholders' equity resulting fr
operations $ 508,17 319,450 $ 691,83
Adjustments to reconcile net increase in
stockholders' equity resulting from operatia
Gain on the acquisition of Allied Capital
Corporation — — (195,879
Realized loss on extinguishment of d 2,67¢ 19,31¢ 1,961
Realized gain on sale of other as: — — (5,882
Net realized gains on investme (46,73¢) (96,56() (45,479
Net unrealized (gains) losses on investm (115,26) 40,19: (230,74
Net accretion of discount on investme (13,747 (15,899 (12,59¢)
Increase in payme-in-kind interest and dividenc (25,03¢) (30,070 (45,00:)
Collections of payment-in-kind interest and
dividends 21,46¢ 55,81« 32,66¢
Amortization of debt issuance co: 13,14( 13,14¢ 8,82¢
Accretion of discount on notes paya 11,31( 11,057 8,201
Depreciatior 82¢ 87¢€ 92:
Proceeds from sales and repayments of investi 2,494,06; 2,516,091 1,562,35
Purchases of investmer (3,160,02) (3,263,62) (1,559,81)
Acquisition of Allied Capital Corporation, net of
cash acquire — — (774,19()
Changes in operating assets and liabilii
Interest receivabl (9,920 (26,530) (4,07¢)
Other asset 19,04 2,44( 12,54°
Management and incentive fees pay: 39,08¢ 40,09¢ (14,099
Accounts payable and accrued expel 5,77¢ 12,66: (93,489
Interest and facility fees payat 4,22( 4,62( 5,43
Net cash used in operating activit (250,93) (396,919 (656,49)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net proceeds from issuances of common s 679,98. — 1,330,57
Borrowings on dek 3,212,45; 2,458,06 1,737,26.
Repayments and repurchases of (3,091,53) (1,738,63) (2,154,88)
Debt issuance cos (44,387 (25,34) (25,17¢)
Dividends paic (357,33) (277,15() (229,76
Net cash provided by financing activiti 399,19: 416,94« 658,01t
CHANGE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 148,26. 20,03( 1,52t
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING
OF PERIOD 120,78: 100,75: 99,22'
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF
PERIOD $ 269,040 $ 120,78 $ 100,75:
Supplemental Informatiot
Interest paid during the peri $ 108,76. $ 87,42. $ 53,11°
Taxes, including excise tax, paid during the pe $ 10,14¢ 9,11 $ 1,32
Dividends declared during the peri $ 377,49 288,99( $ 252,29t

See accompanying notes to consolidated financsistents.
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ARES CAPITAL CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of December 31, 2012
(in thousands, except per share data, percentagesdas otherwise indicated;
for example, with the words "million," "billion" or  otherwise)

1. ORGANIZATION

Ares Capital Corporation (the "Company™ARCC") is a specialty finance company that is@seld-end, non-diversified management
investment company incorporated in Maryland. Thenfany has elected to be regulated as a busines®gewent company under the
Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (togethk the rules and regulations promulgated thedeu, the "Investment Company
Act"). The Company has elected to be treated aguaated investment company, or a "RIC", undetiternal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended (the "Code") and operates in a manner ocpslify for the tax treatment applicable to RIC

On April 1, 2010, the Company consummate@équisition of Allied Capital Corporation ("Add Capital”), in an all stock merger
where each existing share of common stock of Allegital was exchanged for 0.325 shares of the @agip common stock (the "Allied
Acquisition"). The Allied Acquisition was valued approximately $908 million as of April 1, 2010. donnection therewith, the Company
issued approximately 58.5 million shares of its omon stock to Allied Capital's then-existing stockless (see Note 17).

The Company's investment objective is toegate both current income and capital apprecidatioough debt and equity investments.
Company invests primarily in first lien senior semliloans (including "unitranche" loans, which kx@ns that combine both senior and
mezzanine debt, generally in a first lien positj@®cond lien senior secured loans and mezzanbtewleich in some cases includes an eg
component. To a lesser extent, the Company alsesnaduity investments.

The Company is externally managed by Aragial Management LLC ("Ares Capital Managementther Company's "investment
adviser"), a wholly owned subsidiary of Ares Managat LLC ("Ares Management"), a global alternatagset manager and a Securities and
Exchange Commission ("SEC") registered investmdwisar. Ares Operations LLC ("Ares Operations"toe Company's "administrator"), a
wholly owned subsidiary of Ares Management, prositltee administrative services necessary for thegamyto operate.

2.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying consolidated financiakstents have been prepared on the accrual basezofinting in conformity with Generally
Accepted Accounting Principles or ("GAAP"), andlumte the accounts of the Company and its conselitistibsidiaries. The consolidated
financial statements reflect all adjustments amthssifications that, in the opinion of managemarg,necessary for the fair presentation of
the results of the operations and financial coaditis of and for the periods presented. All sigaift intercompany balances and transactions
have been eliminated.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include funda fime to time deposited with financial institutand short-term, liquid investments in a
money market fund. Cash and cash equivalents atie¢at cost which approximates fair value.
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Concentration of Credit Risl

The Company places its cash and cash dguaigawith financial institutions and, at timesskdeld in money market accounts may
exceed the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporatsuréa limit.

Investments

Investment transactions are recorded ofr#itke date. Realized gains or losses are meabyribe difference between the net proceeds
from the repayment or sale and the amortized asshof the investment without regard to unrealigaiths or losses previously recognized,
and include investments charged off during theqakmet of recoveries. Unrealized gains or lossesapily reflect the change in investment
values, including the reversal of previously reeafdinrealized gains or losses when gains or I@gsealized.

Investments for which market quotationsrawaily available are typically valued at such kefiquotations. In order to validate market
guotations, the Company looks at a number of fadimdetermine if the quotations are representatiair value, including the source and
nature of the quotations. Debt and equity secsrttiat are not publicly traded or whose marketgzrare not readily available
(i.e., substantially all of the Company's investisgare valued at fair value as determined in dad by the Company's board of directors,
based on, among other things, the input of the @myip investment adviser, audit committee and iaeddpnt third-party valuation firms that
have been engaged at the direction of the Comphogisl of directors to assist in the valuationaxfreportfolio investment without a readily
available market quotation at least once duringiéirig 12 month period (with certain de minimisceptions) and under a valuation policy
and a consistently applied valuation process. HBheation process is conducted at the end of eachlfquarter, and a minimum of 50% of
Company's portfolio at fair value is subject toiesw by an independent valuation firm each quatteaddition, the Company's independent
accountants review the Company's valuation proassmrt of their overall integrated audit.

As part of the valuation process, the Comypaay take into account the following types oftdas, if relevant, in determining the fair
value of the Company's investments: the enterpasige of a portfolio company (the entire valuets# portfolio company to a market
participant, including the sum of the values oftdamid equity securities used to capitalize therpnige at a point in time), the nature and
realizable value of any collateral, the portfolangpany's ability to make payments and its earnamgsdiscounted cash flow, the markets in
which the portfolio company does business, a commpainf the portfolio company's securities to aimyilar publicly traded securities,
changes in the interest rate environment and #hditamarkets generally that may affect the pricelich similar investments would trade in
their principal markets and other relevant factévfien an external event such as a purchase traorsgutiblic offering or subsequent equity
sale occurs, the Company considers the pricingatdd by the external event to corroborate itsatain.

Because there is not a readily availableketavalue for most of the investments in its palitf, the Company values substantially all of
its portfolio investments at fair value as detemiin good faith by its board of directors, as déscl herein. Due to the inherent uncertainty
of determining the fair value of investments thatnit have a readily available market value, tirevi@ue of the Company's investments may
fluctuate from period to period. Additionally, tfedr value of the Company's investments may di§ignificantly from the values that would
have been used had a ready market existed forisuestments and may differ materially from the esluhat the Company may ultimately
realize. Further, such investments are generabljestito legal and other restrictions on resaletberwise are less liquid than publicly traded
securities. If the Company was required to liquédafportfolio investment in a forced or liquidatisale, the Company could realize
significantly less than the value at which the Camphas recorded it.
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In addition, changes in the market envirentrand other events that may occur over the fith@minvestments may cause the gains or
losses ultimately realized on these investmenbetdifferent than the unrealized gains or lossisated in the valuations currently assigned.

The Company's board of directors undertakesilti-step valuation process each quarter, ssrideed below:

. The Company's quarterly valuation process begitis @dch portfolio company or investment being atliyi valued by the
investment professionals responsible for the plotfavestment in conjunction with the Company'stfmio management
team.

. Preliminary valuations are reviewed and discdsgigh the Company's investment adviser's managearmehinvestment

professionals, and then valuation recommendationpr@sented to the Company's board of directors.

. The audit committee of the Company's board of tlmscreviews these valuations, as well as the inpthird parties, includin
independent third-party valuation firms, with resjpi® the valuations of a minimum of 50% of the Qxamy's portfolio at fair
value.

. The Company's board of directors discusses tiahgmand ultimately determines the fair value atteinvestment in the

Company's portfolio without a readily available ketrquotation in good faith based on, among othiaigs, the input of the
Company's investment adviser, audit committee ahére applicable, independent third-party valuafions.

See Note 8 for more information on the Canys valuation process.
Interest and Dividend Income Recognition

Interest income is recorded on an accrasishand includes the accretion of discounts arattéation of premiums. Discounts from and
premiums to par value on securities purchasedamei@d/amortized into interest income over tredif the respective security using the
effective yield method. The amortized cost of irtm@nts represents the original cost adjusted ®atitretion of discounts and amortization
of premiums, if any.

Loans are generally placed on non-accta&lis when principal or interest payments are g¢ast30 days or more or when there is
reasonable doubt that principal or interest willdo#lected in full. Accrued and unpaid interesgénerally reversed when a loan is placed on
non-accrual status. Interest payments receivecoraacrual loans may be recognized as income dieap principal depending upon
management's judgment regarding collectability. fdoarual loans are restored to accrual status whendue principal and interest is paid
and, in management's judgment, are likely to remamment. The Company may make exceptions to thiiloan has sufficient collateral
value and is in the process of collection.

Dividend income on preferred equity sedesiis recorded as dividend income on an accruss$lva the extent that such amounts are
payable by the portfolio company and are expedadsktcollected. Dividend income on common equitusiéies is recorded on the record
date for private portfolio companies or on the @xebnd date for publicly traded portfolio compasie

Payment-in-Kind Interest

The Company has loans in its portfolio tt@ttain payment-in-kind ("PI1K") provisions. ThekPihterest, computed at the contractual
rate specified in each loan agreement, is add#tktprincipal balance of the loan and recordecdh&sest income. To maintain the Company's
status as a RIC, this non-cash source of income bbeugaid out to stockholders in the form of divids, even though the Company has not
yet collected the cas
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Capital Structuring Service Fees and Other Incor

The Company's investment adviser seeksaige assistance to its portfolio companies angiorn the Company may receive fees for
capital structuring services. These fees are gyperay available to the Company as a result & @ompany's underlying investments, are
normally paid at the closing of the investments, gegnerally non-recurring and are recognized aswa when earned upon closing of the
investment. The services that the Company's invagtiedviser provides vary by investment, but gdheireclude reviewing existing credit
facilities, arranging bank financing, arranging iggtinancing, structuring financing from multiplenders, structuring financing from multi
equity investors, restructuring existing loanssiraj equity and debt capital, and providing gentnaincial advice, which concludes upon
closing of the investment. Any services of the abpature subsequent to the closing would genegalterate a separate fee payable to the
Company. In certain instances where the Compamyited to participate as a co-lender in a trarisacind does not provide significant
services in connection with the investment, a partf loan fees paid to the Company in such sinativill be deferred and amortized over
the estimated life of the loan. The Company's imesit adviser may also take a seat on the boaddexftors of a portfolio company, or
observe the meetings of the board of directorsawitliaking a formal seat.

Other income includes fees for managemeditcansulting services, loan guarantees, commisnantendments and other services
rendered by the Company to portfolio companieshSees are recognized as income when earned sethizes are rendered.

Foreign Currency Translation

The Company's books and records are maadan U.S. dollars. Any foreign currency amountsteanslated into U.S. dollars on the
following basis:

(1) Fair value of investment securities, otheetsand liabilities—at the exchange rates prevag#inthe end of the period.

(2) Purchases and sales of investment secuiitiegsme and expenses—at the exchange rates prevailithe respective dates of
such transactions, income or expenses.

Results of operations based on changewxé@igih exchange rates are separately disclosér istatement of operations, if any. Foreign
security and currency translations may involveaiartonsiderations and risks not typically assedatith investing in U.S. companies and
U.S. government securities. These risks includeakainot limited to, currency fluctuations andalenations and future adverse political,
social and economic developments, which could cansstments in foreign markets to be less liquid prices more volatile than those of
comparable U.S. companies or U.S. government sexsuri

Equity Offering Expenses
The Company's offering costs, excludingamditers' fees, are charged against the proceedsdquity offerings when received.
Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs are amortized ovelifthef the related debt instrument using the giialine method, which closely approximates
the effective yield method.

U.S. Federal Income Taxes

The Company has elected to be treatedRi€ ainder the Code and operates in a manner soqgtify for the tax treatment applicable
to RICs. To qualify as a RIC, the Company must, iagno
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other things, timely distribute to its stockholdatdeast 90% of its investment company taxablerime, as defined by the Code, for each year.
The Company, among other things, has made anddisitencontinue to make the requisite distributitmigs stockholders, which will
generally relieve the Company from U.S. federabine taxes.

Depending on the level of taxable incommed in a tax year, the Company may choose to darward taxable income in excess of
current year dividend distributions from such inemto the next tax year and pay a 4% excise tasuch income, as required. To the extent
that the Company determines that its estimatednugrear annual taxable income will be in excessstimated current year dividend
distributions, the Company accrues excise taxpyf an estimated excess taxable income as suchléaixecome is earned.

Certain of the Company's consolidated slidses are also subject to U.S. federal and statame taxes.
Dividends to Common Stockholders

Dividends and distributions to common stazlklers are recorded on the ex-dividend date. Tmuat to be paid out as a dividend is
determined by the Company's board of directors gaelnter and is generally based upon the earnstgeated by management. Net realized
capital gains, if any, are generally distributedth@gh the Company may decide to retain such abg#ins for investment.

The Company has adopted a dividend reimest plan that provides for reinvestment of anyrittistions the Company declares in cash
on behalf of its stockholders, unless a stockhaddierts to receive cash. As a result, if the Comisdvoard of directors authorizes, and the
Company declares, a cash dividend, then the Congatockholders who have not "opted out" of the Gany's dividend reinvestment plan
will have their cash dividends automatically reistezl in additional shares of the Company's comrntawk srather than receiving the cash
dividend. The Company intends to use primarily neissued shares to implement the dividend reinvestplan (so long as the Company is
trading at a premium to net asset value). If then@any's shares are trading at a significant endisgtount to net asset value and the
Company is otherwise permitted under applicabletapurchase such shares, the Company intends¢bgse shares in the open market in
connection with the Company's obligations underdivelend reinvestment plan. However, the Compasgrves the right to issue new sh
of the Company's common stock in connection with@ompany's obligations under the dividend reimaest plan even if the Company's
shares are trading below net asset value.

Use of Estimates in the Preparation of Financialé&@éements

The preparation of financial statementsdnformity with GAAP requires management to makéresges and assumptions that affect the
reported amounts of actual and contingent asselttiahilities at the date of the financial statetsesind the reported amounts of income or
loss and expenses during the reporting period.adctsults could differ from those estimates. Sigant estimates include the valuation of
investments.

3. AGREEMENTS
Investment Advisory and Management Agreement

The Company is party to an investment amyiand management agreement (the "investment@ghdsd management agreement")
with Ares Capital Management. Subject to the ovexgbervision of the Company's board of directérgs Capital Management provides
investment advisory and management services t€dimepany. For providing these services, Ares Caplahagement receives a fee from
Company consisting of two components—a base managieiee and an incentive fee.
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The base management fee is calculated anamal rate of 1.5% based on the average valtred@ompany's total assets (other than
or cash equivalents but including assets purchastbcborrowed funds) at the end of the two mosergly completed calendar quarters. The
base management fee is payable quarterly in arrears

The incentive fee has two parts. The fiest is calculated and payable quarterly in arrbasgd on the Company's pre-incentive fee net
investment income for the quarter. Pre-incentiverfet investment income means interest incomedelid income and any other income
(including any other fees such as commitment, p&on, structuring, diligence and consulting feesther fees that the Company receives
from portfolio companies but excluding fees foryiding managerial assistance) accrued during thendar quarter, minus operating
expenses for the quarter (including the base manegefee, any expenses payable under the admtiost@greement, and any interest
expense and dividends paid on any outstanding ppeeffstock, but excluding the incentive fee). Preentive fee net investment income
includes, in the case of investments with a defeimeerest feature such as market discount, dehtiments with PIK interest, preferred stock
with PIK dividends and zero coupon securities, aedrincome that the Company has not yet receivedsh. The Company's investment
adviser is not under any obligation to reimburse@ompany for any part of the incentive fees ieneed that was based on accrued interest
that the Company never actually received.

Preincentive fee net investment income does not irelagly realized capital gains, realized capitaldesanrealized capital appreciati
unrealized capital depreciation or income tax espaelated to realized gains. Because of the smeicif the incentive fee, it is possible that
the Company may pay an incentive fee in a quartaraithe Company incurs a loss. For example, iCthimpany receives pre-incentive fee
net investment income in excess of the hurdle (egalefined below) for a quarter, the Company paly the applicable incentive fee even if
the Company has incurred a loss in that quartetalvealized and/or unrealized capital losses.

Pre-incentive fee net investment incomeressed as a rate of return on the value of thep@ay’s net assets (defined as total assets les
indebtedness and before taking into account argniinge fees payable during the period) at the dnideoimmediately preceding calendar
quarter, is compared to a fixed "hurdle rate" @b% per quarter. If market credit spreads rise dbmpany may be able to invest its funds in
debt instruments that provide for a higher retuwrhich may increase the Company's pre-incentivengénvestment income and make it
easier for the Company's investment adviser toassrfhe fixed hurdle rate and receive an incefdigdased on such net investment income.
To the extent the Company has retained pre-inceiiéig net investment income that has been usealdolate this part of the incentive fee, it
is also included in the amount of the Companyal @assets (other than cash and cash equivalentsdhuding assets purchased with borro
funds) used to calculate the 1.5% base management f

The Company pays its investment advisaneentive fee with respect to the Company's prefitige fee net investment income in each
calendar quarter as follows:

. no incentive fee in any calendar quarter in whidlh @ompany's pre-incentive fee net investment irecdoes not exceed the
hurdle rate;
. 100% of the Company's pre-incentive fee netstwment income with respect to that portion of spitincentive fee net

investment income, if any, that exceeds the huwtke but is less than 2.1875% in any calendar guarhe Company refers to
this portion of its pre-incentive fee net investmiemecome (which exceeds the hurdle rate but istlegs 2.1875%) as the
"catch-up" provision. The "catch-up" is meant toypde the Company's investment adviser with 20%hefpre-incentive fee
net investment income as if a hurdle rate did ppi\aif this net investment income exceeded 2.18T%%ny calendar quarter;
and
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. 20% of the amount of the Company's pre-incentieerfet investment income, if any, that exceeds Z%8in any calendar
quarter.

These calculations are adjusted for anyesisauances or repurchases during the quarter.

The second part of the incentive fee (thagital Gains Fee"), is determined and payablergass as of the end of each calendar yea
upon termination of the investment advisory and agament agreement, as of the termination datejsacalculated at the end of each
applicable year by subtracting (a) the sum of tben@any's cumulative aggregate realized capitatlbasd aggregate unrealized capital
depreciation from (b) the Company's cumulative aggte realized capital gains, in each case caétlfedom October 8, 2004 (the date the
Company completed its initial public offering). Riead capital gains and losses include gains asske® on investments and foreign
currencies, as well as gains and losses on exshqént of debt and other assets. If such amouynusisive at the end of such year, then the
Capital Gains Fee for such year is equal to 20%u0h amount, less the aggregate amount of Capgials@ees paid in all prior years. If such
amount is negative, then there is no Capital Gaeesfor such year.

The cumulative aggregate realized capaaigare calculated as the sum of the differentpsesitive, between (a) the net sales price of
each investment in the Company's portfolio whed soild (b) the accreted or amortized cost basis@f ;ivestment.

The cumulative aggregate realized capitsdés are calculated as the sum of the amountsioh a) the net sales price of each
investment in the Company's portfolio when solttss than (b) the accreted or amortized cost lodsigch investment.

The aggregate unrealized capital depreciasi calculated as the sum of the differencasedfative, between (a) the valuation of each
investment in the Company's portfolio as of theliapple Capital Gains Fee calculation date andh(®)accreted or amortized cost basis of
such investment.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, as a restitn amendment to the capital gains portion ofitleentive fee under the investment advisory
and management agreement that was adopted on JR8&16 if the Company is required by GAAP to recan investment at its fair value as
of the time of acquisition instead of at the actrabunt paid for such investment by the Comparglyding, for example, as a result of the
application of the acquisition method of accoun)jrigen solely for the purposes of calculating @@ital Gains Fee, the "accreted or
amortized cost basis" of an investment shall baraaunt (the "Contractual Cost Basis") equal to(X)1the actual amount paid by the
Company for such investment plus (y) any amourdsroed in the Company's financial statements asinejby GAAP that are attributable
to the accretion of such investment plus (z) afmgoadjustments made to the cost basis includ#tkiCompany's financial statements,
including PIK interest or additional amounts fundedt of repayments) minus (2) any amounts reconm¢ite Company's financial stateme
as required by GAAP that are attributable to therixation of such investment, whether such catedl&Contractual Cost Basis is higher or
lower than the fair value of such investment (asmeined in accordance with GAAP) at the time afasition.

The Company defers cash payment of anynihaefee otherwise earned by the Company's investradviser if during the most recent
four full calendar quarter period ending on or ptimthe date such payment is to be made the su@aj tfie aggregate distributions to the
Company's stockholders and (b) the change in set@agdefined as total assets less indebtednedseforé taking into account any incentive
fees payable during the period) is less than 7.0#6eoCompany's net assets (defined as total desstindebtedness) at the beginning of ¢
period. Any deferred incentive fees are carried doepayment in subsequent calculation periodhiéoextent such payment is payable under
the investment advisory and management agreement.

The Capital Gains Fee payable to the Coryipamvestment adviser as calculated under thestnvent advisory and management
agreement (as described above) for the year endedriiber 31,
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2012 was $11,523. For the years ended Decemb@031,and 2010, there were no Capital Gains Feesbfgynder the investment advisory
and management agreement. However, in accordanic€dMAP, the Company has cumulatively accrued aabgains incentive fee of
$80,820 as of December 31, 2012. GAAP requiresttigatapital gains incentive fee accrual considercumulative aggregate unrealized
capital appreciation in the calculation, as a egjains incentive fee would be payable if suctealized capital appreciation were realized,
even though such unrealized capital appreciatioigpermitted to be considered in calculatingféeeactually payable under the investment
advisory and management agreement. This GAAP ddsraalculated using the aggregate cumulativazedlcapital gains and losses and
aggregate cumulative unrealized capital depreciatioluded in the calculation of the capital gaies plus the aggregate cumulative
unrealized capital appreciation. If such amoumtasitive at the end of a period, then GAAP requihesCompany to record a capital gains
equal to 20% of such cumulative amount, less tlyeegmte amount of actual capital gains fees pa@pital gains incentive fees accrued
under GAAP in all prior periods. The resulting a@rfor any capital gains incentive fee under GAAR given period may result in an
additional expense if such cumulative amount isgnethan in the prior period or a reversal of pasly recorded expense if such cumula
amount is less than in the prior period. If suchmalative amount is negative, then there is no adcithere can be no assurance that such
unrealized capital appreciation will be realizedha future.

For the year ended December 31, 2012, masagement fees were $86,228, incentive fees delatere-incentive fee net investment
income were $95,182 and incentive fees relatedypital gains accrued in accordance with GAAP w&® 863. As of December 31, 2012,
$131,585 was included in "management and inceftiee payable" in the accompanying consolidatedhioelaheet, of which $62,288 is
currently payable to the Company's investment advisder the investment advisory and managemeaéeamgnt.

For the year ended December 31, 2011, masagement fees were $71,603, incentive fees delatere-incentive fee net investment
income were $79,029 and incentive fees relatedypital gains accrual in accordance with GAAP wed®,3$48. For the year ended
December 31, 2010, base management fees were 85in66ntive fees related to pre-incentive feeimatstment income were $61,286 and
incentive fees related to capital gains accruegttordance with GAAP were $15,609.

Administration Agreement

The Company is party to an administratigreament, referred to herein as the "administraagmeement”, with its administrator, Ares
Operations. Pursuant to the administration agregmeas Operations furnishes the Company with eféiquipment and clerical, bookkeef
and record keeping services at the Company's dficiéities. Under the administration agreemengf0perations also performs, or oversees
the performance of, the Company's required admatige services, which include, among other thipgeyiding assistance in accounting,
legal, compliance, operations, technology, andstorerelations, being responsible for the finangalrds that the Company is required to
maintain and preparing reports to its stockhol@e reports filed with the SEC. In addition, Argge@ations assists the Company in
determining and publishing its net asset valugsesthe Company in providing managerial assistandes portfolio companies, oversees the
preparation and filing of the Company's tax retuand the printing and dissemination of reportddsiockholders, and generally oversees the
payment of its expenses and the performance ofrasimztive and professional services renderedaddmpany by others. Payments under
the Company's administration agreement are equal imount based upon its allocable portion of Apserations' overhead and other
expenses (including travel expenses) incurred s A¥perations in performing its obligations undher administration agreement, including
the Company's allocable portion of the compensaifarertain of its officers (including the Companghief compliance officer, chief
financial officer, general counsel, treasurer asglsant treasurer) and their respective staffe.administration
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agreement may be terminated by either party witpeuglty upon 60 days' written notice to the othaaty.

For the years ended December 31, 2012, 26d2010, the Company incurred $9,322, $9,563540¢D79, respectively, in
administrative fees. As of December 31, 2012, $2 & lthese fees were unpaid and included in "adsopeyable and other liabilities" in the
accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

4. INVESTMENTS
As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Cayipanvestments consisted of the following:

As of December 31

2012 2011
Amortized Cost(1) Fair Value Amortized Cost(1) Fair Value

Senior term dek $ 3,587,770 $ 3,555,14. $ 2,691,010 $ 2,671,111
Subordinated Certificates of tl

SSLP(2) 1,237,88 1,263,64. 1,034,25. 1,059,17:
Senior subordinated de 321,33 259,82( 592,61¢ 515,01«
Collateralized loan obligatior — — 55,51¢ 54,00(
Preferred equity securitit 238,83° 250,11¢ 251,19: 251,06
Other equity securitie 430,38 584,00! 463,86: 527,00:
Commercial real esta 7,24¢ 11,82« 20,20¢ 17,13«

Total $ 5,823,45. $ 5,92455' $ 5,108,66. $ 5,094,501

(1) The amortized cost represents the original costsaelfl for the accretion of discounts and amortmadif premiums, if
any.

(2)  The proceeds from these certificates were appieiinvestments with GE Global Sponsor Finance lan@ General

Electric Capital Corporation to fund first lien $ensecured loans to 36 and 32 different borrovasref December 31,
2012 and 2011, respective
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The industrial and geographic compositiohthe Company's portfolio at fair value at Decenttik, 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

As of December 31

2012 2011

Industry
Investment Funds and Vehicles 21.1% 23.%
Healthcare Service 12.¢€ 13.4
Education 7.8 11.2
Financial Service 7.3 6.4
Restaurants and Food Servi 7.1 6.8
Other Service: 6.7 2.5
Consumer Produc 6.6 5.4
Business Service 6.4 6.€
Containers and Packagi 5.1 4.t
Energy 3.7 1.2
Automotive Service 34 1.1
Manufacturing 2.4 2.8
Aerospace and Defen 2.C 3.6
Telecommunication 1.6 2.C
Oil and Gas 1.C 0.7
Other 4.3 8.1

Total 100.(% 100.(%

Q) Includes the Company's investment in the SSLP, lwhad made first lien senior secured loans to 83632n
different borrowers as of December 31, 2012 and 2fspectively. The portfolio companies in the BSire in
industries similar to the companies in the Compapgttfolio.

As of December 31

2012 2011

Geographic Region
West 49.1% 48.4%
Midwest 19.2 14.
Southeas 14.5 21.2
Mid Atlantic 12.€ 12.€
Northeas 2.3 1.7
Internationa 1.9 14

Total 100.(% 100.(%

As of December 31, 2012, 2.3% of total stweents at amortized cost (or 0.6% of total invesits at fair value) were on non-accrual
status. As of December 31, 2011, 3.3% of totalstments at amortized cost (or 0.9% of total investrs at fair value) were on non-accrual
status.

Senior Secured Loan Program

The Company cimwvests in first lien senior secured loans of midisiarket companies with GE Global Sponsor Finange and Genere
Electric Capital Corporation (together, "GE") thgiuan unconsolidated Delaware limited liability quany, the Senior Secured Loan
Fund LLC (d/b/a the "Senior Secured Loan Prograsn'the "SSLP". The SSLP is capitalized as transastare completed
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and all portfolio decisions and generally all ottecisions in respect of the SSLP must be apprbyeh investment committee of the SSLP
consisting of representatives of the Company andv@th approval from a representative of each refl)i The Company provides capital to
the SSLP in the form of subordinated certificatbe (SSLP Certificates").

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the S&idPavailable capital of $9.0 billion and $7.7ibill, respectively, of which approximately
$6.3 billion and $5.0 billion in aggregate prindipanount was funded at December 31, 2012 and 28%fectively. As of December 31, 2
and 2011, the Company had agreed to make avatlabhe SSLP approximately $1.8 billion and $1.%duil, respectively, of which
approximately $1.2 billion and $1.0 billion was &led, respectively. Investment of any unfunded arhmust still be approved by the
investment committee of the SSLP as described above

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the S&idPtotal assets of $6.3 billion and $5.1 billimspectively. As of December 31, 2012 and
2011, GE's investment in the SSLP consisted obsemtes of $4.8 billion and $3.8 billion, respeety, and SSLP Certificates of
$178 million and $149 million, respectively. Thel¥SCertificates are junior in right of payment ke tsenior notes held by GE. The
Company owned 87.5% of the outstanding SSLP Ceat#és as of December 31, 2012 and 2011 and GE ailvaeedmainder. The SSLP's
portfolio consisted of first lien senior securedns to 36 and 32 different borrowers as of DecerBbeP012 and 2011, respectively. As of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, the portfolio was caagrof all first lien senior secured loans to Urfiddle-market companies and none of
these loans was on non-accrual status. As of DeeeBih 2012 and 2011, the largest loan to a singleower in the SSLP's portfolio in
aggregate principal amount was $330.0 million aB@0$0 million, respectively, and the five largesns to borrowers in the SSLP each
totaled $1.4 billion. The portfolio companies iet8SLP are in industries similar to the compamiahe Company's portfolio.

The amortized cost and fair value of th& B&ertificates held by the Company was $1.2 billkmd $1.3 billion, respectively, as of
December 31, 2012, and $1.0 billion and $1.1 Willieespectively, as of December 31, 2011. The SS¢ffificates pay a weighted average
coupon of approximately LIBOR plus 8.0% and alsttierthe holders thereof to receive a portiontaf excess cash flow from the loan
portfolio, which may result in a return to the hedsl of the SSLP Certificates that is greater thancbntractual coupon. The Company's yield
on its investment in the SSLP at fair value wagl%band 15.7% as of December 31, 2012 and 201lecteply. For the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 the Company eartedst income of $184.7 million, $118.4 milliand $50.0 million, respectively,
from its investment in the SSLP Certificates. Th@pany is also entitled to certain fees in conoactvith the SSLP.

Effective March 30, 2012, Ares Capital Mgement assumed from the Company the role of co-geara the SSLP. However, this
change did not impact the Company's economicssipe of its participation in the SSLP and Aresi@hpManagement does not receive any
remuneration in respect of its co-manager role.

5. DEBT

In accordance with the Investment Companly #ith certain limited exceptions, the Compangiidy allowed to borrow amounts such
that its asset coverage, as calculated in accoedaitb the Investment Company Act, is at least 2@08ér such borrowing. As of
December 31, 2012 the Company's asset coverag2g8fas.
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The Company's outstanding debt obligatemsf December 31, 2012 and 2011 were as follows:

As of December 31

2012 2011
Total Total
Aggregate Aggregate
Principal Principal
Amount Principal Amount Principal
Committed/ Amount Carrying Committed/ Amount Carrying
(in millions) Outstanding(1) Outstanding Value Outstanding(l)  Outstanding Value
Revolving
Credit
Facility =~ $  900,00(2)$ — 3 — $ 810,000 $ 395,000 $ 395,00(
Revolving
Funding
Facility 620,00¢(3)  300,00( 300,00t 500,00( 463,00( 463,00(
SMBC
Funding
Facility 400,00( — — — — —
Debt
Securitizat — — — 77,53: 77,53: 77,53:
February
2016
Convertibl
Notes 575,00( 575,00( 548,52:(4) 575,00( 575,00( 541,15(4)
June 2016
Convertibli
Notes 230,00( 230,00( 218,76.(4) 230,00( 230,00¢ 215,93:(4)
2017
Convertibl
Notes 162,50( 162,50  158,31i(4) — — —
2018
Convertibli
Notes 270,00( 270,00( 262,824) — — —
February
2022 Note 143,75( 143,75( 143,75l — — —
October 202
Notes 182,501 182,50( 182,50( — — —
2040 Notes 200,00( 200,00 200,00t 200,00( 200,00t 200,00
2047 Notes 230,00( 230,00( 181,19¢5) 230,00( 230,00t 180,98((5)
Total $ 3,913,750 $2,293,75( $2,19587. $ 2,622,53 $2,170,53 $2,073,60:

(1)

(2)

3)

(4)

()

Subject to borrowing base and leverage reitns. Represents the total aggregate amount cdethot outstanding, as
applicable, under such instrument.

Provides for a feature that allows the Companygumeértain circumstances, to increase the sizeeoRevolving Credit
Facility to a maximum of $1,350,000 as of Decenier2012.

Provides for a feature that allows the Company/md Capital CP, under certain circumstances,dcease the size of
the Revolving Funding Facility to a maximum of $88® as of December 31, 2012.

Represents the aggregate principal amountamdisg of the Convertible Unsecured Notes (asneefbelow) less the
unaccreted discount initially recorded upon isseamicthe Convertible Unsecured Notes. The totatareded discount
for the February 2016 Convertible Notes, the Juits2Zonvertible Notes, the 2017 Convertible Notes the 2018
Convertible Notes was $26,479, $11,239, $4,188%nti71 respectively, as of December 31, 2012. dta tinaccreted
discount for the February 2016 Convertible Notes hie June 2016 Convertible Notes was $33,848 and69,
respectively, at December 31, 2011.

Represents the aggregate principal amount outstghels the unaccreted purchased discount. THeuttdacreted
purchased discount on the 2047 Notes was $48,80$4%012 as of December 31, 2012 and 2011, regelc!

The weighted average stated interest radengighted average maturity, both on aggregatejpal amount, of all the Company's
outstanding debt as of December 31, 2012 were ard®.8 years, respectively, and as of Decembe2(®l], were 4.8% and 9.3 years,

respectively.

Revolving Credit Facility



In December 2005, the Company entereddrgenior secured revolving credit facility (as adezhand restated, the "Revolving Credit
Facility"), which as of December 31, 2012, allovikd Company to borrow up to $900,000 at any one butstanding. In May 2012, the
Company amended and restated the Revolving Cradilify to, among other things, increase the sizéhe facility from $810,000 to
$900,000, extend the expiration of the revolvinggekfrom January 22, 2013 to May 4,
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2015 and extend the stated maturity date from Jsr2y 2013 to May 4, 2016. The Revolving Creditifty also includes a feature that
allows, under certain circumstances, for an in@eashe size of the facility to a maximum of $103#0. The Revolving Credit Facility
generally requires payments of interest at theadredich LIBOR interest period, but no less freglyetiitan quarterly, on LIBOR based loans,
and monthly payments of interest on other loansimFthe end of the revolving period to the statetunity date, the Company is required to
repay outstanding principal amounts under the ReéwgICredit Facility on a monthly basis in an ambequal to 1/12" of the outstanding
principal amount at the end of the revolving period

Under the Revolving Credit Facility, ther@gany is required to comply with various covenargpprting requirements and other
customary requirements for similar revolving crddiilities, including, without limitation, coventarelated to: (a) limitations on the
incurrence of additional indebtedness and liengljrtiitations on certain investments, (c) limitatgoon certain restricted payments,

(d) maintaining a certain minimum stockholders'iBgie) maintaining a ratio of total assets (lessl liabilities other than indebtedness) to
total indebtedness of the Company and its condelilsubsidiaries of not less than 2.0:1.0, (f) &tidons on pledging certain unencumbered
assets, and (g) limitations on the creation orterise of agreements that prohibit liens on cepadperties of the Company and certain of its
subsidiaries. These covenants are subject to irupitnitations and exceptions that are describetié documents governing the Revolving
Credit Facility. Borrowings under the Revolving @itd-acility (and the incurrence of certain othermitted debt) are also subject to
compliance with a borrowing base that applies diffé advance rates to different types of assetseiiCompany's portfolio that are pledgec
collateral. As of December 31, 2012, the Company iwaompliance in all material respects with therts of the Revolving Credit Facility.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, there®@aand $395,000 outstanding, respectively, urtdeRevolving Credit Facility. The
Revolving Credit Facility also provides for a suimit for the issuance of letters of credit for upan aggregate amount of $125,000. As of
December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Company had $43y66%47,249, respectively, in standby lettergeflit issued through the Revolving
Credit Facility. The amount available for borrowingder the Revolving Credit Facility is reducedany standby letters of credit issued. As
of December 31, 2012, there was $856,333 avaifableorrowing (net of standby letters of credituisd) under the Revolving Credit Facility.

After May 4, 2012, subject to certain exaaps, the interest rate charged on the Revolvireg{€ Facility is based on LIBOR plus an
applicable spread of 2.25% or a "base rate" (dsekdin the agreements governing the Revolving iCFetility) plus an applicable spread of
1.25%. From January 22, 2010 through May 4, 20i&jrtterest rate charged on the Revolving CreditliBawas based on LIBOR plus an
applicable spread of between 2.50% and 4.00% ar'trase rate" plus an applicable spread of betdes6 and 3.00%, in each case, based
on a pricing grid depending upon the Company'sitratings. Prior to an amendment and restatentetiiteoRevolving Credit Facility on
January 22, 2010, the interest rate charged oR¢velving Credit Facility was based on LIBOR plusapplicable spread of 1.00% or a "b
rate". As of December 31, 2012, the one, two, tlaresix month LIBOR was 0.21%, 0.25%, 0.31% aBd %, respectively. As of
December 31, 2011, the one, two, three and six ImoiBOR was 0.30%, 0.43%, 0.58% and 0.81%, respelgti In addition to the stated
interest expense on the Revolving Credit Faciéffer May 4, 2012, the Company is required to pagramitment fee of 0.375% per annum
on any unused portion of the Revolving Credit Fgcdnd a letter of credit fee of 2.50% per annumiaiters of credit issued, both of which
are payable quarterly. Prior to May 4, 2012, theeatment fee was 0.50%, and the letter of creditvias 3.25%.

The Revolving Credit Facility is securedd®rtain assets in the Company's portfolio andugbed investments held by Ares Capital CP
under the Revolving Funding Facility and those HBIdACJIB under the SMBC Funding Facility and ptimthe termination of the Debt
Securitization, those
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previously held as part of the Debt Securitizatiech as discussed below, and certain other inestsn

The components of interest and credit ifgdiées expense, cash paid for interest expensgage interest rates (i.e., rate in effect ple
spread) and average outstanding balances for theh\Reg Credit Facility were as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Stated interest expen $ 352 $ 5541 $ 10,37(
Facility fees 4,26( 3,86¢ 3,15¢
Amortization of debt issuance co: 4,207 6,51( 6,63
Total interest and credit facility fees

expense $ 11,99C $ 15,91f $ 20,168
Cash paid for interest exper $ 4,128 $ 5,27¢ $ 10,30:
Average stated interest re 2.82% 3.4(% 4.25%
Average outstanding balan $ 124,85¢ $ 163,21t $ 244,25:

Revolving Funding Facility

In October 2004, the Company establishealigh its consolidated subsidiary, Ares CapitalFoiRding LLC ("Ares Capital CP"), a
revolving funding facility (as amended, the "Revnty Funding Facility"), which as of December 31120allowed Ares Capital CP to borr
up to $620,000 at any one time outstanding. TheoRewg Funding Facility is secured by all of thesets held by, and the membership inte
in, Ares Capital CP. In June 2012, the Company/Aued Capital CP amended the Revolving Funding Fat¢d, among other things,

(i) increase the size of the Revolving Funding FRgdrom $500,000 to $580,000, (ii) add a feattlrat allows, under certain circumstances,
for an increase in the size of the facility to aximeum of $865,000, (iii) extend the reinvestmentipe from January 18, 2015 to April 18,
2015, and (iv) extend the stated maturity date fdamuary 18, 2017 to April 18, 2017. In July 20th2, Company and Ares Capital CP
received an increase in the commitments under éwIRing Funding Facility of $40,000, bringing ttegal commitments to $620,000.

Amounts available to borrow under the Rewg Funding Facility are subject to a borrowingéahat applies different advance rates to
different types of assets held by Ares Capital &fes Capital CP is also subject to limitations wiéspect to the loans securing the Revolving
Funding Facility, including restrictions on sectmncentrations, loan size, payment frequency aatdstcollateral interests, loans with fixed
rates and loans with certain investment ratingsyelkas restrictions on portfolio company leveraghich may also affect the borrowing bi
and therefore amounts available to borrow. The Gom@and Ares Capital CP are also required to comyily various covenants, reporting
requirements and other customary requirementsfulas facilities. These covenants are subjecttpartant limitations and exceptions that
are described in the agreements governing the RiegoFunding Facility. As of December 31, 2012, @empany and Ares Capital CP were
in compliance in all material respects with thereof the Revolving Funding Facility.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, there$888€,000 and $463,000 outstanding, respectivaelgeuthe Revolving Funding Facility.
After a January 18, 2012 amendment to the Revolkingding Facility, and as of December 31, 2012 jrterest rate charged on the
Revolving Funding Facility was based on LIBOR pdunsapplicable spread of 2.50% or on a "base rateti¢fined in the agreements
governing the Revolving Funding Facility) plus qpkcable spread of 1.50%. See Note 19 for subsequents relating to the Revolving
Funding Facility. From January 22, 2010 throughuday 18, 2012, the interest rate charged on th@Ri&g Funding Facility was based on
LIBOR plus an applicable spread of between 2.25#3ai5% or on a "base rate" plus an applicableaspoé
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between 1.25% to 2.75%, in each case, based dnilagpgrid depending upon the Company's credihgti Prior to an amendment of the
Revolving Funding Facility on January 22, 2010, itlterest rate charged on the Revolving FundingdliBawas based on the commercial
paper rate plus 3.50%. As of December 31, 201228144, the interest rate in effect was based omumeth LIBOR, which was 0.21% and
0.30%, respectively. Ares Capital CP is also regfuto pay a commitment fee of between 0.50% arsP4.depending on the size of the
unused portion of the Revolving Funding Facility.

The components of interest and credit itgdiées expense, cash paid for interest expenseage stated interest rates (i.e., rate in effect
plus the spread) and average outstanding balaoc#sef Revolving Funding Facility were as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Stated interest expen $ 10557 $ 7,38C $ 7,45¢

Facility fees 1,20¢ 2,22¢ 1,45:%

Amortization of debt issuance co: 1,772 2,22¢ 1,78
Total interest and credit facility fees

expense $ 13,53t $ 11,837 $ 10,69¢

Cash paid for interest exper $ 1197¢ $ 6,281 $ 7,22«

Average stated interest re 2.8(% 3.05% 3.01%
Average outstanding balan 377,09¢ $ 243,63¢ $ 247,49

&+

SMBC Funding Facility

In January 2012, the Company establishemligh its consolidated subsidiary, Ares CapitaFifading LLC ("ACJB"), a revolving
funding facility (as amended, the "SMBC Fundingifigt) with ACJB, as the borrower, Sumitomo MitsBanking Corporation ("SMBC"),
as the administrative agent, collateral agent,leander, which as of December 31, 2012 allowed A@JBorrow up to $400,000 at any one
time outstanding. In September 2012, the Compady?82UB amended the SMBC Funding Facility to, amotiger things, (i) increase the
size of the SMBC Funding Facility from $200,0006#00,000, (ii) extend the reinvestment period fizanuary 20, 2015 to September 14,
2015 and (iii) extend the stated maturity date fianuary 20, 2020 to September 14, 2020. The reiment period and the stated maturity
date are both subject to two one-year extensiomaliyal agreement.

Amounts available to borrow under the SMB@ding Facility are subject to a borrowing bas# Hpplies an advance rate to assets helc
by ACJB. The Company and ACJB are also requiresbtoply with various covenants, reporting requiretaemd other customary
requirements for similar facilities. These covesaare subject to important limitations and exceystithat are described in the documents
governing the SMBC Funding Facility. As of DecemBgr 2012, the Company and ACJB were in compliamed material respects with the
terms of the SMBC Funding Facility.

As of December 31, 2012, there were no amsooutstanding under the SMBC Funding FacilitybjSct to certain exceptions, the
interest rate charged on the SMBC Funding Fadgityased on one month LIBOR plus an applicableaghod 2.125% or a "base rate" (as
defined in the agreements governing the SMBC FunBarility) plus an applicable spread of 1.125%0fABecember 31, 2012, one-month
LIBOR was 0.21%. Prior to July 20, 2012, there wasommitment fee required to be paid. Beginningulg 20, 2012, ACJB was required
to pay a commitment fee of 0.50% depending oniteed the unused portion of the SMBC Funding FgciAs a result of the September
2012 amendment to the SMBC Funding Facility descriibove, ACJB is not required to pay a commitrfemuntil September 15, 2013, at
which time ACJB will be required to pay a commitrhée of 0.50% depending on the size of the unpsetion of the SMBC Funding
Facility.
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The components of interest and credit ifgdiées expense, cash paid for interest expenseage interest rates (i.e., rate in effect ple
spread) and average outstanding balances for ti@CSIMinding Facility were as follows:

For the Year Ended
December 31,

2012
Stated interest expen $ 1,41¢
Facility fees 3
Amortization of debt issuance co: 62¢
Total interest and credit facility fees expe $ 2,051
Cash paid for interest exper $ 1,40¢
Average stated interest re 2.41%
Average outstanding balan $ 58,98’

Debt Securitization

In July 2006, through ARCC Commercial Ldanst 2006, a vehicle serviced by the Company'sa@iatated subsidiary, ARCC CLO
2006 LLC ("ARCC CLQO"), the Company completed a $000 debt securitization (the "Debt Securitizatjoaid issued approximately
$314,000 aggregate principal amount of asset bao&tss to third parties (the "CLO Notes") that weeeured by a pool of middle market
loans that were purchased or originated by the GompThe Company initially retained approximateB6$00 of aggregate principal amo
of certain "BBB" and non-rated securities in thebD8ecuritization and subsequently repurchased7984f the CLO Notes. In June 2012,
the Company repaid in full the $60,049 aggregaiteciral amount outstanding of the CLO Notes anthieated or discharged the agreem
governing the Debt Securitization.

The classes, amounts and interest ratgsggesed as a spread to LIBOR) of the CLO Notes Becember 31, 2011 were as follows:

LIBOR

Spread
Class Amount (basis points)
A-1A $ 4,89¢ 25
A-1A VFN 12,52( 28
A-1B 14,00( 37
A-2B 13,90¢ 35
B 9,00( 43
C 23,21( 7C

Total $ 77,53

The interest charged under the Debt Sezatiitn was based on three month LIBOR, which a3exfember 31, 2011 was 0.56%. The
blended interest rate charged on the CLO Noteduéixg fees, at December 31, 2011, was approxim#teée month LIBOR plus 45 basis
points. The Company was also required to pay a aoment fee of 0.175% for any unused portion of @ass A-1A VFN Notes through
June 17, 2011, the end of the reinvestment pewbith is included in facility fees below.

In connection with the repayment in fulltbé CLO Notes ahead of their scheduled maturitiesremaining unamortized debt issuance
costs related to the CLO Notes of $2,678 were esgrtiand resulted in a realized loss on the extshguént of debt.

F-62




The components of interest and credit ifgdiées expense, cash paid for interest expenseage interest rates (i.e., rate in effect ple
spread) and average outstanding balances for theS&euritization were as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010
Stated interest expen $ 321 % 897 $§ 1,53«
Facility fees — 25 21
Amortization of debt issuance co: 17¢ 35€ 35¢€

Total interest and credit facility fees

expense $ 50C $ 1,27¢ $ 1,91t
Cash paid for interest exper $ 347 % 902 $ 1,53¢

Average stated interest re 1.01% 0.7(% 0.6&%
Average outstanding balan $ 31,82¢ $ 128,46¢ $ 228,25:

Unsecured Notes
Convertible Unsecured Notes

In January 2011, the Company issued $5050@regate principal amount of unsecured conversiénior notes that mature on
February 1, 2016 (the "February 2016 ConvertibléeN§), unless previously converted or repurchasedcordance with their terms. In
March 2011, the Company issued $230,000 aggregaegal amount of unsecured convertible senioeadhat mature on June 1, 2016 (the
"June 2016 Convertible Notes"), unless previousiyverted or repurchased in accordance with theingeln March 2012, the Company
issued $162,500 aggregate principal amount of umedaconvertible senior notes that mature on Maf;017 (the "2017 Convertible
Notes"), unless previously converted or repurchésedcordance with their terms. In the fourth dgeiaof 2012, the Company issu
$270,000 aggregate principal amount of unsecuredertible senior notes that mature on January @58 Zthe "2018 Convertible Notes" a
together with the 2017 Convertible Notes, Febriz@y6 Convertible Notes and the June 2016 Converhlioites, the "Convertible Unsecured
Notes"), unless previously converted or repurchasedcordance with their terms. The Company da¢$ave the right to redeem t
Convertible Unsecured Notes prior to maturity. Hedruary 2016 Convertible Notes, the June 2016 Exilnle Notes, the 2017 Convertible
Notes and the 2018 Convertible Notes bear intetestrate of 5.75%, 5.125%, 4.875% and 4.75%, otispdy, per year, payable se-
annually.

In certain circumstances, the Convertibtesétured Notes will be convertible into cash, shaféhe Company's common stock or a
combination of cash and shares of its common statcdkie Company's election, at their respectiveversion rates (listed below as of
December 31, 2012) subject to customary anti-ditutidjustments and the requirements of their réisigeindenture (the "Convertible
Unsecured Notes Indentures"). Prior to the clogdausfness on the business day immediately prec¢daigrespective conversion date (listed
below), holders may convert their Convertible Unsed Notes only under certain circumstances s#t forthe Convertible Unsecured Notes
Indentures. On or after their respective converdiates until the close of business on the schedradihg day immediately preceding their
respective maturity date, holders may convert t@einvertible Unsecured Notes at any time. In addjtif the Company engages in certain
corporate events as described in their respeciive/€rtible Unsecured Notes Indenture, holders @fGbnvertible Unsecured Notes may
require the Company to repurchase for cash alhdrqd the Convertible Unsecured Notes at a re@sgelprice equal to 100% of the principal
amount of the Convertible Unsecured Notes to bargased, plus accrued and unpaid interest thrdughexcluding, the required repurch
date.
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Certain key terms related to the convestibhtures for each of the Convertible Unsecuregdare listed below.

February 2016 2018
Convertible June 2016 2017 Convertible
Notes Convertible Notes Convertible Notes Notes
Conversion premiur 17.5% 17.5% 17.5% 17.5%
Closing stock price at issuan $16.2¢ $16.2( $16.4¢ $16.9:
January 1¢ March 22 October &
Closing stock price dat 2011 2011 March 8, 201 2012
Conversion price as of
December 31, 201 $18.8¢ $18.8( $19.2: $19.8:
Conversion rate as of
December 31, 2012 (shares
per one thousand dollar
principal amount 52.928¢ 53.190¢ 52.060t 50.473:
August 15 December 1! September 1 July 15
Conversion date 201t 201t 201¢ 2017

As of December 31, 2012, the principal anmiswf each series of the Convertible Unsecure@®Nekceeded the value of the underlying
shares multiplied by the per share closing prickhefCompany's common stock.

The Convertible Unsecured Notes Indentaoggain certain covenants, including covenantsirgguthe Company to comply with
Section 18(a)(1)(A) as modified by Section 61(ajfljhe Investment Company Act and to provide firiahinformation to the holders of the
Convertible Unsecured Notes under certain circunt&s. These covenants are subject to importartalions and exceptions that are
described in the Convertible Unsecured Notes Indest As of December 31, 2012, the Company wasrimpdance in all material respects
with the terms of the Convertible Unsecured Notetehtures.

The Convertible Unsecured Notes are acealfar in accordance with Accounting Standards fization ("ASC") 470-20. Upon
conversion of any of the Convertible Unsecured Blatiee Company intends to pay the outstanding ipah@amount in cash and to the extent
that the conversion value exceeds the principalusmtyohe Company has the option to pay in caskares of the Company's common stock
(or a combination of cash and shares) in respettteoéxcess amount, subject to the requirementedConvertible Unsecured Notes
Indentures. The Company has determined that theeddd conversion options in the Convertible UnsatiNotes are not required to be
separately accounted for as a derivative under GAM\Rccounting for the Convertible Unsecured Noties Company estimated at the time
of issuance that the values of the debt and egoityponents were approximately 93% and 7%, respygtifor each of the February 2016
Convertible Notes and the June 2016 Convertibled|approximately 97% and 3%, respectively, forab&7 Convertible Notes and
approximately 98% and 2%, respectively, for the®Qbnvertible Notes. The original issue discountaddo the equity components of the
Convertible Unsecured Notes was recorded in "chipitaxcess of par value" in the accompanying cbdated balance sheet. As a result, the
Company records interest expense comprised ofdtated interest expense as well as accretion afripaal issue discount. Additionally,
the issuance costs associated with the Conveltibtecured Notes were allocated to the debt andyecuiinponents in proportion to the
allocation of the proceeds and accounted for asidetance costs and equity issuance costs, resggct

At the time of issuance, the debt issuarosts and equity issuance costs for the Februdr§ @@nvertible Notes were $15,778 and
$1,188, respectively, for the June 2016 Converfilides were $5,913 and $445, respectively, fo2iE7 Convertible Notes were $4,813 i
$149, respectively, and for the 2018 ConvertibleeNavere $5,712 and $116, respectively. At the tfriesuance and as of December 31,
2012, the equity component, net of issuance castsarded in the "capital in excess of par vainghe accompanying consolidated balance
sheet for the February 2016 Convertible NotesJthme 2016 Convertible Notes, the 2017 Convertildeebland the 2018 Convertible Notes
was $39,062, $15,654, $4,724 and $5,243, respéctive
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As of December 31, 2012, the componenth®tarrying value of the Convertible Unsecuredddpthe stated interest rate and the
effective interest rate were as follows:

February 2016 June 201€ 2017 2018
Convertible Notes Convertible Notes Convertible Notes Convertible Notes

Principal amount of det  $ 575,000 $ 230,00 $ 162,500 $ 270,00(
Original issue discount,

net of accretiot (26,479 (12,239 (4,189 (7,177
Carrying value of det  $ 548,52: $ 218,76. $ 158,31 $ 262,82
Stated interest ra 5.7%% 5.125% 4.87% 4.75%
Effective interest rate(] 7.1% 6.4% 5.4% 5.1%

(1) The effective interest rate of the debt congmdrof the Convertible Unsecured Notes is equiidcstated interest rate
plus the accretion of original issue discot

For the years ended December 31, 2012 @bdl, 2he components of interest expense and cégtiqoanterest expense for the
Convertible Unsecured Notes were as follows:

For year ended December 31

2012 2011

Stated interest expen $ 53,877 $ 39,79'
Accretion of original issue discou 11,09¢ 8,43¢
Amortization of debt issuance co: 5,43¢ 3,81:
Total interest expens $ 70,41 $ 52,04«
Cash paid for interest exper $ 48,83: $ 25,03¢

February 2022 Notes

In February 2012, the Company issued $BBaggregate principal amount of senior unsecuodeisrthat mature on February 15, 2022
(the "February 2022 Notes"). The February 2022 Blbtar interest at a rate of 7.00% per year, pay@mrterly and all principal is due upon
maturity. The February 2022 Notes may be redeemadhble or in part at any time or from time to tiatethe Company's option on or after
February 15, 2015, at a par redemption price of(82per security plus accrued and unpaid inteffegal proceeds from the issuance of the
February 2022 Notes, net of underwriting discoamd offering costs, were approximately $138,338.

October 2022 Notes

In September 2012 and October 2012, thepgaomissued $182,500 aggregate principal amousembr unsecured notes that mature on
October 1, 2022 (the "October 2022 Notes"). Theobet 2022 Notes bear interest at a rate of 5.87&2ear, payable quarterly commenc
on January 1, 2013 and all principal is due upotunitg. The October 2022 Notes may be redeemecdhiolevor in part at any time or from
time to time at the Company's option on or aftetoDer 1, 2015, at a par redemption price of $2p&0security plus accrued and unpaid
interest. Total proceeds from the issuance of ttieleer 2022 Notes, net of underwriting discounts aifiering costs, were approximately
$176,054.

2040 Notes

In October 2010, the Company issued $2@a&Yregate principal amount of senior unsecuréekrtbat mature on October 15, 2040
(the "2040 Notes"). The 2040 Notes bear intereatrate of
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7.75% per year, payable quarterly and all principalue upon maturity. The 2040 Notes may be reédémwhole or in part at any time or
from time to time at the Company's option on cefdctober 15, 2015, at a par redemption price26f@ per security plus accrued and
unpaid interest. Total proceeds from the issuahtieeo2040 Notes, net of underwriting discounts affdring costs, were approximately
$193,000.

The components of interest expense andgaishfor interest expense for the February 202&8/dhe October 2022 Notes and the 2040
Notes are as follow:

For the year ended December 3:

2012 2011 2010
Stated interest expen $ 27,54 $ 1550( $ 3,01
Amortization of debt issuance co: 917 242 44
Total interest expens $ 28,46. $ 15,74: $ 3,05¢
Cash paid for interest exper $ 26,25¢ $ 15,24. $ —

Allied Unsecured Notes

As part of the Allied Acquisition, the Coamy assumed all outstanding debt obligations akdlCapital, including Allied Capital's
unsecured notes, which consisted of 6.625% Notesoduuly 15, 2011 (the "2011 Notes"), 6.000% Ndteson April 1, 2012 (the "2012
Notes") and 6.875% Notes due on April 15, 2047 (8317 Notes" and, together with the 2011 Notestard2012 Notes, the "Allie
Unsecured Notes"). In accordance with ASC 80541@ nitial carrying value of the Allied Unsecuredtids was equal to the fair value as of
April 1, 2010 resulting in an initial unaccretegebunt from the principal amount of the Allied Uoseed Notes of approximately $65,800.
Accretion expense related to this discount is idetiiin "interest and credit facility fees" in thecampanying statement of operations.

March 16, 2011 the Company redeemed thaireny balance of the 2011 Notes for a total red@nyprice (including a redemption
premium) of $306,800, in accordance with the teofrthe indenture governing the 2011 Notes, whigtized a loss on the extinguishment of
debt of $8,860. On April 27, 2011, the Company esded the remaining balance of the 2012 Notes fotahredemption price (including a
redemption premium) of $169,338, in accordance itéhterms of the indenture governing the 2012 8lotdich resulted in a realized loss
the extinguishment of debt of $10,458. During tearyended December 31, 2010, the Company purc848e850 principal amount of the
2011 Notes and $34,400 principal amount of the 204®s. As a result of these transactions, the @ompecognized a realized loss on the
extinguishment of debt of $1,961.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the 20diés were outstanding as follows:

As of December 31

2012 2011
Outstanding Carrying Outstanding Carrying
Principal Value(1) Principal Value(1)
2047 Notes $ 230,00 $ 181,19¢ $ 230,00 $ 180,98t

Q) Represents the principal amount of the 2047 N&®s the unaccreted purchased discount initiallgrosd as a
part of the Allied Acquisition

The 2047 Notes bear interest at a rate8f®%6 and mature on April 15, 2047. The 2047 Natesiire payment of interest quarterly, and
all principal is due upon maturity. The 2047 Natesy be redeemed in whole or in part at any timieamn time to time at the Company's
option, at a par
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redemption price of $25.00 per security plus aatrared unpaid interest and upon the occurrencertdingax events as described in the
indenture governing the 2047 Notes.

The components of interest expense andpaishfor interest expense for the Allied Unsecuxades are as follows:

For the Year Ended December 31

2012 2011 2010

Stated interest expen $ 15,817 $ 23,07¢ $ 35,31
Accretion of original issue discou 211 2,62¢ 8,201
Total interest expens $ 16,02 $ 25,70: $ 43,51t
Cash paid for interest exper $ 15,81: $ 34,67¢ $ 34,05¢

The February 2022 Notes, the October 20@@2$\ the 2040 Notes and the 2047 Notes contaiaige&ovenants, including covenants
requiring the Company to comply with Section 18[3)&) as modified by Section 61(a)(1) of the Inveeht Company Act and to provide
financial information to the holders of such nat@sler certain circumstances. These covenants bjecstio important limitations and
exceptions set forth in the indentures governirghswtes. As of December 31, 2012, the Companyimesmpliance in all material respects
with the terms of the indentures governing the Eafyr 2022 Notes, the October 2022 Notes, the 2@t@d\and the 2047 Notes.

The Convertible Unsecured Notes and theetin®d Notes are the Company's senior unsecurigghtibhs and rank senior in right of
payment to its existing and future indebtednessithexpressly subordinated in right of paymerthi® Convertible Unsecured Notes and the
Unsecured Notes; equal in right of payment to tben@any's existing and future unsecured indebtedhasss not expressly subordinated;
effectively junior in right of payment to any o$isecured indebtedness (including existing unsddndebtedness that the Company later
secures) to the extent of the value of the assetsing such indebtedness; and structurally jutmi@ll existing and future indebtedness
(including trade payables) incurred by the Compmaaybsidiaries, financing vehicles or similar fitieit.

6. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS

In October 2008, the Company entered intterest rate swap agreement that terminatedemember 20, 2010 to mitigate the
Company's exposure to adverse fluctuations ineéstaates for a total notional amount of $75,000d&r the interest rate swap agreement, the
Company paid a fixed interest rate of 2.985% acdived a floating rate based on the prevailingghmonth LIBOR. For the year ended
December 31, 2010, the Company recognized $1,74arealized appreciation related to this swap agese. Upon termination of this swap
agreement in 2010, no realized gain or loss wasgrazed.

7. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
The Company has various commitments to fomdstments in its portfolio as described below.
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As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Coypad the following commitments to fund variougaleing and delayed draw senior
secured and subordinated loans, including commitsrterfund which are at (or substantially at) tr@rany's discretion:

As of December 31

2012 2011
Total revolving and delayed draw commitme $ 466,63( $ 565,63(
Less: funded commitmen (107,12)  (125,03)
Total unfunded commitmen 359,50¢ 440,59:
Less: commitments substantially at discretion ef
Company (6,000 (64,75()
Less: unavailable commitments due to borrowin
base or other covenant restrictic (577 (5,519
Total net adjusted unfunded revolving and delayec
draw commitment $ 352,93t $ 370,32!

Included within the total revolving and agbd draw commitments as of December 31, 2012 emrenitments to issue up to $62,250 in
standby letters of credit through a financial imediary on behalf of certain portfolio companiesder these arrangements, if the standby
letters of credit were to be issued, the Companyldvbe required to make payments to third parfifsei portfolio companies were to default
on their related payment obligations. As of Decen@ie 2012, the Company had $41,354 in standbgrketif credit issued and outstanding
under these commitments on behalf of the portfodimpanies, of which no amounts were recorded bty on the Company's balance
sheet as such letters of credit are considerdteinaluation of the investments in the portfoliongany. Of these letters of credit $41,288
expire in 2013 and $66 expire in 2014.

As of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the Coypaas party to subscription agreements to fundtgduwestments in private equity
investment partnerships as follows:

As of December 31

2012 2011
Total private equity commitmen $ 131,04 $ 132,03(
Less: funded private equity commitme (66,537) (67,42%)
Total unfunded private equity commitme| 64,50¢ 64,60:
Less: private equity commitments substantially at
discretion of the Compar (53,089 (53,52Y

Total net adjusted unfunded private equity committa $ 11,427 $ 11,077

In addition, as of each of December 31,28dd 2011, the Company had outstanding guaraatessilar obligations on behalf of
certain portfolio companies totaling $800.

In the ordinary course of business, the @amy may sell certain of its investments to thiagty purchasers. In particular, in connection
with the sale of certain controlled portfolio comgaequity investments (as well as certain othezgahe Company has, and may continue to
do so in the future, agreed to indemnify such pasehs for future liabilities arising from the intreents and the related sale transaction. Such
indemnification provisions may give rise to futdiabilities.

As of December 31, 2012, one of the Com|sapgrtfolio companies, Ciena Capital LLC ("Ciendiad one non-recourse securitization
Small Business Administration ("SBA") loan warehedacility, which has reached its maturity date tamhains outstanding. Ciena is work
with the providers of the SBA loan warehouse facilvith regard to the repayment of that facilitylliéd
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Capital had previously issued a performance gugr@vtiich the Company succeeded to as a resulteoftlied Acquisition) whereby the
Company must indemnify the warehouse providersifiyrdamages, losses, liabilities and related @sisexpenses that they may incur as a
result of Ciena's failure to perform any of itsightions as loan originator, loan seller or loarvieer under the warehouse facility. As of
December 31, 2012, there are no known issues innshaith respect to this performance guaranty.

Lease Commitments

The Company is obligated under a numbempefating leases and a sublease for office spaitesesms ranging from less than one year
to more than 15 years. Rent expense for the yealesdeDecember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 was $3,358&and $5,167, respectively.

The following table shows future minimunyp@ents under the Company's operating leases ahebsels:

For the year ending December 31 Amount
2013 $ 7,101
2014 6,60:
2015 5,19¢
2016 5,38(
2017 5,52¢
Thereaftel 43,17
Total $ 72,98

For certain of its operating leases, thenBany has entered into subleases including onésAwds Management and Ivy Hill Asset
Management, L.P. ("IHAM"), a wholly owned portfolcmmpany of the Company. See Note 13 for furthecdption of these subleases.

The following table shows future expectedtal payments to be received under the Companilsases:

For the year ending December 31 Amount
2013 $ 2,50t
2014 2,271
2015 1,56
2016 1,62¢
2017 1,671
Thereatfte! 14,46(
Total $ 24,09¢

8. FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Company follows ASC 825-10, which pd®s companies the option to report selected fimhasisets and liabilities at fair value.
ASC 825-10 also establishes presentation and disaaequirements designed to facilitate compasis@tween companies that choose
different measurement attributes for similar typéassets and liabilities and to more easily untdadsthe effect of the company's choice to
use fair value on its earnings. ASC 825-10 alsaireg entities to display the fair value of theestdd assets and liabilities on the face of the
balance sheet. The Company has not elected the8®5Q0 option to report selected financial assetsliabilities at fair value. With the
exception of the line items entitled "other assatsd "debt," which are reported at amortized cbgssets and liabilities approximate fair
value on the balance sheet. The carrying valubeofihe items
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entitled "interest receivable," "receivable for ngeades," "payable for open trades," "account@bkeyand accrued expenses,
and incentive fees payable" and "interest andifpddes payable" approximate fair value due tarthkort maturity.

management

The Company also follows ASC 820-10, whagipands the application of fair value accountin§CA820-10 defines fair value,
establishes a framework for measuring fair valuadoordance with GAAP and expands disclosure of/fdue measurements. ASC 820-10
determines fair value to be the price that woulddoived for an investment in a current sale, twhissumes an orderly transaction between
market participants on the measurement date. A®C182Zequires the Company to assume that the fiortfvestment is sold in its principal
market to market participants or, in the absence miincipal market, the most advantageous markdth may be a hypothetical market.
Market participants are defined as buyers andrsalethe principal or most advantageous markedtahaindependent, knowledgeable, and
willing and able to transact. In accordance withCA®20-10, the Company has considered its princimaket as the market in which the
Company exits its portfolio investments with theapest volume and level of activity. ASC 820-10c#es a hierarchy of valuation
techniques based on whether the inputs to thostah techniques are observable or unobservabkcdordance with ASC 820-10, these
inputs are summarized in the three broad levaisdibelow:

. Level 1—Valuations based on quoted prices in actiagkets for identical assets or liabilities tha Company has the ability
to access.
. Level 2—Valuations based on quoted prices inketgrthat are not active or for which all signifiénputs are observable,

either directly or indirectly.

. Level 3—Valuations based on inputs that are unoadde and significant to the overall fair value mig@ment.

In addition to using the above inputs imeistment valuations, the Company continues to eyrpi® net asset valuation policy approved
by the Company's board of directors that is coeststvith ASC 820-10 (see Note 2). Consistent with@Company's valuation policy, it
evaluates the source of inputs, including any ntarikewhich the Company's investments are tradimgy markets in which securities with
similar attributes are trading), in determining feilue. The Company's valuation policy considbesfact that because there is not a readily
available market value for most of the investmémthe Company's portfolio, the fair value of theestments must typically be determined
using unobservable inputs.

The Company's portfolio investments (otian as discussed below in the following paragrapé)typically valued using two different
valuation techniques. The first valuation techniguan analysis of the enterprise value ("EV")i# portfolio company. Enterprise value
means the entire value of the portfolio compang toarket participant, including the sum of the ealof debt and equity securities used to
capitalize the enterprise at a point in time. Thimpry method for determining EV uses a multiplalgsis whereby appropriate multiples are
applied to the portfolio company's EBITDA (net ince before net interest expense, income tax expdapegciation and amortization).
EBITDA multiples are typically determined based opeview of market comparable transactions andiglylitaded comparable companies,
if any. The second method for determining EV usdiseounted cash flow analysis whereby future etqubcash flows of the portfolio
company are discounted to determine a present using estimated discount rates (typically a weidhdverage cost of capital based on ¢
of debt and equity consistent with current marketditions). The EV analysis is performed to deteerthe value of equity investments, the
value of debt investments in portfolio companiegmhthe Company has control or could gain contraitgh an option or warrant security,
and to determine if there is credit impairmentdebt investments. If debt investments are creditined, an EV analysis may be used to
value such debt investments; however, in additiothé methods outlined above, other methods suaHigsidation or wind-down analysis
may be utilized to estimate enterprise value. Hwosd valuation technique is a yield analysis, Wiictypically performed for non-credit
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impaired debt investments in portfolio companie&reithe Company does not own a controlling equititpn. To determine fair value
using a yield analysis, a current price is imputedhe investment based upon an assessment ekfiezted market yield for a similarly
structured investment with a similar level of rigkthe yield analysis, the Company considers tireent contractual interest rate, the matt
and other terms of the investment relative to othe company and the specific investment. A ketgedninant of risk, among other things, is
the leverage through the investment relative tcetiterprise value of the portfolio company. As daeliestments held by the Company are
substantially illiquid with no active transactiorarket, the Company depends on primary market datlading newly funded transactions, as
well as secondary market data with respect to igld debt instruments and syndicated loans, astinip determining the appropriate mar
yield, as applicable

For other portfolio investments such agstments in collateralized loan obligations and3B&P Certificates, discounted cash flow
analysis is the primary technique utilized to deiee fair value. Expected future cash flows asgediavith the investment are discounted to
determine a present value using a discount ratad¢facts estimated market return requirements.

The following table summarizes the sigrifitunobservable inputs the Company used to vhkiengjority of its investments categori.
within Level 3 as of December 31, 2012. The tabledt intended to be all-inclusive, but insteadteags the significant unobservable inputs
relevant to the Company's determination of faiueal

Unobservable Input

Fair Primary Weighted

Asset Category Value Valuation Technique Input Range Average
Senior term dek $ 3,555,14 Yield Analysis Market Yield 5.3%- 21.9% 9.8%
Subordinated

Certificates of the

SSLP 1,263,64. Discounted Cash Flo Discount Rate 11.5%- 14.5% 13.5%
Senior subordinated

debt 259,82( Yield Analysis Market Yield 10.0%- 18.6% 14.%
Preferred equity

securities 250,11¢ EV Market Multiple Analysic ~ EBITDA Multiple 4.5x- 10.5x 8.1x
Other equity securitie

and othel 585,93: EV Market Multiple Analysic  EBITDA Multiple 4.5x- 12.8x 7.4x

Total $ 5,914,65

Changes in market yields, discount rateSBITDA multiples, each in isolation, may change thir value of certain of the Company's
investments. Generally, an increase in market gietddiscount rates or decrease in EBITDA multiphes result in a decrease in the fair
value of certain of the Company's investments.

Due to the inherent uncertainty of deteimgrthe fair value of investments that do not haveadily available market value, the fair
value of the Company's investments may fluctuaimfperiod to period. Additionally, the fair valuétbe Company's investments may differ
significantly from the values that would have besed had a ready market existed for such invessatt may differ materially from the
values that the Company may ultimately realizettar such investments are generally subject tal lagd other restrictions on resale or
otherwise are less liquid than publicly traded siies. If the Company was required to liquidateaatfolio investment in a forced or
liquidation sale, it could realize significantlyskethan the value at which the Company has recatrded

In addition, changes in the market envirentrand other events that may occur over the fita@investments may cause the gains or
losses ultimately realized on these investmenketdifferent than the unrealized gains or losssated in the valuations currently assigned.
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The following table presents fair value si@@ments of cash and cash equivalents and invetstrag of December 31, 2012:

Fair Value Measurements Usinc

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Cash and cash equivalel $ 269,04. $ 269,04 $ — 3 —
Investments $ 592455 $ 9,89 $ — $ 5914,65

The following table presents fair value sw@@ments of cash and cash equivalents and invetstrag of December 31, 2011

Fair Value Measurements Using

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Cash and cash equivalel $ 120,78. $ 120,78: $ — $ —
Investment $ 5,094,500 $ — $ — $ 5,094,50

The following table presents changes iregtinents that use Level 3 inputs as of and foy¢lae ended December 31, 2012:

As of and for the

year ended
December 31, 201,
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 5,094,501
Net realized and unrealized ga 155,58
Purchase 3,161,66.
Sales (667,55()
Redemption: (1,862,84)
Paymer-in-kind interest and dividenc 25,03¢
Accretion of discount on securiti 13,747
Net transfers in and/or out of Leve (5,482
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 5,914,65

As of December 31, 2012, the net unrealamguteciation on the investments that use Levep8ts was $92,638.

The following table presents changes iregtments that use Level 3 inputs as of and foy#lae ended December 31, 2011:

As of and for the

year ended
December 31, 201
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 4,312,65
Net realized and unrealized ga 69,65¢
Purchase 3,239,02:
Sales (994,989
Redemption: (1,553,16)
Paymer-in-kind interest and dividenc 30,07(
Accretion of discount on securiti 15,89
Net transfers in and/or out of Leve (24,64()
Balance as of December 31, 2( $ 5,094,501
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As of December 31, 2011, the net unrealdsggteciation on the investments that use Levep8ts was $14,157.
Transfers between levels, if any, are racagl at the beginning of the quarter in whichttla@sfers occur.

Following are the carrying and fair valudthe Company's debt obligations as of Decembge2312 and 2011. Fair value is estimated
by discounting remaining payments using applicableent market rates, which take into account ckamg the Company's marketplace
credit ratings, or market quotes, if available.

As of December 31

2012 2011
Carrying value(1) Fair value Carrying value(1) Fair value
Revolving Credit Facility $ — ¢ — $ 395,000 $ 399,40(
Revolving Funding Facilit 300,00( 303,20¢ 463,00( 467,90(
Debt Securitizatiol — — 77,53! 68,21

February 2016 Convertible Not

(principal amount outstanding

of $575,000 548,52:(2) 617,55 541,15(2) 545,44!
June 2016 Convertible Notes

(principal amount outstanding

of $230,000 218,76(2) 243,79 215,93(2) 215,71
2017 Convertible Notes (princi

amount outstanding of

$162,500 158,31i(2) 168,49! — —
2018 Convertible Notes (princi

amount outstanding of

$270,000; 262,8242) 272,81
February 2022 Notes (principal

amount outstanding of

$143,750 143,75( 151,54¢ — —
October 2022 Notes (principal

amount outstanding of

$182,500; 182,50( 179,36: — —
2040 Notes (principal amount

outstanding of $200,00t 200,00 208,96¢ 200,00 198,80t
2047 Notes (principal amount

outstanding of $230,00t( 181,19¢(3) 225,55¢ 180,98{(3) 212,21t

$  2,195,87(4)$2,371,300 $  2,073,60(4)$2,107,70.

Q) Except for the Convertible Unsecured Notes an®@% Notes, all carrying values are the same aprtheipal
amounts outstanding.

(2) Represents the aggregate principal amountamgdmg of the Convertible Unsecured Notes lessutteecreted discount
initially recorded upon issuance of each respederées of the Convertible Unsecured Notes.

3) Represents the aggregate principal amount outstgradithe 2047 Notes less the unaccreted purctdisedunt.

(4)  Total principal amount of debt outstanding tote#@q293,750 and $2,170,531 as of December 31, 2042611,
respectively
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The following table presents fair value si@@ments of the Company's debt obligations assckBber 31, 2012 and 2011:

As of December 31

Fair Value Measurements Usinc 2012 2011

Level 1 $ 765,43t $ 411,02
Level 2 1,605,86. 1,696,67
Total $ 2,371,300 $ 2,107,70:

9. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

The following table summarizes the totarsls issued and proceeds received in public offerri the Company's common stock net of
underwriting discounts and offering costs for tleans ended December 31, 2012 and 2010:

Proceeds net o

Shares Offering price underwriting discounts
issued per share and offering costs
2012
August 2012 public offerin 25,87 $ 16.55(1)$ 427,56t
January 2012 public offerir 16,42: $ 15.41(2)$ 252,41!
Total for the year ended December 31,
2012 42,297 $ 679,98:
2010
November 2010 public offerin 11,500 $ 165 $ 180,64
February 2010 public offerin 22,95¢ $ 12.71F  $ 277,20°
Total for the year ended December 31,
2010 34,45¢ $ 457,84¢
(1)  The shares were sold to the underwriters for a&fcb16.55 per share, which the underwriters weza permitted to
sell at variable prices to the public.
(2) The shares were sold to the underwriters fmi@e of $15.41 per share, which the underwritegse then permitted to

sell at variable prices to the publ

The Company used the net proceeds frord@ié& and 2010 public equity offerings to repay wutding debt and for general corporate
purposes, which included funding investments iroed@nce with our investment objective.

There were no sales of the Company's egaityrities for the year ended December 31, 2011.
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10. EARNINGS PER SHARE

The following information sets forth thensputations of basic and diluted net increase iok$tolders' equity resulting from operations
per share for the years ended December 31, 2012, 26d 2010:

For the years ended December 3.

2012 2011 2010

Net increase in stockholders' eqt

resulting from operations available to

common stockholder: $ 508,17¢ $ 319,45! $ 691,83«
Weighted average shares of common st

outstandin—basic and dilutec 230,15: 204,86( 176,73.
Basic and diluted net increase in

stockholders' equity resulting from

operations per shar $ 221 % 15€ $ 3.91

For the purpose of calculating diluted @ags per share, the average closing price of thaf2my's common stock for the year ended
December 31, 2012, for the period from the timessf@iance of the 2017 Convertible Notes through Bées 31, 2012 and for the period
from the time of issuance of the 2018 Convertibt#dd through December 31, 2012, was each lesghbaronversion price in effect for such
period for each applicable series of the Convextithhsecured Notes and therefore, the underlyingestiar the intrinsic value of the
embedded options in the Convertible Unsecured Nwddsno impact on this calculation. The averagsietpprice of the Company's common
stock for the year ended December 31, 2011, fopéhimd from the time of issuance of the Febru&ry¥&Convertible Notes through
December 31, 2011 and for the period from the timissuance of the June 2016 Convertible Notesutfitd>ecember 31, 2011, was each
than the conversion price in effect for such pefardeach applicable series of the Convertible \dnsed Notes and therefore, the underlying
shares for the intrinsic value of the embeddedoogtin the Convertible Unsecured Notes had no itnacthis calculation.

11. INCOME AND EXCISE TAXES

For income tax purposes, dividends paiddistiibutions made to stockholders are reportesrdimary income, capital gains, non-
taxable return of capital, or a combination ther@¥idends paid per common share for the yearg@émkecember 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
were taxable as follows (unaudited):

For the years ended December 3.

2012 2011 2010

Ordinary income(1 $ 15€¢ $ 1.1¢ $ 1.4C
Capital gains 0.04 0.2t —
Total $ 1.6C $ 141 $ 1.4C

(1) For the years ended December 31, 2012, 204 2@10, ordinary income included dividend income of
approximately $0.0918, $0.0619 and $0.0164, paeshespectively, that qualified to be taxed at15&6
maximum capital gains rate. For certain eligiblepcoate shareholders, these dividends were eliffiolthe

dividend received deductio
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The following reconciles net increase imc&holders' equity resulting from operations toatale income for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010:

For the years ended December 3.

2012 2011 2010
(Estimated)(1)

Net increase in stockholders' equity resulting fi

operations $ 508,17¢ $ 319,45 $ 691,83«
Adjustments
Net unrealized (gain) loss on investme (115,26 40,19: (230,74)
Items related to the Allied Acquisitio

Gain on the Allied Acquisitiol — — (195,87¢)

Other merge-related item: — — (4,007
Other income not currently taxat (33,747 (55,93¢) (36,48¢)
Other income for tax but not bou 48,70: 73,657 71,99:
Expenses not currently deductil 46,33: 59,01¢ 33,49¢
Other deductible expens (4,629 (1,210 (78€)
Other realized gain/loss differenc (9,949 (33,720 (12,736
Taxable incom $ 439,63 $ 401,45' $ 316,69t

(1) The calculation of estimated 2012 taxable inedncludes a number of estimated inputs, includifgrmation received
from third parties and, as a result, actual 20%al&e income will not be finally determined untietCompany's 2012 t
return is filed in 2013 (and, therefore, such eataris subject to chang:

Taxable income generally differs from metrease in stockholders' equity resulting from apens for financial reporting purposes due
to temporary and permanent differences in the mnaitiog of income and expenses, and generally exduekt unrealized gains or losses, as
unrealized gains or losses are generally not imaud taxable income until they are realized. Aiddilly, on April 1, 2010, the Company
acquired Allied Capital in a tax free merger ancbreed a book gain of $195,876, which was not bzeshevent for tax purposes. Similarly,
there were certain merger-related items that vatheir deductibility for GAAP and tax.

Capital losses in excess of capital gaaraed in a tax year may generally be carried fodveard used to offset capital gains, subject to
certain limitations. As of December 31, 2012, ttmmPany estimates that it will have a capital lemsyforward of approximately
$148.0 million available for use in later tax yed@scause of the loss limitation rules of the Cadene of the tax basis capital losses may be
limited in their use. The unused balance will beied forward and utilized as gains are realizedject to such limitations. In addition to the
capital loss carryforwards, the Company realizedasses totaling approximately $0.3 billion frohetAllied Capital portfolio since the
acquisition through December 31, 2012, that hateyabbeen deducted for tax purposes as their dibditg in 2012, 2011 and 2010 was
limited by the Code. While the Company's abilityutdize losses in the future depends upon a wanéfactors that cannot be known in
advance, substantially all of the Company's cajotd carryforwards and the net realized lossean tte Allied Capital portfolio may become
permanently unavailable due to limitations by tlwl&

For 2011, the Company had taxable inconexaess of distributions made from such taxablerime of approximately $177 million and
therefore, the Company carried forward the excasdiftribution to shareholders in 2012. For 2aGh2, Company had taxable income in
excess of the distributions made from such taxalgleme during the year, and therefore, the Compasyelected to carry forward the excess
for distribution to shareholders in 2013. The amaarried forward to 2013 is estimated to be apipnately $239 million, although this
amount will not be finalized until the 2012 taxuets are filed in 2013. To the extent that the Canypdetermines that its estimated current
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year annual taxable income will be in excess dfreded current year dividend distributions fromtsirccome, the Company accrues ex
tax on estimated excess taxable income. For thes yealed December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, a pehsa of $7,937, $6,605 and $2,229,
respectively, was recorded for U.S. federal ext@ge

As of December 31, 2012, the cost basiavestments for tax purposes was $6.8 billion Esyilin estimated gross unrealized gains and
losses of $0.3 billion and $1.2 billion, respedijyvé\s of December 31, 2011, the cost basis ofstments for tax purposes was $6.1 billion
resulting in estimated gross unrealized gains assels of $0.2 billion and $1.2 billion, respectvéls of December 31, 2012 and 2011, the
cost of investments for tax purposes was greater the amortized cost of investments for book psep@f $5.8 billion and $5.1 billion,
respectively, primarily as a result of the Alliedduisition. The Allied Acquisition qualified as axtfree merger, which resulted in the
acquired assets retaining Allied Capital's costshaisthe merger date.

In general, the Company may make certajinsttients to the classification of stockholdersiiggas a result of permanent book-to-tax
differences, which may include merger-related itediféerences in the book and tax basis of cerasets and liabilities, and nondeductible
federal taxes, among other items. During the yaded December 31, 2012, the Company decreased aladethoverdistributed net
investment income by $11,172, increased accumutaecdealized loss on investments, foreign currdranysactions, extinguishment of debt
and other assets by $27,982 and increased capiatess of par value by $16,810. During the yrded December 31, 2011, the Company
decreased accumulated overdistributed net investmeome by $7,474, increased accumulated netzeghlpss on investments, foreign
currency transactions, extinguishment of debt ghdraassets by $126,234 and increased capitakcess)of par value by $118,760. During
the year ended December 31, 2010, as a resulttairteermanent book-to-tax differences, including nontaxability of the book gain on the
Allied Acquisition and the nondeductibility of cam merger-related expenses, the Company decreasathulated overdistributed net
investment income by $22,001, increased accumutaecdealized loss on investments, foreign currdranysactions, extinguishment of debt
and other assets by $383,856 and increased capéatess of par value by $361,855.

Certain of the Company's consolidated sliases are subject to U.S. federal and state imctaxes. For the years ended December 31,
2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company recorded a taensepof approximately $3,235, $869 and $3,163extiyely, for these subsidiaries.

F-77




12. DIVIDENDS AND DISTRIBUTIONS

The following table summarizes the Compsudywidends declared for the years ended Decenthe?® 2, 2011 and 2010:

Per share
Date declared Record date Payment date amount Total amount
November 5, 201 December 14, 20: December 28, 20: $ 03¢ $ 94,36(
November 5, 201 December 14, 20: December 28,20 $  0.05(1) 12,41¢
August 7, 201: September 14, 20 September 28,20 $  0.3¢ 94,25(
August 7, 201: September 14, 20 September 28,20 $  0.0%5(1) 12,40:
May 8, 2012 June 15, 201 June 29,201 $ 0.37 82,09
February 28, 201 March 15, 201 March 30,201 $ 0.37 81,97«
Total declared for
2012 $ 16C $ 377,49
November 8, 201 December 15, 20: December 30,20: $ 0.3€ $ 74,137
August 4, 201: September 15, 20 September 30,20 $ 0.3t 71,64
May 3, 2011 June 15, 201 June 30,201 $ 0.3t 71,66:
March 1, 201 March 15, 201 March 31,201 $ 0.3t 71,547
Total declared for
2011 $ 141 $ 288,99
November 4, 201 December 15, 20: December 31,20: $ 0.3t $ 71,42
August 5, 201( September 15, 20 September 30,20 $ 0.3t 67,26¢
May 10, 201( June 15, 201 June 30,201 $ 0.3t 67,09:
February 25, 201 March 15, 201 March 31,201 $ 0.3t 46,51¢
Total declared for
2010 $ 14C $ 252,29¢

(1) Represents an additional divide:

The Company has a dividend reinvestmennt filat was amended effective March 28, 2012, whetited Company may buy shares of its
common stock in the open market or issue new sliam@sler to satisfy dividend reinvestment requeBtsr to the amendment, if the
Company issued new shares to implement the divideingdestment plan, the issue price was equalaalidsing price of its common stock
the dividend record date. As a result of the ameamdpwhen the Company issues new shares in coonesiih the dividend reinvestment
plan, the issue price is equal to the closing poicés common stock on the dividend payment dateidend reinvestment plan activity for t
years ended December 31, 2012, 2011, and 201(asMadiows:

2012 2011 2010
Shares issue 1,22¢ 711 1,528
Average price per sha $ 16.6¢ $ 16.2¢ $ 14.7¢
Shares purchased by plan agent for sharehc — 78t —
Average price per sha $ — $1471 8 —

13. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In accordance with the investment advisorg management agreement, the Company bears @llaaasexpenses of the operation of the
Company and reimburses its investment adviserddam of such costs and expenses incurred ingheation of the Company. For the years
ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, the ineestadlviser incurred such expenses totaling $3 52846 and $3,264, respectively. As
of December 31, 2012, $583 was unpaid and suchppmigincluded in "accounts payable and accrugeeses" in the accompanying
consolidated balance sheet.
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The Company has entered into separate asédavith Ares Management and IHAM pursuant to wiAi,es Management and IHAM
sublease approximately 15% and 20%, respectivéthheoCompany's New York office space for a fixedtrequal to 15% and 20%,
respectively, of the base annual rent payable &yCibmpany under the Company's lease for this spacecertain additional costs and
expenses. For the years ended December 31, 20120addamounts payable to the Company totaled $1a68 $812, respectively. Under
the Company's previous New York office space I¢haeexpired on February 27, 2011, the Companypaaty to a sublease agreement with
Ares Management whereby Ares Management subleggedxamately 25% of such office space for a fixedtrequal to 25% of the basic
annual rent payable by the Company under this Jgdise certain additional costs and expenses.tieoyears ended December 31, 2011 and
2010, amounts payable to the Company in conneutitnsuch previous lease totaled $396 and $258e@wely.

In April 2012, the Company entered intoodice sublease with Ares Commercial Real Estatadg@ment LLC ("ACREM"), a wholly
owned subsidiary of Ares Management and managarexf Commercial Real Estate Corporation, pursuamtitich the Company is
subleasing approximately 12% of ACREM's Chicagacefbpace for a fixed rent equal to 12% of thedasnual rent payable by ACREM
under its office lease, plus certain additionalts@nd expenses. For the year ended December B2, @dounts payable under this sublease
by the Company to ACREM totaled $55.

As of December 31, 2012, Ares Investmeraklidgs LLC, an affiliate of Ares Management, owraggpbroximately 2.9 million shares of
the Company's common stock representing approxijai2% of the total shares outstanding as of Ddeer31, 2012.

See Notes 3 and 14 for descriptions ofrathlated party transactions.
14. IVY HILL ASSET MANAGEMENT, L.P. AND OTHER MAN AGED VEHICLES

The Company has made investments in itdgdiar company, IHAM, which became an SEC registieirevestment adviser, effective
March 30, 2012, as well as in certain vehicles rgadaby IHAM. As of December 31, 2012, IHAM manad&dcredit vehicles and served as
the sub-manager/sub-servicer for three other vehighese vehicles managed or sub-managed/sulsestbwy IHAM are collectively, the
"IHAM Vehicles"). As of December 31, 2011, the Caanp also had investments in two of the IHAM Vehicle

As of December 31, 2012, the Company's tot@stment in IHAM at fair value was $294,258;luding unrealized appreciation of
$123,297. As of December 31, 2011, the Compantgsitovestment in IHAM at fair value was $194,58%luding unrealized appreciation
$81,721. For the years ended December 31, 2012, &@d 2010, the Company received distributionsisting entirely of dividend income
from IHAM of $19,939, $19,048 and $7,320, respediiv

From time to time, IHAM or certain IHAM Vétles may purchase investments from the Compamsglbinvestments to it. For any such
purchases or sales by the IHAM Vehicles from athswnCompany, the IHAM Vehicles must obtain apprdyain third parties unaffiliated
with the Company or IHAM, as applicable. IHAM orrtan of the IHAM Vehicles purchased investmentsrfrthe Company of $256,925 ¢
$261,322, during the years ended December 31, 20d2011, respectively. A net realized gain of $8,8nd $51 was recorded on these
transactions for the years ended December 31, 20d2011, respectively. For the year ended Decethe2011, the Company also
purchased $3,777 of investments from certain oftt#eM Vehicles.

In October 2012, the Company contributetHi&M its entire investment in FirstLight Financi@orporation ("FirstLight Corp.") at a
price equal to the fair value at the time of thatdbution of $58,085 ($51,760 for its senior subinated loan position and $6,325 for its
equity position). As a result of the contributitime Company fully exited its investment in FirsthigCorp., which reduced its investment
commitments by $84,153, and recognized a net 1b$2&068. Prior to such contribution,
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IHAM served as a sub-adviser to FirstLight Fundinigtd., a wholly owned subsidiary of FirstLight o ("FirstLight Funding"). Following
such contribution, FirstLight Funding distributedRirstLight Corp. substantially all of its assétsthe form of cash and investments). In ti
FirstLight Corp. repaid in full the total outstandiamount of its senior subordinated loans (incigdhe portion held by IHAM following the
contribution transaction) and made a distributimits stockholders (including IHAM following the ntribution transaction). In connection
with the foregoing, IHAM ceased to be a sub-adviedfirstLight Funding and IHAM became the collatenanager to FirstLight Corp. and
the other entity invested in FirstLight Corp.

IHAM is party to an administration agreemeaferred to herein as the "IHAM administratiagr@ement,” with Ares Operations.
Pursuant to the IHAM administration agreement, Abg&rations provides IHAM with, among other thingSice facilities, equipment,
clerical, bookkeeping and record keeping servisesiices relating to the marketing and sale of@stis in vehicles managed by IHAM,
services of, and oversight of, custodians, depos#paccountants, attorneys, underwriters and stiddr persons in any other capacity
deemed to be necessary. Under the IHAM administtagreement, IHAM reimburses Ares Operations llasfahe actual costs associated
with such services, including Ares Operations'allde portion of overhead and the cost of its effic employees and respective staff in
performing its obligations under the IHAM admin&tion agreement.

As part of the Allied Acquisition, the Coampy acquired the management rights for an uncatwtelil vehicle, the AGILE Fund I, LLC
("AGILE Fund"). Effective March 30, 2012, the maeagent rights for the AGILE Fund were transferredde minimis, non-monetary
consideration to an unrelated third party. The Canys investment in AGILE Fund was $29 and $132iatvalue, respectively, including
unrealized depreciation of $95 and $84, respestivd of December 31, 2012 and 2011.
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15. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
The following is a schedule of financiaghlights as of and for the years ended Decembe2@®112, 2011 and 2010:

As of and for the year endec

Per Share Data: December 31, 201, December 31, 201 December 31, 201!
Net asset value, beginning of period  $ 15.3¢ % 1492 $ 11.44
Issuances of common sto 0.0t — 0.9t
Issuances of the Convertible Unsecur

Notes 0.04 0.27 —
Net investment income for period( 1.52 1.3¢ 1.2
Gain on the Allied Acquisition(2 — — 1.11
Net realized and unrealized gains

period(2) 0.6¢ 0.1¢ 1.5¢
Net increase in stockholders' eqt 2.3C 1.82 4.8¢
Distributions from net investment

income (1.56) (1.1 (1.40
Distributions from net realized gai (0.09) (0.25) —
Total distributions to stockholde (2.60 (1.47) (1.40
Net asset value at end of period $ 16.0¢ $ 15.3¢ % 14.9:
Per share market value atend ofpe  $ 1750 $ 154 $ 16.4¢
Total return based on market value 23.62% 2.31% 43.61%
Total return based on net asset valu 14.3%% 10.45% 31.61%
Shares outstanding at end of pet 248,65: 205,13( 204,41¢
Ratio/Supplemental Dat
Net assets at end of peri $ 3,988,341 $ 3,147,26! $ 3,050,53:
Ratio of operating expenses to averay

net assets(5)(¢ 10.7(% 10.94% 11.02%
Ratio of net investment income to

average net assets(5) 9.62% 8.97% 9.07%
Portfolio turnover rate(E 45% 53% 45%

(1) The net assets used equals the total stockdsdlequity on the consolidated balance sheets.

(2) Weighted average basic per share data.

3) For the year ended December 31, 2012, thératan based on market value equalled the inereéthe ending market
value at December 31, 2012 of $17.50 per sharetbeeznding market value at December 31, 2011 5f45lper share
plus the declared dividends of $1.60 per sharé®year ended December 31, 2012, divided by th&ehaalue at
December 31, 2011. For the year ended Decemb@031, the total return based on market value ferytar ended
December 31, 2011 equalled the decrease of thag@nttrket value at December 30, 2011 of $15.45ipare from the
ending market value at December 31, 2010 of $1pet&hare plus the declared dividends of $1.4Elpare for the yei
ended December 31, 2011, divided by the markeevaliDecember 31, 2010. For the year ended Dece3ib2010,
the total return based on market value for the geded December 31, 2010 equalled the increase @frtding market
value at December 31, 2010 of $16.48 per sharetheeznding market value at December 31, 2009 ®f4Elper share
plus the declared dividends of $1.40 per sharé®year ended December 31, 2010, divided by th&ehaalue at
December 31, 2009. Total return based on markekvalnot annualized. The Company's shares fluzinatalue. The
Company's performance changes over time and clymaaly be different than that shown. Past perforteas no
guarantee of future resul
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(4) For the year ended December 31, 2012, the totairdiased on net asset value equalled the changst asset value
during the period plus the declared dividends 06@per share for the year ended December 31, 2Mided by the
beginning net asset value. For the year ended Demed1, 2011, the total return based on net asde¢ equalled the
change in net asset value during the period plesiétiared dividends of $1.41 per share for the geded
December 31, 2011 divided by the beginning nettasdee for the period. For the year ended DecerBheP010, the
total return based on net asset value equalledithiege in net asset value during the period pleisi¢itlared dividends
of $1.40 per share for the year ended Decembe2®N) divided by the beginning net asset valuetferteriod. These
calculations are adjusted for shares issued inexion with the dividend reinvestment plan andiiseiance of commc
stock in connection with any equity offerings. Tiatturn based on net asset value is not annuali@eel Company's
performance changes over time and currently majifferent than that shown. Past performance isuarantee of
future results.

(5) The ratios reflect an annualized amount.

(6) For the year ended December 31, 2012, the oatbperating expenses to average net assetsstamhsif 2.38% of base
management fees, 3.50% of incentive fees, 3.94fheotost of borrowing and 0.88% of other operaéirgenses. For
the year ended December 31, 2011, the ratio oiatipgrexpenses to average net assets consiste?7/86 2f base
management fees, 3.57% of incentive fees, 3.89%eotost of borrowing and other operating expen$és21%. For
the year ended December 31, 2010, the ratio ofatipgrexpenses to average net assets consisteti9sh 2f base
management fees, 3.23% of incentive fees, 3.34#eofost of borrowing and other operating expen§@s27%. Thes
ratios reflect annualized amounts.

@) The ratio of net investment income to average ag¢t@ excludes income taxes related to realizetb

16. SELECTED QUARTERLY DATA (Unaudited)

2012
Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1

Total investment incom $ 212,16( $ 190,57 $ 177,55' $ 167,73t
Net investment income before net realized

unrealized gains and incentive compense $ 138,24¢ $ 123,59¢ $ 110,63 $ 103,42
Incentive compensatic $ 43,780 $ 34,13¢ $§ 22,731 $ 26,38¢
Net investment income before net realized

unrealized gain $ 94,46: $ 89,46( $ 87,90! $ 77,03¢
Net realized and unrealized ga $ 80,68: $ 47,098 $ 3,031 $§ 28,50¢
Net increase in stockholders' equity resul

from operation: $ 175,14. $ 136,55! $ 90,93: $ 105,54
Basic and diluted earnings per common sl $ 0.71 $ 0.5¢ $ 041 $ 0.4¢
Net asset value per share as of the end ¢

guarter $ 16.0¢ $ 1574 $ 1551 $ 154
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Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1
Total investment incom $ 187,120 $ 167,36 $ 144,307 $ 135,69:
Net investment income before net realized

unrealized gains (losses) and incentive
compensatiol $ $ $ $
Incentive compensatic $ $ $ $
Net investment income before net realized
unrealized gains (losse $ $ 98,35¢ $ 43,76 $ 47,82!
Net realized and unrealized gains (lost $ 25,66¢ $ (57,719 $ (6,840 $ 75,94
$ $ $ $
$ $ $ $
$ $ $ $

85,50¢
41,74¢

78,76¢
30,94

Net increase in stockholders' equity resul
from operation:

Basic and diluted earnings per common sl

Net asset value per share as of the end ¢
quarter

118,12!
0.5¢

40,63¢
0.2C

36,920
0.1¢

123,76t
0.61
15.3¢ 15.1:%

15.2¢ 15.4¢

2010
Q4 Q3 Q2 Q1
157,17( 138,12¢ 121,59 $ 66,51(

Total investment incom

Net investment income before net realized
unrealized gains and incentive compensz

Incentive compensatic

Net investment income before net realized

$ $
$ 99,32 $
$ $
unrealized gain $ 63,35( $ 71,22
$ $
$ $
$ $
$ $

35,97

89,02t
17,80¢

64,51 $ 39,84¢
1497 $ 8,14¢

49,54: $ 31,70¢

Net realized and unrealized ga 93,53¢ 57,157 280,61(1)$ 44,71

Net increase in stockholders' equity resul
from operation:

Basic and diluted earnings per common sl

Net asset value per share as of the end ¢

quarter

156,88t
0.7¢

128,37
0.67

330,15 $ 76,41t
1.7 $ 0.61]

& «@ &H &8 &BH «@ &H &

14.92 14.4: 1411 $ 11.7¢

(1) Includes gain on the Allied Acquisition of $195,8
17. ALLIED ACQUISITION

On April 1, 2010, the Company completedAlleed Acquisition by acquiring the outstandingasis of Allied Capital in exchange for
shares of the Company's common stock in a tramsactilued at approximately $908 million as of thesing date. Concurrently with the
completion of the Allied Acquisition, the Compargpaid in full the $137 million of remaining prineipamounts outstanding on Allied
Capital's $250 million senior secured term loare TQompany also assumed all of Allied Capital's othetstanding debt obligations, includ
approximately $745 million in aggregate principalaunt outstanding of the Allied Unsecured Notes.

Under the terms of the Allied Acquisitioach Allied Capital stockholder received 0.325 sharfthe Company's common stock for each
share of Allied Capital common stock then ownedbgh stockholder. In connection with the Allied Agition, approximately 58.5 million
shares of the Company's common stock (includingffext of outstanding in-the money Allied Capaé&bck options) were issued to Allied
Capital's then-existing stockholders, resultinghi@ Company's then-existing stockholders owning@pmately 69% of the combined
company and the then-existing Allied Capital staikllers owning approximately 31% of the combined pany.

The Allied Acquisition was accounted foraocordance with the acquisition method of accaognis detailed in ASC 805-10. The
acquisition method of accounting requires an aequo recognize the assets acquired, the lialslagsumed and any noncontrolling intere
the acquired entity based on their fair valuesfabendate of acquisition. As described in moreadié ASC 805-10, if the total
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acquisition date fair value of the identifiable mastets acquired exceeds the fair value of thedmmagion transferred, the excess will be
recognized as a gain. Upon completion of the Coryipatetermination of the fair value of Allied Cagi$ identifiable net assets as of April 1,
2010, the fair value of such net assets exceedefhihvalue of the consideration transferred, Itegyin the recognition of a gain. The
valuation of the investments acquired as part @fAtied Acquisition was done in accordance witre&IiCapital's valuation policy (see

Notes 2 and 8

Set forth below is the allocation of theghase price to the assets acquired and liabiltsssimed in connection with the Allied
Acquisition:

Common stock issue $ 872,72
Payments to holders of -the-money" Allied Capital stock optio 35,01(1)
Total purchase pric $ 907,73t
Assets acquirec
Investments $ 1,833,76!
Cash and cash equivale 133,54t
Other asset 80,07¢
Total assets acquire 2,047,39:
Debt and other liabilities assum (943,779
Net assets acquire 1,103,61.
Gain on Allied Acquisitior (195,87¢)
$ 907,73t

(1) Represents cash payment for holders of anthérmoney" Allied Capital stock options that ektto receive
cash.

The following pro forma condensed combifiadncial information does not purport to be indifea of actual financial position or resu
of the Company's operations had the Allied Acqigsiictually been consummated at the beginningepteriod presented. Certain one-time
charges have been eliminated. For year ended Dexe3ithb2010, the Company recognized $19,833 irepeibnal fees and other costs
related to the Allied Acquisition. The pro formgustments reflecting the allocation of the purchasee of Allied Capital and the gain of
$195,876 recognized on the Allied Acquisition héveen eliminated from the period presented. Thdgroa condensed combined financial
information did not reflect the potential impactpufssible synergies and did not reflect any impéeidditional accretion which would have
been recognized on the transaction, except fomthath was recorded after the transaction was aansated on April 1, 2010.

For the Year Ended
December 31, 201!

Total investment incom $ 537,48t
Net investment incom $ 238,98:
Net increase in stockholders' equity resulting frmmerations $ 479,97¢
Net increase in stockholders' equity resulting frgmerations

per share $ 2.51

Prior to the completion of the Allied Acaition, the Company purchased $340,000 of assats Allied Capital in arm's length
transactions. Additionally, during the same peédime, IHAM purchased $69,000 of assets fromédliCapital, also in arm's length
transactions.
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18. LITIGATION

The Company is party to certain lawsuitthim normal course of business. In addition, AlliEabital was involved in various legal
proceedings that the Company assumed in connegttbrthe Allied Acquisition. Furthermore, third piggs may try to seek to impose liabil
on the Company in connection with the activitiet®portfolio companies. While the outcome of aagh legal proceedings cannot at this
time be predicted with certainty, the Company dugsexpect that these legal proceedings will mallgraffect its business, financial
condition or results of operations.

19. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

The Company's management has evaluatedguést events through the date of issuance ofahgotidated financial statements
included herein. There have been no subsequentsetiext occurred during such period that would iegdisclosure in this Form 10-K or
would be required to be recognized in the Constddi&inancial Statements as of and for the yeageibcember 31, 2012, except as
disclosed below.

On January 25, 2013, Ares Capital and Aragital CP, entered into an amendment to the Rengolunding Facility. The amendment,
among other things, modified the interest chargethe Revolving Funding Facility from the previayplicable spreads of 2.50% over
LIBOR and 1.50% over "base rate" (as defined indtpeeements governing the Revolving Funding Fggild applicable spreads ranging
from 2.25% to 2.50% over LIBOR and ranging from5B&2to 1.50% over "base rate," in each case, detednmonthly based on the
composition of the borrowing base relative to anging borrowings under the facility. After giviegfect to the amendment and the relevant
borrowing base and amounts outstanding thereuttdemterest charged on the Revolving Funding gk of January 25, 2013 was based
on a spread over one-month LIBOR of 2.25% or aspoer "base rate" of 1.25%. As of such date,mapath LIBOR was 0.2037% and the
"base rate" was 3.25%.
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SIGNATURES

signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereduaty authorized.

Pursuant to the requirements of SectioorlB5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, rbgistrant has duly caused this report t

ARES CAPITAL CORPORATION

By:

of the registrant and in the capacities and ord#tes indicated.

By:

By:

By:

By:

By:

By:

By:

/s/ MICHAEL J. AROUGHETI

Michael J. Arougheti

President (principal executive officer) a
Director

Dated: February 27, 20:

/s/ PENNI F. ROLL

Penni F. Roll

Chief Financial Officer (principal financial and
accounting officer)

Dated: February 27, 20:

/sl STEVE BARTLETT

Steve Bartlett
Director
Dated: February 27, 20:

/s/ ANN TORRE BATES

Ann Torre Bates
Director
Dated: February 27, 20:

/sl STEVEN B. MCKEEVER

Steven B. McKeever
Director
Dated: February 27, 20:

/sl FRANK E. O'BRYAN

Frank E. O'Bryan
Director
Dated: February 27, 20:

/s/ ANTONY P. RESSLER

Antony P. Ressler
Director
Dated: February 27, 20:

/sl MICHAEL J. AROUGHETI

Michael J. Arougheti
President
Dated: February 27, 20:

Pursuant to the requirements of the Seeariixchange Act of 1934, this report has beeresidgrelow by the following persons on bel

By:

/s/ ROBERT L. ROSEN

Robert L. Rosel



By:

By:

Director
Dated: February 27, 20:

/sl BENNET ROSENTHAL

Bennett Rosenthal
Director
Dated: February 27, 20:

Is/ ERIC B. SIEGEL

Eric B. Siegel
Director
Dated: February 27, 20:
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Exhibit 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF ARES CAPITAL CORPORATION

Name Jurisdiction
ARCC BB Corp. Delaware
ARCC BM, LLC Delaware
ARCC C&C Corp. Delaware
ARCC CCS, Inc Delaware
ARCC CIC Flex Corp Delaware
ARCC CLPB Corp Delaware
ARCC Crescent LL( Delaware
ARCC ECG LLC Delaware
ARCC GAC LLC Delaware
ARCC GF, LLC Delaware
ARCC HBF LLC Delaware
ARCC IGS Corp Delaware
ARCC Imperial Corporatio Delaware
ARCC Imperial LLC Delaware
ARCC LVCG Investors LLC Delaware
ARCC NPA Corp. (flk/a ARCC PSSI Corporatic Delaware
ARCC OTG Corp Delaware
ARCC PAH Corp. Delaware
ARCC PCGI Il AlV Blocker, Inc. Delaware
ARCC PJMB LLC Delaware
ARCC Sage Inc Delaware
ARCC SK Blocker Corp Delaware
ARCC TTL Corp. Delaware
ARCC Universal Corp Delaware
ARCC VTH Corp. Delaware
AC Notes Holdings LLC Delaware
AC Finance LLC Delaware
ACGP |, LLC Delaware
A.C. Management Services, LL Delaware
ARCC Covestia Corg Delaware
ARCC JTC, LLC Delaware
ARES Capital JB Funding LL! Delaware
ARES Capital CP Funding LL Delaware
ARES Capital CP Funding Holdings LL Delaware
Ivy Hill Asset Management GP, LL Delaware
10th Street Equity, LL( Delaware
A.C. Corporatior Delaware
ARCC S2 LLC (f/k/a AC Postle, LLC Delaware
ACC Universal Corporatio Delaware
ACE Products Holding Corj Delaware
AIC Universal Corporatiol Delaware
ALD TBB/WIN Equity, LLC Delaware
AMP Admin LLC Delaware
Alaris Consulting, LLC Delaware
Albras Equity, LLC Delaware
Allbridge Equity, LLC Delaware
Allied Capital Holdings LLC Delaware
Allied Crescent Equity, LLC Delaware
Name Jurisdiction
Amerex Equity Corporatio Delaware
ARCC Imperial POF LLC (f/k/a Amerex Equity LL( Delaware
Aviation Properties Corporatic Delaware
Binks Equity Corp Delaware
Calder Capital Partners, LL Delaware

Calder Equity, LLC Delaware



Calder Investment Partners L1 Delaware

Cleveland East Equity, LL! Delaware
Conectel, Inc Delaware
Crescent Equity Cory Delaware
Dynamic Equity, LLC Delaware
Financial Pacific Compan Washingtor
Foresite Equity, LLC Delaware
GlobalCom Equity, LLC Delaware
Havco Equity Corporatio Delaware
HCI Equity, LLC lllinois
IAT Equity, LLC Delaware
Multiad Equity Corp. Delaware
NPH, Inc. Maryland
Old Orchard Equity Corg Delaware
Postle Equity Corg Delaware
RWI, LLC Delaware
S2 Equity Corp Delaware
Slate Equity, LLC Delaware
SMF Il Equity, LLC Delaware
Soteria Mezzanine Corporatis Delaware
Stag Equity, LLC Delaware
Startec Equity, LLC Delaware
Subfractional Motors, Inc Delaware
Transamerican Equity Corporati Delaware
Van Ness Hotel, In¢ Delaware

In addition, we may be deemed to contralaie portfolio companies identified as "Affiliattdompanies that we "Control" in footnote
(7) to the Consolidated Schedule of Investmentsf @ecember 31, 2012 included in the Financialestents portion of Ares Capital
Corporation's Form 10-K for the year ended Decertie£012.




QuickLinks
Exhibit 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF ARES CAPITAL CORPORATION



QuickLinks-- Click here to rapidly navigate through this domnt

Exhibit 31.1

Certification of President
of Periodic Report Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and &We 15d-14(a)

[, Michael J. Arougheti, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Repartrarm 10-K of Ares Capital Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this repodsdnot contain any untrue statement of a mat@galor omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finansiatements, and other financial information ineltich this report, fairly present in all mate|
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifyin§iagr and | are responsible for establishing anéhtaming disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls@odedures, or caused such disclosure controlprargdures to be designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duriig teriod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control ovealfficial reporting, or caused such internal cordxar financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thgsteant's disclosure controls and procedures agsepted in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure containts procedures, as of the end of the period coueyehis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any chanyéhie registrant's internal control over financggorting that occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahmeport) that has materially affected,
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the gant's internal control over financial reportiagd

5. The registrant's other certifyinfjadr and | have disclosed, based on our most teneaiuation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetamnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and miad weaknesses in the design or operation of malezontrol over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial information;
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materiakt involves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Date: February 27, 2013

/sl MICHAEL J. AROUGHETI

Michael J. Arougheti
President
(Principal Executive Officer
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Exhibit 31.2

Certification of Chief Financial Officer
of Periodic Report Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a) and &We 15d-14(a)

[, Penni F. Roll, certify that:
1. I have reviewed this Annual Repartrarm 10-K of Ares Capital Corporation;

2. Based on my knowledge, this repodsdnot contain any untrue statement of a mat@galor omit to state a material fact necessary
to make the statements made, in light of the cistances under which such statements were madmisieading with respect to the period
covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the finansiatements, and other financial information ineltich this report, fairly present in all mate|
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amgtfe@ periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant's other certifyin§iagr and | are responsible for establishing anéhtaming disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))%(nd internal control over financial reportirg @defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-
15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(a) Designed such disclosure controls@odedures, or caused such disclosure controlprargdures to be designed under
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhgibsidiaries, is made known to us
others within those entities, particularly duriig teriod in which this report is being prepared;

(b) Designed such internal control ovealfficial reporting, or caused such internal cordxar financial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodiand the preparation of financial
statements for external purposes in accordancegeitierally accepted accounting principles;

(c) Evaluated the effectiveness of thgsteant's disclosure controls and procedures agsepted in this report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure containts procedures, as of the end of the period coueyehis report based on such
evaluation; and

(d) Disclosed in this report any chanyéhie registrant's internal control over financggorting that occurred during the
registrant's most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an ahmeport) that has materially affected,
is reasonably likely to materially affect, the gant's internal control over financial reportiagd

5. The registrant's other certifyinfjadr and | have disclosed, based on our most teneaiuation of internal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant's auditors and thetamnmittee of the registrant's board of direct@spersons performing the equivalent
functions):

(@) All significant deficiencies and miad weaknesses in the design or operation of malezontrol over financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrbgistrant's ability to record, process, summaaizé report financial information;
and

(b) Any fraud, whether or not materiakt involves management or other employees who aaignificant role in the
registrant's internal control over financial repugt

Date: February 27, 2013

/s/ PENNI F. ROLL

Penni F. Roll
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer
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Exhibit 32.1

Certification of President and Chief Financial Officer
Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350

In connection with the Annual Report on Form 10fKAces Capital Corporation (the "Company") for §ear ended December 31, 2012 as
filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissiohe date hereof (the "Report"), Michael J. Arcetgjlas President of the Company, and
Penni F. Roll, as Chief Financial Officer of ther@many, each hereby certifies, pursuant to 18 U.SeCtion 1350, as adopted pursuant to
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, tieathe best of his knowledge:

1. The Report fully complies with trequirements of Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the SéiesrExchange Act of 1934; and

2. The information contained in the Befairly presents, in all material respects, fihancial condition and results of operations of
the Company.

Date: February 27, 2013

/sl MICHAEL J. AROUGHETI

Michael J. Arougheti
President
(Principal Executive Officer

/s/ PENNI F. ROLL

Penni F. Roll
Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial Officer

A signed original of this written statement reqdit®y Section 906, or other document authenticaticgnowledging, or otherwise adopting
the signature that appears in typed form withindgleetronic version of this written statement regdiby Section 906, has been provided to
Ares Capital Corporation and will be retained by#Capital Corporation and furnished to the Seesridnd Exchange Commission or its
staff upon request.
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